
Page 1 of 4 

 

AGENDA 
CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
MONDAY, OCTOBER 02, 2023 

7:00 PM AT CITY HALL, 220 CLAY STREET 

 

 
 
Call to Order by the Mayor 

Roll Call 

Pledge of Allegiance 

Approval of Minutes 

1. Regular meeting of September 18, 2023. 

Agenda Revisions 

Special Presentations 

2. Proclamation recognizing October 4, 2023 as Energy Efficiency Day. 

3. Proclamation recognizing October 1-7, 2023 as Public Power Week. 

4. Proclamation recognizing October 12, 2023 as Children's Environmental Health Day. 

5. Proclamation recognizing October 2023 as Domestic Violence Awareness Month. 

Public Forum. (Speakers will have one opportunity to speak for up to 5 minutes on topics relevant to City 

business.) 

Staff Updates 

Special Order of Business 

6. Public hearing on a proposed ordinance granting a partial property tax exemption to KL Iowa 01, LLC 
for construction of a warehouse and manufacturing facility at 6313 Production Drive. 
 
a) Receive and file proof of publication of notice of hearing. (Notice published September 23, 2023) 
 
b) Written communications filed with the City Clerk. 
 
c) Staff comments. 
 
d) Public comments. 
 
e) Pass an ordinance granting a partial property tax exemption to KL Iowa 01, LLC for construction of 
a warehouse and manufacturing facility at 6313 Production Drive, upon its first consideration. 

Consent Calendar: (The following items will be acted upon by voice vote on a single motion without separate 
discussion, unless someone from the Council or public requests that a specific item be considered separately.) 

7. Receive and file the City Council Standing Committee minutes of September 18, 2023 relative to the 
following items: 
a) Cedar Falls Community Foundation Presentation. 
b) Cedar River Dam and Future Options for the Dam. 

1



Page 2 of 4 

8. Receive and file the Special City Council Standing Committee minutes of September 18, 2023 
relative to the following item: 
a) 12th & Clay Street Intersection. 

9. Approve the following recommendations of the Mayor relative to the appointment of members to 
Boards and Commissions: 
a) Jack Yates, Bicycle and Pedestrian Commission, term ending 09/30/2027. 
b) Andrew Shroll, Bicycle and Pedestrian Commission, term ending 09/30/2026. 
c) Roger White, Bicycle and Pedestrian Commission, term ending 09/30/2025. 
d) John DeGroote, Bicycle and Pedestrian Commission, term ending 09/30/2025. 
e) Lauri Young, Bicycle and Pedestrian Commission, term ending 09/30/2024. 

10. Receive and file communications from the Civil Service Commission relative to the following certified 
lists: 
a) Civil CAD/GIS Technician. 
b) Engineering Technician II. 

11. Receive and file Departmental Monthly Reports of August 2023. 

12. Approve the application of Prime Mart, 2728 Center Street, for a cigarette/tobacco/nicotine/vapor 
permit. 

13. Approve the following applications for retail alcohol licenses: 
a) Blue Room, 201 Main Street, Class C retail alcohol - renewal. 
b) Hilton Garden Inn, 7213 Nordic Drive, Class C retail alcohol & outdoor service - renewal. 
c) Peppers Grill & Sports Pub, 620 East 18th Street, Class C retail alcohol - renewal. 
d) SingleSpeed Brewing Co., 128 Main Street, Class C retail alcohol, Special Class A beer & outdoor 
service - renewal. 
e) The Landmark, 107 Main Street, Class C retail alcohol & outdoor service - renewal. 
f) Fareway Store, 214 North Magnolia Drive, Class E retail alcohol - renewal. 
g) Peppers Grill & Sports Pub, 620 East 18th Street, Class C retail alcohol – change in ownership. 
h) Fleet Farm, 400 West Ridgeway Avenue, Class B retail alcohol - new. 
i) Fleet Farm Fuel, 108 West Ridgeway Avenue, Class B retail alcohol - new. 
j) Hampton Inn & Suites, 101 West 1st Street, Class B retail alcohol - new. 
k) Murphy USA, 518 Brandilynn Boulevard, Class B retail alcohol- new. 
l) Prime Mart, 2728 Center Street, Class E retail alcohol – new – change in ownership. 

Resolution Calendar: (The following items will be acted upon by roll call vote on a single motion without 
separate discussion, unless someone from the Council or public requests that a specific item be considered 
separately.) 

14. Resolution Calendar with items considered separately. 

15. Resolution approving the recommendation of the Director of Finance & Business Operations by 
appointing Kim Kerr as City Clerk. 

16. Resolution levying a final assessment for costs incurred by the City to mow the property located at 
1321 West 12th Street. 

17. Resolution levying a final assessment for costs incurred by the City to mow the property located at 
3120 Homeway Drive. 

18. Resolution approving and authorizing execution of a Solutions Agreement with CentralSquare 
Technologies, LLC for an Enterprise Resource Planning (ERP) system to replace the City’s financial 
and payroll systems. 

19. Resolution approving and authorizing execution of a Second Amendment to Professional Services 
Agreement with Berry, Dunn, McNeil & Parker, LLC for project management services relative to 
replacement of the City’s financial and payroll systems. (Contingent upon approval of previous item). 

20. Resolution approving and authorizing execution of an Agreement with The SpyGlass Group, LLC to 
provide an audit of the City’s telephone billing. 

2



Page 3 of 4 

21. Resolution approving and authorizing execution of a Master Services Agreement with FRSecure LLC 
for vulnerability and penetration testing services relative to the security of the City's network. 

22. Resolution approving the Certificate of Completion and accepting the work of Peters Construction 
Corporation for the City Hall Remodel Project. 

23. Resolution approving a Cedar Falls Utilities Electric, Gas, Water, and Communications Utility 
Installation or Relocation Project in the Cedar Falls Unified Highway 58 Corridor Urban Renewal 
Area. 

24. Resolution approving and authorizing execution of an Agreement to Enhance Economic 
Development in Cedar Falls with the Cedar Falls Economic Development Corporation (CFEDC) for 
FY2024. 

25. Resolution approving a change order and authorizing execution of a Forgivable Loan Agreement, 
and approving and accepting a Real Estate Mortgage relative to a Community Development Block 
Grant (CDBG) owner-occupied housing rehabilitation project. 

26. Resolution approving and authorizing execution of a Repair Contract with Tojo Construction, Inc. 
relative to a Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) housing rehabilitation project. 

27. Resolution approving a College Hill Neighborhood (CHN) Overlay Zoning District site plan for 
installation of panels to display artwork at 2016 College Street. 

28. Resolution approving and accepting a Forgivable Loan Agreement and Real Estate Mortgage for 
property located at 1310 Iowa Street relative to the Rental to Single Family Owner Conversion 
Incentive Program. 

29. Resolution approving and accepting a Forgivable Loan Agreement and Real Estate Mortgage for 
property located at 1205 West 7th Street relative to the Rental to Single Family Owner Conversion 
Incentive Program. 

30. Resolution approving a PC-2, Planned Commercial Zoning District site plan relative to construction 
of a storage building at 702 LeClair Street. 

31. Resolution approving an amendment to the Pinnacle Prairie Master Plan by reducing the number of 
units planned for Lot 2, Pinnacle Prairie Townhomes, Phase I. 

32. Resolution setting October 16, 2023 as the date of public hearing to consider vacating a drainage 
easement on Lots 17 & 18 in West Viking Road Industrial Park Phase V. 

33. Resolution setting October 16, 2023 as the date of public hearing to consider entering into an 
Agreement for Private Development, and to consider conveyance of city-owned real estate to KL 
Iowa 02, LLC. 

34. Resolution setting October 16, 2023 as the date of public hearing on a proposal to undertake a 
public improvement project for the North Cedar Heights Area Reconstruction Project – Phase II, and 
to authorize acquisition of private property for said project. 

35. Resolution setting October 16, 2023 as the date of public hearing on a proposal to undertake a 
public improvement project for the West Viking Road Reconstruction Project, and to authorize 
acquisition of private property for said project. 

36. Resolution setting October 16, 2023 as the date of public hearing on proposed amendments to 
Chapter 26, Zoning relative to shared parking requirements in the Downtown Character District (CD-
DT). 

Allow Bills and Claims 

37. Allow Bills and Claims for October 2, 2023. 

3



Page 4 of 4 

Council Updates and Announcements 

Council Referrals 

Adjournment 

4



CITY HALL 
CEDAR FALLS, IOWA, SEPTEMBER 18, 2023 

REGULAR MEETING, CITY COUNCIL 
MAYOR ROBERT M. GREEN PRESIDING 

  
The City Council of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, met in Regular Session, 
pursuant to law, the rules of said Council and prior notice given each member 
thereof, at 7:00 P.M. on the above date. Members present: Schultz, deBuhr, 
Kruse, Harding, Ganfield, Sires, Dunn. Absent: None. Mayor Green led the 
Pledge of Allegiance. 
 

54453 - It was moved by Kruse and seconded by Schultz that the minutes of the Regular 
Meeting of September 5, 2023 be approved as presented and ordered of record. 
Motion carried unanimously. 

 
54454 - Mayor Green read the following proclamations: 
 

Proclamation recognizing September 23, 2023 as Women in Politics Day. Miss 
Black Hawk Valley Josie Hove commented. 

Proclamation recognizing October 1-7, 2023 as Earth Science Week. BMC 
Aggregates Geologist Sherm Lundy and University of Northern Iowa student 
Jacob Campbell commented on the dangers of radon gas and provided details 
on “Sunday at the Quarry” in Waterloo on October 1 from 10AM-4PM. 

54455 - John Mershon, Cedar Falls, commented on safety concerns at the intersection of 
12th and Clay Street regarding enforcing the speed limit and a safe crosswalk. 
Mayor Green and Councilmember Sires commented. 

 
  Pastor Larry Stumme, St. Paul Lutheran Church Cedar Falls, commented on 

statistics from 2018 listing the Waterloo/Cedar Falls area as the worst place for 
blacks to live in the United States and presented pictures of dilapidated buildings 
and asked for help from the city. 

 
  Donna Bash, Cedar Falls, commented on safety concerns at the Gateway Park 

ice skating rink and asked for a separate rink for ice skaters.  Mayor Green and 
City Administrator Gaines responded. 

 
  Rachel Mershon, Cedar Falls, commented on the speed limit and safety 

concerns on 12th Street and requested a flashing 4-way stop sign and a marked 
crosswalk at the intersection of 12th and Clay Streets. 

 
  Terry Vietor, Cedar Falls, expressed concerns with the speed limit, large trucks 

and other safety concerns on 12th Street and requested a 4-way stop sign. 
 
  Reverend Michael Blackwell, Cedar Falls, spoke about racism and the need for 

action in Cedar Falls. 
 
   

5

Item 1.



 
 

 

- 2 - 

 

 
54456 -     Public Works Director Schrage announced that the Downtown Streetscape 

Project received the 2023 Outstanding Civil Engineering Achievement Award 
from the American Society of Civil Engineers.  

   
  Community Development Director Sheetz announced the Groundbreaking 

Ceremony for the Cedar River Recreation Project is being held on Tuesday, 
October 19th at Gateway Park.  

 
54457 - Mayor Green announced that in accordance with the public notice of September 

9, 2023, this was the time and place for a public hearing to consider conveyance 
of certain city-owned real estate located adjacent to 6317 Development Drive to 
KATZ Properties, LLC. It was then moved by Kruse and seconded by Dunn that 
the proof of publication of notice of hearing be received and placed on file. 
Motion carried unanimously. 

 
54458 - The Mayor then asked if there were any written communications filed to the 

proposed conveyance. Upon being advised that there were no written 
communications on file, the Mayor then called for oral comments. Economic 
Development Coordinator Graham provided a summary of the proposed 
conveyance. There being no one else present wishing to speak about the 
proposed conveyance, the Mayor declared the hearing closed and passed to the 
next order of business. 

 
54459 - It was moved by Harding and seconded by Dunn that Resolution #23,312, 

approving and authorizing execution of a Quit Claim Deed conveying title of 
certain city-owned real estate located adjacent to 6317 Development Drive to 
KATZ Properties, LLC, be adopted. Following due consideration by the Council, 
the Mayor put the question on the motion and upon call of the roll, the following 
named Councilmembers voted. Aye: Schultz, deBuhr, Kruse, Harding, Ganfield, 
Sires, Dunn. Nay: None. Motion carried. The Mayor then declared Resolution 
#23,312 duly passed and adopted. 

 
54460 -    It was moved by deBuhr and seconded by Ganfield that Ordinance #3041, 

amending Chapter 26, Zoning, of the Code of Ordinances relative to parking 
requirements for institutional uses in the Downtown Character District (CD-DT), 
be passed upon its third and final consideration. Following a supportive comment 
by Roger Kueter, Cedar Falls, the Mayor put the question on the motion and 
upon call of the roll, the following named Councilmembers voted. Aye: Schultz, 
deBuhr, Kruse, Harding, Ganfield, Sires. Nay: Dunn. Motion carried. The Mayor 
then declared Ordinance #3041 duly passed and adopted. 

 
54461-    It was moved by Kruse and seconded by Harding that Ordinance #3042, 

amending Chapter 2, Administration, of the Code of Ordinances relative to 
establishing a Bicycle and Pedestrian Commission, be passed upon its third and 
final consideration. Following a supportive comment by Roger White, Cedar 
Falls, the Mayor put the question on the motion and upon call of the roll, the 
following named Councilmembers voted. Aye: Schultz, Kruse, Harding, Ganfield, 

6

Item 1.



 
 

 

- 3 - 

 

Sires, Dunn. Nay: deBuhr. Motion carried. The Mayor then declared Ordinance 
#3042 duly passed and adopted. 

 
54462-    It was moved by Kruse and seconded by Harding that Ordinance #3043, 

amending Chapter 23, Traffic and Motor Vehicles, of the Code of Ordinances 
relative to prohibiting parking on certain portions of Dakota Street, be passed 
upon its third and final consideration. Following a supportive comment by 
University of Northern Iowa Student Liaison Noah Hackbart, the Mayor put the 
question on the motion and upon call of the roll, the following named 
Councilmembers voted. Aye: Schultz, Kruse, Harding, Ganfield, Sires, Dunn. 
Nay: deBuhr. Motion carried. The Mayor then declared Ordinance #3043 duly 
passed and adopted. 

 
54463 - It was moved by Harding and seconded by Kruse that the following items on the 

Consent Calendar be received, filed and approved: 
 

 Receive and file the City Council Standing Committee minutes of September 5, 
2023 relative to the following item: 
a) Future Forward Cedar Falls 2025: Community Wide Strategic Plan. 

 Approve the following applications for retail alcohol licenses: 
a) Escapology Cedar Falls, 2518 Melrose Drive, Special Class C retail alcohol - 
renewal. 
b) Holiday Inn & Suites Hotel/Event Center, 7400 Hudson Road, Class C retail 
alcohol & outdoor service - renewal. 
c) The Ragged Edge Art Bar & Gallery, 504 Bluff Street, Class C retail alcohol & 
outdoor service – renewal. 
d) Whiskey Road Tavern & Grill, 402 Main Street, Class C retail alcohol & 
outdoor service - temporary additional outdoor service. (September 23, 2023) 
e) Aldi Inc., 315 Brandilynn Boulevard, Class B retail alcohol - new. 

 Motion carried unanimously.   

54464 - It was moved by Harding and seconded by Kruse that the following resolutions 
be introduced and adopted: 

 
 Resolution #23,313, approving and authorizing execution of a Cooperative 

Agreement with the Iowa Civil Rights Commission for FY24. 

 Resolution #23,314, levying a final assessment for costs incurred by the City to 
mow the property located at 1113 Lindale Road. 

 Resolution #23,315, levying a final assessment for costs incurred by the City to 
mow the property located at 1119 Calumett Drive. 

 Resolution #23,316, levying a final assessment for costs incurred by the City to 
mow the property located at 2520 Central Avenue. 

 Resolution #23,317, approving and accepting Local Fire Protection and 
Emergency Medical Services Grant Program funding from the Iowa State Fire 

7

Item 1.



 
 

 

- 4 - 

 

Marshal Division relative to providing fireworks safety education materials. 

 Resolution #23,318, approving and authorizing submission of an Enhance Iowa 
Community Attraction & Tourism (CAT) Grant application for funding assistance 
relative to the Cedar Falls High School community swimming pool located at 
West 27th Street. 

 Resolution #23,319, approving and authorizing submission of a grant application 
to the Black Hawk County Gaming Association for funding assistance relative to 
the Cedar Falls High School community swimming pool located at West 27th 
Street. 

 Resolution #23,320, approving and authorizing execution of a Memorandum of 
Understanding with the City of Waterloo, contracting with Mosaic Community 
Planning for preparation of a 5-Year Consolidated Action Plan and updated 
Analysis of Impediments relative to Community Development Block Grant 
(CDBG) and HOME Programs. 

 Resolution #23,321, approving and authorizing execution of a Red House Studio 
Lease with Taylor Hansen relative to the use of 224 West Seerley Boulevard as 
artists’ studio space, in conjunction with the Hearst Center’s Visiting Artist 
Program. 

 Resolution #23,322, approving and authorizing execution of a Public Art 
Committee Agreement for Lease of Artwork with Rachel Heine relative to 
placement of a sculpture at 311 Main Street. 

 Resolution #23,323, approving and accepting a stipend from the Iowa Arts 
Council for funding operations support relative to the Poetry Out Loud 
competition at the Hearst Center. 

 Resolution #23,324, approving and authorizing submission of a GIG Fund grant 
application to Arts Midwest relative to an art invitational at the Hearst Center. 

 Resolution #23,325, approving and authorizing submission of a application for an 
Iowa Tourism Grant for funding relative to digital advertising to promote Cedar 
Falls. 

 Resolution #23,326, approving and accepting the contract and bond of Boulder 
Contracting, LLC relative to the 2023 Sidewalk Assessment Project – Zone 1. 

 Resolution #23,327, approving and accepting a Warranty Deed, in conjunction 
with the Ashworth Drive Extension Project. 

 Resolution #23,328, setting October 2, 2023 as the date of public hearing on a 
proposed ordinance granting a partial property tax exemption to KL Iowa 01, LLC 
for construction of a new warehouse and manufacturing facility at 6313 
Production Drive. 

  Following due consideration by the Council, the Mayor put the question on the 
motion and upon call of the roll, the following named Councilmembers voted. 

8

Item 1.



 
 

 

- 5 - 

 

Aye: Schultz, deBuhr, Kruse, Harding, Sires, Ganfield, Dunn. Nay: None. Motion 
carried. The Mayor then declared Resolutions #23,313 through #23,328 duly 
passed and adopted. 

54465 -  It was moved by Kruse and seconded by Harding that the bills and claims of 
September 18, 2023 be allowed as presented, and that the Controller/City 
Treasurer be authorized to issue City checks in the proper amounts and on the 
proper funds in payment of the same. Upon call of the roll, the following named 
Councilmembers voted. Aye: Schultz, deBuhr, Kruse, Harding, Ganfield, Sires, 
Dunn. Nay: None. Motion carried. 

 
54466 -     It was moved by Kruse and seconded by deBuhr to refer to the Community 

Development Committee Meeting on October 2, 2023, discussion on the College 
Hill Visioning Plan. Following comments and questions by Councilmembers 
Harding, Dunn, Schultz, Kruse, and deBuhr, and Mayor Green, the motion 
carried 4-3, with Schultz, Harding and Dunn voting Nay.  

  
    It was moved by Sires and seconded by Schultz to hold a Special Meeting as 

soon as possible to discuss safety options at 12th and Clay Street. Following 
comments and questions by Councilmembers Sires, Schultz, Ganfield, Harding, 
and Kruse, and responses by Public Safety Director Berte, City Administrator 
Gaines, and Mayor Green, it was moved by Kruse and seconded by Ganfield to 
amend the motion to hold a Public Works Committee Meeting immediately 
following adjournment of the City Council Meeting. Following questions and 
comments by Councilmembers deBuhr, Sires, Harding, Kruse, Ganfield, and 
Dunn, and responses by Public Works Director Schrage, Mayor Green, Berte, 
and Gaines, the motion to amend carried 6-1, with Dunn voting Nay. The Mayor 
then put the question on the original motion as amended. Motion carried 6-1, with 
Dunn voting Nay. 

 
54467 -     It was moved by Kruse and seconded by Harding to adjourn to Executive 

Session to discuss Legal Matters per Iowa Code Section 21.5(1)(c) to discuss 
strategy with counsel in matters that are presently in litigation or where litigation 
is imminent where its disclosure would be likely to prejudice or disadvantage the 
position of the governmental body in that litigation. Upon call of the roll, the 
following named Councilmembers voted.  Aye: Schultz, deBuhr, Kruse, Harding, 
Ganfield, Sires, Dunn.  Nay: None.  Motion carried. 

 
     The City Council adjourned to Executive Session at 8:21 P.M. 
 
     Mayor Green reconvened the Council meeting at 8:44 P.M.   
    
54468 - It was moved by Dunn and seconded by Kruse that the meeting be adjourned at 

8:45 P.M. Motion carried unanimously. 
 
 
                                                           __________________________________ 
                                                           Kim Kerr, CMC, Administrative Supervisor 

 

9

Item 1.



 

                               MAYOR ROBERT M. GREEN 

CITY OF CEDAR FALLS 

220 CLAY STREET 

CEDAR FALLS, IA 50613 

 

 

    

 

WHEREAS, energy efficiency is the art of getting the same or better performance using less 
energy, while cutting utility bills for residential, business, and industrial customers; and 

WHEREAS, affordable, reliable energy is vital to our economic prosperity and energy 
efficiency is the most productive and cost-effective way to meet our energy needs; and 

WHEREAS, implementing clean energy policies and programs helps boost economic 
opportunities and job creation while continuing to move toward a sustainable future, and 
energy efficiency saves U.S. energy consumers billions of dollars on their utility bills annually; 
and 

WHEREAS, smarter energy use reduces the amount of electricity we need to power our lives, 
which helps avoid power plant emissions that can harm our health, pollute our air, and warm 
our climate; and 

WHEREAS, more than 2.2 million Americans work in the energy efficiency sector in local, 
good-paying, clean energy jobs that can't be outsourced and increasing efficiency will create 
more of them; and 

WHEREAS, Cedar Falls Utilities and Cedar Falls residents have been actively engaged in 
energy efficiency efforts since the 1970s, with notable successes; and 

WHEREAS, together the residents of Cedar Falls can continue to contribute to our 
sustainability efforts by learning more about energy efficiency and practicing smarter energy 
use in our daily lives; 

NOW THEREFORE, I, Robert M. Green, Mayor of the City of Cedar Falls, do hereby proclaim 
October 4, 2023 as 

ENERGY EFFICIENCY DAY 
throughout the city and urge all Cedar Falls residents to learn more about energy efficiency at 
https://www.cfu.net/save-energy and https://energyefficiencyday.org and to join in the 
City's efforts to achieve clean energy goals for the sake of future generations.  
 

             

Signed this 25th day of September, 2023. 

_____ 

_________________________________    
   MAYOR ROBERT M. GREEN 

 
10

Item 2.



 

                               MAYOR ROBERT M. GREEN 

CITY OF CEDAR FALLS 

220 CLAY STREET 

CEDAR FALLS, IA 50613 

 
 

    

 
 

WHEREAS, Cedar Falls Utilities (CFU) provides our homes, businesses, schools, and social 
service and local government agencies with reliable, efficient, and safe electricity, natural gas 
and water services, employing sound business practices designed to ensure the best possible 
service at not-for-profit rates; and 

WHEREAS, CFU is a valuable community asset that contributes to the well-being of local 
citizens through energy efficiency, customer service, environmental protection, economic 
development, and safety awareness; and 

WHEREAS, CFU has also taken on additional stewardship for our community’s information 
infrastructure through a broadband network providing internet, cable television, and 
telephone services, expanding community and economic development opportunities; and 

WHEREAS, CFU is a dependable and trustworthy institution whose local operation provides 
many consumer protections and continues to make our community a better place to live and 
work, and contributes to protecting the global environment; and 

WHEREAS, CFU will continue to work to bring low-cost, safe, reliable, and sustainable 
electricity to community homes and businesses just as it has since 1913, the year when the 
utility was created to serve all the citizens of Cedar Falls;  

NOW THEREFORE, I, Robert M. Green, Mayor of the City of Cedar Falls, do hereby proclaim the 
week of October 1-7, 2023 as 

PUBLIC POWER WEEK 
throughout the city to recognize the talented experts behind public power at CFU for their 
contributions to the community and to educate ratepayers, policymakers, and employees on 
the benefits of public power; and to join hands with more than 2,000 other public power 
systems in the United States in this celebration of public power, which puts our residents, 
businesses, and the community before profits.  

             

Signed this 25th day of August, 2023. 

_____ 

_________________________________    
   MAYOR ROBERT M. GREEN 

 

11

Item 3.



 

                               MAYOR ROBERT M. GREEN 

CITY OF CEDAR FALLS 

220 CLAY STREET 

CEDAR FALLS, IA 50613 

 

 

    

 

WHEREAS, the aim of Children’s Environmental Health (CEH) Day is to raise awareness about 

the importance of clean air and water, safe food and consumer products, healthy 

environments, and stable climates to children’s health and development; and  

WHEREAS, CEH Day was created by the Children’s Environmental Health Network and 

celebrated for the first time on October 13, 2016; and  

WHEREAS, CEH Day is observed on the second Thursday in October to celebrate progress of 

the children’s environmental health movement and create a strong network of child health 

advocates; and  

WHEREAS, CEH Day is a national effort supported by individuals, non-profit organizations, 

and government agencies; and 

WHEREAS, CEH Day encourages individuals and organizations to raise awareness and 

understanding of children’s environmental health issues, seek improved protections for all 

children, and to perform acts of sustainability or environmental health wellness; and  

WHEREAS, together, we can safeguard the health, safety and well-being of children 

throughout our great community;   

NOW, THEREFORE I, Robert M. Green, Mayor of the City of Cedar Falls, do hereby proclaim 

Thursday, October 12, 2023 as  

CHILDREN’S ENVIRONMENTAL 

HEALTH DAY 

in the city, I and urge citizens to observe the day with awareness-raising and environmental 

health and stewardship activities to create a healthier environment for our children. 

             

Signed this 25th day of September, 2023. 

_____ 

_________________________________    
   MAYOR ROBERT M. GREEN 

 
12

Item 4.



 

                               MAYOR ROBERT M. GREEN 

CITY OF CEDAR FALLS 

220 CLAY STREET 

CEDAR FALLS, IA 50613 

 
 

    
 

WHEREAS, one in three women, and one in four men will experience some form of domestic 

violence during their lifetime; and 

WHEREAS, intimate partner violence impacts victims, children, family, friends, and the 

community at large; and 

WHEREAS, domestic violence is not confined to any group or groups of people, but is 

experienced in all economic, racial, ethnic, educational, societal, and religious groups and is 

sustained by societal indifference; and  

WHEREAS, perpetrators of domestic violence must be held accountable for their actions and 

victims should have access to services to help them overcome their experience; and  

WHEREAS, it is important to recognize the compassion and dedication of the individuals who 

provide support to victims of intimate partner violence and work to increase public 

understanding of this significant societal problem; and 

WHEREAS, all community members must work together to stop this heinous crime; 

NOW, THEREFORE I, Robert M. Green, Mayor of the City of Cedar Falls, do hereby proclaim 

the month of October 2023 as:  

DOMESTIC VIOLENCE 

AWARENESS MONTH 
throughout the city, and I encourage residents to support Waypoint Services and other 

domestic violence response and advocacy organizations, and to join the Gentleman 

Campaign© on October 18 to encourage our community to work together to eliminate the 

scourge of domestic violence from our society. 

             

Signed this 25th day of September, 2023. 

_____ 

_________________________________    
   MAYOR ROBERT M. GREEN 

 

13

Item 5.



    ADMINISTRATION 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-273-8600 
Fax: 319-273-8610 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 
MEMORANDUM 

  

   

 

 

 
 

 

 TO: Honorable Mayor Robert M. Green and City Council 

 FROM: Shane Graham, Economic Development Coordinator 

 DATE: September 22, 2023 

SUBJECT:      KL Iowa 01, LLC – Industrial Partial Property Tax Exemption 
   6313 Production Drive in West Viking Road Industrial Park 
 
 
On March 7, 2022, City Council approved a Development Agreement with KL Iowa 01, 
LLC for a new 50,000 sf. industrial use manufacturing facility located within the West 
Viking Road Industrial Park. Work on the $3,200,000 new building at 6313 Production 
Drive began last year and has recently been completed. 
 
As part of the executed Development Agreement approved by City Council, the City of 
Cedar Falls committed to the following actions: 
 

1. Transfer of Lots 9, 10 and 11 of West Viking Road Industrial Park Phase I to KL 
Iowa 01, LLC (Completed).   

 

2. Adoption of an Ordinance granting a partial exemption from taxation of industrial 
property as may be provided by Sections 21-48 through 21-57 of the Cedar Falls 
Code of Ordinances, and by Chapter 427B, Code of Iowa, with respect to the 
Development Property. 
 

Item #1 noted above was completed in March 2022.  The remaining item to be 
completed by the City of Cedar Falls as part of the Development Agreement is formal 
adoption of a Partial Property Tax Exemption Ordinance. Since construction of the new 
building has been completed, it is now necessary to move forward with Ordinance 
adoption. 
 
The applicable 5-Year Partial Property Tax Exemption schedule is estimated as follows 
based upon the $3,200,000 valuation of the KL Iowa 01, LLC building, 10% 
commercial/industrial valuation rollback, and the FY24 tax rate of $33.78/$1,000 
valuation ($97,286 annually): 
 
 
 

14

Item 6.



 
  Exemption % Exempt $ Amount Paid $ Amount 
 
Year 1  75%   $72,965  $24,322 
Year 2  60%   $58,372  $38,915 
Year 3  45%   $43,779  $53,507 
Year 4  30%   $29,186  $68,100 
Year 5  15%   $14,593  $82,693 
     $218,894  $267,537 
 
Staff recommends that in accordance with our executed Development Agreement, City 
Council approve and adopt the following ordinance through the normal three reading 
process: 
 

1. Ordinance establishing a partial property tax exemption on the actual value 
added to real estate by new construction consisting of a 50,000 square foot 
industrial use manufacturing facility constructed on property owned by KL Iowa 
01, LLC, located at 6313 Production Drive, Cedar Falls, Iowa.  

 

If you have any questions pertaining to this memorandum or project, please feel free to 
contact me. 
 
xc:  Ron Gaines, P.E., City Administrator 
 
 
         
        
 
 
 

15

Item 6.



Venture Way

Ar
bo

rs
Dr

Capital Way

Technology Pkwy

W Viking Rd

Tec
hn

olo
gy

Pl

De
ve

lop
me

nt 
Dr

Production Dr

I

Hawkeye
Corrugated

Box

Ashley
Furniture

Distribution
Center

Project Location

KL Iowa 01, LLC
51,000 sq. ft.
Manufacturing Facility

Bossard

D. LaPorte Air King

Zuidberg

16

Item 6.



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

Prepared by: Shane Graham, Economic Development Coordinator, 220 Clay Street, Cedar Falls, IA 50613, (319) 273-8600 

 
 

ORDINANCE NO. ______ 
 
AN ORDINANCE ESTABLISHING A PARTIAL PROPERTY TAX EXEMPTION OF THE 

ACTUAL VALUE ADDED TO REAL ESTATE BY NEW CONSTRUCTION 
CONSISTING OF A 50,000 SQUARE FOOT INDUSTRIAL USE WAREHOUSE AND 

MANUFACTURING FACILITY CONSTRUCTED ON PROPERTY OWNED BY KL 
IOWA 01, LLC, LOCATED AT 6313 PRODUCTION DRIVE, CEDAR FALLS, IOWA  

 
  
 WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, has by ordinance 
provided a partial exemption from property taxation of the actual value added to real 
estate by certain new construction, as authorized in Section 427B.1, Code of Iowa, with 
said exemption being provided for in Division 2, Partial Exemptions for Industrial Property, 
of Article II, Tax Exemptions, of Chapter 21, Taxation, of the Code of Ordinances of the 
City of Cedar Falls, Iowa; and 
 
 WHEREAS, KL Iowa 01, LLC, has recently completed and owns an approximate 
50,000 square foot industrial use warehouse and manufacturing facility on property 
owned by KL Iowa 01, LLC, located at 6313 Production Drive, Cedar Falls, Iowa, and has 
requested a partial property tax exemption as provided in the Iowa Code and the Cedar 
Falls Code of Ordinances; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the City Council conducted a public hearing on the proposal for said 
exemption on the 2nd day of October, 2023, and more than thirty (30) days have elapsed 
since the date of public hearing, as required by Section 427B.1, Code of Iowa; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the City Council deems it appropriate pursuant to state law and city 
ordinance to grant said exemption. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 
OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA: 
 
 Section 1. The City Council of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, by this Ordinance 
hereby grants a partial exemption from property taxation of the actual value added to real 
estate by new construction of an approximate 50,000 square foot industrial use 

17

Item 6.



warehouse and manufacturing facility constructed by KL Iowa 01, LLC, on property owned 
by KL Iowa 01, LLC, located at 6313 Production Drive, Cedar Falls, Iowa, legally 
described as: 
 
Lots 9, 10 and 11, West Viking Road Industrial Park Phase I, City of Cedar Falls, Black 
Hawk County, Iowa (Contains 4.35 acres more or less), 
 
by December 31, 2023, to the extent and upon the terms and conditions provided for in 
Sections 427B.1 through 427B.7 of the Code of Iowa, and Sections 21-48 through 21-57 
of the Code of Ordinances of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa. Responsibility for the proper 
and timely filing of an application for exemption with the Black Hawk County Assessor is 
that of the property owner. The amount of actual value added which is eligible to be 
exempt from taxation shall be as follows: 
 

1. For the first assessment year after the Minimum Improvements are fully 
assessed, 75% exemption of the actual value added. 

 

2. For the second assessment year after the Minimum Improvements are fully 
assessed, 60% exemption of the actual value added. 

 

3. For the third assessment year after the Minimum Improvements are fully 
assessed, 45% exemption of the actual value added. 

 

4. For the fourth assessment year after the Minimum Improvements are fully 
assessed, 30% exemption of the actual value added. 

 

5. For the fifth assessment year after the Minimum Improvements are fully 
assessed, 15% exemption of the actual value added. 

 
 
INTRODUCED:     October 2, 2023  
 
PASSED 1st CONSIDERATION:       
 
PASSED 2nd CONSIDERATION:       
 
PASSED 3rd CONSIDERATION:       
 
ADOPTED:          
 
 
 

_____________________________ 
                                                                           Robert M. Green, Mayor 
ATTEST: 
 
 
____________________________________ 
Jacqueline Danielsen, MMC, City Clerk 

18

Item 6.



 
 

MEETING OF STANDING COMMITTEES 
City Hall, 220 Clay Street 

September 18, 2023 
 

The meeting of Standing Committees met at City Hall at 6:15 p.m. on September 18, 2023, with 
the following Committee persons in attendance: Councilmembers Susan deBuhr, Kelly Dunn, 
Simon Harding, Daryl Kruse, Dustin Ganfield, Gil Schultz, and Dave Sires. Staff members from 
all City Departments and members of the community attended in person.   
 
Finance & Business Operations Committee: 
Chair Dunn called the meeting to order and introduced the only item on the Finance & Business 
Operations Committee, Cedar Falls Community Foundation Presentation, and introduced Cedar 
Falls Community Foundation Executive Director, Sally Timmer. Director Timmer explained their 
mission and vision, and introduced John Lehman, Cedar Falls Community Foundation Board 
President. Mr. Lehman shared the city projects that were funded by competitive grants and 
children and family funds. Director Timmer presented the funds that support the Cedar Falls 
Public Library, arts, and recreation.  
 
 
Public Works Committee: 
Chair Schultz called the meeting to order and introduced the only item on the Public Works 
Committee Agenda, Cedar River Dam and Future Options for the Dam, and introduced Public 
Works Director, Chase Schrage and Operations and Maintenance Division Manager, Brian 
Heath. Director Schrage provided the history and current condition of the dam. Mr. Heath 
described the current operations and challenges with the gates. Director Schrage gave insight 
into the received 2015 Water Trails Grant that included removal of the dam and installation of 
rock arch rapids. Councilmembers and staff discussed: ice jams, pros and cons of different dam 
types, adding to future CIPs, and cost for a consultant on the project.   
 
Meeting adjourned at 6:51 p.m. 
 
 
 
Minutes by Shianne Bellinger, Administrative Assistant 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

19

Item 7.



 
 

MEETING OF STANDING COMMITTEES 
City Hall, 220 Clay Street 

September 18, 2023 
 

The meeting of Standing Committees met at City Hall at 8:46 p.m. on September 18, 2023, with 
the following Committee persons in attendance: Councilmembers Susan deBuhr, Kelly Dunn, 
Simon Harding, Daryl Kruse, Dustin Ganfield, Gil Schultz, and Dave Sires. Staff members from 
all City Departments and members of the community attended in person.   
 
Public Works Committee: 
Chair Schultz explained that this item was brought forth during a referral at the previous City 
Council Meeting on September 18th, 2023. It was moved by Kruse and seconded by Ganfield to 
hold a Public Works Committee meeting immediately following adjournment of the City Council 
Meeting. Chair Schultz called the special meeting to order and introduced the only item for the 
Public Works Committee, 12th and Clay Street Intersection. Chair Schultz introduced Public 
Works Director, Chase Schrage. Director Schrage gave an overview of 12th Street that included 
the road width, speed limit, 12th Street is considered a minor arterial road that is intended to 
carry traffic and the 24-month crash data. Councilman Harding asked about a short-term 
solution until construction is finished and a proper traffic study can be completed. Director 
Schrage expressed how a traffic study would be skewed due to the construction closure on 
West 18th Street and Main Street. Councilmembers and staff discussed: rapid flashing beacons, 
push button traffic signals, posted officers, potential traffic back up, lower speed limits, speed 
bumps, and a cross walk attendant. Ron Gaines, City Administrator, agreed to immediately 
implement painting crosswalks, using a crossing guard, adding additional pedestrian signage, 
and increasing patrol. Chair Schultz called for public comment. John Mershon expressed his 
concerns for the intersection and asked for clarification on speed bumps. Rachel Mershon 
voiced her concerns towards speed and safety. Terry Vietor spoke on traffic backup and her 
concerns for safety. Councilmembers will receive an update from staff at the Committee 
meeting on October 2nd, 2023, so staff has adequate time to collect data and evaluate the 
course of action that was implemented.  
 
 
Meeting adjourned at 9:33 p.m. 
 
 
 
Minutes by Shianne Bellinger, Administrative Assistant 

20

Item 8.



21

Item 9.



22

Item 9.



23

Item 9.



24

Item 9.



25

Item 9.



26

Item 9.



27

Item 10.



28

Item 10.



29

Item 11.



30

Item 11.



31

Item 11.



32

Item 11.



33

Item 11.



34

Item 11.



35

Item 11.



36

Item 11.



37

Item 11.



38

Item 11.



39

Item 11.



40

Item 11.



41

Item 11.



42

Item 11.



43

Item 11.



44

Item 11.



45

Item 11.



46

Item 11.



47

Item 11.



48

Item 11.



49

Item 11.



50

Item 11.



51

Item 11.



52

Item 11.



53

Item 11.



54

Item 11.



55

Item 11.



56

Item 11.



57

Item 11.



58

Item 11.



59

Item 11.



60

Item 11.



61

Item 12.



   DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC SAFETY SERVICES 

  POLICE OPERATIONS 
CITY OF CEDAR FALLS 

  4600 SOUTH MAIN STREET 
  CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 50613 
 

  319-273-8612 
 

MEMORANDUM 

To:  Mayor Green and City Councilmembers 

From:  Craig Berte, Public Safety Services Director 

  Mark Howard, Police Chief 

Date:  September 25, 2023 

Re:  Retail Alcohol License Applications 

Police Operations has received applications for retail alcohol licenses. We find no records that would 
prohibit these licenses and recommend approval. 

Name of Applicants:  

a) Blue Room, 201 Main Street, Class C retail alcohol - renewal. 

b) Hilton Garden Inn, 7213 Nordic Drive, Class C retail alcohol & outdoor service - renewal. 

c) Peppers Grill & Sports Pub, 620 East 18th Street, Class C retail alcohol - renewal. 

d) SingleSpeed Brewing Co., 128 Main Street, Class C retail alcohol, Special Class A beer & 
outdoor service - renewal. 

e) The Landmark, 107 Main Street, Class C retail alcohol & outdoor service - renewal. 

f) Fareway Store, 214 North Magnolia Drive, Class E retail alcohol - renewal. 

g) Peppers Grill & Sports Pub, 620 East 18th Street, Class C retail alcohol – change in ownership. 

h) Fleet Farm, 400 West Ridgeway Avenue, Class B retail alcohol - new. 

i) Fleet Farm Fuel, 108 West Ridgeway Avenue, Class B retail alcohol - new. 

j) Hampton Inn & Suites, 101 West 1st Street, Class B retail alcohol - new. 

k) Murphy USA, 518 Brandilynn Boulevard, Class B retail alcohol- new. 

l) Prime Mart, 2728 Center Street, Class E retail alcohol – new – change in ownership. 

 

62

Item 13.



   DEPARTMENT OF FINANCE & BUSINESS OPERATIONS 
 

CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 
220 CLAY STREET 
CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 50613 
319-273-8600 
FAX 319-268-5126 

     I N T E R O F F I C E   M E M O R A N D U M 
 

 TO: City Council Members 

 FROM: Jennifer Rodenbeck, Director of Finance & Business Operations 

 DATE: September 26, 2023 

SUBJECT:  City Clerk Appointment Recommendation 

 
As you are all aware, Jacque Danielsen has announced her retirement and the process 
for selecting her replacement has been completed. Cedar Falls City Ordinance 2-572 
(a) outlines the process for appointing the City Clerk as follows: 
 
A city clerk shall be appointed by the city council upon recommendation of the director of 

finance and business operations. 

 
The process for appointing a city clerk is a little different from appointing a police chief 
and fire chief as you will see that difference in the ordinance language above.  In 
addition, the city clerk position is specifically exempted from Civil Service per 400.6 (2) 
of the Code of Iowa.  
 
The posting for the City Clerk position was posted both internally and externally.  The 
City received sixteen applications and eleven met the minimum qualifications.  Out of 
those eleven applicants, the top five candidates were chosen to complete a 
questionnaire and participate in an interview.  The top five candidates chosen all had 
either city or county government employment experience.  After the candidates were 
interviewed, the interviewing team which consisted of myself, another department 
director, and a division manager recommended one candidate to move forward in the 
process.  That top candidate was then interviewed by myself, the City Administrator, the 
Mayor, the Mayor Pro Tem, and the Chair of the Finance & Business Operations 
Committee.  Based on the feedback from that interview, I am recommending the 
appointment of Kim Kerr to the City Clerk position.  
 
Kim has worked for the City for almost fifteen years in different capacities.  In addition, 
for six of those years she also participated in the Paid on Call Police Officer program.  
Kim has been a trustworthy and high performing employee since her employment at the 
City.  Kim has also earned her Certified Municipal Clerk certification through the 
International Institute of Municipal Clerks.  Kim has worked closely with Jacque over the 
past few years learning to be a back up for the City Clerk position.  This back up 
experience, her attention to detail, and her ability to work with elected officials and other 
departments, I believe makes her the best candidate for the position.   
 
Please consider and approve this recommendation.  If you have any questions about 
the process or Kim’s qualifications, please feel free to reach out to me.   

63

Item 15.



RESOLUTION NO.  
 

RESOLUTION APPROVING THE RECOMMENDATION AND APPOINTMENT 
OF THE CITY CLERK BY DIRECTOR OF FINANCE AND BUSINESS OPERATIONS 

FOR THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 

 
 

 WHEREAS, to address a vacancy in the position of City Clerk caused by a 

retirement in that said position; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the Director of Finance and Business Operations has the authority 

under section 2-572(a) of the City’s Code of Ordinances to recommend the appointment 

of the City Clerk; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the City conducted a search for a new city clerk and following the 

search, review and interview process of candidates, it is recommended by the Director 

of Finance and Business Operations for City Council approval under section 2-572(a) to 

appoint Kim Kerr as the City Clerk to supervise, direct and manage the Public Records 

Division; and 

 

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, deems it in the best 

interest of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, to approve the appointment. 

 

NOW THEREFORE, be it resolved by the City Council of the City of Cedar Falls, 

Iowa, that the appointment of Kim Kerr to the position of City Clerk effective November 

4, 2023 is hereby approved. 

 
 ADOPTED this 2nd of October, 2023. 
 
 
        __________________________ 
        Robert M. Green, Mayor 
ATTEST: 
 
 
_______________________________ 
Jacqueline Danielsen, MMC, City Clerk 

64

Item 15.



65

Item 16.



66

Item 16.



67

Item 16.



68

Item 16.



69

Item 16.



70

Item 16.



71

Item 16.



72

Item 16.



73

Item 16.



74

Item 16.



75

Item 16.



76

Item 16.



77

Item 16.



78

Item 16.



79

Item 16.



80

Item 16.



81

Item 16.



82

Item 16.



83

Item 16.



84

Item 16.



85

Item 16.



86

Item 17.



87

Item 17.



88

Item 17.



89

Item 17.



90

Item 17.



91

Item 17.



92

Item 17.



93

Item 17.



94

Item 17.



95

Item 17.



96

Item 17.



97

Item 17.



98

Item 17.



99

Item 17.



100

Item 17.



101

Item 17.



102

Item 17.



103

Item 17.



104

Item 17.



105

Item 17.



   DEPARTMENT OF FINANCE & BUSINESS OPERATIONS 
 

CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 
220 CLAY STREET 
CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 50613 
319-273-8600 
FAX 319-268-5126 

     I N T E R O F F I C E   M E M O R A N D U M 
 

  TO: Mayor Green & City Council Members 

 FROM: Julie Sorensen, Information Systems Manager 

  Lisa Roeding, Controller/City Treasurer 

  Jennifer Rodenbeck, Director of Finance & Business Operations 

 DATE: September 25, 2023 

 SUBJECT:  ERP System – Vendor Contract 

 
In September 2021, City staff began working with a consultant (Berry Dunn) to develop 
a Request for Proposal (RFP) for a new Enterprise Resource Planning (ERP) system to 
replace the City’s current financial and payroll legacy systems.  The current legacy 
systems are over 20 years old and are at the end of life for these systems.  Attached to 
this memo is a summary of the RFP process and the bids received by each vendor 
prepared by our consultant.   
 
In the summary you will note that the vendor that the project team is recommending is 
Central Square.  The product is a subscription-based product.  The up-front cost is 
approximately $462,000.  The first-year subscription cost is $219,000.  The annual 
subscription cost after the first year gradually increases each year and will be about 
$231,000-$332,000 per year.   
   
In the CIP, projects costs were budgeted at $1,600,000 for the initial cost of the system, 
and an annual cost of $350,000/year.  Therefore, you will note that the project costs are 
below the amounts budgeted in the CIP.  
 
In addition to the project team bringing forward the contract with Central Square, the 
project team is also bringing forward an amended contract with Berry Dunn to continue 
to use their services throughout the implementation process.  The project team was 
very satisfied with the guidance and assistance that Berry Dunn provided us during the 
RFP process.  We checked references on Berry Dunn regarding their project 
management services and received very positive responses. Even including the project 
management services in the total amount of $511,080, the total one-time costs are 
below the amounts budgeted.  Project management services will provide a major benefit 
by helping to keep the project on the projected timeline, resolving conflict issues with 
the vendor, and take some of the burden off staff during the implementation of this 
major project.   
 
If you have any questions, please feel free to contact us.  
 

106

Item 18.



 
 

 
 

 

Proposal Extension Request   Page 1 Last Updated: September 25, 2023 

 

City of Cedar Falls 
Enterprise Resource Planning (ERP) System Replacement Project 

_________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

Process: The City’s ERP Project team worked in partnership with the City’s consulting 

partner, BerryDunn, to bring forward the preferred vendor CentralSquare. The Project Team 

issued two competive RFPs and implemented a multi-phased scoring process to arrive at the 

preferred vendor. To date, the City identified CentralSquare after conducting the following 

project areas with BerryDunn:  

 Comprehensive needs assessment 

 Identification of all functional system requirements  

 Development of a comprehensive RFP 

 Three rounds of scoring and evaluation (technical proposal, demonstrations, reference 

checks, and cost) 

Background: The City, working with the City’s consulting partner, BerryDunn, initially 

released an RFP on February 28, 2022 for an Asset Management, Community Development, 

and Enterprise Resource Planning (ERP) Software Systems Environment. The City received 

one response for the complete suite of modules and one response for only the Community 

Development. The Project Team evaluated the technical proposals and invited both vendors to 

demonstrations. Post demonstrations the Project Team identified the need to review additional 

options in the marketplace. The Project Team held informal vendor outreach sessions with 

several vendors. The Project Team decided to release another RFP for only Software and 

Implementation Services for an Enterprise Resource Planning (ERP) Software Systems 

Environment on November 15, 2022. 

 The City received six responses; two for only Human Capital Management (HCM) 

modules, and four for all ERP modules.  

 The Project Team performed three rounds of scoring and evaluation (technical proposal, 

demonstrations, reference checks, and cost) 

o The Project Team shortlisted one of the HCM vendors and three ERP vendors; 

inviting only the HCM vendor and two ERP vendors to demonstrations as the 

fourth ERP vendor had previously demonstrated their software during the first 

RFP process. 

 

 

 

 

107

Item 18.



 
 

 
 

 

Proposal Extension Request   Page 2 Last Updated: September 25, 2023 

 

Scoring:  

 

References: The City’s project team called several references and received positive 

feedback on Central Square’s product, service, and implementation process.   

Cost:  

 ADP Agilyx CentralSquare Tyler 

One Time Costs (Training, 

Project Management, Data 

Conversion) Includes Est. Travel 

$21,000 $1,300,000 $462,000.00 $532,000 

Annual Subscription Cost – 1st 

Year 
$106,000 $205,100 $219,000 $150,000 

Annual Subscription Cost – 

Future Years 

$106,000 - 

$109,000/year  

$246,000 - 

$337,000/year 

$231,000 -

$332,000/year 

$150,000 - 

$162,000/year 

 

Contract: The Project Team confirmed the preferred vendor as CentralSquare and 

proceeded with the contracting process. The City’s consulting partner, BerryDunn, began the 

contracting process with CentralSquare in conjunction with the Project Team and the City’s 

Attorney. During the contract negotiations the City determined that some of the scheduling 

modules would be optional features that the City could exercise within eight months of contract 

execution, bringing down the initial cost. The difference in cost is approximately $50,000.  

Timeline: CentralSquare projects a timeline of 24 months to fully implement all modules as 

quoted above. Therefore, the one-time costs will be spread out over that implementation 

process and the 1st year subscription cost will be due at the end of implementation.   

Round 1 Round 2
Round 3 

(References)

Round 3 

(Costs)
Total

100 

Possible 

Points

30 Possible 

Points

30 Possible 

Points

40 Possible 

Points 

200 Possible 

Points

ADP 75.00 23.8 24.3 40.0 163.11

Agilyx 76.43 14.4 - - 90.85

CentralSquare 88.57 25.5 25.9 24.2 164.19

Neogov 67.07 - - - 67.07

Oracle 70.29 - - - 70.29

Tyler 86.46 - - 40 126.46

City of Cedar Falls

Total Score

Vendor

108

Item 18.



CentralSquare Solutions Agreement 

This CentralSquare Solutions Agreement (the "Agreement"), effective as of ___________, 20____ (the "Effective Date"), is entered 
into between CentralSquare Technologies, LLC with its principal place of business in Lake Mary, FL ("CentralSquare") and City of 
Cedar Falls, IA ("Customer"), together with CentralSquare, the "Parties", and each, a "Party". 
 
WHEREAS, CentralSquare licenses and gives access to certain software applications (“Solutions”) to its customers and also provides 
maintenance, support, migration, installation and other professional services;  

WHEREAS, Customer desires to migrate their Naviline application from the current on-premise server to CentralSquare’s Enterprise 
Resource Planning cloud hosted environment; and  
WHEREAS, Customer desires to license and/or gain access to certain Solutions and receive professional services described herein, and 
CentralSquare desires to grant and provide Customer license and access to such offerings as well as to provide support and maintenance, 
subject to the terms and conditions set forth in this Agreement. 
NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants, terms, and conditions set forth herein, and for other good and valuable 
consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which are hereby acknowledged, by the signatures of their duly authorized representative 
below, the Parties intending to be legally bound, agree to all of the following provisions and exhibits of this Agreement: 

 

CentralSquare Technologies, LLC City of Cedar Falls 

1000 Business Center Drive 
Lake Mary, FL 32746 

220 Clay Street,  
CEDAR FALLS, IA , 50613 

By: \Signature2\ By:  \Signature1\    

Print Name: \FullName2\ Print Name: \FullName1\ 

Print Title: \Title2\ Print Title: \Title1\ 

Date Signed: \DateSigned2\ Date Signed: \DateSigned1\ 

 
Solution: PA NaviLine Migration to Enterprise Resource Planning 

Upon Go-Live, the Customer’s on-premise Naviline license will terminate and the Customer’s Cloud Enterprise Resource Planning 
subscription will begin. 

Term.   
Initial Term. The Initial Term of this Agreement commences as of the Effective Date and will continue in effect for five (5) year(s) from 
such date unless terminated earlier pursuant to any of the Agreement’s express provisions (the “Initial Term”). 
Renewal Term. This Agreement will automatically renew for additional successive one (1) year terms unless earlier terminated 
pursuant to any of the Agreement’s provisions (a “Renewal Term” and, collectively, with the Initial Term, the “Term”).  
Non-Renewal. Either Party may elect to end renewal of the Agreement by issuing a notice of non-renewal, in writing, to the other Party 
sixty (60) days prior to the expiration of the Agreement term.  

Fees. 
In consideration of the rights and services granted by CentralSquare to Customer under this Agreement, Customer shall make 
payments to CentralSquare pursuant to the amounts and payment terms outlined in Exhibit 1 (the Solution(s) and Services Fee 
Schedule). 
All invoices shall be billed and paid in U.S. dollars (USD)  and in accordance with the terms set forth in Exhibit 1. If Customer delays 
an invoice payment for any reason, Customer shall promptly notify CentralSquare in writing the reasons for such delay. Unless 
otherwise agreed by both Parties, CentralSquare may apply any payment received to any delinquent amount outstanding. 
  

DocuSign Envelope ID: 3214D10C-FBB3-4A67-85F7-2C949263BF35

Chief Sales Officer

9/22/2023

Ron A. Anderson

109

Item 18.



Standard Terms and Conditions 
 

1. Definitions. Capitalized terms not otherwise defined in this Agreement have the meanings set forth below: 
1.1. "Affiliate" means any other Entity that directly or indirectly, through one or more intermediaries, controls, is controlled by, 

or is under common control with, such Entity.  
1.2. "Authorized User" means Customer's employees, consultants, contractors, and agents who are authorized by Customer 

to access and use the Solutions pursuant to this Agreement, and for whom access to the Solutions has been purchased. 
1.3. “Baseline Solution” means the version of a Solution updated from time to time pursuant to CentralSquare’s warranty 

services and maintenance, but without any other modification. 
1.4. "CentralSquare Systems" means the information technology infrastructure used by or on behalf of CentralSquare to 

deliver the Solutions, including all computers, software, hardware, databases, electronic systems (including database 
management systems), and networks, whether operated directly by CentralSquare or through the use of third-party 
services. 

1.5. "Customer Data" means information, data, and content, in any form or medium, collected, downloaded, or otherwise 
received, directly or indirectly from Customer, an Authorized User or end-users by or through the Solutions, provided the 
data is not personally identifiable and not identifiable to Customer. 

1.6. "Customer Systems" means the Customer's information technology infrastructure, including computers, software, 
hardware, databases, electronic systems (including database management systems), and networks, whether operated by 
Customer or through the third-party services. 

1.7. “Defect” means a material deviation between the Baseline Solution and its Documentation, for which Customer has given 
CentralSquare sufficient information to enable CentralSquare to replicate the deviation on a computer configuration that is 
both comparable to the Customer Systems and that is under CentralSquare’s control.  Further, with regard to any custom 
modification, Defect means a material deviation between the custom modification and the CentralSquare generated 
specification and Documentation for such custom modification, and for which Defect Customer has given CentralSquare 
sufficient information to enable CentralSquare to replicate the deviation on a computer configuration that is both comparable 
to the Customer Systems and that is under CentralSquare’s control.  

1.8. “Delivery” means: 
1.8.1. For on-premise Solutions, Delivery shall be when CentralSquare delivers to Customer the initial copies of the 

Solutions outlined in Exhibit 1 by whichever the following applies and occurs first (a) electronic delivery, by posting 
it on CentralSquare’s network for downloading, or similar suitable electronic file transfer method, or (b) physical 
shipment, such as on a disc or other suitable media transfer method, or (c) installation, or (d) delivery of managed 
services server. Physical shipment is on FOB - CentralSquare’s shipping point, and electronic delivery is at the 
time CentralSquare provides Customer with access to download the Solutions. 

1.8.2. For cloud-based Solutions Delivery shall be whichever the following applies and occurs first when Authorized 
Users have (a) received log-in access to the Solution or any module of the Solution or (b) received access to the 
Solution via a URL. 

1.9. "Documentation" means any manuals, instructions, or other documents or materials that CentralSquare provides or makes 
available to Customer in any form or medium and which describe the functionality, components, features, or requirements 
of the Solution(s), including any aspect of its installation, configuration, integration, operation, use, support, or maintenance. 

1.10. “End User Training” means the process of educating general users of the Software on the operation of the Software. 
1.11. “Entity” means an individual, corporation, partnership, joint venture, limited liability entity, governmental authority, 

unincorporated organization, trust, association, or other organization. 
1.12. “Go-Live” is the time period in which the Software is tested and confirmed reliable by successfully completing fifteen (15) 

continuous days in a live environment with no repeatable Priority 1 or Priority 2 issues as defined in Exhibit 2, unless 
otherwise agreed in a statement of work. 

 
1.13. “Hardware” means any equipment, computer systems, servers, storage devices, peripherals, and any other tangible 

assets purchased under this Agreement. 
1.14. "Intellectual Property Rights" means any and all registered and unregistered rights granted, applied for, or otherwise now 

or hereafter in existence under or related to any patent, copyright, trademark, trade secret, database protection, or other 
intellectual property rights laws, and all similar or equivalent rights or forms of protection, in any part of the world. 

1.15. “Managed Services Hardware” means any equipment, computer systems, servers, peripherals, and any other tangible 
asset purchased as a subscription under this Agreement.  

1.16. “Maintenance” means optimization, error correction, modifications, and Updates (defined herein) to CentralSquare 
Solutions to correct any known Defects and improve performance. Maintenance will be provided for each Solution, the 
hours and details of which are described in Exhibit 2 (Maintenance and Support)  

1.17. “New or Major Releases” means new versions of a Baseline Solution (e.g., version 4.0, 5.0 etc.) not provided as part of 
Maintenance. 

1.18. "Personal Information" means any information that does or can identify a specific individual or by or from which a specific 
individual may be identified, contacted, or located. Personal Information includes all "nonpublic personal information" as 
defined under the Gramm-Leach-Bliley Act, "protected health information" as defined under the Health and Insurance 
Portability and Accountability Act of 1996, "Personal Data" as defined in the EU General Data Protection Regulation (GDPR 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 3214D10C-FBB3-4A67-85F7-2C949263BF35

110

Item 18.



2018), "Personal Information" as defined under the Children's Online Privacy Protection Act of 1998, and all rules and 
regulations issued under any of the foregoing. 

1.19. “Professional Services” means configuration, installation, implementation, development work, training or consulting 
services including custom modification programming, support relating to custom modifications, on-site support services, 
assistance with data transfers, system restarts and reinstallations provided by CentralSquare. 

1.20. “Project Kickoff” is a meeting to occur shortly after contract execution between CentralSquare and Customer in which 
goals and objectives are set forth, all parties relevant team members are identified, and scope, timelines, and milestones 
are reviewed. 

1.21. “Reliability Period” is the time period in which the Software is tested and confirmed reliable by successfully completed 
fifteen (15) continuous days in a live environment with no repeatable Priority 1 or Priority 2 issues as defined in Exhibit 2, 
unless otherwise agreed in a statement of work.   

1.22. “Software” means the software program(s) (in object code format only) identified on Exhibit 1 (Solution(s) and Services 
Fee Schedule).  The term “Software” excludes any Third-Party Software. 

1.23. “Software Version” means the base or core version of the Solution Software that contains significant new features and 
significant fixes and is available to the Customer.  The nomenclature used for updates and upgrades consists of major, 
minor, build, and fix and these correspond to the following digit locations of a release, a,b,c,d. An example of which would 
be 7.4.1.3, where the 7 refers to the major release, the 4 refers to the minor release, the 1 refers to the build, and the 3 
refers to a fix. 

1.24. "Solutions" means the software, Documentation, development work, CentralSquare Systems and any and all other 
information, data, documents, materials, works, and other content, devices, methods, processes, hardware, software, 
technologies and inventions, including any deliverables, technical or functional descriptions, requirements, plans, or 
reports, provided or used by CentralSquare or any Subcontractor in connection with Professional Services or Support 
Services rendered under this Agreement.  

1.25. “Support Services” means Maintenance, Enhancements, implementation of New Releases, and general support efforts 
to respond to incidents reported by Customer in accordance with Exhibit 2 (Maintenance & Support). 

1.26. "Third-Party Materials" means materials and information, in any form or medium, including any software, documents, 
data, content, specifications, products, related services, equipment, or components of or relating to the Solutions that are 
not proprietary to CentralSquare.  

2. License, Access, and Title. 
2.1. License Grant. For any Solution designated as a “license” on Exhibit 1, Customer is granted a perpetual (unless terminated 

as provided herein), nontransferable, nonexclusive right and license to use the Software for Customer’s own internal use 
for the applications described in the Statement of Work, in the applicable environment (e.g., production, test, training, or 
disaster recovery system) and in the quantity set forth in Exhibit 1. Additional software licenses purchased after the 
execution of this Agreement shall also be licensed in accordance with the provisions of this section. Customer shall not 
use, copy, rent, lease, sell, sublicense, modify, create derivative works from/of, or transfer any software, or permit others 
to do said acts, except as provided in this Agreement.  Any such unauthorized use shall be void and may result in immediate 
and automatic termination of the applicable license.  In such event, Customer shall not be entitled to a refund of any license 
fees paid. Notwithstanding, Customer shall be entitled to use software at the applicable designated location for the purpose 
of the application(s) described in the Statement of Work to provide services for itself and other Affiliate governmental 
agencies/entities, provided that the Software is installed and operated at only one physical location. The Software license 
granted in this Agreement or in connection with it are for object code only and do not include a license or any rights to 
source code whatsoever. 

2.2. Access Grant. For any Solution designated as a “subscription” on Exhibit 1, so long as subscription fees are paid and 
current, (unless terminated as provided herein), Customer is granted a nontransferable, nonexclusive right to use the 
software for the Customer’s own internal use for the applications described in the Statement of Work, in the applicable 
environment (e.g., production, test, training, or disaster recovery system) and in the quantity set forth in Exhibit 1. Additional 
CentralSquare software subscriptions purchased after the execution of this Agreement shall also be accessed in 
accordance with the provisions of this section.  Customer shall not use, copy, rent, lease, sell, sublicense, modify, create 
derivative works from/of, or transfer any software, or permit others to do said acts, except as provided in this Agreement.  
Any such unauthorized use shall be void and may result in immediate and automatic termination of the applicable access.  
In such event, Customer shall not be entitled to a refund of any subscription fees paid. Notwithstanding, Customer shall be 
entitled to use software at the applicable designated location for the purpose of the application(s) described in the Statement 
of Work to provide services for itself and other Affiliate governmental agencies/entities. The subscription access granted in 
this Agreement or in connection with it are for object code only and do not include a license or any rights to source code 
whatsoever. 

2.3. Documentation License. CentralSquare hereby grants to Customer a non-exclusive, non-sublicensable, non-transferable 
license to use the Documentation during the Term solely for Customer's internal business purposes in connection with its 
use of the Solutions. 

2.4. Hardware. Subject to the terms and conditions of this Agreement, CentralSquare agrees to deliver, through hardware 
vendors, the Hardware itemized on Exhibit 1. The risk of loss or damage will pass to Customer upon the date of delivery to 
the Customer specified facility. Upon delivery and full satisfaction of the Hardware payment obligations, Hardware shall be 
deemed accepted and Customer will acquire good and clear title to Hardware. All Hardware manufacturer warranties will 
be passed through to Customer. CentralSquare expressly disclaims, and Customer hereby expressly waives all other 
Hardware warranties, express or implied, without limitation, warranties of merchantability and fitness for a particular 
purpose. 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 3214D10C-FBB3-4A67-85F7-2C949263BF35

111

Item 18.



2.5. Reservation of Rights. Nothing in this Agreement grants any right, title, or interest in or to any Intellectual Property Rights 
in or relating to the Solutions, or Third-Party Materials, whether expressly, by implication, estoppel, or otherwise. All right, 
title, and interest in the Solutions, and the Third-Party Materials are and will remain with CentralSquare and the respective 
rights holders. 

3. Use Restrictions. Authorized Users shall not: 
3.1. copy, modify, or create derivative works or improvements of the Solutions, or rent, lease, lend, sell, sublicense, assign, 

distribute, publish, transfer, or otherwise make available any Solutions to any Entity, including on or in connection with the 
internet or any time-sharing, service bureau, software as a service, cloud, or other technology or service; 

3.2. reverse engineer, disassemble, decompile, decode, adapt, or otherwise attempt to derive or gain access to the source 
code of the Solutions, in whole or in part; 

3.3. bypass or breach any security device or protection used by Solutions or access or use the Solutions other than by an 
Authorized User through the use of his or her own then valid access; 

3.4. input, upload, transmit, or otherwise provide to or through the CentralSquare Systems, any information or materials that 
are unlawful or injurious, or contain, transmit, or activate any harmful code (any software, hardware, device, or other 
technology, including any virus, worm, malware, or other malicious computer code, the purpose or effect of which is to (a) 
permit unauthorized access to, or to destroy, disrupt, disable, distort, or otherwise harm or impede any (i) computer, 
software firmware, hardware, system or network; or (ii) any application or function of any of the foregoing or the security, 
integrity, confidentiality, or use of any data processed thereby; or (b) prevent Customer or any Authorized User from 
accessing or using the Solutions as intended by this Agreement; 

3.5. damage, destroy, disrupt, disable, impair, interfere with, or otherwise impede or harm in any manner the CentralSquare 
Systems, or CentralSquare's provision of services to any third-party, in whole or in part; 

3.6. remove, delete, alter, or obscure any trademarks, specifications, Documentation, warranties, or disclaimers, or any 
copyright, trademark, patent, or other intellectual property or proprietary rights notices from any Documentation or 
Solutions, including any copy thereof; 

3.7. access or use the Solutions in any manner or for any purpose that infringes, misappropriates, or otherwise violates any 
Intellectual Property Right or other right of any third-party, or that violates any applicable law; 

3.8. access or use the Solutions for purposes of competitive analysis of the Solutions, the development, provision, or use of a 
competing software service or product or any other purpose that is to CentralSquare's detriment or commercial 
disadvantage or otherwise access or use the Solutions beyond the scope of the authorization granted in Section 2.  

4. Audit. 
4.1. CentralSquare shall have the right to annually audit Customer’s use of the Software to monitor compliance with this 

Agreement. Customer shall permit CentralSquare and its directors, officers, employees, and agents to have on-site access 
at Customer’s premises (or remote access as the case may be) during normal business hours to such systems, books, and 
records for the purpose of verifying license counts, access counts, and overall compliance with this Agreement.   Customer 
shall render reasonable cooperation to CentralSquare as requested. If as a result of any audit or inspection CentralSquare 
substantiates a deficiency or non-compliance, or if an audit reveals that Customer has exceeded the restrictions on use, 
Customer shall promptly reimburse CentralSquare for all its costs and expenses incurred to conduct such audit or inspection 
and be required to pay for any delinquencies in compliance and prompt payment of any underpayment of Fees, in 
accordance with the terms set forth in Exhibit 1 

5. Customer Obligations. 
5.1. Customer Systems and Cooperation. Customer shall at all times during the Term: (a) set up, maintain, and operate in good 

repair all Customer Systems on or through which the Solutions are accessed or used; (b) provide CentralSquare  Personnel 
with such access to Customer's premises and Customer Systems as is necessary for CentralSquare  to perform the Support 
Services in accordance with the Support Standards and specifications and if required by CentralSquare, remote access in 
accordance with Exhibit 3 (CentralSquare Access Management Policy); and (c) provide all cooperation as CentralSquare  
may reasonably request to enable CentralSquare to exercise its rights and perform its obligations under this Agreement. 

5.2. Effect of Customer Failure or Delay. CentralSquare is not responsible or liable for any delay or failure of performance 
caused in whole or in part by Customer's delay in performing, or failure to perform, any of its obligations under this 
Agreement.  

5.3. Corrective Action and Notice. If each party becomes aware of any actual or threatened activity prohibited by Section 6, 
Customer shall, and shall cause its Authorized Users to, immediately: (a) take all reasonable and lawful measures within 
their respective control that are necessary to stop the activity or threatened activity and to mitigate its effects (including, 
where applicable, by discontinuing and preventing any unauthorized access to the Solutions and permanently erasing from 
their systems and destroying any data to which any of them gained unauthorized access); and (b) notify CentralSquare  of 
any such actual or threatened activity.  

5.4. Maintaining Current Versions of CentralSquare Solutions. In accordance with Exhibit 2 (Maintenance & Support). Customer 
shall install and/or use any New or Major Release within one year of being made available by CentralSquare to mitigate a 
performance problem, ineligibility for Support Services, or an infringement claim. 

6. Professional Services. 
6.1. Compliance with Customer Policies. While CentralSquare personnel are performing services at Customer's site, 

CentralSquare personnel will comply with Customer’s reasonable procedures and site policies that are generally applicable 
to Customer’s other suppliers providing similar services and that have been provided to CentralSquare in writing or in 
advance.   

DocuSign Envelope ID: 3214D10C-FBB3-4A67-85F7-2C949263BF35

112

Item 18.



6.2. Contributed Material. In the process of CentralSquare’s performing Professional Services, Customer may, from time to 
time, provide CentralSquare with designs, plans, or specifications, improvements, works or other material for inclusion in, 
or making modifications to, the Solutions, the Documentation or any other deliverables (“Contributed Material”). Customer 
grants to CentralSquare a nonexclusive, irrevocable, perpetual, transferable right, without the payment of any royalties or 
other compensation of any kind and without the right of attribution, for CentralSquare, CentralSquare’s Affiliates and 
CentralSquare’s licensees to make, use, sell and create derivative works of the Contributed Material.  

7. Confidentiality. 
7.1. No information shared between CentralSquare and the Customer in the performance of this Agreement shall be deemed 

confidential unless clearly designated as such in writing by the party seeking confidentiality at the time of sharing.  If 
designated as confidential the parties agree to maintain the confidentiality of such information except as necessary for 
performance under this Agreement, unless or until written authorization for disclosure is given by the designating party, or 
as required by law, or by an order of court or administrative agency. If City receives a request pursuant to any open records 
laws under which it would be required to disclose information marked as confidential, City shall notify CentralSquare 
pursuant to Section 11 and CentralSquare shall have the right to assert any available legal objections to the production of 
confidential information. In the event of a dispute over the confidentiality of shared information, the parties agree to maintain 
the confidentiality of the designated information until the issue of confidentiality is resolved.  The duty to maintain the 
confidentiality of such information shall survive the termination of this Agreement. Notwithstanding the foregoing, 
“Confidential Information” means the Solution(s), Software, and customizations in any embodiment, and either Party’s 
technical and business information relating to inventions or software, research and development, future product 
specifications, engineering processes, costs, profit or margin information, marketing and future business plans as well as 
any and all internal Customer and employee information, and any information exchanged by the Parties that is clearly 
marked with a confidential, private or proprietary legend or which, by its nature, is commonly understood to be confidential. 

7.2. Exceptions. A Party's Confidential Information shall not include information that: (a) is or becomes publicly available through 
no act or omission of the recipient; (b) was in the recipient’s lawful possession prior to the disclosure and was not obtained 
by the recipient either directly or indirectly from the disclosing Party; (c) is lawfully disclosed to the recipient by a third party 
without restriction on recipient’s disclosure, and where recipient was not aware that the information was the confidential 
information of discloser; (d) is independently developed by the recipient without violation of this Agreement; or (e) is required 
to be disclosed by law. 

8. Security.   
8.1. CentralSquare will implement commercially reasonable administrative, technical and physical safeguards designed to 

ensure the security and confidentiality of Customer Data, protect against any anticipated threats or hazards to the security 
or integrity of Customer Data, and protect against unauthorized access or use of Customer Data. CentralSquare will review 
and test such safeguards on no less than an annual basis. 

8.2. Customer shall maintain, in connection with the operation or use of the Solutions, adequate technical and procedural access 
controls and system security requirements and devices, necessary for data privacy, confidentiality, integrity, authorization, 
authentication, non-repudiation, virus detection and eradication.   

8.3. To the extent that Authorized Users, excluding City employees, are permitted to have access to the Solutions, Customer 
shall maintain agreements with such Authorized Users that adequately protect the confidentiality and Intellectual Property 
Rights of CentralSquare in the Solutions and Documentation and disclaim any liability or responsibility of CentralSquare with 
respect to such Authorized Users.     

9. Personal Data. If CentralSquare processes or otherwise has access to any personal data or Personal Information on Customer’s 
behalf when performing CentralSquare’s obligations under this Agreement, then: 
9.1. Customer shall be the data controller (where “data controller” means an entity which alone or jointly with others determines 

purposes for which and the manner in which any personal data are, or are to be, processed) and CentralSquare shall be a 
data processor (where “data processor” means an entity which processes the data only on behalf of the data controller 
and not for any purposes of its own); 

9.2. Customer shall ensure that it has obtained all necessary consents and it is entitled to transfer the relevant personal data 
or Personal Information to CentralSquare  so that CentralSquare  may lawfully use, process and transfer the personal data 
and Personal Information in accordance with this Agreement on Customer’s behalf, which may include CentralSquare  
processing and transferring the relevant personal data or Personal Information outside the country where Customer and 
the Authorized Users are located in order for CentralSquare  to provide the Solutions and perform its other obligations 
under this Agreement; and  

9.3. CentralSquare shall process personal data and information only in accordance with lawful and reasonable written 
instructions given by Customer and as set out in and in accordance with the terms of this Agreement; and 

9.4. CentralSquare shall take reasonable steps to ensure that its employees, agents and contractors who may have access to 
Personal Information are persons who need to know / access the relevant Personal Information for valid business reasons; 
and  

9.5. each Party shall take appropriate technical and organizational measures against unauthorized or unlawful processing of 
the personal data and Personal Information or its accidental loss, destruction or damage so that, having regard to the state 
of technological development and the cost of implementing any measures, the measures taken ensure a level of security 
appropriate to the harm that might result from such unauthorized or unlawful processing or accidental loss, destruction or 
damage in relation to the personal data and Personal Information and the nature of the personal data and Personal 
Information being protected. If necessary, the Parties will cooperate to document these measures taken. 

10. Representations and Warranties. 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 3214D10C-FBB3-4A67-85F7-2C949263BF35

113

Item 18.



10.1. Intellectual Property Warranty. CentralSquare represents and warrants that (a) it is the sole and exclusive owner of (or has 
the right to license) the software; (b) it has full and sufficient right, title and authority to grant the rights and/or licenses 
granted under this Agreement; (c) the software does not contain any materials developed by a third party used by 
CentralSquare except pursuant to a license agreement; and (d) the software does not infringe any patent, or copyright. 

10.2. Intellectual Property Remedy.   In the event that any third party asserts a claim of infringement against the Customer relating 
to the software contained in this Agreement, CentralSquare shall indemnify and defend the Customer pursuant to section 
13.1 of this Agreement. In the case of any such claim of infringement, CentralSquare shall either, at its option, (1) procure 
for Customer the right to continue using the software; or (2) replace or modify the software so that that it becomes non-
infringing, but equivalent in functionality and performance. 

10.3. Software Warranty. CentralSquare warrants to Customer that: (i) for a period of one year from the Effective Date (the 
“Warranty Period”) the Software, including all third-party Software sold under this Agreement, will substantially conform in 
all material respects to the specifications set forth in the Documentation, when installed, operated and used as 
recommended in the Documentation and in accordance with this Agreement; and (ii) at the time of delivery the Software 
does not contain any virus or other malicious code.  

10.4. Software Remedy.  If, during the Warranty Period a warranty defect is confirmed in the CentralSquare Software, 
CentralSquare shall, at its option, reinstall the Software or correct the Defects.  Defects that occur in the Software after the 
Warranty Period will be corrected pursuant to Exhibit 2 (Maintenance & Support). 

10.5. Services Warranty. CentralSquare warrants that the Professional Services delivered will substantially conform to the 
deliverables specified in the applicable statement of work and that all Professional Services will be performed in a 
professional and workmanlike manner consistent with industry standards for similar work. If Professional Services do not 
substantially conform to the deliverables, Customer shall notify CentralSquare of such non-conformance in writing, within 
10 days from completion of Professional Service, and CentralSquare shall promptly repair the non-conforming deliverables.  

10.6. Disclaimer of Warranty.  EXCEPT FOR THE EXPRESS LIMITED WARRANTIES SET FORTH ABOVE,  
CENTRALSQUARE  MAKES NO WARRANTIES WHATSOEVER, EXPRESSED OR IMPLIED, WITH REGARD TO THE 
INTELLECTUAL PROPERTY, SOFTWARE, PROFESSIONAL SERVICES, AND/OR ANY OTHER MATTER RELATING 
TO THIS AGREEMENT, AND THAT CENTRALSQUARE  DISCLAIMS ALL WARRANTIES, WHETHER EXPRESS, 
IMPLIED, STATUTORY, OR OTHERWISE, INCLUDING ALL WARRANTIES ARISING FROM COURSE OF DEALING, 
USAGE OR TRADE PRACTICE, AND SPECIFICALLY DISCLAIMS IMPLIED WARRANTIES OF MERCHANTABILITY, 
FITNESS FOR A PARTICULAR PURPOSE, OR TITLE.  FURTHER, CENTRALSQUARE EXPRESSLY DOES NOT 
WARRANT THAT A SOLUTION, ANY CUSTOM MODIFICATION OR ANY IMPROVEMENTS WILL BE USABLE BY 
CUSTOMER IF THE SOLUTION OR CUSTOM MODIFICATION HAS BEEN MODIFIED BY ANYONE OTHER THAN 
CENTRALSQUARE PERSONNEL, OR WILL BE ERROR FREE, WILL OPERATE WITHOUT INTERRUPTION OR WILL 
BE COMPATIBLE WITH ANY HARDWARE OR SOFTWARE EXCEPT TO THE EXTENT EXPRESSLY SET FORTH IN 
THE DOCUMENTATION. AND ANY REPRESENTATION OR WARRANTY OF OR CONCERNING ANY OF THEM IS 
STRICTLY BETWEEN CUSTOMER AND THE THIRD-PARTY. THIS AGREEMENT DOES NOT AMEND, OR MODIFY 
CENTRALSQUARE’S WARRANTY UNDER ANY AGREEMENT OR ANY CONDITIONS, LIMITATIONS, OR 
RESTRICTIONS THEREOF. 
 

11. Notices.  All notices and other communications required or permitted under this Agreement must be in writing and will be deemed 
given when delivered personally, sent by United States registered or certified mail, return receipt requested; transmitted by 
facsimile or email confirmed by first class mail, or sent by overnight courier.  Notices must be sent to a Party at its address shown 
below, or to such other place as the Party may subsequently designate for its receipt of notices in writing by the other Party. 

If to CentralSquare  CentralSquare Technologies, LLC 
1000 Business Center Dr. 
Lake Mary, FL 32746 
Phone: 407-304-3235 
Attention: Legal/Contracts 
 

If to Customer: City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street   
CEDAR FALLS, IA 50613 
Phone: 319-268-5105 
Email: lisa.roeding@cedarfalls.com  
Attention: Lisa Roeding 
 

12. Force Majeure.   
Neither Party shall be responsible for failure to fulfill its obligations hereunder, or be liable for damages resulting from delay in 
performance as a result of war, fire, strike, riot or insurrection, natural disaster, pandemic or epidemic, delay of carriers, 
governmental order or regulation, complete or partial shutdown of plant, unavailability of equipment, software, or services from 
suppliers, default of a subcontractor or vendor to the Party if such default arises out of causes beyond the reasonable control of 
such subcontractor or vendor, the acts or omissions of the other Party, or its officers, directors, employees, agents, contractors, 
or elected officials, and/or other occurrences beyond the Party’s reasonable control (“Excusable Delay” hereunder). In the event 
of such Excusable Delay, performance shall be extended on a day for day basis or as otherwise reasonably necessary to 
compensate for such delay. The party who is prevented from performing by force majeure shall be obligated, within a period not 
to exceed fourteen (14) calendar days after the occurrence or detection of any such event, to provide notice to the other party 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 3214D10C-FBB3-4A67-85F7-2C949263BF35

114

Item 18.

https://www.lawinsider.com/clause/intellectual-property-warranty
https://www.lawinsider.com/clause/software-warranty?cursor=CloSVGoVc35sYXdpbnNpZGVyY29udHJhY3RzcjYLEhZDbGF1c2VTbmlwcGV0R3JvdXBfdjM2Ihpzb2Z0d2FyZS13YXJyYW50eSMwMDAwMDAzMgyiAQJlbhgAIAA%3D
mailto:lisa.roeding@cedarfalls.com


setting forth in reasonable detail the nature thereof and the anticipated extent of the delay, and shall remedy such cause as soon 
as reasonably possible, as mutually agreed between the parties. 

13. Indemnification. 
13.1. CentralSquare Indemnification. CentralSquare  shall indemnify, defend, and hold harmless Customer from any and all 

Claims or liability, including attorneys' fees and costs, brought by a third party, allegedly arising out of, in connection with, 
or incident to any loss, damage or injury to persons or property or arising solely from a wrongful or negligent act, error or 
omission of CentralSquare, its employees, agents, contractors, or any subcontractor as a result of CentralSquare’s or any 
subcontractor’s performance pursuant to this Agreement; however, CentralSquare shall not be required to indemnify 
Customer for any claims caused to the extent of the negligence or wrongful act of Customer, its employees, agents, or 
contractors. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary in the foregoing, if a Claim or liability results from or is contributed to 
by the actions or omissions of Customer, or its employees, agents or contractors, CentralSquare’s obligations under this 
provision shall be reduced to the extent of such actions or omissions based upon the principle of comparative fault. 

13.2. Customer Indemnification. To the extent allowable by law, Customer shall indemnify, defend, and hold harmless 
CentralSquare from any and all Claims or liability, including attorneys' fees and costs, allegedly arising out of, in connection 
with, or incident to any loss, damage or injury to persons or property or arising solely  from a wrongful or negligent act, error 
or omission of Customer, its employees, agents, contractors, or any subcontractor as a result of Customer’s or any 
subcontractor’s performance pursuant to this Agreement; however, Customer shall not be required to indemnify 
CentralSquare for any Claims or actions caused to the extent of the negligence or wrongful act of CentralSquare, its 
employees, agents, or contractors. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary in the foregoing, if a Claim or liability results 
from or is contributed to by the actions or omissions of CentralSquare, or its employees, agents or contractors, Customer’s 
obligations under this provision shall be reduced to the extent of such actions or omissions based upon the principle of 
comparative fault. 

13.3. "Claim" in this Section 13 means any claim, cause of action, demand, lawsuit, dispute, inquiry, audit, notice of violation, 
proceeding, litigation, citation, summons, subpoena or investigation of any nature, civil, criminal, administrative, regulatory 
or other, whether at law, in equity, or otherwise. 

14. Termination. 
14.1. Either Party may terminate this Agreement for a material breach in accordance with this subsection.  In such event, the 

disputing Party shall deliver written notice of its intent to terminate along with a description in reasonable detail of the 
problems for which the disputing Party is invoking its right to terminate and the specific requirement within this Agreement 
or any exhibit or schedule hereto that the disputing Party is relying upon.  Following such notice, the Parties shall commence 
dispute resolution procedures in accordance with the dispute resolution procedure pursuant to Section 17.  

14.2. CentralSquare shall have the right to terminate this Agreement based on Customer’s failure to pay undisputed amounts due 
under this Agreement more than ninety (90) days after delivery of written notice of non-payment.    

14.3. Customer shall have the right to terminate if the proper appropriation of funds for the continuation of this Agreement is not 
available for any fiscal year after the first fiscal year during the Term, then this Agreement may be terminated. To effect the 
termination of this Agreement, Customer shall, within forty-five (45) days following the beginning of the fiscal year for which 
the proper appropriation is not available, provide CentralSquare with written notice of the failure to obtain the proper 
appropriation of funds. Such notice shall be accompanied by the payment of all sums then owed CentralSquare under this 
Agreement, if any. 

14.4. The Customer may terminate this Agreement at any time for its convenience by giving written notice to the CentralSquare 
of such termination and specifying the effective date of the termination, at least sixty (60) calendar days before the effective 
date of termination.  In that event, all finished or unfinished Services, reports and non-confidential materials prepared or 
furnished by CentralSquare shall, at the option of the Customer, and after payment of all fees and expenses earned up to 
the date of termination become the Customer’s property.  If the Agreement is terminated by the Customer as provided herein, 
CentralSquare shall be paid for all Services which have been authorized,  and provided up to the effective date of termination.   
In the event the Customer terminates the Agreement for convenience, there is no early termination penalty; however, the 
Customer shall not receive a refund for any pre-paid services. 

 
14.5. Customer and CentralSquare may agree to terminate less than all of the assets, including third party assets, in use by 

Customer.  Termination of fewer than all of the assets under the Agreement shall not constitute a Termination of the 
Agreement. 

 
15. Effect of Termination or Expiration. On the expiration or earlier termination of this Agreement: 

15.1. All rights, licenses, and authorizations granted to Customer hereunder will immediately terminate and Customer shall 
immediately cease all use of CentralSquare’s Confidential Information and the Solutions, and within thirty (30) days deliver 
to CentralSquare, or at CentralSquare’s request destroy and erase CentralSquare’s Confidential Information from all 
systems Customer directly or indirectly controls; and  

15.2. All licenses, access or subscription fees, services rendered but unpaid, and any amounts due by Customer to 
CentralSquare of any kind shall become immediately payable in accordance with the terms set forth in Exhibit 1 and any 
Change Orders or Amendments  

15.3. The provisions set forth in the following sections, and any other right or obligation of the Parties in this Agreement that, by 
its nature (including but not limited to: Use Restrictions, Confidential Information, Warranty Disclaimers, Indemnifications, 
& Limitations of Liability), will survive any expiration or termination of this Agreement. 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 3214D10C-FBB3-4A67-85F7-2C949263BF35

115

Item 18.



15.4. In the event that Customer terminates this Agreement or cancels any portions of a project (as may be set forth in a 
Statement of Work) prior to Go Live ), Customer shall pay for all Professional Services actually performed by CentralSquare 
on a time and materials basis, regardless of the payment terms in Exhibit 1. 

15.5. Return of Customer Data. If Customer requests in writing at least ten (10) days prior to the effective date of expiration or 
earlier termination of any software assets covered under this Agreement, CentralSquare, or the appropriate third party 
provider, shall within thirty (30) days following such expiration or termination, deliver to Customer in CentralSquare’s 
standard format, or in a machine-readable format as agreed-upon by the parties, the then most recent version of Customer 
Data maintained by CentralSquare, provided that Customer has at that time paid all Fees then outstanding and any 
amounts payable after or as a result of such expiration or termination. 

15.6. Deconversion. In the event of (i) expiration or earlier termination of any software assets covered under this Agreement, or 
(ii) Customer no longer purchasing certain Solutions (including those indicated to be Third-Party Materials), if Customer 
requests assistance in the transfer of Customer Data to a different vendor’s applications (“Deconversion”), CentralSquare, 
or the appropriate third party provider, will provide reasonable assistance. CentralSquare and Customer will negotiate in 
good faith to establish the relative roles and responsibilities of CentralSquare and Customer in effecting Deconversion, as 
well as the appropriate date for completion. CentralSquare shall be entitled to receive compensation for any additional 
consultation, services, software, and documentation required for Deconversion on a time and materials basis at 
CentralSquare’s then standard rates. 

15.7. Termination of this Agreement shall not relieve either Party of any other obligation incurred one to the other prior to 
termination. 

16. Assignment. Neither this Agreement nor any rights or obligations hereunder shall be assigned or otherwise transferred by either 
Party without the prior written consent of the other Party, which consent will not be unreasonably withheld; provided however, that 
in the event of a merger or acquisition of all or substantially all of CentralSquare’s assets, CentralSquare may assign this 
Agreement to an entity ready, willing and able to perform CentralSquare’s executory obligations hereunder. 

17. Dispute Resolution. Any dispute, controversy or claim arising out of or relating to this Agreement (each, a “Dispute”), including 
the breach, termination, or validity thereof, shall be resolved as follows:  
17.1. Good Faith Negotiations.  The Parties agree to send written notice to the other Party of any Dispute (“Dispute Notice”).  After 

the other Party receives the Dispute Notice, the Parties agree to undertake good faith negotiations to resolve the 
Dispute.  Each Party shall be responsible for its associated travel and other related costs.   

17.2. Escalation to Mediation.  If the Parties cannot resolve any Dispute through good faith negotiations, the dispute will be 
escalated to non-binding mediation, with the Parties acting in good faith to select a mediator and establishing the mediation 
process.  The Parties agree the mediator’s fees and expenses, and the mediator’s costs incidental to the mediation, will be 
shared equally between the Parties.  The Parties shall bear their own fees, expenses, and costs. 

17.3. Confidential Mediation.  The Parties further agree all written or oral offers, promises, conduct, and statements made in the 
course of the mediation are confidential, privileged, and inadmissible for any purpose in any litigation, arbitration or other 
proceeding involving the Parties. However, evidence that is otherwise admissible or discoverable shall not be rendered 
inadmissible or non-discoverable as a result of its use in the mediation. 

17.4. Litigation.  If the Parties cannot resolve a Dispute through mediation, then once an impasse is declared by the mediator 
either Party may pursue litigation.  Venue for such litigation shall be the Iowa District Court for Black Hawk County. 

18. Waiver/Severability. The failure of any Party to enforce any of the provisions hereof will not be construed to be a waiver of the 
right of such Party thereafter to enforce such provisions.  If any provision of this Agreement is found to be unenforceable, that 
provision will be enforced to the maximum extent possible, and the validity, legality and enforceability of the remaining provisions 
will not in any way be affected or impaired thereby.  

19. LIABILITY.  NOTWITHSTANDING ANY PROVISION WITHIN THIS AGREEMENT TO THE CONTRARY, AND REGARDLESS 
OF THE NUMBER OF LOSSES, WHETHER IN CONTRACT, EQUITY, STATUTE, TORT, NEGLIGENCE, OR OTHERWISE: 
19.1. NEITHER PARTY SHALL HAVE LIABILITY TO THE OTHER PARTY FOR ANY SPECIAL, INDIRECT, INCIDENTAL, 

PUNITIVE, EXEMPLARY, LIQUIDATED, OR CONSEQUENTIAL DAMAGES OF ANY KIND INCLUDING BUT NOT 
LIMITED TO, REPLACEMENT COSTS, AND NEITHER PARTY SHALL BE LIABLE TO THE OTHER PARTY FOR 
LOSSES OF PROFIT, REVENUE, INCOME, BUSINESS, ANTICIPATED SAVINGS, DATA, AND REPUTATION, AND 
MORE GENERALLY, ANY LOSSES OF AN ECONOMIC OR FINANCIAL NATURE, REGARDLESS OF WHETHER 
SUCH LOSSES MAY BE DEEMED AS CONSEQUENTIAL OR ARISING DIRECTLY AND NATURALLY FROM THE 
INCIDENT GIVING RISE TO THE CLAIM, AND REGARDLESS OF WHETHER SUCH LOSSES ARE FORESEEABLE 
OR WHETHER EITHER PARTY HAS BEEN ADVISED OF THE POSSIBILITY OF SUCH LOSSES; AND 

19.2. EXCLUDING ANY AND ALL CLAIMS FOR PERSONAL INJURY OR DEATH, CLAIMS FOR INDEMNIFICATION 
PURSUANT TO SECTION 13, AND/OR CLAIMS RESULTING FROM A SECURITY OR DATA BREACH, 
CENTRALSQUARE’S TOTAL LIABILITY ARISING OUT OF OR IN CONNECTION WITH THIS AGREEMENT SHALL 
NOT EXCEED THE TOTAL AMOUNT(S) ACTUALLY PAID BY CUSTOMER TO CENTRALSQUARE DURING THE 
INITIAL TERM OF THIS AGREEMENT, INCLUDING BOTH ONE TIME FEES AND SUBSCRIPTION PAYMENTS.  
NOTHING IN THIS SECTION SHALL BE DEEMED TO LIMIT THE AMOUNT OF INSURANCE AVAILABE TO ANY 
PARTY FOR ANY CLAIM OR CAUSE OF ACTION THAT WOULD BE COVERED BY THE AMOUNTS OF AVAILABE 
INSURANCE PURSUANT TO EXHIBIT 4.  
 

20. Insurance. During the term of this Agreement, CentralSquare shall maintain insurance coverage covering its operations in 
accordance with Exhibit 4 (Certificate of Insurance (Evidence of Coverage)). Upon request by Customer, CentralSquare shall 
include Customer as an additional insured on applicable insurance policies provided under this Agreement. CentralSquare shall 
provide proof of current coverage during the term of this Agreement. 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 3214D10C-FBB3-4A67-85F7-2C949263BF35

116

Item 18.



21. Third-Party Materials. CentralSquare may, from time to time, include third parties to perform services, provide software, or 
provide equipment. Customer acknowledges and agrees CentralSquare provides front-line support services for these Third-Party 
Materials, but these third parties assume all responsibility and liability in connection with the Third-Party Materials.  CentralSquare 
is not authorized to make any representations or warranties that are binding upon the third-party or to engage in any other acts 
that are binding upon the third-party, except specifically that CentralSquare is authorized to represent third-party fees and to 
accept payment of such amounts from Customer on behalf of the third-party for as long as such third-party authorizes 
CentralSquare to do so. As a condition precedent to installing or accessing certain Third-Party Materials, Customer may be 
required to execute a click-through, shrink-wrap End User License Agreement (“EULA”) or similar agreement provided by the 
Third-Party Materials provider.  If mapping information is supplied with the CentralSquare Software, CentralSquare makes no 
representation or warranty as to the completeness or accuracy of the mapping data provided with the CentralSquare Software.  
The completeness or accuracy of such data is solely dependent on the information supplied by the Customer or the mapping 
database vendor to CentralSquare. All third-party materials are provided “as-is” and any representation or warranty concerning 
them is strictly between Customer and the third-party.  

22. Subcontractors. CentralSquare may from time to time, in its discretion, engage third parties to perform services on its behalf 
including but not limited to Professional Services, Support Services, and/or provide software (each, a "Subcontractor").  
CentralSquare shall be fully responsible for the acts of all subcontractors to the same extent it is responsible for the acts of its 
own employees. 

23. Entire Agreement.  This Agreement, and any Exhibits specifically incorporated therein by reference, constitute the entire 
agreement between the Parties with respect to the subject matter. These documents supersede and merge all previous and 
contemporaneous proposals of sale, communications, representations, understandings and agreements, whether oral or written, 
between the Parties with respect to the subject hereof. 

24. Amendment.  Either Party may, at any time during the term, request in writing changes to this agreement. The Parties shall 
evaluate and, if agreed, implement all such requested changes. No requested changes will be effective unless and until 
memorialized in either a CentralSquare issued add-on quote signed by Customer, or a written change order or amendment to this 
Agreement signed by both Parties.   

25. No Third-Party Beneficiaries. This Agreement is for the sole benefit of the Parties and their respective successors and permitted 
assigns and nothing herein, express or implied, is intended to or shall confer on any other person any legal or equitable right, 
benefit, or remedy of any nature under or by reason of this Agreement. 

26. Counterparts. This Agreement, and any amendments hereto, may be executed in several counterparts, each of which when so 
executed shall be deemed to be an original, and such counterparts shall constitute one and the same instrument.  The Agreement 
(and any amendments) shall be considered properly executed by a Party if executed by that Party and transmitted by facsimile or 
other electronic means, such as DocuSign, Tagged Image Format Files (TIFF), or Portable Document Format (PDF). 

27. Material Adverse Change.  If any law, regulation, applicable standard, process, OEM requirement is changed or comes into force 
after the Effective Date, including but not limited to PCI standards or Americans with Disabilities Act compliance (collectively, a 
“Material Adverse Change”), which is not explicitly addressed within this Agreement and results in significant extra costs for either 
Party in relation to the performance of this Agreement, both Parties shall promptly meet, discuss in  good faith, and agree upon 
reducing the technical, operational, and/or commercial impact of such Material Adverse Change. 

28. Cooperative Purchases. This Agreement may be used by Customer Affiliates. CentralSquare agrees to offer similar services to 
other Affiliates under the same terms and conditions as stated herein except that the Fees may be negotiated between 
CentralSquare and other Affiliates based on the specific revenue expectations, agency reimbursed costs, and other Affiliate 
requirements. The Customer will in no way whatsoever incur any liability in relation to specifications, delivery, payment, or any 
other aspect of purchases by such Affiliates.  CentralSquare and the Affiliate will enter into any such arrangement with an 
amendment to this Agreement. 
29. Contractor certifies that in performing this Agreement it will comply with all applicable provisions of federal, state and local 

laws, ordinances, rules, licenses and regulations and shall make reasonable efforts to ensure that its employees, agents, 
subcontractors and others working on behalf of the Contractor under this Agreement do the same. 

30. Both parties shall act in their individual capacities in the performance of this Agreement and not as agents, employees, 
partners, joint ventures or associates of one another.  The employees or agents of one party shall not be deemed or 
construed to be the employees or agents of the other for any purpose whatsoever. 

31. Neither the Contractor, nor anyone acting on behalf of Contractor, has employed any person to solicit or procure this 
Agreement, nor will the Contractor make any payment or agreement for payment of any compensation in connection with 
the solicitation or procurement of this Agreement. 

32. Contractor agrees that there is no agreement, arrangement or understanding expressed or implied, contemplating any 
division of compensation for Services provided under this Agreement, or in the participation in such Services, directly or 
indirectly, by any person or entity, except as provided in this Agreement.  

33. Neither the Contractor, nor anyone acting on behalf of Contractor, has either directly or indirectly entered into any 
agreement, arrangement or understanding to collude or otherwise take any action in restraint of free competitive 
procurement in connection with this Agreement. 

34. Contractor will not discriminate against any employee or applicant for employment because of race, sex, color, creed, 
national origin, marital or familial status, religion, age, disability, sexual orientation, gender identity, genetic information or 
veteran status, or any other classification protected by federal, state, or local law, except where age or sex is an essential 
bona fide occupational requirement, or where disability is a bona fide occupational disqualification.   

35. Contractor shall inform all subcontractors and agents performing under this Agreement of this nondiscrimination and equal 
opportunity requirement and shall take reasonable steps to ensure their compliance with the same. 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 3214D10C-FBB3-4A67-85F7-2C949263BF35

117

Item 18.



36. Contractor represents, warrants and covenants that no relationship exists or will exist during the term of this Agreement that 
is a conflict of interest under Iowa law.  No employee, officer or agent of the Contractor shall participate in the procurement 
or performance of this Agreement if a conflict of interest exists as to such person.  Should a conflict of interest arise during 
the term of this Agreement for Contractor or any employee, officer or agent of Contractor, Contractor shall immediately 
notify the City, in which case this Agreement may be terminated and any excess costs incurred by the City due to such 
termination shall be paid by Contractor or deducted from any sums yet due to Contractor. 

37. This Agreement shall be governed, interpreted and enforced in accordance with the laws of the State of Iowa, regardless of 
choice of law principles. 

38. Venue for any dispute under this Agreement shall be the District Court in and for Black Hawk County, Iowa.        
39. Contractor hereby certifies, pursuant to 48 CFR Part 9, that neither it nor its principals are presently debarred, suspended, 

proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation in this Agreement by any federal 
agency. 

40. Contractor further certifies that it is not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, or 
voluntarily excluded from participation in any contracts with the City or with the State of Iowa. 

 
41. Order of Precedence. 

41.1. In the event of any conflict or inconsistency between this Agreement, the Exhibits, or any purchase order, then the following 
priority shall prevail: 
41.1.1. The main body of this Agreement and any associated amendments, statements of work (including Exhibit 5 

(Statement of Work)), or change orders and then the attached Exhibits to this Agreement in the order in which they 
appear. 

41.2. Customer’s purchase terms and conditions or CentralSquare’s sales terms and conditions are not applicable and shall 
have no force or effect, whether referenced in any document in relation to this Agreement. 

41.3. Incorporated Exhibits to this Agreement: 
Exhibit 1:  Solution(s) and Services Fee Schedule  
Exhibit 2:  Maintenance & Support  
Exhibit 3:  CentralSquare Access Management Policy  
Exhibit 4:  Certificate of Insurance (Evidence of Coverage) 
Exhibit 5:  Statement of Work 
Exhibit 6: CentralSquare RFP Response (included by reference but not attached) 

 

  

DocuSign Envelope ID: 3214D10C-FBB3-4A67-85F7-2C949263BF35

118

Item 18.



 
EXHIBIT 1 

Solutions(s) and Services Fee Schedule  
 

 

 

 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 3214D10C-FBB3-4A67-85F7-2C949263BF35

119

Item 18.



 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
Payment Schedule 

 

 Finance Enterprise, HR/Payroll Implementation Services 
 30% Due on Effective Date 
 20% Due at Project Kickoff 
 15% Due at completion of 1st End User Training Session 
 30% Due at Go Live 
 5% Due at completion of Reliability Period 

 
 
Payment Terms: 
a. Cloud Set-Up Fee is 100% due upon Execution. 
b. CentralSquare Annual Subscription Fees (Finance Enterprise, HR/Payroll) are due: on the Go-Live Date, and annually 

thereafter on the anniversary of the Go-Live Date. 
c. Annual Support & Maintenance Fees are due as follows: 

i. End Billing on NaviLine. Upon commencement of billing for the Annual Subscription Fees, Customer acknowledges the 
termination of the current maintenance billing structure for any legacy products that will be effectively replaced by modules 
listed in Exhibit 1. 

ii. Credit. A credit in the amount of the unused portion of Maintenance paid by Customer, if any, shall be applied towards 
Customers first Annual Subscription Fee. The unused portion of paid Maintenance will consist of the amount unused as of 
Go-Live Date. 

d. Annual Software Maintenance Fees and Annual Subscription Fees shall increase by 5% year over year. 
e. If applicable, non-subscription Hardware Fees are due on the Execution Date.  

DocuSign Envelope ID: 3214D10C-FBB3-4A67-85F7-2C949263BF35

120

Item 18.



f. If applicable, Third-Party Software and Services Fees (UKG and ClearGov) are due on the Execution Date. Third-Party Annual 
Subscriptions Fees are due annually thereafter on the anniversary of the Execution Date. 

g. If applicable, Travel expenses shall be due as incurred , invoiced on a monthly basis for the travel expenses incurred in the 
preceding month.  
 

Invoice Terms: 
CentralSquare shall provide an invoice for the items in the schedule above no less than thirty (30) days prior to the due date. .       
Following acceptance of Services by the City, payment shall be made to the Contractor within thirty (30) days of receipt of a 
proper invoice.  The invoice shall include, at a minimum, the name and address of the Contractor, the invoice number, the date 
services were performed or goods were shipped, a general description of the services or goods, total amount to be paid, any 
discounts or credits, and the net amount to be paid.  The invoice shall be mailed or emailed to the authorized representative of 
the City listed below, at the address listed below.  
 

Ancillary Fees: 
a. Customer is responsible for paying all taxes relating to this Agreement. Applicable tax amounts (if any) are not included in the 

fees set forth in this Agreement. If Customer is exempt from the payment of any such taxes, Customer must provide CentralSquare 
valid proof of exemption; otherwise, CentralSquare will invoice Customer and Customer will pay to CentralSquare all such tax 
amounts. 

b. To the extent allowable by law, if Customer fails to make any payment when due, then CentralSquare may charge interest on the 
past due amount at the rate of 5% per annum until paid.  In addition, Contractor may, after giving at least seven (7) days written 
notice to the City, suspend services under this Agreement until such unpaid balance is paid in full. 

  

DocuSign Envelope ID: 3214D10C-FBB3-4A67-85F7-2C949263BF35

121

Item 18.



EXHIBIT 1A 
Solutions(s) and Services Fee Schedule  

(OPTIONAL) 
 

 

 

 

a. City shall have the Option to purchase the software and services listed above by executing a Sales Order with 
CentralSquare no later than 240 days after the Effective Date of this Agreement. Such optional purchase shall be subject to 
the terms and conditions of this CentralSquare Solutions Agreement.  

b. If applicable, Third-Party Software and Services Fees (UKG) are due on the date of execution of any such Sales Order for 
the optional purchase. Third-Party Annual Subscriptions Fees are due annually thereafter on the anniversary of the 
Execution Date of the Sales Order. 

  

DocuSign Envelope ID: 3214D10C-FBB3-4A67-85F7-2C949263BF35

122

Item 18.



 

 

EXHIBIT 2 
Maintenance & Support 

 
This Maintenance & Support Exhibit describes support and maintenance relating to technical support that CentralSquare will 
provide to Customer during the Term of the Agreement. 
 

1. Product Updates and Releases 
1.1. Software Version. “Software Version” means the base or core version of the Software that contains significant new 

features and significant fixes and is available to the Customer. Software Versions may occur as the Software architecture 
changes or as new technologies are developed. The nomenclature used for updates and upgrades consists of major, 
minor, build, and fix and these correspond to the following digit locations of a release, a,b,c,d. An example of which would 
be 7.4.1.3, where the 7 refers to the major release, the 4 refers to the minor release, the 1 refers to the build, and the 3 
refers to a fix. All Software Versions are provided and included as part of this Agreement. 

1.2. Updates. From time to time CentralSquare may develop permanent fixes or solutions to known problems or bugs in the 
Software and incorporate them in a formal “Update” to the Software. If Customer is receiving technical support from 
CentralSquare on the general release date for an Update, CentralSquare will provide the Customer with the Update and 
related Documentation at no extra charge.  Updates for custom configurations will be agreed upon by the Parties and 
outlined in a Statement of Work or Change Order. 

1.3. Releases. Customer shall agree to install and/or use any New or Major Release within one year of being made available 
by CentralSquare to avoid or mitigate a performance problem, ineligibility for Support and Maintenance Services or 
infringement claim. All modifications, revisions and updates to the Software shall be furnished by means of new Releases 
of the Software and shall be accompanied by updates to the Documentation whenever CentralSquare determines, in its 
sole discretion, that such updates are necessary.   

2. Support 
2.1. CentralSquare shall provide to Customer support via toll-free phone number 833-278-7877 or via the CentralSquare 

Support Portal. CentralSquare shall provide to Customer, commercially reasonable efforts in solving errors reported by the 
Customer as well as making available an online support portal. Customer shall provide to CentralSquare reasonably detailed 
documentation and explanation, together with underlying data, to substantiate errors and to assist CentralSquare in its efforts 
to diagnose, reproduce and correct the error. Should either Party not be able to locate the error root cause and Customer 
and CentralSquare agree that on-site services are necessary to diagnose or resolve the problem CentralSquare shall provide 
a travel estimate and estimated hours in order to diagnose the reported error.   

2.2. If after traveling onsite to diagnose a reported error and such reported error did not, in fact, exist or was not attributable to a 
defect in the Software provided by CentralSquare or an act or omission of CentralSquare, then Customer shall pay for 
CentralSquare's investigation, travel, and related services in accordance with provided estimate. Customer must provide 
CentralSquare with such facilities, equipment and support as are reasonably necessary for CentralSquare to perform its 
obligations under this Exhibit, including remote access in accordance with the Remote Access Policy. 

3. Online Support Portal  
Online support is available via https://support.centralsquare.com/s/contact-us, offering Customer the ability to resolve its own 
problems with access to CentralSquare’s most current information. Customer will need to enter its designated username and 
password to gain access to the technical support areas on CentralSquare’s website. CentralSquare’s technical support areas 
allow Customer to: (i) search an up-to-date knowledge base of technical support information, technical tips, and featured 
functions; and (ii) access answers to frequently asked questions (FAQ). 

4. Exclusions from Technical Support Services 
CentralSquare shall have no support obligations to provide Support or Maintenance for Solutions that are not kept current to 
one version prior to the then current version of the Solution.   CentralSquare shall have no support obligations with respect to 
any third-party hardware or software product not licensed or sold to Customer by CentralSquare (“Nonqualified Product”). 
Customer shall be solely responsible for the compatibility and functioning of Nonqualified Products with the Software. 

5. Customer Responsibilities 
In connection with CentralSquare’s provision of technical support as described herein, Customer acknowledges that 
Customer has the responsibility to do each of the following: 
5.1 Provide hardware, operating system and browser software that meets technical specifications, as well as a fast, 

stable, high-speed connection and remote connectivity for accessing the Solution. 
5.2 Maintain any applicable computer system and associated peripheral equipment in good working order in accordance 

with the manufacturers’ specifications, and ensure that any problems reported to CentralSquare are not due to 
hardware malfunction; 

5.3 For CentralSquare Solutions that are implemented on Customer Systems, maintain the designated operating system 
at the latest code revision level reasonably deemed necessary by CentralSquare for proper operation of the 
Software; 

5.4 Supply CentralSquare with access to and use of all information and facilities reasonably determined to be necessary 
by CentralSquare to render the technical support described herein; 

5.5 Perform any test or procedures reasonably recommended by CentralSquare for the purpose of identifying and/or 
resolving any problems; 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 3214D10C-FBB3-4A67-85F7-2C949263BF35

123

Item 18.

https://support.centralsquare.com/s/contact-us


5.6 At all times follow routine operator procedures as specified in the Documentation or any error correction guidelines 
of CentralSquare posted on the CentralSquare website; 

5.7 Customer shall remain solely responsible at all times for the safeguarding of Customer’s proprietary, confidential, 
and classified information contained within Customer Systems; and 

5.8 Reasonably ensure that the Customer Systems are isolated and free from viruses and malicious code that could 
cause harm before requesting or receiving remote support assistance. 

6. Priorities and Support Response Matrix 
The following priority matrix relates to software errors covered by this Agreement. Causes secondary to non-covered causes 
- such as hardware, network, and third-party products - are not included in this priority matrix and are outside the scope of this 
Exhibit. CentralSquare will make commercially reasonable efforts to respond to Software incidents for live remote based 
production systems using the following guidelines: 

 
Priority Issue Definition Response Time 

Priority 1 – 
Urgent  

The software is completely down and will not 
launch or function. 

Priority 1 issues must be called in via 833-278-7877 and 
will be immediately answered and managed by the first 
available representative. 

Priority 2 – 
Critical 

A high-impact problem that disrupts the 
customer’s operation but there is capacity to 
remain productive and maintain necessary 
operations.  

Priority 2 issues must be called in via 833-278-7877 and 
will be immediately answered and managed by the first 
available representative. 

Priority 3 – 
Non-Critical 

A Software Error related to a user function which 
does not negatively impact the User from the use 
of the system. This includes system administrator 
functions or restriction of user workflow but does 
not significantly impact their job function. 

Priority 3 issues called in via 833-278-7877 will be 
immediately answered and managed by the first 
available representative. 
 
Non-Critical Priority 3 issues may also be reported via 
Https://support.centralsquare.com/s/contact-us 

Priority 4 – 
Minor 

Cosmetic or documentation errors, including 
Customer technical questions or usability 
questions.  

Priority 4 issues called in via 833-278-7877 will be 
immediately answered and managed by the first 
available representative. 
 
Minor Priority 4 issues may also be reported via 
Https://support.centralsquare.com/s/contact-us 

 
7. Exceptions. CentralSquare shall not be responsible for failure to carry out its Support and Maintenance obligations under this 

Exhibit if the failure is caused by adverse impact due to: 
7.1. defectiveness of the Customer’s Systems (including but not limited to environment, hardware or ancillary systems), or 

due to Customer corrupt, incomplete, or inaccurate data reported to the Solution, or documented defect. 
7.2. denial of reasonable access to Customer’s System or premises preventing CentralSquare from addressing the issue. 
7.3. material changes made to the usage of the Solution by Customer where CentralSquare has not agreed to such changes 

in advance and in writing or the modification or alteration, in any way, by Customer or its subcontractors, of 
communications links necessary to the proper performance of the Solution. 

7.4. a Force Majeure event (as outlined in Section 12), or the negligence, intentional acts, or omissions of Customer or its 
agents. 

8. Incident Resolution. Actual response times and resolutions may vary due to issue complexity and priority. For critical impact 
level and above, CentralSquare provides a continuous resolution effort until the issue is resolved. CentralSquare will make 
commercially reasonable efforts to resolve Software incidents for live remote based production systems using the following 
guidelines: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 3214D10C-FBB3-4A67-85F7-2C949263BF35

124

Item 18.

https://support.centralsquare.com/s/contact-us
https://support.centralsquare.com/s/contact-us


Priority Resolution Process Resolution Time 

Priority 1 – Urgent CentralSquare will provide a 
procedural or configuration 
workaround or a code correction that 
allows the Customer to resume live 
operations on the production System. 

CentralSquare will work continuously to provide the Customer 
with a solution that allows the Customer to resume live 
operations on the production system. 

CentralSquare will either resolve the issue or provide a resolution 
plan as soon as possible and not later than twenty-four (24) hours 
after notification. 

Priority 2 – 
 
Critical 

CentralSquare will provide a 
procedural or configuration 
workaround or a code correction that 
allows the Customer to resume 
normal operations on the production 
System. 

CentralSquare will work continuously to provide the Customer 
with a solution that allows the Customer to resume normal 
operations on the production System. 
 
CentralSquare will either resolve the issue or provide a resolution 
plan as soon as possible and not later than thirty-six (36) hours 
after notification. 

Priority 3 – Non – 
Critical 

CentralSquare will provide a 
procedural or configuration 
workaround that allows the Customer 
to resolve the problem. 

CentralSquare will work to provide the Customer with a 
resolution which may include a workaround or code correction 
within a timeframe that takes into consideration the impact of the 
issue on the Customer and CentralSquare’s User base. Priority 3 
issues have priority scheduling in a subsequent release. 

Priority 4 – Minor If CentralSquare determines that a 
reported Minor Priority error 
requires a code correction, such 
issues will be addressed in a 
subsequent release when 
applicable. 

CentralSquare will work to provide the Customer with a resolution 
which may include a workaround or code correction in a future 
release of the software. Priority 4 issues have no defined 
resolution time. 

 
9. Non-Production Environments. CentralSquare will make commercially reasonable efforts to provide fixes to non-production 

environment(s). Non-production environments are not included under the response or resolution tables provided in this Exhibit. 
9.1. Maintenance. All non-production environment resolution processes will follow the structure and schedules outlined above 

for production environments. 
9.2. Incidents and service requests. Non-production environment incidents are considered priority 3 or 4, dictated by 

circumstances and will be prioritized and scheduled subordinate to production environment service requests. 
10. Training. Outside the scope of training services purchased, if any, Customer is responsible for the training and organization of 

its staff in the operation of the Software. 
11. Development Work. Software support and maintenance does not include development work either (i) on software not licensed 

from CentralSquare or (ii) development work for enhancements or features that are outside the documented functionality of the 
Software, except such work as may be specifically purchased and outlined in the Agreement. CentralSquare retains all 
intellectual property rights in development work performed and Customer may request consulting and development work from 
CentralSquare as a separate billable service. 

12. Technology Life Expectancy. Customer understands, acknowledges and agrees that the technology upon which the Hardware, 
Solution and Third-Party Software is based changes rapidly. Customer further acknowledges that CentralSquare will continue to 
improve the functionality and features of the Solution to improve legal compliance, accuracy, functionality and usability. As a 
result, CentralSquare does not represent or warrant that the Hardware, Solution and/or Third-Party Software provided to 
Customer under this Agreement or that the Customer Systems recommended by CentralSquare will function for an indefinite 
period of time. Rather, CentralSquare and Customer may, from time to time, analyze the functionality of the Hardware, Solution, 
Third-Party Software and Customer Systems in response to changes to determine whether Customer must upgrade the same. 
Customer upgrades may include without limitation, the installation of a new Release, additional disk storage and memory, and 
workstation and/or server upgrades. Customer upgrades may also include the installation and/or removal of Third-Party 
Software. Customer is solely responsible for all costs associated with future resources and upgrades. 

  

DocuSign Envelope ID: 3214D10C-FBB3-4A67-85F7-2C949263BF35

125

Item 18.



EXHIBIT 3 
CentralSquare Access Management Policy 

 

In order to provide secure, federally compliant connections to agency systems CentralSquare Technologies (“CentralSquare”) 
requires BeyondTrust or SecureLink as the only approved methodology of connection. BeyondTrust and Securelink provide the 
necessary remote access in order to service and maintain CentralSquare products while adhering to the Federal Bureau of 
Investigations Criminal Justice Information Services requirements. Both solutions utilize two-factor authentication Federal 
Information Processing Standard Publication (“FIPS”) 140-2 validated cryptographic modules and AES encryption in 256-bit 
strengths.  
 BeyondTrust and Securelink are addressed in turn via this Access Management Policy; Customers may choose which 
remote privileged access management solution will be utilized by CentralSquare.     

BeyondTrust 
 The BeyondTrust remote support solution may be utilized via escorted session or a jump Customer.  As for an escorted 
session, when an agency needs assistance from CentralSquare, the agency employee requesting assistance will receive verbal 
or email communication with a session key necessary to enable remote access. If a verbal key is provided, the user enters the 
session key after visiting https://securesupport.centralsquare.com. 
 Jump Customers are a Windows service that can be stopped/started to facilitate a support session. Connections made 
via jump Customer can be active or passive.  An active jump Customer is always available.  A passive connection is enabled for 
a specific purpose and then disabled when not used.  Regardless of the option selected, CentralSquare’s support team will arrange 
a BeyondTrust session to establish the jump Customer.   
 The jump Customer resides on the agency side on the installed device, where an agency administrator can manage.  
Instructions on how to enable/disable jump Customers can be provided upon request. A sample workflow of a passive jump 
Customer is provided below: 

Should an agency require support from CentralSquare, a call would be placed and/or a support 
ticket opened in the portal on the CentralSquare customer support website.  Before accessing 
the agency’s system and/or environment, the CentralSquare representative would send a 
notice of connection from the CentralSquare support portal instance.  This notice can be sent 
to the individual at the agency that the CentralSquare representative is working with or other 
designated contacts as necessary. Upon receipt of the notice of connection, the agency 
personnel would enable the BeyondTrust jump Customer.  The CentralSquare representative 
would then be admitted to the agency’s system and/or environment to perform the necessary 
task.  Upon completion of the task, the CentralSquare representative sends a notice of 
disconnection from the CentralSquare support portal instance.  Upon receipt of the notice of 
disconnection, the agency personnel would then disable the BeyondTrust jump Customer. 

Securelink 
 Similar to BeyondTrust’s escorted session, Securelink may be utilized via “quick connect”. To enable a quick connect 
session when an agency needs assistance from CentralSquare, the Agency employee requesting assistance will enter a key code 
in order to connect for screen sharing on a device.   
 Similar to the jump Customer methodology, SecureLink may also be utilized via “gatekeeper”. The sample workflow 
description for a jump Customer provided above is substantially similar to the workflow for gatekeeper.   

Summation 
 BeyondTrust and Securelink allow customers the ability to monitor connectivity to the customer’s network and maintain 
CJIS compliance while enabling CentralSquare to perform the necessary support functions. 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 3214D10C-FBB3-4A67-85F7-2C949263BF35

126

Item 18.

https://nam11.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fsecuresupport.centralsquare.com%2F&data=04%7C01%7Cbilliejo.belcher%40centralsquare.com%7C52c860f0fb444b73208908da18ccfad1%7Cc2c94f3cb566449198434ec9d795ced0%7C1%7C0%7C637849565924001437%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C3000&sdata=vyr%2BprM9PAx7BFyvML2KT1tMbnkbtAsh%2FlFGtEMGsKM%3D&reserved=0


127

Item 18.

Rodenbej
Text Box
Exhibit 4



128

Item 18.



DocuSign Envelope ID: 3214D10C-FBB3-4A67-85F7-2C949263BF35

129

Item 18.



DocuSign Envelope ID: 3214D10C-FBB3-4A67-85F7-2C949263BF35

130

Item 18.



DocuSign Envelope ID: 3214D10C-FBB3-4A67-85F7-2C949263BF35

131

Item 18.



DocuSign Envelope ID: 3214D10C-FBB3-4A67-85F7-2C949263BF35

132

Item 18.



DocuSign Envelope ID: 3214D10C-FBB3-4A67-85F7-2C949263BF35

133

Item 18.



DocuSign Envelope ID: 3214D10C-FBB3-4A67-85F7-2C949263BF35

134

Item 18.



DocuSign Envelope ID: 3214D10C-FBB3-4A67-85F7-2C949263BF35

135

Item 18.



DocuSign Envelope ID: 3214D10C-FBB3-4A67-85F7-2C949263BF35

136

Item 18.



DocuSign Envelope ID: 3214D10C-FBB3-4A67-85F7-2C949263BF35

137

Item 18.



DocuSign Envelope ID: 3214D10C-FBB3-4A67-85F7-2C949263BF35

138

Item 18.



DocuSign Envelope ID: 3214D10C-FBB3-4A67-85F7-2C949263BF35

139

Item 18.



Policy Number: BA-6S783539-23-13-G

DocuSign Envelope ID: 3214D10C-FBB3-4A67-85F7-2C949263BF35

140

Item 18.



POLICY NUMBER: H-6306S758660-COF-23

DocuSign Envelope ID: 3214D10C-FBB3-4A67-85F7-2C949263BF35

141

Item 18.



DocuSign Envelope ID: 3214D10C-FBB3-4A67-85F7-2C949263BF35

142

Item 18.



POLICY NUMBER: 630-6S758660-COF-23

DocuSign Envelope ID: 3214D10C-FBB3-4A67-85F7-2C949263BF35

143

Item 18.



POLICY NUMBER: H-630-63S758660-COF-23

DocuSign Envelope ID: 3214D10C-FBB3-4A67-85F7-2C949263BF35

144

Item 18.



DocuSign Envelope ID: 3214D10C-FBB3-4A67-85F7-2C949263BF35

145

Item 18.



DocuSign Envelope ID: 3214D10C-FBB3-4A67-85F7-2C949263BF35

146

Item 18.



DocuSign Envelope ID: 3214D10C-FBB3-4A67-85F7-2C949263BF35

147

Item 18.



DocuSign Envelope ID: 3214D10C-FBB3-4A67-85F7-2C949263BF35

148

Item 18.



ONE TOWER SQUARE 
HARTFORD CT 06183 

WORKERS COMPENSATION 

AND 

EMPLOYERS LIABILITY POLICY 

ENDORSEMENT WC 00 03 13 (00) - 001 

POLICY NUMBER: UB-6S783668-23-I3-G 

WAIVER OF OUR RIGHT TO RECOVER FROM OTHERS ENDORSEMENT 

We have the right to recover our payments from anyone liable for an injury covered by this policy. We will not 

enforce our right against the person or organization named in the Schedule. (This agreement applies only to the 

extent that you perform work under a written contract that requires you to obtain this agreement from us.) 

This agreement shall not operate directly or indirectly to benefit any one not named in the Schedule. 

SCHEDULE 

DESIGNATED PERSON: 

DESIGNATED ORGANIZATION: 

ANY PERSON OR ORGANIZATION FOR WHICH THE INSURED HAS AGREED 

BY WRITTEN CONTRACT EXECUTED PRIOR TO LOSS TO FURNISH THIS 

WAIVER. 

Any person or organization for which the employer has agreed by written contract, 

executed prior to loss, may execute a waiver of subrogation. However, for purposes of 

work performed by the employer in Missouri, this waiver of subrogation does not apply 

to any construction group of classifications as designated by the waiver of right to 

recover from others (subrogation) rule in our manual. 

DATE OF ISSUE: 09-23-22 ST ASSIGN: PAGE 1 OFl 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 3214D10C-FBB3-4A67-85F7-2C949263BF35

149

Item 18.



CHANGE EFFECTIVE DATE: 08-31-23 
CHANGE ENDORSEMENT NUMBER: 0002 

 

 
 

CHANGE ENDORSEMENT 

Named Insured: 
SUPERMOOSE HOLDCO, LLC 

 
Policy Number: H-630-6S758660-COF-23 

Policy Effective Date: 08/31/23 
Issue Date: 09/20/23 
Premium $ 0 

 

INSURING COMPANY: 
THE CHARTER OAK FIRE INSURANCE COMPANY 

Effective from 08/31/23 at the time of day the policy becomes effective. 

THIS INSURANCE IS AMENDED AS FOLLOWS: 

THE COMMON POLICY DECLARATIONS IS AMENDED AS FOLLOWS: 

DELETING IL T4 21 03 16 - WAIVER OF GOVERNMENTAL IMMUNITY. 

THE COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY COVERAGE PART IS AMENDED AS FOLLOWS: 

ADDING CG F4 22 03 06 - GOV'T IMMUNITY ENDT - IOWA JURISDICTION 
AS PER ATTACHED. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

NAME AND ADDRESS OF AGENT OR BROKER: 
MARSH-QSG-NEW YORK (XH215) 
1166 AVE OF THE AMERICAS 
NEW YORK, NY 10036 

 
IL T0 07 09 87 PAGE 1 OF 1 
OFFICE: SP-LONG ISLAND 

 
 

COUNTERSIGNED BY: 
 
 

Authorized Representative 
 

DATE:  

DocuSign Envelope ID: 3214D10C-FBB3-4A67-85F7-2C949263BF35

150

Item 18.



CHANGE EFFECTIVE DATE: 08-31-23 
CHANGE ENDORSEMENT NUMBER: 0002 

 

 

 
 

 

POLICY NUMBER: 

EFFECTIVE DATE: 

ISSUE DATE: 

H-630-6S758660-COF-23 

08-31-23 

09-20-23 
 

LISTING OF FORMS, ENDORSEMENTS AND SCHEDULE NUMBERS 

THIS LISTING SHOWS THE NUMBER OF FORMS, SCHEDULES AND ENDORSEMENTS 
BY LINE OF BUSINESS. 

 
IL T0 07 09 87 CHANGE ENDORSEMENT 
IL T8 01 10 93 FORMS, ENDORSEMENTS AND SCHEDULE NUMBERS 

 
COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY 

CG F4 22 03 06 GOVERNMENTAL IMMUNITY ENDORSEMENT-IOWA 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

IL T8 01 10 93 PAGE: 1 OF 1 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 3214D10C-FBB3-4A67-85F7-2C949263BF35

151

Item 18.



 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

GENERAL LIABILITY 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 3214D10C-FBB3-4A67-85F7-2C949263BF35

152

Item 18.



 

COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY 
POLICY NUMBER: H-630-6S758660-COF-23 ISSUE DATE: 09-20-23 

THIS ENDORSEMENT CHANGES THE POLICY. PLEASE READ IT CAREFULLY. 
 

GOVERNMENTAL IMMUNITY ENDORSEMENT – IOWA 
JURISDICTION 

 
This endorsement modifies insurance provided under the following: 

COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY COVERAGE PART 

SCHEDULE 
Iowa Jurisdiction: 

CITY OF CEDAR FALLS 
220 CLAY STREET 
CEDAR FALLS, IA 50613 

 
 
 

Description Of Project: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

The following is added to SECTION IV – COM- 
MERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY CONDITIONS: 
IOWA GOVERNMENTAL IMMUNITY 
a. For any claim or "suit" seeking damages from the 

Iowa jurisdiction scheduled in this endorsement 
because of "bodily injury", "property damage", 
"personal injury" or "advertising injury" caused by 
"your work" on or for any project that is scheduled 
in this endorsement and located in such Iowa ju- 
risdiction, this insurance applies only to the extent 
that such claim or "suit" is not subject to any de- 
fense of governmental immunity under Iowa 
Code Section 670.4 and any amendment to that 
section. 

b. For any claim or "suit" seeking damages from the 
Iowa jurisdiction scheduled in this endorsement 
because of "bodily injury", "property damage", 
"personal injury" or "advertising injury" to which 
this insurance applies and caused by "your work" 
on or for any project that is scheduled in this en- 
dorsement and located in such Iowa jurisdiction, 
that Iowa jurisdiction will be responsible for as- 
serting any defense of governmental immunity 

 
mental immunity on behalf of that Iowa jurisdic- 
tion. 

c. For any claim or "suit" seeking damages from the 
Iowa jurisdiction scheduled in this endorsement 
because of "bodily injury", "property damage", 
"personal injury" or "advertising injury" to which 
this insurance applies and caused by "your work" 
on or for any project that is scheduled in this en- 
dorsement and located in such Iowa jurisdiction, 
we agree that: 

(1) The purchase of this policy and including the 
Iowa jurisdiction as an additional insured un- 
der this policy does not waive any defense of 
governmental immunity available to such 
Iowa jurisdiction under Iowa Code Section 
670.4 and any amendment to that section; 
and 

(2) We will take the position that this insurance 
does not apply because of governmental im- 
munity only after a court of law having juris- 
diction over such claim or "suit" has ruled in 
favor of any defense of governmental immu- 
nity asserted by such Iowa jurisdiction. 

and must do so if requested in writing by us.  d. This preservation of governmental immunity does 
Nothing contained in this endorsement shall pre- not change the coverage otherwise available un- 
vent us from asserting any defense of govern- der this policy. 

 
CG F4 22 03 06 © 2006 The St. Paul Travelers Companies, Inc. Page 1 of 1 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 3214D10C-FBB3-4A67-85F7-2C949263BF35

153

Item 18.



 
 

EXHIBIT 5 
 

Implementation Statement of Work 
Project: Cedar Falls, IA – Finance Enterprise and HR/Payroll with UKG and ClearGov 
CentralSquare is implementing a configurable, commercially available, off-the-shelf solution. The parties mutually agree and 
acknowledge this Statement of Work (SOW) is to be a planning document, not the detailed requirements or design of the 
solution.  

• Project Start Date and Project Schedule 
Parties agree the Project Kickoff Meeting will be scheduled within thirty (30) days from the Effective Date of the Agreement. 
Parties will work together to create the project schedule within thirty (30) days from the kickoff date. 

Scope of Project 
The project includes the CentralSquare core systems, Finance Enterprise and HR/Payroll, as detailed in Appendix A of this 
SOW. ClearGov and UKG Ready and UKG TeleStaff services are detailed in Appendices C, D and E. 

• Services Scope 
The following outlines the proposed methodology for the project management, consulting, configuration, testing, training, 
and other services work necessary for the implementation of the contracted products.  Details related to the activities for 
each application included in this project can be found in Appendices of this SOW. 

Project Teams 

Project teams from all parties will include functional experts, technical resources, and decision makers. 
CentralSquare and the Customer agree to make all necessary arrangements to ensure resources are available at 
each stage to ensure timelines are met.  

 

Project Management Methodology 

The implementation is conducted by a cross-functional team of experts from several departments within 
CentralSquare led by the assigned Project Manager. A phased approach to project management is followed to 
ensure the critical services are consistent and results are achieved. Phases include: 

Initiation: This phase includes the contract execution and transition to the Service Delivery team. CentralSquare 
may schedule an all-team meeting to kick off the project. The kickoff meeting will include time for the project 
managers from both teams to review all contractual documentation and begin the process of finalizing the 
integrated project schedule. 

Planning: During the planning phase, the project managers from both teams will meet to discuss all tasks and 
resources necessary to successfully complete implementation. The project team from CentralSquare will be 
finalized, project governance will be established, and a communications plan will be drafted and shared with the 
parties. 

CentralSquare deliverables during the planning phase include the integrated baseline project schedule, 
communications plan, resource plan, and governance plan. 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 3214D10C-FBB3-4A67-85F7-2C949263BF35

154

Item 18.



 

Monitor and Control: Throughout the project, the project managers will work together on monitoring and controlling the 
overall project health. This includes regular status meetings/reports, quality reviews, managing risks/issues, and managing 
resources. Project managers will work together to manage the overall timeline, scope and respective budgets, as well as 
ensuring the customer’s objectives are being met along the way. Any items determined to be out of scope will be 
immediately addressed by Central Square and customer Project Manager. 

CentralSquare deliverables during this phase include regular status reports, risk/issue log, regular stakeholder meetings, and 
all project schedule updates. 

Project Close Out: The final stage of the project includes an introduction and transition to the Customer Support team and 
the Customer Success team. During transition, the project managers will work together to conduct an audit of tasks and 
deliverables associated with the project. Any mutually agreed upon delayed deliverables will be scheduled for post go-live 
and documented. Any contracted post go-live activities will be reviewed and scheduled as necessary before transition to 
Customer Support. 

 
Implementation Methodology 

CentralSquare Professional Service Consultants and Project Manager follow a standard implementation approach divided into 
stages throughout the course of the project. Several types of services and resources (defined herein) will be used during each 
stage to complete the necessary steps for successful deployment of the contracted services. Contracted services are detailed 
in the Appendices. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 3214D10C-FBB3-4A67-85F7-2C949263BF35

155

Item 18.



 

APPENDIX A: CENTRALSQUARE FINANCE ENTERPRISE AND HR/PAYROLL 
 

FUNCTIONAL GROUPS: 
The Finance Enterprise and HR/Payroll solution will be implemented for the City for the following modules: 

 

• General Ledger 
• Budgeting 
• Accounts Payable 
• Accounts Receivable 
• Bank Reconciliation 
• Cash Receipts/Cash Management 
• Fixed Assets/Capital Assets 
• Purchasing/Requisitions 
• Person/Entity (Vendors/Customers) 
• Human Resources 
• Payroll 
• Employee Online Basic 
• Pcard 
• Project Allocation 
• Grants Management 

 

 

ANALYSIS: 

During this stage of the implementation, CentralSquare Consultants will meet with the Customer’s functional experts to review the 
current workflows of key functions impacted by this project and the contract software. In this stage we also begin the process of data 
conversion by analyzing your legacy data.  Significant tasks include:  

Major Task Description 
Business Process Review Consultant meets with different areas of Finance and HR/Payroll reviewing and analyzing all 

key business processes. All sessions will be discussions on processes relating to the different 
key functional areas.  CentralSquare deliverable: Finance Enterprise and HR/Payroll Formal BPR 
Report and Recommendations. 

Data Migration Mapping The consultant will work closely with the agency’s legacy data expert, to review the source data 
and map it to the proper target data field in Finance Enterprise. 

 

  

INSTALLATION: 

Below are the major technical tasks included in this project. Significant tasks included: 

  

Major Task Description 

Installation of Pre-Prod of 
Finance Enterprise and 

Cognos Environments 

CentralSquare technical consultant will create a new pre-production environment in 
CentralSquare’s hosted cloud. Details are included in Appendix B of this SOW. 

  

DocuSign Envelope ID: 3214D10C-FBB3-4A67-85F7-2C949263BF35

156

Item 18.



 

  

DATA MIGRATION: 

Major Task Description 
Data Migration CentralSquare consultants will work with the City during the migration process. We will assist 

and train the client to use the data import tools. 

  

  

CONFIGURATION: 

Finalizing the Finance Enterprise configuration will be a collaborative process driven by the functional requirements discovered during 
the business process review and through consultative engagements between CentralSquare staff and the customer’s Subject Matter 
Experts. Significant tasks include: 

Major Task Description 
System Configuration CentralSquare consultants will work with the City to configure the system to meet their needs. 

The configuration will be based on the findings of the Business Process Review. This 
configuration will be tested and adjusted as needed by the client. 

Workflow Creation 

  

CentralSquare consultants will work with the City to configure Workflow in accordance with 
the City’s processes.  

Report Development CentralSquare consultants will work with the City to develop custom reports. 
Configuration Validation CentralSquare Consultant completes the Configuration Validation checklist of the system to 

verify system is configured to meet the requirements. 

 

 

INTEGRATION/INTERFACES: 

Integrations and/or interfaces Included in this project: 

Integration/Interface Use of System  Type of Integration/Interface 
(i.e., API, Web Service, Batch)  

1-way/2-way/Bi-
directional 

Standard/Custom Automated/Manual 

 

UKG UKG Ready Suite Batch Files Bi-Directional Standard Both automated and 
manual 

UKG UKG TeleStaff Batch Files Bi-Directional Standard Manual 

ClearGov Budgeting Batch Bi-Directional Standard Manual 

 

 

 

TRAINING: 

  

Application Workshops 

Application workshop training classes designed as hands-on workshops to Train-the-Trainer. These classes generally are limited to a 
maximum of twelve participants (or as determined by mutual agreement of the CentralSquare and Customer Project Managers) and 
should be attended by functional experts in the specific application area. 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 3214D10C-FBB3-4A67-85F7-2C949263BF35

157

Item 18.



 

  

Core Solution Training Type Intended Audience Topics Location 

Finance Core 

Training 

CST 
Instructor-led 
Training 

Train the Trainer 

Client functional experts 
will attend 

Accounts Receivable, 
Accounts Payable, Cash 
Receipts, Bank 
Reconciliation, Fixed Assets 

Remote or 
Onsite 

TBD 

General Ledger 
Training 

CST 
Instructor-led 
Training 

Train the Trainer 

Client functional experts 
will attend 

General Ledger & Budget Remote or 
Onsite 

TBD 

HR/Payroll 
Training 

  

CST 
Instructor-led 
Training 

Train the Trainer 

Client functional experts 
will attend 

Human Resources, Payroll 

  

Remote or 
Onsite 

TBD 

  

Cognos 
Analytics 

CST Instructor 
led Training 

Report writers and users Overview and general 
navigation. Report building 
techniques and skills 

Remote or 
Onsite 

TBD 

  

End-User Training 

End-user training provides hands-on, process-based instruction focusing on key tasks related to users’ job responsibilities.  With the 
decision to choose CentralSquare facilitated training, an instructor provides training on the chosen contracted solutions.  End-user 
classes incorporate extensive activities based on realistic scenarios focusing on processes and tools within the applications for 
productive use of the system at and after Go-Live.  These classes generally are limited to a maximum 10-12 participants (or as 
determined by mutual agreement of the CentralSquare and Customer Project Managers).  Agendas for each module will be based on 
specific configuration and workflows established during the implementation.  

  

 

  

TESTING: 

Testing will assess your team’s readiness for Go Live. It is an iterative process, conducted by the client, to verify the configured solution 
meets the stated functional requirements. Testing matrix/plan will be provided to assist the City with testing. This phase is especially 
important to ensure a smooth transition at go-live. Significant tasks include:  

  

Testing Tasks  Definition  

Planning  CST will work with the System Administrator to develop an Acceptance Test Plan to verify the 
configured solution meets the stated functional requirements. This Plan will include user test scripts 
covering the various Finance functions  

Issue Tracking  CST will collaborate with the System Administrator to maintain a log of issues, configuration 
problems, and software malfunctions identified during testing  

Issue Resolution  CST will work collaboratively to resolve all such issues, problems and malfunctions to the customer’s 
satisfaction  

DocuSign Envelope ID: 3214D10C-FBB3-4A67-85F7-2C949263BF35

158

Item 18.



 

Acceptance Testing  System Administrator will perform acceptance testing to ensure acceptance criteria items have been 
addressed, and certify Finance Enterprise is ready for “go-live”  

Parallel Testing CentralSquare will assist with parallel testing for payroll. We will assist with running three full parallel 
payrolls prior to Go Live. 

  

  

DEPLOYMENT: 

Starts with the completion of your production environment. Then, we conduct a mock Go Live. Finally, once both teams agree on 
readiness, we Go Live. Significant tasks include: 

Major Task Description 

Configuration Validation CentralSquare Consultant completes the Configuration Validation checklist of the system to 
verify system is configured to meet the requirements. 

Plan Cutover Schedule 
and Communications 

Describes tasks to be handled by CentralSquare and Customer personnel during the initial 
cutover to Go-Live, including a detailed schedule of CentralSquare personnel covering each 
shift with resources, process for reporting issues, how they will be handled or escalated, 
contact names/phone numbers onsite staff, remote and third-party vendors.  

Testing Ends Sign Off Both parties will acknowledge the completion of testing by signing the Testing Ends document. 
Execute Go Live The Client transitions from their legacy system to the Finance Enterprise system and conducts 

their normal day-to-day business. 
Go Live Support This session will be used to provide support for Go Live. The topic will be determined by client 

needs. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 3214D10C-FBB3-4A67-85F7-2C949263BF35

159

Item 18.



 

 

APPENDIX B: Cloud Services (Cloud Services – Hosted) 
CentralSquare and Customer will conduct the following as part of this project. SAAS 

Tasks Name Description Customer Role CentralSquare Role 

1. Creation Initial Creation of CentralSquare’s 
Finance Enterprise software 

Attend Discovery Call 

Provide necessary 
information for the 
environment build. 

Provide a list 
of network 
printers 

Work with CST team 
to choose the 
authentication 
method 

Provide a list of users, 
if needed 

Work with 
Networking team to 
verify the site- to-site 
VPN is properly 
configured. 

Discovery Call 

Complete install and 
data migration 

Work with client team 
to choose the 
authentication 
method 

Work with client to 
verify the site-to-site 
VPN is properly 
configured. 

2. Test Account 
Creation 

Test Account Creation is the 
creation from the production 
environment once the client goes 
live. 

Validate 
Account 

Create Test 
Account 

3. Cognos 
Environment 
Creation 

Creation of the Cognos Analytics 
pre-production environment. 

Validate 
Account 

Complete install 
and migrate 
client reports 

 
Assumptions 

• CentralSquare will migrate Customer data into the Finance Enterprise database and confirm that the Finance 
Enterprise software’s primary system functions are available. 

• CentralSquare will install the Finance Enterprise software into our Private Cloud environment, managed by our Cloud services 
team and provide access to the Customer through a standard URL, secured over a site-to-site VPN tunnel.  The customer uses 
their own network appliance as the VPN endpoint, and they are responsible for the management of that end of the tunnel. 
Our network resources would work with them on the specifications and configuration. 

• At the request of the client, CentralSquare will provide an additional quote for VPN hardware appliance that the customer 
installs on site and CentralSquare manages remotely. 

• CentralSquare will configure Cisco AnyConnect VPN client access, but only for Disaster Recovery purposes. It is 
limited to 10 connections. Additional connections can be added for an additional cost. 

• CentralSquare will complete all work remotely 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 3214D10C-FBB3-4A67-85F7-2C949263BF35

160

Item 18.



 

• CentralSquare will create one (1) Production Environment and one (1) Test Environment as part of the Agreement. 
Additional accounts will require additional hours and hosting fees, added under separate quote by mutual written 
agreement at CentralSquare’s prevailing rates. 

• CentralSquare can assist the client with Azure AD (OIDC), which is compatible with version 21.1 or greater.  
CentralSquare will configure those parts of the integration that are required and accessible for the cloud 
environment. There are some tasks that CST will require client assistance. Once the configuration is complete, this 
will be tested by the client. 

• CentralSquare can assist the client with Okta SAML and Azure AD SAML, which is compatible with version 21.2 or 
greater.  CentralSquare will configure those parts of the integration that are required and accessible for the cloud 
environment. There are some tasks that CST will require client assistance. Once the configuration is complete, this 
will be tested by the client. 
 

Central Square Roles and Responsibilities: 

• Will stand up the new environments. 
• URL’s for the environment will remain the same following go-live. 
• Will conduct a test to verify that CentralSquare applications have been installed and operating properly. 

Customer Responsibilities: 

• Participate in planning activities (conference calls, emails) with CentralSquare Application Installation Consultant 
and Technical Lead. 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 3214D10C-FBB3-4A67-85F7-2C949263BF35

161

Item 18.



 

APPENDIX C: ClearGov Services 
This Statement of Work outlines the roles and responsibilities of both ClearGov and Customer required for the activation and onboarding 
of the ClearGov Service. ClearGov will begin this onboarding process after the core financial and HCM services are implemented or a 
mutually agreed upon start date by both the Customer and ClearGov. All onboarding services and communications will be provided 
through remote methods. 

ClearGov Responsibilities 

• ClearGov will activate ClearGov Service subscription(s) as of the applicable Start Date(s). ClearGov will create the 
initial Admin User account, and the Customer Admin User will be responsible for creating additional User 
accounts. 

• ClearGov will assign an Implementation Manager (IM) responsible for managing the activation and onboarding 
process. ClearGov IM will coordinate with other ClearGov resources, as necessary. 

• ClearGov IM will provide a Kickoff Call scheduling link to the Customer’s Primary Contact. Customer should 
schedule Kickoff Call within two weeks after the Service Order has been executed. 

• ClearGov IM will provide a Data Discovery Call scheduling link to the Customer’s Primary Contact. Customer should 
schedule Data Discovery Call based on the availability of Customer’s staff. 

• ClearGov will provide Customer with financial data requirements and instructions, based on the ClearGov Service 
subscription(s). 

• ClearGov will review financial data files and confirm that data is complete, or request additional information, if 
necessary. Once complete financial data files have been received, ClearGov will format the data, upload it to the 
ClearGov platform and complete an initial mapping of the data. 

• After initial mapping, ClearGov will schedule a Data Review call with a ClearGov Data Onboarding Consultant 
(DOC), who will present how the data was mapped, ask for feedback, and address open questions. Based upon 
Customer feedback and the complexity of data mapping requests, there may be additional follow-up calls or 
emails required to complete the data onboarding process. 

• As part of the financial data onboarding, the Sr. Data Onboarding Consultant schedules a Mapping Review call to 
show the client how we have mapped their data in our system.  In most cases, the client will want to make 
changes, so we go through a process of getting their feedback and making their updates until the client approves 
the mapping.  Once that is done, the Sr. Data Onboarding Consultant will do an in-product review with the client 
which is when they will see how it is displayed in the products.  Testing is a joint effort between ClearGov and the 
client. 

• ClearGov will inform Customer of all training, learning, and support options. ClearGov recommends all Users 
attend ClearGov Academy training sessions and/or read Support Center articles before using the ClearGov Service 
to ensure a quick ramp and success. As needed and at the Customer’s request, ClearGov will design and deliver 
customized remote training and configuration workshops for Admins and one for End Users - via video conference 
- and these sessions will be recorded for future reference. 

• ClearGov will make commercially reasonable efforts to complete the onboarding process in a timely fashion, 
provided Customer submits financial data files and responds to review and approval requests by ClearGov in a 
similarly timely fashion. Any delay by Customer in meeting these deliverable requirements may result in a delayed 
data onboarding process. Any such delay shall not affect or change the Service Period(s) as set forth in the 
applicable Service Order. 

 

Customer Responsibilities 

• Customer's Primary Contact will coordinate the necessary personnel to attend the Kickoff and Data Discovery Calls 
within two weeks after the Service Order has been executed. If Customer needs to change the date/time of either 
of these calls, the Primary Contact will notify the ClearGov IM at least one business day in advance. 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 3214D10C-FBB3-4A67-85F7-2C949263BF35

162

Item 18.



 

• Customer will provide a complete set of requested financial data files (revenue, expense, chart of accounts, etc.) 
to ClearGov in accordance with the requirements provided by ClearGov. 

• Customer's Primary Contact will coordinate the necessary personnel to attend the Data Discovery and Data 
Review calls. It is recommended that all stakeholders with input on how data should be mapped should attend. 
Based on these calls and any subsequent internal review, Customer shall provide a detailed list of data mapping 
requirements and requested changes to data mapping drafts in a timely manner, and Customer will approve the 
final data mapping, once completed to Customer’s satisfaction. 

• Customer will complete recommended on-demand training modules in advance of customized training & 
configuration workshops. 

• Customer shall be solely responsible for importing and/or inputting applicable text narrative, custom graphics, 
performance metrics, capital requests, personnel data, and other such information for capital budget, personnel 
budget, budget books, projects, dashboards, etc. 

  

DocuSign Envelope ID: 3214D10C-FBB3-4A67-85F7-2C949263BF35

163

Item 18.



 

APPENDIX D: UKG Ready Services 
 

Purpose and Overview of Engagement 

This Professional Services Engagement Overview outlines the scope of services to be provided by Kronos. Our Professional Services 
engagements are designed to help our customers successfully implement your Core Modules, as well as enable you to easily layer 
Value-add Modules and functionality over time based on your priorities, schedule, and resources. 

 

Your Ready SaaS Solution 

City of Cedar Falls and Kronos are deploying the following Ready modules with 1 location(s), EINS and 3 collective bargaining 
agreements(s). 

 
 

Core Modules Employe
es 

Deployment
s 

Estimated 
Duration 

UKG READY TIME 600 1  
UKG READY ACCRUALS MANAGER 600 1 100 Days 
UKG READY HR 600 1  
Value Add Modules Employe

es 
Deployment

s 
Estimated 
Duration 

UKG Ready ACA Manager 600 1 15 Days 
UKG Ready Recruiting 600 1 30 Days 
UKG Ready Compensation 600 1 15 Days 
UKG Ready Performance Management 600 1 30 Days 
UKG Ready Leave 600 1 30 Days 

 
 

City of Cedar Falls and Kronos Collaboration 
 

A successful Professional Services Engagement will require close collaboration between City of Cedar Falls and Kronos. The Kronos 
Professional Services team is equipped to help keep you on target for meeting project milestones and requirements, as well as to 
assist you in configuring and deploying the Ready solution that meets your organization’s specific requirements. Your organization’s 
participation and commitment to the project goals and timeline are critical to help ensure success. 

 
The Estimated Duration stated above is an estimate based upon our experience with our customers and products. Depending upon 
the preparation and engagement of your organization, there may be an opportunity to accelerate the completion of this engagement. 
However, the Estimated Duration may be exceeded based on the level of preparedness, bandwidth, and skill level of your available 
resources. Other examples that may extend the Estimated Duration include: separate deployments of the solution, having a unionized 
workforce, and policies that vary across employee groups. 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 3214D10C-FBB3-4A67-85F7-2C949263BF35

164

Item 18.



 

Core Functionality Deliverables 
Working in close collaboration, City of Cedar Falls and Kronos will deploy the following core modules and functionality. Any 
quantified deliverables listed herein are based on services deliverables and are not to be considered system constraints. 

 

 

 

Ready Core Kronos Delivered Value 

UKG Ready Time deployment gets you started with the ability to accept punches and 
pay employees accurately through these core components: 

• Total Cost Centers 
• Profiles 

• Timesheet 
• Time Off Request 
• Pay Calculations 
• Pay Prep 
• Security 
• Points 

• Tables 
• Rate 
• Holiday 

• Manager Levels 
• Employee Perspective Scorecards 
• Workflows 

• Time Off Requests 
• Timesheet Change Requests 

• Schedules 
• Daily Rules 
• Work Schedule Profiles 

• Pay Periods 
• Counters 
• Time Off Categories 
• Reports 

• 61 commonly used pre-configured reports are included in the 
implementation 

• Kronos will configure up to 5 additional custom reports using 
the standard functionality in the software 

• Timekeeping Admin Training 

UKG Ready Time 

UKG Ready Accruals Manager adds comprehensive accrual administration to UKG 
Ready Time by automatically enforcing your time off policies through: 

• Consistent enforcement of policy 
• Configurable calculation methods & grants 
• Time-Off routing & approval workflow (requires UKG Ready Time) 
• Time-Off requests at data collection devices 
• Automatic updates to schedule & timecard (requires UKG Ready Time) 
• Visibility to projected balances 
• Automatic balance reduction (requires UKG Ready Time or UKG Ready 

Payroll) 
• View time-off calendars for groups 

UKG Ready Accruals 
Manager 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 3214D10C-FBB3-4A67-85F7-2C949263BF35

165

Item 18.



 

 
 

    UKG Ready HR UKG Ready HR core functionality deployment gets you started by establishing HR as the system 
of record for employees, one of 
the most important foundational components, through: 

• Core employee demographics 
• Onboarding 
• Checklists 

• Up to 10 will be configured by the Kronos project team, however 
the Customer can configure as many as needed 

• Personnel management 
• Benefits administration 
• Open enrollment / life event 
• Workflows 

• Up to 10 will be configured by the Kronos project team, however 
the Customer can configure as many as needed 

• HR documents & forms 
• Up to 10 custom forms will be configured by the Kronos project 
team, however the Customer can configure as many as needed 

• Incident tracking 
• Certification / Credential 
• Asset management 
• Compliance reporting 
• Standard reporting 
• One-Time data load using customer-supplied data for current calendar 

year in a standard Kronos-supplied format 
• Interface bundle using customer supplied data in standard file formats 
• HR Admin Training 

 
 

 

• Mobile access 
• One-Time data load using customer-supplied data for current year in a 

standard Kronos-supplied format 
• Configure accruals profiles and assign to employees 

 

Please note that UKG Ready Accruals Manager requires UKG Ready Time. 

UKG Ready Benefits deployment gets you started with the end-to-end benefit 
administration process with the ability to automate carrier connectivity through: 

• Employee Self-Service capabilities including open enrollment/life events 
• Dependent and beneficiary record keeping 
• Drag-n-Drop scheduling tools 
• One time data load of benefit enrollments, including dependents and 

beneficiaries 
• Benefit maintenance training 
• 10 carrier feeds including benefit providers, COBRA connectivity to a TPA, 

and Financial Connectivity (Each file needed, even to the same vendor, will 
count as one feed) 

• Smart Forms 
• Standard Reporting 

 

UKG Ready Benefits 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 3214D10C-FBB3-4A67-85F7-2C949263BF35

166

Item 18.



 

 
 
 
 

Value-Add Functionality Deliverables 
Once your core functionality is deployed, Kronos will work in close collaboration with City of Cedar Falls to deploy the following 
Value-Add modules and/or functionality over time in short, agile deployments aligned with your priorities, schedule, and 
resources: 

 

 

 

   UKG Ready ACA Manager UKG Ready ACA Manager provides proactive administration of your ACA compliance strategy 
across the Ready solution through: 

• Configurable time periods & rules 
• Set measurement periods & hours threshold 
• Calculation of employee ACA full-time (FT) status 
• Identify employees ACA standing by month 
• Flag part-time (PT) employees approaching ACA FT status 
• Flag ACA FT employees no longer qualifying 
• Calculation of plan’s affordability* 
• Settings for minimum value plan** 
• Year-End government compliant forms 
• Standard ACA compliance reporting 

• One-Time Data load using customer-supplied data – EE hours for look 
back in a standard Kronos-supplied format 

 
*ACA Function requires UKG Ready Payroll 
**ACA Function requires UKG Ready HR 

 
Please note: This module provides maximum value when used with UKG Ready Time, UKG Ready 
HR & UKG Ready Payroll. 

UKG Ready Payroll for retirement/457(k) feeds 

Value-Add Kronos Delivered Value 

UKG Ready Leave adds comprehensive leave administration through: 

• Federal & state leave policy enforcement 
• Employer-specific leave policy enforcement 
• Qualifying questionnaire 
• Leave eligibility, type & duration determination 
• Leave case routing workflow 
• Leave case life cycle monitoring 
• Leave hour interface with timesheets 
• Employee self-service leave request & history 
• Standard reporting & email notification alerts 
• One-Time data load using customer-supplied data – current leave cases, 
leave case entries & entitlement balances in a standard Kronos-supplied 
format 

 

Please note: This module provides maximum value when used with UKG Ready Time, 
UKG Ready Accruals & UKG Ready HR. 

UKG Ready Leave 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 3214D10C-FBB3-4A67-85F7-2C949263BF35

167

Item 18.



 

 

 
 

   UKG Ready Recruiting UKG Ready Recruiting provides proactive administration of your Recruitment strategy across the 
Ready solution through: 

• Applicant Configuration 
• Job Requisitions 
• Workflows 

• Up to 5 will be configured by the Kronos project team, however 
the Customer can configure as many as needed 

• Applicant Administration 
• Checklists 

• Up to 5 will be configured by the Kronos project team, however 
the Customer can configure as many as needed 

• Tracking/recruitment custom forms 
• Up to 5 custom forms will be configured by the Kronos project 
team, however the Customer can configure as many as needed 

• Talent tracking – training, skills, certifications 
• Communication and Notification templates 

• Up to 5 will be configured by the Kronos project team, however 
the Customer can configure as many as needed 

• Standard reporting 
 

Please note: UKG Ready Recruiting requires UKG Ready HR. 

UKG Ready Compensation automates the entire compensation management process 
from defining programs and guidelines through budgeting and modeling to routing 
proposals for approval through: 

• Configurable compensation cycles 
• Tie compensation to performance outcomes 
• Import/export Excel-based compensation proposals 
• Routing & approval workflows 
• Complete compensation process visibility 
• Budget vs. proposed comparison 

 

Please note: UKG Ready Compensation requires UKG Ready HR. 

UKG Ready Compensation 

UKG Ready Performance provides performance management process from defining 
programs and guidelines through budgeting and modeling to routing proposals for 
approval through: 

• Full Performance Configuration 
• Up to 3 review profiles will be configured by the Kronos project team, 

however the Customer can configure as many as needed 
• Performance Development - Customer will be trained on how to setup Goal 
Categories, Goal Types and how to assign them to Employees. Customer will 
be responsible for the setup of each development area. 

 

Please note: UKG Ready Performance requires UKG Ready HR. 

UKG Ready Performance 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 3214D10C-FBB3-4A67-85F7-2C949263BF35

168

Item 18.



 

 
applications and/or vendors. If the 3rd party application and/or vendor does not accept the 
standard Ready formatting and/or methods for automated delivery, a formatted file will be 
delivered instead. The customer is responsible for providing import files to Kronos in the 
standard Ready format and utilizing the standard Ready delivery method. Kronos will deliver 
a standard bundle of up to 5 interfaces as part of this project. Each direction (to/from) any 
3rd party system and Kronos is considered a separate interface. Interfaces will be 
accomplished via standard file Exchange. Customer will work with Kronos and 3rd party 
vendors to facilitate design and testing. The Method of the file exchange will be determined 
by UKG Ready Professional Services Delivery Team. Kronos will provide standard 
Import/Export files using UKG Ready Integration Hub. Customer will work with the 3rd parties 
and Kronos to provide the data in the Kronos format for imports. Kronos will create a report 
from standard Ready fields in the 3rd party format to send to the 3rd party system. 
The types of interfaces/integrations that can be supplied under this project include: 

• UKG Ready Time Interface bundle using customer-supplied data in standard 
file formats 

• UKG Ready Accruals Interface bundle using customer-supplied 
• UKG Ready Scheduler Interface bundle using customer-supplied data in 

standard file formats 
• Employee Availability Import from 3rd party system 
• Schedule detail export 

• UKG Ready HR Interface bundle using customer-supplied data in standard 
file formats 

• Benefit enrollment exports 
• Employee deduction election imports 
• Employee demographic exports 

• UKG Ready Payroll Interface bundle using customer-supplied data in 
standard file formats 

• ACH payroll employee direct deposit file exports 
• ACH payroll payment for vendors (e.g., 457k, HSA, 

garnishments, etc.) 
• Payroll employee withholding amount exports 
• Pension enrollment export (e.g., 457k) 
• Pension census export (e.g., 457k 
• New hire reporting export 
• Positive pay export 
• Payroll journal export to G/L, 1 acct structure 
• Tax payment & filing Interface 

 
Kronos will use commercially reasonable effort to ensure all integrations/interfaces 
provide for the vendors below are designed in a manner which they can 
successfully pass data contained in standard Ready data fields to said 3rd party 
vendor and/or can accept data from said 3rd party vendor into Ready standard data 
fields. Below are some examples of interfaces which are typically part of the 
Integration Hub. Vendors and integration types may vary by customer. 

• John Hancock Retirement Planning Service 
• Blue Cross Blue Shield of Texas 
• HSA Bank 

UKG Ready Integration Hub enables data to flow between Ready and 3rd party UKG Ready Integration Hub 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 3214D10C-FBB3-4A67-85F7-2C949263BF35

169

Item 18.



 

 

 • Discovery Benefits 
• Bankers Fidelity 
• The Standard 

 
Please note: Non-standard, multi-directional, or API based integrations/interfaces are not 
included in the scope of this project. Custom Reports that cannot be delivered through the 
standard software functionality are also not included. If such integrations or reports are 
required, a separate quote will be provided after all requirements and specifications have been 
received. 

 
 
 
 

Administrator and Super User Training 
Included in each Customer’s software subscription, Kronos will provide the following training: 

Ready Core Training Kronos Delivered Value 

Administrator and Super User Training Each Customer will have access to: 
• Learning Center, Ready’s learning management system and training 

delivery platform, for each user. Learning experiences found within 
include, but not limited to: 

• Interactive self-paced, on-demand modules 
• “How to” videos and snippets 
• Printable job aids 

• Recommended learning plan(s) aligned to each user’s roles within Ready 
• Online, public instructor-led class(es) 
• “Train the Trainer” enablement and materials 

• Editable templates and tools to be leveraged by the 
administrators to deliver manager and employee training 

• Manager and employee-focused job aids for common tasks 
within Ready 

Change Management and User Adoption 
Training 

Each Customer will have access to: 
• Change management training for the project team on building a 

change management plan for Customer’s organization 
• Change management toolkit that includes pre-populated templates 

and supporting resources to be leveraged to deliver Customer’s 
change management plan 

 

Assumptions & Notes 

Kronos has used the following assumptions and dependencies in preparing this Professional Services Engagement Overview: 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 3214D10C-FBB3-4A67-85F7-2C949263BF35

170

Item 18.



 

• All services will be delivered remotely, unless otherwise noted in the payment terms or requested in writing to your 
project manager.  

o Please note that in the event that Customer requests Kronos to travel to Customer's location during the 
implementation, Customer agrees to pay any travel expenses, such as airfare, lodging, meals and local 
transportation, incurred by Kronos. 

o Such expenses shall be subject to the then-current standard Kronos travel and expense policies, which 
Kronos will provide to Customer upon request. 

o Customer will be billed for such travel expenses and payment thereof shall be due net thirty (30) days from date of 
invoice in accordance with the terms set forth in Exhibit 1. 

• The customer agrees to accept specific responsibilities as part of this project including: 
o Completing all required, Kronos supplied templates used to complete the Discovery process 
o Physical installation and/or mounting of all time clocks associated with this project. 

 Kronos will complete the configuration of up to 5 clocks and will provide training to the 
Customer’s staff to replicate additional configurations 

 The Customer will configure any additional clocks unless otherwise agreed upon by both parties 
o Configuring the Customer’s network to allow inbound/outbound communications to and from the clocks, 

based on specifications provided by Kronos 
o Providing all required tax and wage history information (when applicable) for the configuration of Tax Filing 

services 
o Providing all required data imports in the approved Kronos format 
o Providing all required specifications for any exports from Kronos to a 3rd party system 

• Prior to the start of the configuration build, the Customer will confirm (in writing) the business and technical 
requirements of the project as part of the Ready Professional Services Discovery process. 

• Kronos will communicate with Customer’s Project Manager, the appointed Point of Contact for Customer on this project. 
He/she will be responsible for all communications and project management among all Customer parties (staff, vendors, 
consultants) and for the escalation and resolution of any issues for Customer. 

• Customer is responsible for all hardware, software, and services provided by other consultants or third party 
vendors that may also be involved with the project. 

• Kronos will not be responsible for troubleshooting the Customer’s environment such as their operating system, 
hardware resources, database schema, or any applications and/or hardware not provided by Kronos. 

• Change Orders are subject to scope review and may impact the project timeline or cost. If additional work beyond 
the initial scope of this Professional Services Engagement Overview is required as a result of a Change Order, that is 
reviewed and accepted in writing prior to any additional work beyond the initial scope beginning, the Customer may 
be charged. 

• During the testing phase, the customer will be responsible for leading testing and providing documentation of testing 
results back to the Kronos implementation team. Testing will be done with the City during the test phase. Testing 
workbooks for each of the core applications and value adds that walks step by step through each type of scenario will 
be used to test.  For example, pay calculations, time calculations, benefit calculations, and workflows are tested for 
processing all the way through to end user adoption success, tax calculations, accruals etc.   
 

 
 

Project Delays   

Should the need arise to place a project on hold due to issues not controlled by Kronos, Kronos will collaborate with a client to 
ensure appropriate project hold/delay procedures are executed. Secondly, Kronos reserves the right to execute project 
hold/delay procedures as a result of, but not limited to (1) a client not attending or cancelling more than three scheduled 
meetings or (2) if the client has been unable to contribute required deliverables to milestones to close the project or (3) has 
become non-responsive after 10 business days.  

DocuSign Envelope ID: 3214D10C-FBB3-4A67-85F7-2C949263BF35

171

Item 18.



 

 

When resuming the project Kronos will follow normal assignment and staffing procedures. This may result in a new or modified 
project team based on resource availability at the time of re-engagement. 

 

UKG/Kronos Change Orders 

Requests for change to this Professional Services Engagement Overview or the project it covers must be submitted to your project 
manager in writing. 

 
Any of the following items will be considered Out of Scope and require a Change Order: 

• Material changes in the Scope or effort (i.e. # of deployments or EIN’s, request of onsite assistance, etc.) 
• Material changes in the number or type of Deliverables to meet the defined scope of effort (i.e. additional 

integrations, profiles, etc.) 
• Changes to the project resource requirements 
• Changes to scheduled dates after acceptance of the Project Plan 

 
Kronos will estimate the time and fixed cost needed to implement the change and the impact it may have on the delivery of project 
covered under this Professional Services Engagement Overview. Kronos will perform the requested work once the Change Order 
has been completed and signed by the Customer. 

 

Completion Criteria 

The project covered under this Professional Services Engagement Overview will be considered complete when all of the 
following completion criteria is met. Once one of these is met, no further work will be completed. If additional work is required, 
a Change Order or new Professional Services Engagement Overview must be generated. 

 
Completion Criteria:  

• The Customer has approved in writing 
• The system has been used to generate, retain, or export data that is used to produce a live pay statement for an active 
employee, including but not limited too, confirming accruals, deductions and calculations have been completed 
successfully. This will be confirmed for all two parallel payrolls. 

• The Customer may provide approval in writing via email or an alternative agreed upon method 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 3214D10C-FBB3-4A67-85F7-2C949263BF35

172

Item 18.



 

 

APPENDIX E: UKG TeleStaff Services 
 
CentralSquare and UKG agree that this module will be optional pricing held for eight (8) months from contract execution. If 
the City chooses to use Telestaff, UKG will need to work with the City to right size the services pricing to include number of 
users and functionality via a change order. 

Purpose and Overview of Engagement 

This Professional Services Engagement Overview outlines the scope of services to be provided by Kronos. Our Professional Services 
engagements are designed to help our customers successfully implement your Core Modules, as well as enable you to easily layer 
Value-add Modules and functionality over time based on your priorities, schedule, and resources. 

The UKG DimensionsTM Scope Statement described herein is fixed scope based. 

 

UKG Dimensions Solution 

City of Cedar Falls and Kronos are onboarding the following UKG Dimensions entitlements with: 

 
Core Entitlement On-boarding Type Number of 

Employees 
UKG TeleStaff SMB Net New 80 

 

CITY OF CEDAR FALLS and Kronos Collaboration 
A successful project requires close collaboration between CITY OF CEDAR FALLS and Kronos. The Kronos Professional Services team is 
equipped to help keep you on target for meeting project milestones and requirements, as well as to assist you in configuring and 
deploying the UKG Dimensions solution in support of your organization’s business outcomes. Your organization’s participation and 
commitment to the project goals and timeline are critical to ensure success. 

The Kronos onboarding process is driven by value and enabling business outcomes. This approach is focused on accelerated 
time to value using tools and techniques, such as industry and region-specific configuration, Kronos process 
recommendations, dynamic documentation, and accelerated testing processes. All project information is available online to 
allow project team members access to project status, contact information, issues log, test case tracking, training plan, etc. at 
any time. 

Project Overview 

• Project Management services include: 
• Kronos Project Manager working with CentralSquare and Customer Project Managers to jointly run the project. 
• Transition to Kronos Global Support after the first deployment go-live. 
• Maintain project workspace, work plan, issues and risks management, weekly status calls and reports. 

• Implementation: 
• Fixed scope implementations are designed to deliver value quickly to your organization. Project timelines generally 

span 6-8 months depending on the number of entitlements selected. Onboarding support for these time spans are 
included in the scope. Extended project timelines requested by customers can be supported with additional 
professional services and will be agreed via change order. 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 3214D10C-FBB3-4A67-85F7-2C949263BF35

173

Item 18.



 

 

 
 

• Remote Implementation approach: 
• Kronos will conduct one Solution Development Workshop with the customer project team to create one solution 

design for the customer's organization. 
• The customer team will conduct one testing cycle to accept that solution, which Kronos will support. 
• Kronos will support one production go-live and provide knowledge transfer to allow you to be self- sufficient in any 

subsequent phased go-lives you choose to conduct for that module. 

• Deployed Solution: 
• Two tenants (1 Production, 1 Non-Production) will be designed and deployed with entitlements. The Non-Production 

environment may be refreshed from Production to support testing and training activities. Onboarding work will 
deliver configured solutions that operate on all supported desktop and mobile client platforms. 

• Kronos will deliver the integrations using the Boomi™ UKG Dimensions Integration Platform. Integrations are based 
on predefined templates and are assumed to be low to medium complexity. Interfaces are scheduled via UKG 
Dimensions and transfers data via flat files (CSV) to the UKG Dimensions secure FTP (SFTP) environment. 

 

• Educational Services: 
Effective training is the key to high user adoption rates. Training that results in self-sufficient administrators, managers, and 
employees increases the efficiency of use of the Application(s) and Customer’s business processes. 

Kronos’ training model includes a role-based learning plan. Each role within Customer’s organization has a specific set of 
courses required at specific points in the deployment methodology. Having role- based training classes ensures Customer’s 
team members are trained on the processes they will use in their day-to-day interactions with the system. The timing of this 
training is key. Kronos aims to provide the training with as little time between training delivery date and system usage as 
possible. This provides for Customer’s users to have an opportunity to reinforce the training through real-life application 
before they begin to lose the skills gained in training. End users (i.e. Managers and Employees) use a train the trainer model 
for learning. Customer is responsible for train the trainer learning for their managers and employees. 

• Virtual Learning Environment Training 
Kronos shall provide its live, hands-on classroom training, including a comprehensive agenda and facilitation by a trained 
and knowledgeable instructor, delivered to Customer’s personnel via the Internet. Training is intended for the following 
audiences: 

• Core Team training to help key functional and technical users make informed solution design and 
configuration decisions, and to provide fundamental product knowledge. 

• Application & System Administrator to prepare functional and technical super users to perform their 
most common tasks in the solution 

 

• Self-Paced Training 
Kronos shall provide self-paced product training. 

Note: Kronos also offers fee-based consulting services that are not included under the terms of the Training Services 
referenced above. 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 3214D10C-FBB3-4A67-85F7-2C949263BF35

174

Item 18.



 

 

 

Core Deliverables 
Working in close collaboration, CITY OF CEDAR FALLS and Kronos will on-board the following core entitlements 
and functionality: 
Core Kronos Delivered Value 

UKG TeleStaff • One-time data import of customer supplied person data in UKG format 
• Leave Requests 
• Shift Trades 
• Accrual Management with a one-time data import of customer supplied accrual data in UKG 

format 
• Event Deployment 
• Signup Processes 
• Overtime/Off Duty Scheduling Processes 
• Minimum Staffing 
• Fatigue Rules 
• SMS Configuration (Text via Twilio) 
• Bidding (see below) 
• Standard Payroll Export 
• Standard Reports 
• Authentication (SSO/LDAP) 
• One 8-hour remote consultant training session: Admin, Bid Admin, or Scheduler 
• Standard integration with UKG timekeeping product 
• One production cutover 

Scope assumptions: 
• Includes 1 Institution 

• Includes 1 unique business unit with continuous 24/7 staffing requirements (Examples: 
Patrol, Jail, Fire Suppression, Communications) 

• Includes 1 administrative schedule group with no staffing rules 
• Customer is responsible for data setup for: 

• Events 
• Assignment Templates 

• Bidding: 
• One type of award (i.e. one PTO Type/Assignment) is included 
• Includes one bidding group. A bidding group is defined as having a unique set of 

qualifying rules that determines the bid order. 
• The execution of the bid includes 1 bid, 1 win, and 1 award cycle. 
• Cloning of Bids is the customer’s responsibility 
• Additional award types, bidding groups, execution steps, or cloning will require 

Additional Scoped Services to be define 

 

 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 3214D10C-FBB3-4A67-85F7-2C949263BF35

175

Item 18.



 

 

 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 3214D10C-FBB3-4A67-85F7-2C949263BF35

176

Item 18.



177

Item 19.



178

Item 19.



BerryDunn 

City of Cedar Falls, IA (City) 

Enterprise Resource Planning (ERP) System Implementation Project Management Scope of 

Services 

 

Exhibit B - Scope of Services and Fee Schedule 

Below we present our detailed work plan to complete the City’s requested scope of services.  

Implementation Assistance 

1. Develop Project Charter. Based on our initial project planning discussions, we will draft a Project Charter 

that encompasses the full scope of the City’s implementation. This governance document will include a change 

management, stakeholder register, communication matrix, risk and issues register, and status report 

templates. We will provide the Project Charter in draft version to the City and facilitate a remote session with the 

City’s PMT to discuss the documents and collect feedback. We will then update the documents and submit them 

to the City in final form. 

 D1. Project Charter 

2. Review vendor implementation plans. We will provide an in-depth review of the vendor’s implementation 

plans, including the Management Plan and Project Plan. We will discuss our recommended changes and 

considerations with the City’s project team before communicating requested changes to the vendor. The goal is 

to collaboratively discuss preferred changes based upon the City’s, vendor’s, and BerryDunn’s collective 

experience and perspective for the most advantageous end products. 

 D2. Project Plan Review 

3. Develop Project Management Documents. Following the review of the vendor’s plans, we will develop 

any necessary supplemental materials we believe to be critical to the City’s implementation. These may include 

further definition of stakeholders, risk management, project documentation, and other items. The content areas 

will be determined by what is included in the vendor’s plans with the goal of removing any redundancy that 

might cause confusion to project stakeholders. This documentation will be reviewed and confirmed with the 

City’s project team before being put into use. 

 D3. Project Management Documents 

4. Conduct implementation activities. One of the keys to project success is enabling the City’s teams to 

take on appropriate roles and responsibilities and to make informed decisions for both implementation and long-

term operational success and ownership of the software. Our project management approach is designed with 

this in mind. We will provide specialized expertise throughout the project. 

Throughout the implementation, we will bring our prior implementation and local government experience to 

provide a forward-looking perspective, reduce risk, and promote the achievement of the goals and objectives for 

the project. We anticipate being involved in the following key project management or oversight activities of the 

implementation, as shown below and on the following page. 

 

179

Item 19.



  Project Management 

No Key Implementation Activity Lead Assist 

1 
Reviewing the Project Plan and Schedule in conjunction with other 

PMT members 
✓  

2 
Managing the project scope, deliverables, and timeline with 

assistance from other PMT members 
✓  

3 
Helping to ensure that the project team stays focused, tasks are 

completed on schedule, and that the project stays on track 
✓  

4 Coordinating project tasks with assistance from other PMT members ✓  

5 

Functioning as the main point of contact for the vendor’s project 

manager, participating in daily project activities (when applicable), 

and tracking project tasks 

✓  

6 Facilitating an implementation kick-off meeting ✓  

7 

Holding monthly meetings with the City’s Executive Committee to 

update project status and budget status, and to research a verdict on 

any escalated process decisions that need to be made 

✓  

8 
Reviewing the project budget, including change orders, and the 

vendors’ contract compliance 
✓  

9 Facilitating City staff’s development of workflow processes   ✓ 

10 Facilitating the data conversion process with the vendor and City staff  ✓ 

11 
Facilitating the development of software interfaces/integrations with 

the vendor and City staff 
 ✓ 

12 

Working with the vendor and City staff and helping to ensure vendor 

accountability by: 

 Identifying any opportunities to leverage technical 

enhancements to improve the products and services 

delivered to the City 

 Facilitating the gathering and sharing of any technical 

information requested by the vendor 

✓  

13 

Providing risk management, including the following: 

 Identifying project risks 

 Developing mitigation strategies 

 Communicating project risks to City and vendor staff 

 Assigning key activities to mitigate or resolve project risks 

✓  

180

Item 19.



  Project Management 

No Key Implementation Activity Lead Assist 

14 

Providing weekly or biweekly tracking of the following: 

 Reporting of project risks and issues 

 Recently completed tasks and upcoming project activities 

✓  

15 

Providing change management oversight, including the development 

and maintenance of a Change Management Plan that may include 

the following: 

 Target State Definition 

 Change Structure and Governance Approach 

 Change Impact Assessment 

 Stakeholder (or User) Analysis 

 Communication Plan 

 Behavior Change Plan 

✓  

16 

Managing the user acceptance training (UAT) process, including: 

 Reviewing the vendor’s test plan and any applicable test 

scripts 

 Providing on-site assessment of testing activities 

 Providing recommendations for modifications to the testing 

plan to increase the likelihood of success 

 Directing City staff in the development of tailored test scripts 

 Managing logistics related to scheduling UAT activities 

 Providing analysis of test results 

 Overseeing regression testing and required configuration 

changes 

✓  

17 

Facilitating oversight of vendor training activities, including: 

 Reviewing the vendor’s training plan and training materials 

 Overseeing vendor training activities 

 Providing recommendations for modifications to the training 

delivery 

 Providing feedback on the vendor’s training documentation 

✓  

18 Providing go-live support ✓  

 

 D4. Implementation Activities 

5. Conduct a project closeout work session. This work session will involve discussing project lessons 

learned, measuring achievement of project goals and objectives, discussing incomplete implementation tasks, 

and conducting transition planning for moving to long-term operation of the ERP solution and associated 

policies and processes. We will document all the items discussed in a Project Closeout Memo. 

181

Item 19.



6. Develop a Project Closeout Memo. Based on the information gathered from our closeout work session, 

BerryDunn will develop a Project Closeout Memo, which will document lessons learned, compare project 

outcomes to project goals and objectives, list any remaining action items to conclude the implementation, and 

identify tasks, roles, and responsibilities for transitioning to operational use of the ERP solution and associated 

policies and processes. 

 D5. Project Closeout Memo 

 

 

A. Fee Schedule 

 

Below, we present the fees associated with our work plan as it relates to providing implementation project 

management services. For purposes of the costs below, we are assuming an estimated number of months 

and hours for implementation assistance. We are proposing a blended hourly rate of $240 valid through 

December 2024. We will submit monthly invoices based on the actual hours and expenses incurred.  

Implementation Project Management 

Assistance Level 
Duration 

(months) 

Hours  

(per month) 
Total Hours Total Cost 

Implementation Project 

Management (Full-Time) 
15 130 1,950 $468,000 

 
Duration 

(months) 

Trips  

(per month) 

Total Cost  

(per trip)* 
Total Travel Cost 

Estimated Travel Expenses 15 2 $1,436 $43,080 

Grand Total $511,080 

*Travel expense estimates per trip were calculated based on the details provided on the following page. 

Expense Category Cost Units per Trip Total 

Airfare $600 1 $600 

Lodging $100 3 $300 

Ground Transportation $100 3 $300 

Per Diem (Federal GSA Rate) $59 4 $236 

Estimated Per-Trip Travel Expense Total $1,436 

 

182

Item 19.



DEPARTMENT OF FINANCE AND BUSINESS OPERATIONS 
 
CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 
220 CLAY STREET 
CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 50613 
319-273-8600 

FAX 319-268-5126 
I N T E R O F F I C E   M E M O R A N D U M 

Information Systems Division 
 

 TO: Mayor Rob Green and City Council Members 

 FROM: Julie Sorensen, Information Systems Manager 

 DATE: September 11, 2023 

 SUBJECT: Service Agreement for Auditing our Telecom Billing  

 

I would like to recommend entering into an agreement with Spyglass, a technology cost 
auditing firm. Spyglass has reached out to us to enter into an agreement to assist in 
deciphering telecom billing. The service they will provide is to review our most recent 
two months of telephone bills and audit any areas in which there may be savings we 
capitalize on.  If they find savings and we choose to take advantage of it, we will 
continue to pay the same amount but to Spyglass instead of the telecom companies.   
 
They have agreed to use the City’s standard contract with slight modifications as the 
service agreement.  City attorney, Kevin Rogers has reviewed the requested 
modifications.  As a result of the minimal expense and risk I’m asking that we waive the 
insurance requirements for this vendor.  
    
I’ve attached the agreement for your review.  
 
 
Please reach out to me with any questions, either at 319-268-5111 or email at 
Julie.sorensen@cedarfalls.com.   
 
 
Attachment:  Goods and Services Form Contract - SpyGlass - 9-11-23 FINAL 

183

Item 20.

mailto:Julie.sorensen@cedarfalls.com


184

Item 20.



185

Item 20.



186

Item 20.



187

Item 20.



188

Item 20.



189

Item 20.



190

Item 20.



191

Item 20.



   DEPARTMENT OF ADMINISTRATIVE SERVICES 
 

CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 
220 CLAY STREET 
CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 50613 
319-273-8600 
FAX 319-268-5126 

     M E M O R A N D U M 
Information Systems Division 

 

 TO: Honorable Mayor Rob Green and City Council 

 FROM: Julie Sorensen, Information Systems Manager 

 DATE: September 20, 2023 

 SUBJECT: Service Agreement for Annual Penetration Testing 

 
I would like to recommend entering an agreement with FR Secure to perform 
independent vulnerability and penetration testing for our network environment. The 
service they will provide is not only required by our cyber security insurance but an 
important part to ensure the security of our network. 
 
FRSecure had the lowest cost bid out of 5 vendors.  Bids ranged from $12,000 - 
$40,000 per yearly test.  This agreement is a 3-year agreement for a total of $36,000 
expenditure which will be paid in $12,000 annual payments at the time the tests are 
completed. This item was budgeted in the 2024 Fiscal Year budget under Information 
Systems Cyber Security Line Item.  
 
FRSecure required us to utilize their Master Service Agreement which city attorney, 
Kevin Rogers has reviewed and negotiated. This document would need to be approved 
by council.   
 
Please feel free to contact me with any questions. 
 
Attachment:  FRSecure MSA - City of Cedar Falls -FINAL 
                     Exhibit A - City of Cedar Falls IA -  Annual External Penetration Testing SOW 
                     Exhibit B 2022-23 Certificate of Insurance - FRSecure LLC without Addl Insured 

192

Item 21.



FRSecure LLC Master Services Agreement 

 
 

 

This Master Services Agreement (the “Agreement”) is made as of the date specified at the end of this Master Services Agreement (the 

“Effective Date”) by and between FRSecure LLC, a Minnesota limited liability company having its principal place of business at 6550 York 

Ave S #500 Edina, MN 55435 (“FRSecure”) and City of Cedar Falls, having its principal place of business at 220 Clay Street, Cedar Falls, 

IA50613 (“Client”).  FRSecure and Client may be individually referred to as a “Party” or collectively as the “Parties”. 

 
WHEREAS, Client desires to retain FRSecure to render certain professional services under the terms and conditions set forth in this 

Agreement; and 

 

WHEREAS, FRSecure desires to be retained by Client to perform such professional services for Client under the terms and conditions set 

forth in this Agreement. 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the above premises, the respective covenants and commitments of FRSecure and Client set forth in 

this Agreement, and for such other good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which are hereby acknowledged, 

FRSecure and Client agree as follows: 

 

1. DEFINITIONS. 

 

A. Affiliate means any entity (now existing or hereafter formed or acquired), which, directly or through one or more intermediaries, 

controls, is controlled by, or is under common control with, Client.  “Control” and its derivatives mean: (a) the legal, beneficial, or 

equitable ownership, directly or indirectly, of (i) at least 50% of the aggregate of all voting equity interests in an entity or (ii) equity 

interests having the right to at least 50% of the profits of an entity or, in the event of dissolution, to at least 50% of the assets of an 

entity; (b) the right to appoint, directly or indirectly, a majority of the board of directors; (c) the right to control, directly or indirectly, 

the management or direction of the entity by contract or corporate governance document; or (d) in the case of a partnership, the 

holding by an entity (or one of its Affiliates) of the position of sole general partner. 

 

B. Confidential Information is defined in Section 7 (“Confidential Information”). 

 

C. FRSecure Materials means collectively certain procedures, software or programs that are either owned by or licensed to FRSecure, 

any expression or result of FRSecure's Services, or the work, findings, analyses, conclusions, opinions, recommendations, ideas, 

techniques, know-how, designs, programs, tools, applications, interfaces, enhancements, software, and other technical information 

developed or conceived of by FRSecure prior to or in performance of any Services (“FRSecure’s Materials”).  

 

D. Intellectual Property means all patents (including originals, derivatives, continuations, continuations-in-part, extensions, foreign 

applications, utility models, and re-issues), patent applications, copyrights (including all registrations and applications therefore), trade 

secrets, trademarks, trademark applications and other proprietary and Intellectual Property Rights, including moral rights. 

 

E. Services means the professional services Client requests FRSecure to perform pursuant to this Agreement and any Work Product 

delivered pursuant to this Agreement or a Statement of Work. 

 

F. Statement of Work means an attachment to this Agreement which describes Services ordered under this Agreement which the 

Parties must mutually execute in order to specify the Services, and which shall be in a form substantially similar to that attached hereto 

as Exhibit A. 

 

G. FRSecure Personnel means any employees, representatives, agents, subcontractors, third party advisors or any other persons, 

whether legal or natural, who may act on behalf of, or otherwise represent, FRSecure. 

193

Item 21.



 

H. Work Product means any reports, documentation or any other deliverables created or prepared by FRSecure for Client pursuant to 

this Agreement, that are made, proposed, or developed by FRSecure, alone or with others, specifically identified as Deliverables in any 

related Statement of Work.  Notwithstanding anything in this Agreement to the contrary, Work Product does not include FRSecure’s 

Materials. 

 

2. TERM/TERMINATION. 

 

A. Term.  This Agreement will commence on the Effective Date and will continue in full force and effect until terminated in accordance 

with this Section 2.  The term of each Statement of Work shall be set forth in the applicable Statement of Work and will continue in full 

force and effect until terminated by either Party pursuant to the termination rights in this Agreement. In the event the term of a 

Statement of Work extends beyond the termination of this Agreement, this Agreement shall continue in full force and effect with 

respect to such Statement of Work until the termination thereof. 

  

B. Termination for Cause.  Either Party may terminate this Agreement or any Statement of Work immediately upon notice to the other 

Party if: 

1. The other Party materially breaches any provision of this Agreement or any Statement of Work, and fails to cure or remedy 

such breach within ten (10) calendar days of receiving written notice specifying in reasonable detail the nature of such 

breach; 

2. The other Party has committed more than three (3) breaches of this Agreement or any Statement of Work in a twelve (12) 

calendar month period and together such breaches are material, without any additional cure right; or 

3. The other Party materially breaches this Agreement or any Statement of Work in a manner that cannot be remedied. 

 

C. Termination for Convenience. Either Party may terminate this Agreement or any Statement of Work upon 30 (thirty) days written 

notice to the other Party. 

 

D. Intentionally omitted. 

 

E. Effect of Termination. Termination of one or more Statement of Work(s) will not affect the Parties’ rights and obligations under any 

other Statement of Work(s) executed by the Parties, and all such other Statement of Work(s) will remain in full force and effect unless 

and until terminated in accordance with their terms. Client shall pay FRSecure for all Services performed and all expenses incurred 

prior to the Effective Date of termination. 

 

In addition, except for termination by Client for cause in the event a terminated Statement of Work contains an Amortized Payment 

Schedule or a Multi-Year Discount, Client agrees to pay the termination fees specified in the applicable Statement of Work. If said 

Statement of Work does not specify the termination fees, then Client agrees to pay FRSecure for all Services performed and all 

expenses incurred as of the termination date as well as the Multi-Year Discount that was applied. 

 

3. SERVICES TO BE PERFORMED. 

 

A. In consideration of the compensation to be paid by Client pursuant to the terms of this Agreement, FRSecure agrees to provide the 

Services requested by Client and described in a Statement of Work, which shall be incorporated herein by reference and may be 

amended or added from time to time by a written agreement between the Parties.  FRSecure shall perform the Services in a timely 

manner, and the parties agree that time is of the essence with respect to FRSecure’s performance under this Agreement. 

 

B. Following a request by Client for FRSecure’s Services, FRSecure shall submit to Client a Proposal and/or Statement of Work for the 

Services. Client shall review it and, if acceptable, indicate acceptance of the Statement of Work.  Upon acceptance by Client, FRSecure 

shall perform the Services in accordance with the terms of this Agreement and the Statement of Work. 

 

194

Item 21.



C. Client shall perform such duties and tasks designated in a Statement of Work to facilitate FRSecure's performance of the Services 

outlined thereunder and provide FRSecure with reasonable and necessary access to Client's facilities during Client's normal business 

hours and otherwise as reasonably requested by FRSecure in order to facilitate FRSecure's performance of the Services outlined in 

each Statement of Work.  

 

D. During the term of this Agreement, FRSecure agrees to provide Services to Client on a non‑ exclusive basis from and after the date 

this Agreement and a Statement of Work is signed by authorized representatives of Client and FRSecure. 

 

E. Client recognizes that FRSecure’s statements of the total time and costs associated with each Statement of Work represent 

FRSecure’s good faith estimates based on information supplied to FRSecure by Client. If project needs or requirements change after 

Services have commenced on a Statement of Work, the Statement of Work may be amended or revised upon mutual agreement of the 

Parties set forth in writing and signed by both Parties. FRSecure specifically understands and agrees that in no event shall the total fees 

and/or costs related to Services performed under a Statement of Work exceed, without the prior written consent of Client, any 

maximum to which the Parties have agreed, as stated on such Statement of Work. 

 

F.  If a Statement of Work requires a physical security assessment of Client’s physical location(s) and if Client and FRSecure agree that 

the physical security assessment will be performed from a remote location, then Client agrees to provide the services of an employee 

who will record video of Client’s location, using third-party software, at the direction of FRSecure (“Location Video”). Client agrees that 

the Location Video will be used for security analysis and consultation services during an online video conference between Client and 

FRSecure. Client hereby acknowledges and consents to FRSecure recording the video conference including, without limitation, the 

Location Video, and saving the same on FRSecure’s servers. Client agrees that its employee will not record or include any personally 

identifiable information (PII) or protected health information (PHI) or similar information in the Location Video. FRSecure agrees to use 

the Location Video solely for purposes of Client work and agrees that the Location Video is the Confidential Information of Client. 

 

4. PAYMENT, INVOICES AND TAXES.  

For all Services performed under a Statement of Work or other request for Services that references this Agreement, Client shall: (i) pay 

FRSecure in accordance with each Statement of Work or at the then current FRSecure standard rates, whichever are applicable; (ii) 

reimburse FRSecure for all reasonable and necessary travel and living expenses FRSecure incurs performing such Services, provided 

such expenses are incurred in compliance with FRSecure's travel and expense policy, and provided further that such expenses are 

incurred pursuant to an applicable Statement of Work or other request for Services by Client, and further provided that such travel and 

expenses are approved by Client in writing in advance; and (iii) pay FRSecure upon receipt of each invoice. All payments pursuant to 

this Agreement are non-refundable. Unless Client provides FRSecure with a valid tax exemption or direct pay certificate upon 

execution of this Agreement, Client is responsible for all taxes, duties, and customs fees which may be assessed on the amounts paid 

for Services performed hereunder, excluding taxes based on FRSecure's income or payroll. Client shall pay a service charge of equal to 

the lesser of twelve percent (12%) annual interest or the highest interest rate allowable under applicable laws for any outstanding, 

undisputed invoice not paid within thirty (30) days after receipt. FRSecure invoices shall describe the following: (i) the time period for 

which the work and expenses are billed; (ii) the quantity of work performed; (iii) the hourly rates charged, if applicable; (iv) travel and 

living expenses by type and amount; and (v) totals.   

 

5. SCOPE OF AUTHORITY/RELATIONSHIP OF THE PARTIES. 

Except as expressly authorized in writing by Client, FRSecure shall have no authority or power, express or implied, to make any 

representations or warranties regarding Client or to bind or obligate Client or its Affiliates, either directly or indirectly, in any manner 

or thing whatsoever.  In rendering Services pursuant to this Agreement, FRSecure (and FRSecure’s Personnel) shall be acting as an 

independent contractor, not as an employee, fiduciary, or agent of, or joint venturer or partner with, Client or its Affiliates.  Client is 

only interested in the results to be achieved, and the conduct and control of FRSecure’s work within the scope of this Agreement shall 

lie solely with FRSecure, except that Client shall have a general right of supervision to secure the satisfactory completion thereof. 

 

6. INSURANCE.  

195

Item 21.



FRSecure shall maintain statutory minimum Worker's Compensation and Employer's Liability Insurance as required by the laws of any 

state or country in which Services are performed.  FRSecure shall also maintain other insurance as required by Client, attached as 

Exhibit B and incorporated herein by this reference. 

 

7. CONFIDENTIAL INFORMATION. 

 

7.1 DEFINITION. The term "CONFIDENTIAL INFORMATION" shall mean: (i) any and all non-public information which is disclosed by 

either Party ("OWNER") to the other ("RECIPIENT") verbally, electronically, visually, or in a written or other tangible form which is 

either identified or should be reasonably understood to be confidential or proprietary; and (ii)  Confidential Information may include, 

but not be limited to, trade secrets, computer programs, software, documentation, formulas, data, inventions, techniques, marketing 

plans, strategies, forecasts, client lists, employee information, and financial information, confidential information concerning Owner's 

business or organization, as Owner has conducted it or as Owner may conduct it in the future. In addition, Confidential Information 

may include information concerning any of Owner's past, current, or possible future products or methods, including information about 

Owner's research, development, engineering, purchasing, manufacturing, accounting, marketing, selling, leasing, and/or software 

(including third party software). 

 

7.2 TREATMENT OF CONFIDENTIAL INFORMATION. Owner's Confidential Information shall be treated as strictly confidential by 

Recipient and shall not be disclosed by Recipient to any third party except to those third parties operating under non-disclosure 

provisions no less restrictive than in this Section and who have a justified business "need to know" or used by Recipient other than as 

authorized by this Agreement. Client shall protect the deliverables resulting from Services with the same degree of care. This 

Agreement imposes no obligation upon the Parties with respect to Confidential Information which either Party can establish by legally 

sufficient evidence: (a) was in the possession of, or was rightfully known by the Recipient without an obligation to maintain its 

confidentiality prior to receipt from Owner; (b) is or becomes generally known to the public without violation of this Agreement; (c) is 

obtained by Recipient in good faith from a third party having the right to disclose it without an obligation of confidentiality; (d) is 

independently developed by Recipient without the participation of individuals who have had access to the Confidential Information; or 

(e) is required to be disclosed by court order or applicable law, provided notice is promptly given to the Owner and provided further 

that diligent efforts are undertaken to limit disclosure. 

 

7.3 CONFIDENTIALITY AND DISCLOSURE OF PATIENT INFORMATION. Healthcare Clients Only: FRSecure does not expect to have 

access to confidential individually identifiable health information ("IIHI"), as that term is used in the Health Insurance Portability and 

Accountability Act ("HIPAA") in connection with its services. Because FRSecure has many healthcare clients and may inadvertently 

receive IIHI, it is FRSecure's policy that it will: (i) treat all individually identifiable information in compliance with all applicable federal 

and state laws; and (ii) implement and use any and all reasonable means and appropriate safeguards to prevent the use or disclosure 

of IIHI and will immediately notify Client of any unauthorized use or disclosure of IIHI. 

 

7.4 RIGHTS AND DUTIES. The Recipient shall not obtain, by virtue of this Agreement, any right, title, or interest in any Confidential 

Information of the Owner. Within fifteen (15) days after termination of this Agreement, each Party shall certify in writing to the other 

that all copies of Confidential Information in any form, including partial copies, have been destroyed, returned, or used solely as the 

Owner so directs, except that Recipient may keep an archival copy of Confidential Information for legal purposes. 

 

7.5 SURVIVABILITY. The terms of this Section 7 shall survive termination of this Agreement. If the Parties have executed a separate 

agreement that contains confidentiality terms prior to or contemporaneously with this Agreement, those separate confidentiality 

terms shall remain in full force to the extent they do not conflict with the provisions of this Agreement. 

 

8. INDEMNITY. 

 

8.1 PATENT AND COPYRIGHT INDEMNITY. Except as otherwise provided herein, FRSecure shall indemnify and defend Client against 

any claims that the Work Product (defined below) delivered to Client pursuant to a Statement of Work infringes any United States or 

Canadian patent or copyright, provided that FRSecure is given prompt notice of such claim and is given information, reasonable 

assistance, and the sole authority to defend or settle said claim. In the defense or settlement of any claim FRSecure shall, in its 

196

Item 21.



reasonable judgment and at its option and expense: (i) obtain for Client the right to continue using the Work Product; (ii) replace or 

modify the Work Product so that it becomes non-infringing while giving equivalent performance; or (iii) if FRSecure cannot obtain the 

remedies in (i) or (ii), as its sole obligation, terminate the license for the infringing Work Product and return only the Services fees paid 

by Client for such Work Product. FRSecure shall have no obligation or liability to indemnify and/or defend Client to the extent (i) the 

alleged infringement is based on infringing information, data, software, applications, services, or programs created, furnished or 

requested to be used, by or on behalf of Client, (ii) the alleged infringement is the result of a modification made by anyone other than 

FRSecure; (iii) Client’s combination of the Services or Work Product with (a) hardware, software, materials, content or data not 

provided to Client by FRSecure, or (b) services or processes not performed by FRSecure, or (iv) Client uses the Work Product other than 

in accordance with this Agreement, any delivered documentation under a Statement of Work, or the underlying software license to 

use such Work Product. 

 

8.2 INDEMNITY. Each Party ("INDEMNIFYING PARTY") shall indemnify and hold the other Party ("INDEMNIFIED PARTY") harmless 

against any third Party claim, including costs and reasonable attorney's fees, in which the Indemnified Party is named as a result of the 

negligent or intentional acts or failure to act by the Indemnifying Party, its employees or agents, while performing its obligations 

hereunder. This indemnification obligation is contingent upon the Indemnified Party providing the Indemnifying Party with prompt 

written notice of such claim, information, all reasonable assistance in the defense of such action, and sole authority to defend or settle 

such claim. The Indemnified Party has the right to approve any settlement that affirmatively places on the Indemnified Party an 

obligation that has a material adverse effect on the Indemnified Party other than requiring the Indemnified Party to cease using all or a 

portion of the Services or to pay sums eligible for indemnification under this Agreement. Such approval shall not be unreasonably 

withheld. 

 

8.3 SURVIVAL. The terms of this Section 8 shall survive termination of this Agreement. 

 

9. WARRANTIES AND REPRESENTATIONS.  

Each Party warrants that it has the right and power to enter into this Agreement and an authorized representative has executed this 

Agreement. FRSecure warrants that the Services will be performed in a professional and workmanlike manner in accordance with 

recognized industry standards, and in accordance with the law. Provided, however, to the extent Services provided by FRSecure are 

advisory, no specific result is assured or guaranteed. FRSECURE EXPRESSLY DISCLAIMS ALL OTHER REPRESENTATIONS OR WARRANTIES, 

WHETHER EXPRESS, IMPLIED, OR STATUTORY (BY ANY TERRITORY OR JURISDICTION) TO THE EXTENT PERMITTED BY LAW, AND, TITLE, 

FITNESS FOR A PARTICULAR PURPOSE, OR MERCHANTABILITY TO THE EXTENT PERMITTED BY LAW, EXCEPT FOR ANY WARRANTY OF 

NON-INFRINGEMENT. 

 

10. LIMITATION OF LIABILITY.  

EXCEPT FOR THE INDEMNIFICATION OBLIGATIONS SET FORTH IN SECTION 8 (INDEMNITY) AND EXCEPT AS SET FORTH BELOW, 

FRSECURE'S MAXIMUM LIABILITY FOR ANY CLAIM OR ACTION ARISING UNDER THIS AGREEMENT, REGARDLESS OF THE FORM OF 

CLAIM OR ACTION AND WHETHER IN TORT OR CONTRACT, SHALL BE LIMITED TO THE AMOUNT OF SERVICES FEES PAID BY CLIENT IN 

THE LAST SIX (6) MONTHS FOR THE SERVICES RENDERED PURSUANT TO THE APPLICABLE STATEMENT OF WORK WHICH THE CLAIM OR 

ACTION AROSE. IN NO EVENT SHALL FRSECURE BE LIABLE FOR INDIRECT, SPECIAL, INCIDENTAL, OR CONSEQUENTIAL DAMAGES OF ANY 

KIND, INCLUDING WITHOUT LIMITATION, LOST DATA OR LOST PROFITS, HOWEVER ARISING, EVEN IF CLIENT HAS BEEN ADVISED OF 

THE POSSIBILITY OF SUCH DAMAGES. THE PARTIES AGREE TO THE ALLOCATION OF RISK SET FORTH HEREIN AS PART OF THE 

CONSIDERATION FOR THE SERVICES.  NOTWITHSTANDING ANYTHING TO THE CONTRARY IN THIS AGREEMENT, FRSECURE'S MAXIMUM 

LIABILITY FOR ANY CLAIM OR ACTION ARISING UNDER THIS AGREEMENT, INCLUDING, WITHOUT LIMITATION, INFRINGEMENT CLAIMS 

OR ACTIONS, SHALL NOT EXCEED THE AMOUNT OF FRSECURE’S INSURANCE POLICY LIMITS FOR THE TYPE OF CLAIM OR ACTION IN 

QUESTION. 

 

11. OWNERSHIP OF WORK PRODUCT.  

Subject to payment in full of all amounts due to FRSecure in accordance with any applicable Statement of Work, Work Product shall be 

the property of Client.  However, Client shall not license, sub-license, resell, transfer or make other commercial use of any Work 

Product.  FRSecure’s Materials shall at all times remain the sole and exclusive property of FRSecure.  To the extent that FRSecure’s 

Materials are used in developing, or are incorporated into, any Service or Work Product, and to the extent that ownership of the Work 

197

Item 21.



Product or Service is vested in Client, FRSecure shall and hereby does grant to Client a perpetual, irrevocable, transferable, 

nonexclusive, worldwide, fully paid-up and unrestricted right and license to use, display, reproduce, perform and make modifications 

to and derivative works based on, FRSecure’s Materials only as part of the Services or Work Product and all iterations thereof. 

 

12. MAINTENANCE OF DEVELOPMENT WORK.  

Standard maintenance and support services offered by FRSecure do not cover any customized software or new development created 

under a Statement of Work. If available, maintenance and support may be addressed under a separate services agreement or in the 

applicable Statement of Work. 

 

13. NOTICE.  

All notices or other communications referenced under this Agreement shall be made in writing and sent to the address designated 

above, designated in a specific Statement of Work, or designated from time to time in writing by the Parties. All notices shall be 

deemed given to the other Party if delivered receipt confirmed, using one of the following methods: personal delivery, registered or 

certified first class mail, postage prepaid; recognized courier delivery; or electronic mail. 

 

14. WAIVER.  

No modification to this Agreement nor any failure or delay in enforcing any term, exercising any option, or requiring performance shall 

be binding or construed as a waiver unless agreed to in writing by both Parties. 

 

15. FORCE MAJEURE.  

Except for Client’s obligation to pay FRSecure, neither Party shall be liable for any failure to perform its obligations under this 

Agreement or any Statement of Work if prevented from doing so by a cause or causes beyond its control, including, without limitation, 

acts of God or public enemy, failure of suppliers to perform, fire, floods, storms, earthquakes, riots, strikes, war, and restraints of 

government.  A Party whose performance is affected by such an event shall promptly notify the other Party of the delay and use 

commercially reasonable efforts to mitigate the adverse effects of such an event so as that performance can be achieved as soon as 

reasonably feasible.  Notwithstanding the foregoing, if such a force majeure event continues for more than thirty (30) days, the other 

Party shall have the right to terminate this Agreement or any applicable Statement of Work. 

 

16. DISPUTE RESOLUTION.  

Prior to filing suit, any disputes or claims under this Agreement or its breach shall be submitted to mediation at a mutually agreeable 

location.  The parties shall share in the cost of the mediator on a 50-50 basis.  The mediator shall be chosen by mutual agreement of 

the parties. Notwithstanding the above, FRSecure may sue in any court for infringement of its proprietary or intellectual property 

rights. 

 

17. AFFILIATES.  

FRSecure understands and agrees that Client Affiliates may procure Services under this Agreement via execution of a Statement of 

Work. By executing a Statement of Work, the Parties acknowledge and agree that such Affiliate is bound by the terms and conditions 

under this Agreement solely for the purposes of the work to be performed under the Statement of Work. With regard to Statement of 

Works entered into by an Client Affiliate: (a) all references to “Client” in this Agreement  shall be deemed to mean the Affiliate which 

entered into the Statement of Work, except where otherwise stated as “Affiliate”, (b) each Statement of Work shall be subject to the 

terms and conditions of this Agreement and legally binding exclusively upon the respective Affiliate entering into such Statement of 

Work and FRSecure and (c) Client shall have no liability under such Statement of Work. 

 

18. RESTRICTION ON HIRE.  

During the term of this Agreement and all Statements of Work and for a period of one year after the termination of this Agreement 

and all Statements of Work, neither Party shall: (i) solicit for employment and/or employ, any employee, agent or independent 

contractor of the other Party; (ii) interfere with or in any manner attempt to harm or terminate the other Party's relationship with any 

of its employees, agents or independent contractors; or (iii) participate or in any way assist any other person, business or entity in 

soliciting or hiring an employee, agent or independent contractor of the other Party. For purposes of this section, the definition of 

employee, agent and independent contractor shall include any past employee, agent or independent contractor who was employed or 

198

Item 21.



provided services to the other Party within six months of the termination of this Agreement and all Statements of Work. 

Notwithstanding the foregoing, nothing shall prevent the other Party from employing an employee of the other Party who: (i) responds 

to a general employment advertisement when such solicitation is not specifically directed at that individual; or (ii) is directed to the 

individual by employment search firms where such employment search firms are not directed by the other Party to initiate discussions 

with respect to the prospective employment of that individual. 

 

19. GENERAL.  

This Agreement shall be governed by the laws of the State of Iowa, excluding choice of law principles. Except as otherwise specifically 

stated herein, remedies shall be cumulative and there shall be no obligation to exercise a particular remedy. If any provision of this 

Agreement is held to be unenforceable, the other provisions shall nevertheless remain in full force and effect. This Agreement and all 

Statements of Work constitute the entire understanding between the Parties with respect to the subject matter herein and may only 

be amended or modified by a writing signed by a duly authorized representative of each Party. This document may be executed in any 

number of counterparts, each of which shall be deemed to be an original and all of which shall constitute one document that is binding 

upon all Parties hereto, notwithstanding that all Parties are not signatories to the same counterpart. The Parties agree that execution 

of this Agreement by industry standard electronic signature software and/or by exchanging PDF or facsimile signatures shall have the 

same legal force and effect as the exchange of original signatures, and that in any proceeding arising under or relating to this 

document, each Party hereby waives any right to raise any defense or waiver based upon execution of this document by means of said 

signatures or maintenance of the executed document electronically. This Agreement replaces and supersedes any prior verbal or 

written understandings, communications, and representations between the Parties regarding the subject matter contained herein. No 

purchase order or other ordering document that purports to modify or supplement the printed text of this Agreement or any Exhibit 

shall add to or vary the terms of this Agreement or Exhibit. All such proposed variations, edits, or additions (whether submitted by 

FRSecure or Client) to this Agreement or to a Statement of Work, are objected to and deemed material unless otherwise mutually 

agreed to in writing. 

 

FRSecure hereby certifies that, pursuant to 48 CFR Part 9, that neither it nor its principals are presently debarred, suspended, proposed 

for debarment, declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation in this Agreement by any state or federal agency. 

 

The parties each represent and warrant that (i) it has all right and authority necessary to enter into and perform this Agreement; (ii) it 

owns all rights in and to data provided by and to FRSecure for use in and in connection with the Services; (iii) the parties’ use of such 

materials in and in connection with the Services will not violate the rights of any third party or infringe upon the intellectual property 

of any third party. 

 

The terms and conditions of this Agreement apply in full to the services and products provided under a fully executed Statement of 

Work. 

 
ACCEPTANCE AND AUTHORIZATION 

 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties have executed this Agreement effective as of the Effective Date. 

 

Effective Date: 07 / 25 / 2023 

 

City of Cedar Falls 

 

Name: ______________________________   

                              (Authorized Signer) 

 

Title: ________________________________ 

 

Date: ________________________________ 

FRSecure LLC 

 

Name: ______________________________          

                              (Authorized Signer) 

 

Title: ________________________________ 

 

Date: ________________________________ 

199

Item 21.



 

 

Signature: ____________________________ 

 

 

Signature: ____________________________ 

 
Reference Number: FRMSA 2418

200

Item 21.



Exhibit A - Example Statement of Work 

 

 

NOTE: This is an example only.  Formal Statements of Work will follow this or a similar format. 

 

 

Statement of Work 

The information contained within this document is a proposal and formal statement of work, if accepted by execution of this document. 

 

Project Overview 

Client Name: 

Project Name:  

Engagement Duration:  

Begin Date: 

End Date: 

 

Approach and Process 

Project Scope: 

 

 

Project Constraints 

Project Constraints: 

 

 

Pricing and Payment Terms 

Pricing and Payment Terms: 

 

 

Customer Acceptance 

Signatures: 

201

Item 21.



A Proposal For
Internal Vulnerability Scanning | Annual External Penetration Testing 

Prepared For

 City of Cedar Falls, Iowa 

Prepared By:
 

 Brian Tuve 
 btuve@frsecure.com

(952) 777-3108

Date: 01 / 16 / 2023 
 

Prepared for:

 Julie Sorenson 
 IT Director 

 City of Cedar Falls, Iowa 

202

Item 21.



City of Cedar Falls, Iowa 
Internal Vulnerability Scanning | Annual External Penetration Testing 

CONFIDENTIAL INFORMATION 

This document may contain information that is privileged, confidential or otherwise protected from disclosure.  Dissemination, distribution or copying of this document or the information herein is prohibited 
without prior permission of FRSecure.

Copyright 2022 FRSecure LLC, All Rights Reserved.                                          Document ID: FRSQ 7542 

01 / 16 / 2023 

Julie Sorenson, IT Director

City of Cedar Falls, Iowa 
220 Clay Street Cedar Falls Iowa 50613 

Thank you for your time and consideration of this proposal. 

At FRSecure, we are called to a mission of fixing the broken security industry. Our focus resides in helping our peers and clients master the 
fundamentals of information security through establishing a common language, providing low or no cost training and resources and by building the 
very best security professionals in the industry. Our objectivity in guiding you rests in our product agnostic stance and the core values shared by 
each and every member of our team.

Whether or not we formally engage, please count on us to be a resource and help us keep you informed as we make our training and expertise 
available to the community. Our passion for information security as our sole focus is the driving force to our current and future success.

We hope our proposal today adds to our already positive relationship, where our mission is put to work meeting your information security 
objectives.

Respectfully yours,

Evan Francen
FRSecure Founder & CEO

Page 2 of 13

203

Item 21.



City of Cedar Falls, Iowa 
Internal Vulnerability Scanning | Annual External Penetration Testing 

CONFIDENTIAL INFORMATION 

This document may contain information that is privileged, confidential or otherwise protected from disclosure.  Dissemination, distribution or copying of this document or the information herein is prohibited 
without prior permission of FRSecure.

Copyright 2022 FRSecure LLC, All Rights Reserved.                                          Document ID: FRSQ 7542 

The information security industry is broken. We are on a mission to fix it. By staying true to our mission, our commitment to product agnostic 
services and living our core values, we've developed a community of like-minded individuals, clients and partners. All we do is information security. 

Additional Information Available On FRSecure.Com
• Team Certifications
• Team Profiles
• Industry Expertise
• Free Tools
• Blogs & Security Advice
• CISSP Mentor Program Details

Page 3 of 13

204

Item 21.



City of Cedar Falls, Iowa 
Internal Vulnerability Scanning | Annual External Penetration Testing 

CONFIDENTIAL INFORMATION 

This document may contain information that is privileged, confidential or otherwise protected from disclosure.  Dissemination, distribution or copying of this document or the information herein is prohibited 
without prior permission of FRSecure.

Copyright 2022 FRSecure LLC, All Rights Reserved.                                          Document ID: FRSQ 7542 

Statement Of Work
The information contained within this document is a proposal and formal statement of work, if accepted by City of Cedar Falls, Iowa by execution 
of this document.  

Engagement Overview
Purpose and Objective Proposed Solution Timing

To evaluate the security of the controls protecting the 
external network

External Penetration Test 4-6 weeks

To identify vulnerabilities in the internal network Internal Vulnerability Scan 1-2 weeks

Page 4 of 13

205

Item 21.



City of Cedar Falls, Iowa 
Internal Vulnerability Scanning | Annual External Penetration Testing 

CONFIDENTIAL INFORMATION 

This document may contain information that is privileged, confidential or otherwise protected from disclosure.  Dissemination, distribution or copying of this document or the information herein is prohibited 
without prior permission of FRSecure.

Copyright 2022 FRSecure LLC, All Rights Reserved.                                          Document ID: FRSQ 7542 

Network Vulnerability Scanning 

Scope
The scope of this engagement is vulnerability scanning and reporting.  FRSecure will perform vulnerability scanning and provide the results to City 
of Cedar Falls, Iowa.
Scanning Engagement

• Internal Network Scanning - Testing assets behind the firewall (servers, endpoints, etc)
• 

Features Included 
• Raw Scan Data
• S2Score® and Report
• Live report delivery with FRSecure's testing experts

Internal Network Security Scan
This phase of the assessment consists of:

• Vulnerability scanning on the internal network
• Tests conducted against a database of 47,000+ known vulnerabilities
• Tests against known good configurations

• Processing of the collected vulnerability data
• Create reports leveraging the output of the vulnerability scan

Scope and Limitations:
The following are the limitations that apply to this service:

• FRSecure must be provided a physical or virtual machine capable of hosting and running the scan. FRSecure will set up the scan once the environment 
has been provided.

• Scanning will be performed Monday through Friday between the hours of 8am and 5pm.
• FRSecure must be provided with all necessary network credentials in order to perform the scan.
• All scans will be performed remotely.

Deliverables
FRSecure will provide the following deliverables with each scan.  A delivery meeting will be held after the first scan to review the reports, but not 
with subsequent scans.

Internal Scans
• Vulnerability Scan Reports – the reports give breakdowns of top vulnerabilities, most vulnerable hosts, scoring, etc.
• Excel spreadsheets; one each for all vulnerabilities, critical severity vulnerabilities, high severity vulnerabilities, and moderate severity 

vulnerabilities.  These spreadsheets help with sorting, prioritization and remediation.
• Raw scanning data (as necessary or requested)

Page 5 of 13

206

Item 21.



City of Cedar Falls, Iowa 
Internal Vulnerability Scanning | Annual External Penetration Testing 

CONFIDENTIAL INFORMATION 

This document may contain information that is privileged, confidential or otherwise protected from disclosure.  Dissemination, distribution or copying of this document or the information herein is prohibited 
without prior permission of FRSecure.

Copyright 2022 FRSecure LLC, All Rights Reserved.                                          Document ID: FRSQ 7542 

External Network Penetration Testing

FRSecure's penetration testing team is on the cutting edge of the industry. Their creative, experienced approach to test your internet-facing security 
presence will result in substantive recommendations to better your defenses. 

Deliverables 
• Executive Summary
• Reconnaissance
• Enumeration
• Exploitation
• Recommendations

Page 6 of 13

207

Item 21.



City of Cedar Falls, Iowa 
Internal Vulnerability Scanning | Annual External Penetration Testing 

CONFIDENTIAL INFORMATION 

This document may contain information that is privileged, confidential or otherwise protected from disclosure.  Dissemination, distribution or copying of this document or the information herein is prohibited 
without prior permission of FRSecure.

Copyright 2022 FRSecure LLC, All Rights Reserved.                                          Document ID: FRSQ 7542 

Engagement Scope Details

Engagement Scope

Internal Vulnerabilty Scanning Approximately 400 nodes
 
Most activity will be conducted during business hours

External Penetration Test  39 Active External IP Addresses
2 Web Applications
 
Some activity will be conducted during business hours

Engagement Planning

Engagement Kickoff Date

Vulnerability Sanning 2-3 months from SOW signature

Penetration Testing 2-3 months from SOW signature

The success of this engagement will be assured by your Client Success Manager in partnership with our Information Security Experts and Project 
Management Team. 

We encourage you to include the entire team in relevant communications, but please consider your Client Success Manager as your go-to for 
anything you need. 
Every engagement begins with formal initiation procedures.

1. Introductions to respective teams and their roles in the engagement
2. Establishment of communication preferences
3. Confirmation of scope and service levels expectation
4. Confirmation of timing and constraints
5. Engagement completion expectations and due date for deliverables

Support Team

Name Title Contact

Brian Tuve  Account Executive  btuve@frsecure.com 

Darin Meyer Manager of Client Success dmeyer@frsecure.com

Chad Spoden  Sr. Security Consultant & Solution Architect  cspoden@frsecure.com 

Executive Leadership Team

John Harmon President jharmon@frsecure.com

Renay Rutter Chief Operating Officer rrutter@frsecure.com

Vanae Pearson Chief Financial Officer vpearson@frsecure.com

Oscar Minks Chief Technology Officer ominks@frsecure.com

Page 7 of 13

208

Item 21.



City of Cedar Falls, Iowa 
Internal Vulnerability Scanning | Annual External Penetration Testing 

CONFIDENTIAL INFORMATION 

This document may contain information that is privileged, confidential or otherwise protected from disclosure.  Dissemination, distribution or copying of this document or the information herein is prohibited 
without prior permission of FRSecure.

Copyright 2022 FRSecure LLC, All Rights Reserved.                                          Document ID: FRSQ 7542 

Engagement Investment

Name Price QTY Terms Subtotal

External Penetration Test $13,900.00 1  $13,900.00

Monthly Vulnerability Scanning for 1 year $26,000.00 1 Per year, invoiced quarterly. $26,000.00

$0.00

Multi Year

External Penetration Test - 3 Year $12,000.00 3 Invoiced Annually at start of each pen test $36,000.00

External Penetration Test - 5 Year $11,500.00 5 Invoiced Annually $57,500.00

Monthly Vulnerability Scanning for 3 years $24,960.00 3 Per year, invoiced quarterly. $74,880.00

Monthly Vulnerability Scanning for 5 years $23,920.00 5 Per year, invoiced quarterly. $119,600.00

$36,000.00

IR Services

IR Registration Service - A $1,000 value $0.00 1  $0.00

$0.00

Total (USD) $36,000.00

This Proposal Expires In 60 Days

Termination: There is a minimum requirement of a 12-month commitment. If Client cancels this Statement of Work for any reason in months 1-12, then Client 
agrees to pay the cost of a one-year commitment. If Client cancels this Statement of Work in any month following the 12th month, then Client agrees to pay 10% 
($1,390) of a one-year fee as a termination fee

Customer Acceptance Contact Information

City of Cedar Falls, Iowa 

_______________________________             ____________________
Signature of Authorized Agent               Date

_______________________________
Billing Email Address

07 / 25 / 2023

julie.sorensen@cedarfalls.com 

FRSecure LLC
Attn: Vanae Pearson
6550 York Ave S #500
Edina, MN 55435
Phone 612-230-0427
Email: vpearson@frsecure.com

Page 8 of 13

209

Item 21.



City of Cedar Falls, Iowa 
Internal Vulnerability Scanning | Annual External Penetration Testing 

CONFIDENTIAL INFORMATION 

This document may contain information that is privileged, confidential or otherwise protected from disclosure.  Dissemination, distribution or copying of this document or the information herein is prohibited 
without prior permission of FRSecure.

Copyright 2022 FRSecure LLC, All Rights Reserved.                                          Document ID: FRSQ 7542 

Assumptions

FRSecure will provide all of the materials required for the completion of this engagement. FRSecure will rely upon experience, testing, observation, and 
interviews with City of Cedar Falls, Iowa employees to assess the completeness and effectiveness of City of Cedar Falls, Iowa’s information security program. 
FRSecure will follow all guidance provided by the previously referenced standards for the completion of the work.

The FRSecure information security analyst will review a variety of information including, but not necessarily limited to prior working papers, reviews and current 
City of Cedar Falls, Iowa diagrams, policies, processes, and procedures.
Assessments that have been conducted follow the standards as noted in the National Institute of Standards in Technology Cybersecurity Framework (NIST CSF), 
ISO/IEC 27002:2013 international standard, Center for Internet Security (CIS) Controls, & NIST Special Publication 800-53 (NIST SP 800-53). 

Change Management Process

Changes can be made to the scope of this engagement and Statement of Work.  Any changes requested by either party must be in writing and signed 
by both parties indicating acceptance.

Engagement Related Expenses

All engagement related expenses will be billed to the client following FRSecure Client Project Travel And Expense Policy.

Invoicing Details

Invoicing will fall under one of the following three terms.
1. For one-time project agreements (i.e. assessments), a down payment invoice of 50% will be sent upon acceptance of this proposal and 

statement of work. The balance is due upon engagement completion of all deliverables to City of Cedar Falls, Iowa.  
2. For multi-year or multi-project agreements, a down payment invoice of 50% will be sent at the beginning of the year in each year or term 

in which the project is performed.  The balance is due upon engagement completion of all deliverables to City of Cedar Falls, Iowa. 
3. Monthly or quarterly recurring consulting agreements, or projects with an amortized payment schedule, will be invoiced quarterly starting 

on the 1st day of the first month services begin.

• City of Cedar Falls, Iowa may cancel this engagement at any time pursuant to Section 2.E of the Master Services Agreement between City 
of Cedar Falls, Iowa and FRSecure. Cancellation or rescheduling of an engagement by City of Cedar Falls, Iowa may result in additional 
fees.

• Meetings cancelled by City of Cedar Falls, Iowa less than 5 business days prior to a FRSecure resource commitment of four or more hours, 
will result in a reschedule fee for time and expenses lost.

Note:  Prices shown do not include sales tax, if applicable.

Please note, failure by City of Cedar Falls, Iowa to respond to repeated attempts at communications by FRSecure within 90 days of initial 
communication of project initiation will result in project engagement closeout and City of Cedar Falls, Iowa will be invoiced for full remaining 
balance due as described in this statement of work. 

Page 9 of 13

210

Item 21.



City of Cedar Falls, Iowa 
Internal Vulnerability Scanning | Annual External Penetration Testing 

CONFIDENTIAL INFORMATION 

This document may contain information that is privileged, confidential or otherwise protected from disclosure.  Dissemination, distribution or copying of this document or the information herein is prohibited 
without prior permission of FRSecure.

Copyright 2022 FRSecure LLC, All Rights Reserved.                                          Document ID: FRSQ 7542 

Practice Lead

Senior Consultant

BRAD NIGH
6550 York Ave S #500, Edina, MN 55435

linkedin.com/in/bradnigh
bnigh@frsecure.com

(952) 467-8849

PROFILE 
Brad is a passionate information security expert with 20+ years of overall IT experience, including 10+ years of IT management and leadership 
experience working in 24/7 environments that required top tier technical skills, and efficient project management. In addition, Brad has several years 
of experience working in highly regulated industries that are required to comply with PCI-DSS, HIPAA, HITECH, Sarbanes-Oxley, OCC, and 
various state regulatory requirements.

At FRSecure Brad leads the Professional Services practice, serving businesses of all sizes and in all industries by cooperatively solving the complex 
issues surrounding information security. Brad's goals are ensuring consistent methodology, improving our existing programs, and innovating and 
continual development of new offerings.

EDUCATIONAL & COMMUNITY SERVICE ENGAGEMENTS
• CISSP Mentorship Program
• FRSecure Workshop Series
• ISC2 Safe & Secure Online Volunteer
• Wayzata Public Schools COMPASS Mentor (Cybersecurity)

CERTIFICATIONS
• Certified Information Security Manager (CISM)
• Certified Information Systems Security Professional (CISSP)
• Certified Security Studio Analyst (CSSA)
• MCSA: Windows Server 2012
• ITIL v.3 Foundations
• Certified Incident Handler (ECIHv2)
• CMMC Certified Registered Practioner (CMMC-RP)

Page 10 of 13

211

Item 21.

http://linkedin.com/in/bradnigh


City of Cedar Falls, Iowa 
Internal Vulnerability Scanning | Annual External Penetration Testing 

CONFIDENTIAL INFORMATION 

This document may contain information that is privileged, confidential or otherwise protected from disclosure.  Dissemination, distribution or copying of this document or the information herein is prohibited 
without prior permission of FRSecure.

Copyright 2022 FRSecure LLC, All Rights Reserved.                                          Document ID: FRSQ 7542 

Value Proposition

Based on the conversations between FRSecure and City of Cedar Falls, Iowa to date, we believe we are an excellent fit for your engagement. 

Here are some additional reasons we believe you should select FRSecure:

• FRSecure’s Methodology – FRSecure has developed a proprietary approach to assessing information security risks.  It’s more than a checklist of 
questions and recorded answers.  Our approach gives you a full picture of your risks - prioritized and rated - with recommended solutions, so you know 
which security investments will have the greatest impact.

• FRSecure’s Project Leader – All of our project leaders have more than 15 years of information security experience as a leader in, and consultant 
for hundreds of companies ranging from the Fortune 100 to SMBs.  BIO’s for our project leaders are available upon request.

• Full Transparency – FRSecure strongly believes in empowering our customers.  The more knowledge transfer that occurs during our engagement, 
the more value our customers recognize.  FRSecure fully discloses the methods, tools, and configurations used to perform analysis work for our 
customers in the hope that they can easily adopt our processes for their future benefit.

• Product Agnostic – FRSecure does not represent any third-party products or services; on purpose.  Our projects and recommendations stand on their 
own, with no ulterior motive to sell you things you don’t really need.

FRSecure Information Security Principles

Our Information Security Principles are fundamental to our everyday work and help us to stay focused on our mission to “Fix the Broken Industry”. All our 
Principles are able to stand by themselves, but they are also solidly interrelated.

1. A business is in business to make money 
Information security must align with business objectives.

2. Information Security is a business issue
Information security is NOT an IT issue.

3. Information Security is fun
That’s right, we said “FUN”!

4. People are the biggest risk
Not technology.

5. “Compliant” and “secure” are different
We shouldn’t confuse the two.

6. There is no common sense in Information Security
If there were, we would have better information security.

7. “Secure” is relative
One of many reasons for ongoing measurements and comparisons.

8. Information Security should drive business
Identify and focus on information security benefits. Information security shouldn’t just be a cost-center.

9. Information Security is not one size fits all
No two businesses are exactly alike.

10. There is no “easy button”
So stop looking for one.

Client references available upon request

Page 11 of 13

212

Item 21.



City of Cedar Falls, Iowa 
Internal Vulnerability Scanning | Annual External Penetration Testing 

CONFIDENTIAL INFORMATION 

This document may contain information that is privileged, confidential or otherwise protected from disclosure.  Dissemination, distribution or copying of this document or the information herein is prohibited 
without prior permission of FRSecure.

Copyright 2022 FRSecure LLC, All Rights Reserved.                                          Document ID: FRSQ 7542 

External Network Penetration Testing

FRSecure’s penetration testing methodology is based on the Penetration Testing Execution Standard (PTES). PTES is currently the most widely 
accepted standard for penetration testing, and is based on the practical knowledge and experience of the security industry’s leading experts.

There are three formats for any penetration test: black-box, white-box, and grey-box. FRSecure penetration tests are typically performed as white-
box assessments. These types of assessments yield more accurate results and provide a more comprehensive test of the security posture of the 
environment than a black-box or grey-box assessment.  

Page 12 of 13

213

Item 21.



City of Cedar Falls, Iowa 
Internal Vulnerability Scanning | Annual External Penetration Testing 

CONFIDENTIAL INFORMATION 

This document may contain information that is privileged, confidential or otherwise protected from disclosure.  Dissemination, distribution or copying of this document or the information herein is prohibited 
without prior permission of FRSecure.

Copyright 2022 FRSecure LLC, All Rights Reserved.                                          Document ID: FRSQ 7542 

External Penetration Testing

Engagement Summary
External penetration testing consists of enumerating and verifying vulnerabilities that could be exploited by external attackers to gain unauthorized 
access to the client’s systems. The assessment helps validate the organization’s investment in their security and information technology 
infrastructure.

FRSecure’s team plays the role of an external attacker, attempting to exploit vulnerable systems to obtain confidential information or compromise 
network perimeter defenses. Our findings are then used to provide example scenarios that demonstrate the potential impact of a compromise.

Deliverables  
• Executive Summary
• Reconnaissance
• Enumeration
• Exploitation
• Recommendations

Page 13 of 13

214

Item 21.



DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-268-5161 
Fax: 319-268-5197 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 
MEMORANDUM 

Inspection Services Division 

 

  

 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 TO: Mayor Robert Green  
 
 FROM: Jamie Castle 
 
 DATE: September 25, 2003  
 
 SUBJECT: City Hall Remodel final payment  
 
We are requesting the final payment be paid for the City Hall Remodel Project. The final 
payment requested is $55,345.94 which is the remaining retainage the City has held.  
Payments to Peters Construction for the project total $ 3,764,343.06. 
 
The City Hall Remodel project totaled $4,500,000.00, which includes Design fees for 
Emergent Architecture, Peters construction costs, Kirk Gross (furniture) and other small 
contracts for finishes and technology upgrades (such as blinds in conference rooms and 
offices on the south side of the building).  
 
 
 
   
 
 
 

215

Item 22.



216

Item 22.



217

Item 22.



218

Item 22.



219

Item 22.



220

Item 22.



221

Item 22.



222

Item 22.



ADMINISTRATION 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone:   319-273-8600 
Fax:   319-273-8610 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 
MEMORANDUM 

  

   

 

 

 
 
 

 TO: Honorable Mayor Robert M. Green and City Council 

 FROM: Shane Graham, Economic Development Coordinator 

 DATE: September 25, 2023 

 SUBJECT: Tax Increment Financing (TIF) Project Resolution: Cedar Falls Utilities 

 

On the agenda is a Resolution Approving a Cedar Falls Utilities Communication Utility 
Installation Project in the Cedar Falls Unified Highway 58 Urban Renewal Area. The 
proposed CFU utility project is to install new core router equipment for the expansion of 
services to customers within the Urban Renewal Area. 
 
As Council may recall, a process has been established whereby any potential CFU 
project seeking TIF reimbursement must first be approved by the CFU Board of 
Trustees and then submitted to City Council for review and approval. Any proposed 
CFU projects are reviewed by staff to insure that they are included in the Unified 
Highway 58 Corridor Urban Renewal Plan. 
 
The proposed CFU communication project has been approved and is included in the 
Unified Highway 58 Urban Renewal Plan (updated by Amendment #6 in December 
2020). Staff has reviewed Exhibit B (Project Description) attached and finds the project 
to be in compliance with the existing Urban Renewal Plan. 
 
The CFU Board of Trustees approved this project at their September 13, 2023 meeting 
and City staff is recommending that City Council approve and adopt the following: 
 

1. Resolution Approving a Cedar Falls Utilities Electric, Gas, Water, and 
Communications Utility Installation or Relocation Project in the Cedar Falls 
Unified Highway 58 Corridor Urban Renewal Area. 

 

If you have any questions, please let me know. 
 
Xc:  Ron Gaines, P.E., City Administrator 
       Jennifer Rodenbeck, Director of Finance & Business Operations 
       Wynette Froehner, CFU Director of Finance and Organizational Services 

223

Item 23.



 

 

URBAN RENEWAL PROJECT RESOLUTION 

 

(Cedar Falls Utilities Electric, Gas, Water, and Communications Utility Installation or 

Relocation-Unified Highway 58 Corridor Urban Renewal Area Project) 

 

 

Council Member ____________________________ introduced the following 

Resolution entitled "RESOLUTION APPROVING A CEDAR FALLS UTILITIES 

ELECTRIC, GAS, WATER, AND COMMUNICATIONS UTILITY INSTALLATION 

OR RELOCATION PROJECT IN THE CEDAR FALLS UNIFIED HIGHWAY 58 

CORRIDOR URBAN RENEWAL AREA" and moved its adoption.  Council Member 

___________________________ seconded the motion to adopt.  The roll was called and 

the vote was,  

 

 

AYES:                                                                              

 

 

                                                                                          

 

 

NAYS:                                                                              

 

 

 RESOLUTION NO. _____________ 

 

RESOLUTION APPROVING A CEDAR FALLS UTILITIES ELECTRIC, 

GAS, WATER, AND COMMUNICATIONS UTILITY INSTALLATION 

OR RELOCATION PROJECT IN THE CEDAR FALLS UNIFIED 

HIGHWAY 58 CORRIDOR URBAN RENEWAL AREA 

 

WHEREAS, the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa has established the Cedar Falls Unified 

Highway 58 Corridor Urban Renewal Area (the "Urban Renewal Area") and has adopted 

an urban renewal plan and amendments thereto for undertaking urban renewal projects, as 

more fully described on Exhibit A attached hereto, (the "Projects") within the Urban 

Renewal Area; and 

 

WHEREAS, before approving an urban renewal project, it is necessary to make 

certain findings under Chapter 403; and  

 

224

Item 23.



 

 

WHEREAS, it is the intention of the City to certify the amount of funds advanced 

for reimbursement under Iowa Code Section 403.19 prior to December 1, 2023; and 

 

WHEREAS, the amount of funds to be advanced for the Project is up to $149,213.96 

for Communications. 

 

 NOW, THEREFORE, IT IS RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Cedar 

Falls, Iowa, as follows: 

 

Section 1. Pursuant to Ordinance No. 2785, there has been established the Cedar 

Falls Unified Highway 58 Corridor Urban Renewal Area Tax Increment Revenue Fund 

(the "Tax Increment Fund"), into which all incremental property tax revenues received 

from the Urban Renewal Area, as amended, are deposited.  The Council finds the Project 

described on Exhibit A hereto to be an Urban Renewal Project as defined in Iowa Code 

Chapter 403, and further finds that said Project is included in the Plan, as amended, for the 

Urban Renewal Area. 

 

 Section 2. It is hereby directed that the total costs for the Project be advanced 

from time to time from the TIF Project Fund in order to pay the costs of the Project. The 

advance shall be treated as an internal loan (the "Loan") from the TIF Project Fund to the 

Cedar Falls Utilities and the TIF Project Fund shall reimburse Cedar Falls Utilities the total 

actual Project costs from the Tax Increment Fund.  

 

Section 3. All Project costs to be incurred for the Projects are approved, to be 

advanced as described in Section 2. The estimated cost for the Project is $149,213.96 for 

Communications. 

 

Section 4. Certification for reimbursement under Iowa Code Section 403.19 

shall be made by the Council prior to December 1, 2023. 

 

ADOPTED AND PASSED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF CEDAR 

FALLS, STATE OF IOWA, this ____ day of ____________________, 2023. 

 

 

____________________________ 

       Robert M. Green, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

 

 

________________________________ 

Jacqueline Danielsen, CMC, City Clerk 

225

Item 23.



 

 

 

 

EXHIBIT A 

 

 
Project Name: Installation of conduit, pedestals, cabinets, fiber, and all 

associated materials to provide communications services to the 

West Viking Road Industrial Park area. 

  

 

 

Urban Renewal Plan/Project: Additional Communication Utility installations and relocations 

necessary to accommodate future economic development and 

growth within the Urban Renewal Area (Project #2). 

 

 

Contractor/Amount: Cedar Falls Utilities (CFU) total budgeted amount for 

Communications projects within the Urban Renewal Area: 

$2,800,000. 

 

  

  

226

Item 23.



RESOLUTION NO.  6544 
 

RESOLUTION APPROVING REQUEST TO THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS FOR REIMBURSEMENT OF  
URBAN RENEWAL PROJECT COSTS 

 
[UNIFIED HIGHWAY 58 CORRIDOR URBAN RENEWAL AREA] 

 
Whereas, the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa (the “City”) has established the Unified 

Highway 58 Corridor Urban Renewal Area (the “Urban Renewal Area”) and has adopted the Unified 

Highway 58 Corridor Urban Renewal Plan and amendments thereto for undertaking urban renewal 

projects in the Urban Renewal Area; and  

Whereas, the City and the Cedar Falls Municipal Electric, Gas, Water and 

Communications Utilities (“CFU”) have entered into a Development Agreement for the Unified 

Highway 58 Corridor Urban Renewal Area dated November 13, 2013, with Amendment No. 1 dated 

November, 2014, and Amendment No. 2 dated May, 2016, wherein CFU agreed to construct various 

projects within the Urban Renewal Area (“CFU Projects”) to provide electrical, gas, water and 

communications services that are critical to furthering the purposes of the Urban Renewal Plan; by 

Resolution No 6386,  the January 2022 Amendment to the Development Agreement was approved 

by the Boards in order to include additional urban renewal projects and debt to be certified; and 

Whereas, CFU agreed to construct the CFU Projects in return for Economic 

Development Grants funded by incremental tax revenues within the Urban Renewal Area to 

reimburse CFU for the costs associated with the CFU Projects; and 

Whereas, CFU has expended funds to complete the CFU Projects listed on the 2023 TIF 

Certification Requests attached hereto as Exhibit 1; and  

        Whereas, the 2023 TIF Certification Requests identify the specified CFU Projects 

that have been completed and the expenditures for each eligible project; and  

Whereas, these specified CFU Projects and related expenditures are eligible for 

reimbursement under the Development Agreement; and 

Whereas, staff of CFU recommends sending the 2023 TIF Certification Requests to the 

City for approval and certification.  

Now, Therefore, Be It Resolved by the Board of Trustees of the Municipal 

Communications Utility of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, that the General Manager is authorized and 

directed to send the 2023 TIF Certification Requests to the Finance Manager/City Clerk for the City of 

Cedar Falls, Iowa for consideration and certification by its City Council prior to December 1, 2023. 

Introduced and Adopted this 13th day of September, 2023. 

  
 Richard L. McAlister – Chair 
Attest: 
 

 
MaraBeth K. Soneson – Secretary 
 
 
 The above Resolution was moved by Trustee Evens and seconded by Trustee 
Soneson.  Upon call of the roll, the following Trustees voted: 
 
 Aye:       McAlister, Engel, Soneson, Evens, Iehl 
 Nay:       None 
 Absent:  None 
 
Attachment: Exhibit 1 – CFU TIF Certification Request  

227

Item 23.



Cedar Falls Utilities TIF Certification for 2023

CFU TIF
Project/Plans

City Pre‐
Approval
Reso #

District Services Utility Fund CFU Project 
Closed Date

Project 
WO#

Gross Amount
 Less Loadings 
and Hourly 
Equipment 

 Contribution
Deduction 

Net Amount

1 CFU Headend 100G 
Equipment Upgrade 22597 Unified 

HWY58

core router equipment for 
expansion of services for 
new and existing customers

Comm 4 Dec‐22 8510122 $150,664.83 ($1,450.87) $0.00 $149,213.96

Grand Total $         150,664.83 $             ‐ (1,450.87) $ $      149,213.96

Summary  Pinnacle Downtown UH58
Electric

Gas
Water
Comm $149,213.96

 ‐$  ‐$                  $      149,213.96

Exhibit 1

228

Item 23.



ADMINISTRATION 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-273-8600 
Fax: 319-273-8610 
www.cedarfalls.com 
 

MEMORANDUM 
 

  

   

 

 

 
 
 
 
 

 TO: Honorable Mayor Robert M. Green and City Council 

 FROM: Shane Graham, Economic Development Coordinator 

 DATE: September 25, 2023 

 SUBJECT: Funding Agreement with Cedar Falls Economic Development Corporation 

 
 
Attached is the agreement with Cedar Falls Economic Development Corporation (CFEDC).  The 

agreement sets forth the requirements that must be met by CFEDC in order to receive $30,000 

in base funding for FY24, with the option for incentive payments. The FY24 agreement provides 

for a maximum incentive of $32,000. 

 

If you have any questions, please feel free to let me know.  

 

xc: Ron Gaines, P.E., City Administrator 
 

229

Item 24.



 1 

 
AGREEMENT TO ENHANCE ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT IN CEDAR FALLS BY 
SUPPORTING THE CEDAR FALLS ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION  

 
 

THIS AGREEMENT is entered into as of this _____ day of ______________, 2023, by and 
between the Cedar Falls Economic Development Corporation (hereinafter "CFEDC"), and the City 
of Cedar Falls, Black Hawk County, Iowa (hereinafter "City"). 

 
WHEREAS, CFEDC is an agency that qualifies for funding from the City pursuant to CFD 

3128: Finance Policy – Outside Entity Funding (“Funding Policy”); and 
 
WHEREAS, CFEDC has proposed to provide projects, input, and expertise to increase the 

economic vitality and wealth by leading collaborative economic and community development in the 
Cedar Valley, and whereby CFEDC will engage in economic development activities to directly 
benefit the City of Cedar Falls; and 
 

WHEREAS, the proposed activities of CFEDC that will compliment or expand upon the 
existing economic development efforts of the City of Cedar Falls are explained in CFEDC’s 
application filed with the City; and 
 

WHEREAS, the Funding Policy allows certain funding for projects of this type on certain 
terms and conditions, and subject to certain legal requirements as stated therein, including 
execution of a formal agreement outlining the duties and responsibilities of CFEDC and the City; 
and 
 

WHEREAS, CFEDC and the City have reached agreement on the precise terms and 
conditions under which the project will be undertaken and the funding provided, and now desire to 
reduce their agreement to writing. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT MUTUALLY COVENANTED AND AGREED AS FOLLOWS: 
 

1. Recipient status. CFEDC affirms that it is a qualified recipient to receive funds 
from City, as it is a private, non-profit corporation organized and existing under Iowa law. CFEDC 
shall provide proof of tax-exempt status under the Internal Revenue Service Revenue Code prior 
to receiving funding. 
 

2. Recipient mission statement. CFEDC has provided the City with its mission 
statement and a detailed summary from an officer or board member specifying its use of the funds, 
consistent with the public purpose definition of the Funding Policy approved by the City Council. 
 

3. Recipient documentation.  Prior to receiving funding, CFEDC shall provide the 
following documentation to City: 
 

a. Proof of business entity status, including a copy of by-laws and articles of 
incorporation if applicable; 

b. Complete information on the source and amount of funding received from all 
other sources, including but not limited to non-governmental agencies, 
membership dues and fees, and private contributions; 

c. Names and addresses of directors and/or officers; 
d. Line item budget for current fiscal year; 

230

Item 24.



 2 

e. List of any additional pending applications for funding to include funding source 
and dollar amount requested. 

 
4. Description of Project.  In consideration for the funding provided to CFEDC by the 

City, CFEDC shall represent and advocate for the interests of business, industry and institutions 
operating in the City of Cedar Falls. CFEDC agrees that proposed activities of CFEDC will 
complement or expand upon the existing economic development efforts of the City of Cedar Falls 
(hereinafter the "Project"). Failure to abide by this requirement shall result in a Return of Funds 
pursuant to Paragraph 10 of this Agreement.  
 
 5. Funding.  The City agrees to provide funding in an amount not in excess of $62,000 
in order to support implementation of the Project, upon Request for Payment as provided in 
Paragraph 8, and upon receipt of the Accounting required in Paragraph 6, as follows: 
 

a. A Base Budget amount not to exceed $30,000, to be paid in two 
separate payments of $15,000 on December 31, 2023, and June 
30, 2024; and 
 

b. An amount not in excess of $32,000 in potential Incentive 
Payments, if earned, as follows: 

 
1) CFEDC will provide the following information in writing to the City on a 

semi-annual basis to show all efforts made to promote Cedar Falls, 
broken down into categories for (a) companies solicited by CFEDC to 
locate in Cedar Falls, (b) companies CFEDC contacted to expand 
operations in Cedar Falls, and (c) inquiries received by CFEDC from 
companies for marketing materials or about available sites or buildings: 
number of initial calls, contacts, leads, prospects, conferences 
attended to present marketing about Cedar Falls, databases organized 
and/or posted on websites for providing relevant information about 
Cedar Falls, other efforts made to network, form relationships and/or 
subscribe to services, and material responses to requests for 
information. Based on the documentation submitted by CFEDC, the 
City, at its sole discretion, will evaluate the semi-annual performance of 
CFEDC and may provide Semi-Annual Performance Payments up to 
$16,000 to CFEDC, with a total maximum not to exceed $32,000.  
Semi-Annual Performance Payments are subject to City Council 
approval. 
 
In addition, items that CFEDC staff leads and influences 
including talent development efforts that directly benefit Cedar 
Falls companies, innovation and startup assistance in Cedar 
Falls, and contribution to the entrepreneur ecosystem in Cedar 
Falls including support for the Future Forward Cedar Falls 2025 
Strategic Plan, the approved city council goals, and the 
CFEDC’s approved Vision & Goals document in those areas the 
CFEDC is identified can be considered for incentive funding, 
subject to City Council approval. 
 
Work completed by the CFEDC on a specific project that does 
not locate in Cedar Falls, does not proceed, or falls under the 

231

Item 24.



 3 

support capacity items noted in the prior paragraph, will be 
documented by CFEDC and submitted to the City for incentive 
payment consideration by the City as part of the performance 
report.  

 
The incentive payments identified in Paragraph 5-b will be provided only if CFEDC can 
establish a causal partnership between its activities and the economic development for 
which it proposes to be paid the incentive payments.  The incentive payments, if earned, 
shall be paid on December 31, 2023, and June 30, 2024. 

 
Actual expenditures may exceed the amount budgeted for each major line item provided 
such costs are otherwise reasonable and allocable to the approved project scope of work. 
Total expenditures may not exceed the total funding amount authorized in this Paragraph. 
  
 6. Documentation Regarding Accounting of Expenditure of City Funds. CFEDC 
shall provide the City with a detailed accounting of the expenditure of City funds and a written 
report outlining CFEDC’s performance and accomplishments within the scope of work outlined in 
its application, upon submitting Requests for Payment pursuant to Paragraph 8.    
 
 7. Salaries. A portion of the City’s payment, as outlined in Paragraph 5, may provide 
funding for a portion of the salaries and employee benefits described in the application. City 
payment of a portion of the program’s salary and benefit expenses shall not make the City 
responsible or liable for any employee. All employment-related claims made by a CFEDC 
employee or against a CFEDC employee by others will be borne by CFEDC. There is no employer-
employee relationship between the City and CFEDC or any CFEDC employee, officer, director, 
agent, volunteer or representative. 
 

8.  Request for Payment.  All requests for payment or reimbursement shall be 
submitted by CFEDC to the City on a biannual basis, specifically December 31, 2023, and June 
30, 2024. All payments or reimbursements are contingent upon receipt of the documentation 
required in Paragraph 6 above and upon receipt of the Report on Project Results required in 
Paragraph 9. City shall have a period of up to thirty (30) days from date of receipt of each request 
for payment and all necessary documentation, within which to make payment or reimbursement 
under this Agreement. 
 
 9. Report on Project Results.  CFEDC agrees to provide the City with a written 
summary documenting the results of the Project on at least a biannual basis, specifically no later 
than November 1, 2023, and May 1, 2024.  Such report shall include without limitation: 
 

a. Details of external marketing efforts, public relations efforts, and 
establishing new/existing partnerships with other agencies, including but not 
limited to the City of Cedar Falls, Grow Cedar Valley, Cedar Falls Utilities, 
Cedar Falls Schools, and the University of Northern Iowa; 

 
b. Summary on the CFEDC’s involvement in advocating for the continued 

development and redevelopment of College Hill and the University of 
Northern Iowa campus and surrounding areas; 

 
c. Summary on the CFEDC’s involvement with Community Main Street, such 

as planning and supporting of projects, and any other initiatives that they 
establish; 

232

Item 24.



 4 

 
d. Summary on the efforts to continue the development and redevelopment of 

the University Avenue corridor, including potential incentives and other 
value added projects to the corridor; 
 

e. Summary on the efforts on any public relations to help foster positive growth 
in Cedar Falls; 
 

f. Summary on the efforts to establish and assist the City towards the creation 
of housing of all types, including meetings with the City, outside agencies, 
developers, etc.  

 
g. Talent development efforts that directly benefit Cedar Falls companies, 

coworking space, innovation and startup assistance in Cedar Falls, and 
contribution to the entrepreneur ecosystem in Cedar Falls including support 
for the Future Forward Cedar Falls 2025 Strategic Plan, the current fiscal 
year’s approve goals, and the CFEDC’s approved Vision & Goals. 

 
 10. Return of Funds. In the event CFEDC does not use funds for the intended 
purpose(s) or in the event CFEDC does not comply with the reporting requirements of Paragraph 
9 above, the funds or any portion thereof shall be returned to the City prior to the end of the current 
fiscal year, which is June 30, 2024. 
 

11. Time limitation of funding.  The parties hereby acknowledge that the City is not 
committed or obligated to provide funds beyond the terms and conditions of this Agreement, and 
that any future project or program requires a separate request and is subject to City Council 
approval and execution of a separate written agreement. 

 
12. Recipient Board.  The Recipient Board, Cedar Falls Economic Development 

Corporation Board of Directors, will be charged with planning for the appropriate expenditure of 
City grant funds in accordance with this Agreement. 

 
 13. Termination.  Either party may terminate this contract at any time if:  
 

a. The other party materially breaches the terms of this contract; provided 
that the non-breaching party shall have given the breaching party written 
notice of such breach and the breaching party shall have failed to cure the 
same within (30) days after receipt of such notice; 

 
b. There is the loss or departure of key personnel that would jeopardize both 

the quality and time of performance or would make performance 
impractical with respect to budget contemplated for this contract, and a 
mutually acceptable replacement cannot be found; or 

 
c. Performance of any part of this contract by a party is prevented or delayed 

by reason of Force Majeure and cannot be overcome by reasonable 
diligence to satisfaction of either party. 

 
In addition, either party may terminate this contract for any reason with 60 days written notice to 
the other party, as long as the City has not yet provided funding, or CFEDC reimburses all City 
funding prior to termination.   
  

233

Item 24.



 5 

In the event of termination, immediate written notice shall be given by the authorized official of 
the party requesting termination to the other party which should specify both the reason for and 
the effective date of termination.  Such notice shall be delivered by Certified Mail, telegram, or in 
person to the authorized official of the other party who executed this agreement. 
 

14. Liability.  The City’s participation in the Project is limited to funding as provided in 
this Agreement, and neither this Agreement nor the Project shall be considered a partnership or 
joint venture.  The City has asserted no control over the Project or over CFEDC or its employees, 
officers, directors, agents or volunteers with respect to the Project, and specifically disavows any 
and all liability whatsoever for any acts or omissions related to or arising out of the Project. 
 

15. Legal Expenses.  CFEDC agrees that all legal expenses incurred by the City in 
connection with the defense of any claim made or brought against the City that is directly related 
to CFEDC's performance, or the performance of CFEDC’s employees, officers, directors, agents 
or volunteers, under this agreement shall be the responsibility of CFEDC.    
 

16. Terms of Agreement Control Over Application.  The parties acknowledge that 
the provisions of this Agreement are controlling and shall define the duties, responsibilities and 
conditions under which the Project shall be funded.  Any and all provisions of CFEDC’s Application 
describing the Project, which is inconsistent with the provisions of this Agreement, shall be 
ineffective. CFEDC agrees that the Project shall be carried out without regard to a participant’s 
race, color, creed, religion, national origin, sex, age, disability, sexual orientation, gender identity, 
or any other legally protected characteristic. 
 

17. Entire Agreement.  This Agreement, together with the Application, to the extent 
not inconsistent with the terms hereof, constitute the entire agreement between the parties with 
respect to the subject matter hereof. There are no other oral or written promises or understandings 
except as expressly provided herein.  This Agreement may be amended only by a written 
agreement signed by the parties hereto. 
 

18. Term of Agreement.  This Agreement covers the period from July 1, 2023 through 
and including June 30, 2024. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have subscribed this Agreement effective as of the 

date stated above. 
 
 

Cedar Falls Economic Development Corporation 
 
 

By: ______________________________ 
Katy Susong – Chair of the Board CFEDC 

234

Item 24.



 6 

       
 
 

City of Cedar Falls, Iowa 
 
      By: ______________________________ 
       Robert M. Green, Mayor 
ATTEST: 
 
 
___________________________ 
Jacqueline Danielsen, MMC 
City Clerk 

 

235

Item 24.



DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-273-8600 
Fax: 319-268-5126 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 
MEMORANDUM 

Planning & Community Services Division 

  

   

 

 

 
 
 
 TO: Honorable Mayor Robert M. Green and City Council 

 FROM: Michelle Pezley, AICP, Planner III 

 DATE: October 2, 2023 

SUBJECT:  CDBG Owner Occupied Rehabilitation   
 
Cedar Falls is a recipient of Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) and HOME 
Investment Partnerships Program (HOME) funds that support several programs, 
including housing rehabilitation and repair for income-qualifying residents. The City is 
contracted with INRCOG to oversee the program. 
 
On August 7, the City Council approved the contract with Daniel’s Home Improvement 
for the Owner-Occupied rehabilitation project at 912 Calumett Drive.   
 
The project consisted of new windows in the kitchen with repair to the exterior trim, two 
new doors, new steps with a handrail, and some concrete work to the driveway.  Due to 
the deteriorated condition of the whole driveway and the potential safety issues, the 
change order is requested that is over 10% from the approved contract.  The additional 
work includes removing concrete around the house and garage and adding a drain in 
front of the garage with the cost of $10,650. These were included in the original scope 
of work as additional alternative items.  With these changes, the total cost for the 
contract will be $21,815.00.    
 
The program is a five-year forgivable loan. The revised forgivable loan agreement and 
mortgage with the property owner are attached.  The mortgage will be recorded.   
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Community Development Department recommends acceptance of the change order, 
amendment to the contract with Daniel’s Home Improvement and forgivable loan 
agreement with the property owner at 912 Calumet Drive.  
 
Please contact staff with any questions.  Thank you.  
 
Xc:  Stephanie Houk Sheetz, AICP, Director of Community Development  
       Karen Howard, AICP, Planning & Community Services Manager      
 

236

Item 25.



237

Item 25.



238

Item 25.



239

Item 25.



240

Item 25.



241

Item 25.



242

Item 25.



243

Item 25.



244

Item 25.



245

Item 25.



246

Item 25.



247

Item 25.



248

Item 25.



249

Item 25.



250

Item 25.



251

Item 25.



252

Item 25.



253

Item 25.



DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-273-8600 
Fax: 319-268-5126 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 
MEMORANDUM 

Planning & Community Services Division 

  

   

 

 

 
 
 TO: Honorable Mayor Robert M. Green and City Council 

 FROM: Michelle Pezley, AICP, Planner III 

 DATE: October 2, 2023 

SUBJECT:  CDBG Homeowner Repair project 
   

 
Cedar Falls is a recipient of Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) and HOME 
Investment Partnerships Program (HOME) funds that support several programs, 
including housing rehabilitation and repair for income-qualifying residents. The City has 
a contract with Iowa Northland Regional Council of Governments (INRCOG) to assist 
staff to oversee the housing rehabilitation and repair projects. 
 
After two bid attempts, INRCOG received one bid on June 12th by Tojo Construction for 
a repair project for a home at 808 Bluff Street in Cedar Falls.  The repair project will 
improve living conditions for the residents of the home and bring the home into code 
compliance. The project includes repairs and replacement of doors on the exterior of the 
home; and updating electrical and plumbing in the bathroom and kitchen on the interior 
of the home. Tojo Construction estimates the scope of the work, including permit costs 
is $9019.00.   
 
The Housing Commission reviewed and approved the proposed scope of this 
rehabilitation project at their June 21st meeting.  
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
With the attempt to have competitive bids with two processes, Community Development 
Department recommends acceptance of one bid and enter into a contract with Tojo 
Construction, Inc. in the amount of $9,019.00 for 808 Bluff Street. 
 
Please contact staff with any questions.  Thank you.  
 
Xc:  Stephanie Houk Sheetz, AICP, Director of Community Development  
       Karen Howard, AICP, Planning & Community Services Manager      

254

Item 26.



255

Item 26.



256

Item 26.



257

Item 26.



258

Item 26.



259

Item 26.



260

Item 26.



261

Item 26.



262

Item 26.



263

Item 26.



264

Item 26.



265

Item 26.



266

Item 26.



267

Item 26.



268

Item 26.



269

Item 26.



270

Item 26.



DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-273-8600 
Fax: 319-273-8610 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 

MEMORANDUM 
Planning & Community Services Division 

  

   

 

 

 
 
 
 
 TO: Honorable Mayor Robert M. Green and City Council 

 FROM: Chris Sevy, AICP, Planner I 

 DATE: October 2, 2023 

 SUBJECT: College Hill Neighborhood Overlay Design Review - Murals at Pettersen Plaza 
  (Case #: DR23-002) 
 

 
REQUEST: 

 
To install panels for the display of changeable artwork at Pettersen Plaza 
 

PETITIONER: 
 

Friends of Pettersen Plaza; Brent Dahlstrom (owner); Signs & Designs 
(contractor) 
 

LOCATION: 
 

2016 College Street – Wall presenting to Pettersen Plaza 

 
PROPOSAL  
On the north-facing wall of 2016 College Street, which presents to Pettersen Plaza, the 
applicant is requesting permission to install three (3) aluminum composite panels to be secured 
to aluminum standoffs which would be mounted directly to the brick of the wall. Each panel 
would be 3.5 feet tall by 8 feet wide (28 square feet) and would be used to display artwork 
created by UNI students. The artwork would be chosen through competition hosted by the UNI 
Art Department and UNI Public Art Incubator. It is anticipated that artwork will be chosen and 
changed out each year. 
 
BACKGROUND 
As per the applicant, this proposal is the 
second phase of the Friends of Pettersen 
Plaza project to make the plaza a more 
inviting and attractive place for students, 
area residents, and visitors to grab lunch 
and hold small events. The first phase 
included new plantings and several picnic 
tables. Both phases were/are funded by 
private donations. 
 
To the right is an example of the scale of 
what is being proposed. Each panel will be 
28 square feet and the height to the bottom 

271

Item 27.



of each will be 9 feet. The panels will not be used for advertising, but only for the display of 
artwork. 
 
In terms of maintaining the panels, that will be the responsibility of the Friends’ organization and 
the Public Art Incubator (PAI). Joe Barber, Signs and Designs (a licensed sign contractor) will 
be installing the framework for the mural project which will include interchangeable aluminum 
composite boards upon which the artwork will be printed and displayed. Dan Perry, PAI 
Coordinator, will coordinate the competition within the UNI Art Department/PAI and winning 
artwork will be on display for at least one year. 
 
ANALYSIS 
For murals, the College Hill Neighborhood Overlay District guidelines require “review by the 
Planning and Zoning Commission and approval by the City Council for the purpose of 
considering scale, context, coloration, and appropriateness of the proposal in relation to nearby 
facades and also in relation to the prevailing character of the commercial district.” The following 
is a short analysis of each consideration. 
 

Scale: 
 The proposed artwork is located on the side wall of a commercial building with large, 
blank walls, creating the perfect backdrop for wall art.  With a total sign area of 84 square 
feet, and a wall area in excess of 1500 square feet, the cumulative scale of all three 
panels is well-proportioned to the space.  
 
Context: 
Pettersen Plaza is two and a half blocks away from the UNI Campus and College Hill is 
where a majority of students live. The display of artwork of UNI students in College Hill’s 
Pettersen Plaza appears to be an appropriate interface between the work of students at 
the University and the community. 
 
Coloration: 
There is no specific artwork intended to be reviewed by the City and thus no coloration to 
consider at this time. Part of this request is for approval to allow the art competition at 
UNI to determine the art to be displayed. The request is for approval of a changing art 
exhibit in this location, so the applicants will not have to seek approval from the City each 
time art is chosen and changed out. 
 
Appropriateness of the proposal: 
In relation to nearby facades and the prevailing character of the commercial district, the 
proposed panels, and the artwork they display are likely welcome additions to the 
neighborhood character. No single piece of art is intended to be up indefinitely with the 
artwork refreshed annually. This is certain to add more character and culture to the 
College Hill Neighborhood. 

 
 
TECHNICAL COMMENTS 
The primary concern of Staff has been to ensure the durability of the installation. The artwork 
will be installed by a licensed sign contractor utilizing generally accepted methods for affixing 
hardware to the side of a building. The murals will not be lighted. Overall, the project appears to 
be a nice enhancement to a public space, which the City has otherwise been working to update 
in conjunction with Friends of Pettersen Plaza and the College Hill Partnership. The artwork will 

272

Item 27.



be digitally printed on aluminum composite and will be north facing. The amount of sun damage 
and fading should be minimal, and the quality of the images should hold up well in the year that 
they are on display. 
 
The applicant obtained signed permission from the owner of 2016 College College Street to 
install the panels. If the City Council approves this request, a permit will be issued for installation 
of the panels. 
 
Notice of this application was sent to neighbors on September 1 2023. 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
The Planning and Zoning Commission, with a vote of 8 ayes and 0 nays, recommends approval 
of Case #DR23-002, a design review application for installing panels for changeable artwork on 
the north side of the building at 2016 College Street. 
 
PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION 

Discussion/Vote 
9/13/2021 

The first item of business was a College Hill Neighborhood Design Review 
for artwork at Pettersen Plaza. Chair Lynch introduced the item and Mr. Sevy 
provided background information. He explained that the applicant is 
requesting permission to install three aluminum composite panels to be 
secured to aluminum standoffs on the north facing wall of 2016 College 
Street (Pettersen Plaza). It would be used to display artwork created by UNI 
students that will be chosen by an annual competition hosted by the UNI Art 
Department and the UNI Public Art Incubator. He showed an example of 
what could be displayed for illustration purposes. He noted that the proposed 
panels and artwork are likely be welcome additions to the neighborhood 
character. Staff recommends approval of installing the panels.  
 
Mr. Hartley stated that he feels it will be a nice addition. Ms. Moser agreed. 
 
Mr. Hartley made a motion to approve the item. Ms. Moser seconded the 
motion. The motion was approved unanimously with 8 ayes (Alberhasky, 
Crisman, Hartley, Larson, Leeper, Lynch, Moser and Stalnaker), and 0 nays. 

  
Attachments:    

Letters of Intent 
PDF Image of Proposal 

273

Item 27.



274

Item 27.



275

Item 27.



276

Item 27.



277

Item 27.



278

Item 27.



DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-273-8600 
Fax: 319-273-8610 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 

MEMORANDUM 
Planning & Community Services Division 

  

   

 

 

 
 
 

 TO: Honorable Mayor Robert M. Green and City Council  

 FROM: Chris Sevy, City Planner I 

 DATE: September 5, 2023 

 SUBJECT: Rental to Single Family Owner Conversion Incentive Program:  
  1310 Iowa Street 
 
The Rental to Single Family Owner Conversion Incentive Program was adopted by City 
Council on December 21, 2015.  The program offers a Forgivable Loan of up to $10,000 for 
exterior improvements to a residential rental property being purchased and converted to a 
single-family owner-occupied residence.  The goal is to improve and positively impact 
neighborhood character and encourage private improvements to rental properties converting to 
owner-occupied. The concept of the Rental to Single Family Owner Conversion Incentive 
Program was developed initially through the City established Rental Task Force. 
 
Amy Perez purchased the property at 1310 Iowa Street in March 2023 and has applied to be 
considered for the Rental to Single Family Owner Conversion Incentive Program. Attached are 
supplemental materials as required for review. The owner reached out to staff prior to 
purchase of the property to inquire about the program and begin the process of applying. 
Funding for the program at the time was in question, but staff has continued contact as the 
property meets the requirements for the program. It has been a rental for at least the last three 
years (since 2009), is in the R-2 zoning district, falls within the program’s geographical 
boundaries, and is in a neighborhood with less than 75% rentals. However, the actual block 
where 1310 Iowa sits exceeds that figure. 
 
After several years as a tenant, Amy Perez is happy to be able to finally afford a house near 
family in Cedar Falls where she can also have space to watch her nieces and nephews. This is 
especially meaningful when considering life challenges noted in her letter of intent (included as 
an attachment). One big maintenance item that she is proposing with this application is a re-
roof of the house which appears to be very necessary as per inspections performed. Other 
exterior items were also identified in the home inspection at the time of purchase which City 
Staff recommended to be part of the work that will be performed. These include repair and 
replacement of rotted wood (posts and decking) on the wrap-around porch. Also, the exterior 
window framing is to be scraped and refinished. The total of bids for the re-roof and the 
exterior repairs comes to $12,618.64. This is as per estimates from Aesthetic Elements 
($9,452.43 for re-roof) and Cedar Valley Handyman, LLC ($3,166.21 for other repairs). The 
quotes are also attached to the packet for reference. The proposed improvements have been 
verified by the city’s building inspector as necessary improvements. 
 

279

Item 28.



City staff notes that the proposed exterior improvements must be finished within a year 
timeframe from the date when the first payment for this forgivable loan program is provided by 
the City. Staff also notes that the applicant will have to pull the required building permits for the 
proposed work, to ensure compliance with city code. For more reference, the applicant has 
provided existing pictures of the problem areas which suggest that these improvements will 
enhance living conditions and improve the character of the neighborhood.  
 
If the application is approved, the City will be funding $8,000 for this project and the applicant 
will make their own investment of just over $4,600 which align well with the intent of this grant 
program. Normally, close to a 1:1 match is expected, and this is being followed for the re-roof 
which was the only improvement initially proposed. The additional work beyond the reroof is 
recommended by City Staff to spur deterioration of the wrap-around porch and maintain the 
long-term function of the windows. Staff is proposing that the City cover the difference for the 
repair items that the applicant did not initially propose and which they are unable to afford 
otherwise. 
 
The Community Development Department recommends adopting a resolution approving this 
property for a forgivable loan of up to $8,000 with the placement of a lien on the property for 
which 20% will be forgiven each year for five years with prorated payback if sold before the 
end of five years. Half of the forgivable loan will be paid upon City Council approval with the 
balance paid upon completion of the improvements, inspections by the City of the 
improvements, and verification of the actual costs of the improvements. 
 
If you have any questions, please contact the Community Development Department. 
 
Xc:  Stephanie Sheetz, Community Development Director 
       Karen Howard, Planning & Community Services Manager 
 
Attachments: Forgivable Loan Agreement and Accompanying Exhibits 
  Applicant’s Letter of Intent 
  Application 
  Project Cost Estimates 
  Pictures of Exterior 
   

280

Item 28.



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
This instrument was drafted by:  Chris Sevy, Community Development Department, 
City of Cedar Falls, 220 Clay Street, Cedar Falls, IA  50613, Phone:  319-268-5185. 

 
 

FORGIVABLE LOAN AGREEMENT 
 

RENTAL TO OWNER CONVERSION PROGRAM 
 

Account No. 101-2245-44-89.79                Amount funded $ 8,000.00. 
 
Owner Name: Amy Perez (Primary), Susan Hoffert (Co-owner) Date: 09-25-2023 
 
Address of Property: 1310 Iowa Street 
 
Legal Description of Property: LOT NO. 426 IN S. A. BISHOP’S REPLAT OF A PART OF 
PACIFIC ADDITION, CEDAR FALLS, BLACK HAWK COUNTY, IOWA.  
 
WHEREAS, the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa (the “City”), provides forgivable loans to individuals for 
the purpose of funding qualified improvements to a qualifying property converted from rental to 
owner-occupied under the rules of the City’s Rental to Owner Conversion Program; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City has determined that the above-named owner (“Owner”) has proposed to 
construct qualified improvements to the property described above (“Property”) under the City’s 
Rental to Owner Conversion Program (“Program”), thereby qualifying for a forgivable loan; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City requires that the Owner agree to certain conditions for receipt of the 
forgivable loan and that such conditions be reduced to writing; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City also requires that the property benefited by the forgivable loan be subject 
to encumbrance to secure repayment of the loan in the event that the loan is not forgiven. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, IT IS AGREED AS FOLLOWS:    
 
       1.  Recitals, Exhibits Incorporated.  The foregoing recitals and identifying information above 
as well as Exhibits attached are hereby made part of this Agreement by this reference as if fully 
set forth herein. 
 
       2.  Payment by City.  The City agrees to pay to Owner within Twenty (20) days of approval 
of this Agreement by the City Council of the City, 50% of the amount of the approved 
improvements contained in the estimate attached hereto as Exhibit A (“Estimate”), as reflected 
in the Amount stated above, up to a maximum of $4,000.00.  The City further agrees to pay to 
Owner the remainder of the Amount stated above upon completion of the work covered by the 
Estimate. up to a maximum of an additional $4,000.00. As a condition of the second payment 
called for herein, Owner agrees to provide to the City in advance of such second payment, proof 
deemed sufficient by the City that Owner has paid in full the contractor performing the work 
under the Estimate and that the work has been completed according to City requirements, as 
applicable.  The City agrees to make such second payment within Twenty (20) days of receipt of 
sufficient proof of payment by Owner and receipt of proof of recording of the mortgage identified 281

Item 28.



in Paragraph 8 below.  The maximum amount the City shall pay to Owner under the Program is 
$8,000.00, regardless of the total cost of qualified improvements.  If the work covered by the 
Estimate is not completed on a timely basis, Owner shall repay the City in full for the City’s initial 
50% payment within Twenty (20) days of demand therefore by the City. “Timely” shall mean that 
the improvements will be completed within one year from the date the initial payment is made to 
the Owner, unless the City agrees to extend this time period upon written request of the 
applicant; said request stating the reason the extension is needed.    
 
       3.  Payment by City is a Loan.  Owner agrees that payment by the City under the Program 
is a loan, and Owner further agrees that Owner is solely responsible for repayment to the City, if 
required, to the extent called for in this Agreement. 
 
       4.  Interest Free Loan.  The forgivable loan described in this Agreement shall not bear 
interest.   
 
       5.  Forgivable Loan; Term of Agreement.  The forgivable loan described in this Agreement 
shall be forgiven in its entirety if Owner remains in ownership of the Property and occupies the 
Property as the Owner’s principal residence throughout the Term of Agreement.  The “Term of 
Agreement” is defined for purposes of this Agreement as beginning on the date of final 
disbursement of City funds under the Program, hereinafter referred to as the “Commencement 
Date,” and ending on the last day of the 60th month thereafter.  
 
       6.  Sale or Transfer of Property.  If, during the Term of Agreement, the Owner sells or 
transfers the Property, whether voluntarily or involuntarily, or does not occupy the Property as 
Owner, then the Owner shall repay the loan according to the schedule set forth in Paragraph 7 
below.  Notwithstanding the above, if sale or transfer or end of occupancy by Owner of the 
Property occurs as a result of the death or serious illness of the Owner, or damage to or 
destruction of the Property through no fault of the Owner that makes the Property uninhabitable, 
repayment of the forgivable loan herein shall not be required.    
 
       7.  Loan Repayment Schedule.  If the Property is sold or transferred or is no longer 
occupied by Owner during the Term of Agreement (“Repayment Event”), the loan herein shall 
be repaid within Twenty (20) days of demand therefore by the City, according to the following 
schedule: 
 
            a.  If a Repayment Event occurs within twelve (12) months of the Commencement Date 
of the Term of Agreement, one hundred (100) percent of the loan amount shall be due and 
payable to the City; 
 
            b. If a Repayment Event occurs between the 13th and 24th month after the 
Commencement Date of the Term of Agreement, Eighty (80) percent of the loan shall be due and 
payable to the City; 
 
           c. If a Repayment Event occurs between the 25th and 36th month after the Commencement 
Date of the Term of Agreement, Sixty (60) percent of the amount of the loan shall be due and 
payable to the City; 
 
           d.  If a Repayment Event occurs between the 37th month and 48th month after the 
Commencement Date of the Term of Agreement, Forty (40) percent of the loan amount shall be 
due and payable to the City; 
 
           e. If a Repayment Event occurs Between the 49th and 60th month after the Commencement 
Date of the Term of Agreement, including any extensions to the Term of Agreement, Twenty (20) 
percent of the loan amount shall be due and payable to the City. 
 

282

Item 28.



           f.  If no Repayment Event occurs during the Term of Agreement, the loan herein shall not 
be required to be repaid and shall be considered forgiven as of the end of the Term of Agreement. 
 
       8.  Mortgage.  Owner agrees to execute contemporaneously herewith a mortgage in the form 
attached hereto as Exhibit B as collateral for the forgivable loan herein.  Such mortgage shall be 
recorded with the Agreement prior to disbursement of the second payment called for in Paragraph 
2 above.  
 
       9.  Loan May Not Exceed Equity in Property.  Owner hereby certifies and represents that the 
amount of the loan stated above does not exceed the difference between the combined unpaid 
balance of all purchase money loans on the Property and the fair market value of the Property 
after approved improvements are completed. 
 
     10.  Increase in Estimate.  Owner assumes and accepts the risk of any increase in the cost of 
the Estimate, and the City shall not increase the forgivable loan amount stated herein, regardless 
of the amount of increase. 
 
     11.  No Contract with Contractor; No Third-Party Beneficiary.  The City shall not be a party to 
any agreement or arrangement the Owner may have with the person or entity performing the work 
under the Estimate, and the City and Owner agree that no person or entity not a party to this 
Agreement shall be deemed a beneficiary of this Agreement.  Further, this Agreement shall not 
serve as the basis for any claim or demand by any person or entity not a party to this Agreement. 
 
     12.  No Joint Venture.  Neither this Agreement nor the work to be performed under the Program 
shall be considered a joint venture between the City and the Owner, and no employer-employee, 
partnership or any other relationship other than debtor-creditor is intended between or among the 
parties.  
 
     13.  Compliance with Laws.  Owner agrees that any work performed under the Program shall 
be done in conformance with all federal and state laws and regulations, and in conformance with 
the City’s ordinances, rules, regulations, and standards. 
 
     14.  Permits; Inspection.  Owner shall be responsible for securing all necessary permits for the 
work to be performed under the Program, at Owner’s cost.  The work to be performed under the 
program is subject to inspection by the City at its sole discretion. 
 
     15.  Mechanics Liens.  Owner agrees to secure release of any mechanic’s liens filed of record 
for the work performed under the Program, prior to the second payment by the City called for 
herein.               
 
     16.  Taxes.  Owner shall be solely responsible for federal and/or state income taxes payable 
as a result of any loan amounts that are forgiven. 
 
     17.  No Assignment.  This Agreement may not be assigned without the prior written consent 
of the City.  Any approved assignment must include an assumption by assignee of all duties and 
obligations under this Agreement. 
 
     18.  Subordination.  The forgivable loan herein shall be subject to and subordinated to any 
purchase money loan for the Property.  A home equity loan and a home equity line of credit are 
not considered to be a purchase money loan for purposes of this Agreement.  
 
     19.  Amendment.  This Agreement may not be modified or amended except in writing and 
signed by the parties hereto. 
 
     20.  Governing Body:  This Agreement shall not be effective unless and until approved by the 
City Council of the City. 283

Item 28.



     21.  Successors and Assigns.  This Agreement is binding upon the approved assigns and 
successors of the parties. 
 
     22.  Integration.  This Agreement constitutes the entire understanding of the parties, and 
supersedes any previous understandings between the parties with respect to the matters 
addressed herein. 
 
     23.  Governing Law.  The construction and performance of this Agreement shall be governed 
by the laws of the State of Iowa, regardless of choice of law principles. 
 
     24.  Notice.  Any notices given pursuant to this Agreement shall be in writing and shall either 
be personally delivered, emailed, or sent by ordinary mail to: 
 
      25.  Invalid Provisions.  If any provision of this Agreement is held to be illegal, invalid or 
unenforceable under present or future laws, then such provision shall be fully severable and this 
Agreement shall be construed and enforced as if such illegal, invalid or unenforceable provision 
had never comprised a part of this Agreement, and the remaining provisions shall remain in full 
force and effect.   
 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have caused this Agreement to be executed on the 
day and year above first written. 
 
   

   

Amy Perez  Susan Hoffert 
OWNER  OWNER 
   

 
 
STATE OF IOWA  ) 
    ) ss: 
COUNTY OF BLACK HAWK ) 
 
This instrument was acknowledged before me on the ___ day of ________, 2023, 
by_______________________________. 
 
 
      _________________________________________ 
      Notary Public in and for the State of Iowa 

 

284

Item 28.



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Prepared by and return to: City of Cedar Falls, Community Development Department, 

220 Clay Street, Cedar Falls, IA  50613, Phone:  319-268-5185. 
 

TOTAL PROJECT COST AND FORGIVABLE LOAN AWARDED 

 
RENTAL TO OWNER CONVERSION PROGRAM 

 
(Exhibit A) 

 
 

Proposed Exterior Improvements: 
 
Tear off all existing roofing materials and install new - $9,452.43 
 
Replacing porch posts and decking, and repair windows - $3,166.21 
 
Total Project Cost - $12,618.64 
 
 
 
Forgivable Loan Awarded from the City: $8,000 
 
Staff notes that if the submitted application for proposed exterior improvement of $12,618.64 is 
approved, then the city will be funding $8,000 for this project since the applicant is also making 
their own investment of just over $4,600, which will align well with the intent of this forgivable 
loan incentive program.  

 

285

Item 28.



                                                                

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Prepared by and return to:  City of Cedar Falls, Community Development Department, 220 Clay St., Cedar Falls, IA (319) 273-8600 

 

 

 REAL ESTATE MORTGAGE 
 

CITY OF CEDAR FALLS 
 

RENTAL TO OWNER CONVERSION PROGRAM  
 

(Exhibit B) 
 

1. GRANT OF MORTGAGE AND SECURITY INTEREST For valuable consideration, on 
________, 20__, Amy Perez and Susan Hoffert, (the “Mortgagor”), hereby grant, mortgage 
and convey to the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa (the “Mortgagee”) a security interest in all of 
the following described property:  

 
a. LAND AND BUILDINGS situated in Black Hawk County, Iowa (the “Land”); at 1310 

Iowa Street, Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613, and legally described as:  
 

LOT NO. 426 IN S. A. BISHOP’S REPLAT OF A PART OF PACIFIC 

ADDITION, CEDAR FALLS, BLACK HAWK COUNTY, IOWA 

 
and all buildings, structures and improvements now standing or at any time hereafter 
constructed or placed upon the Land (the “Buildings”), including all hereditaments, 
easements, appurtenances, riparian rights, mineral rights, water rights, rights in and to 
the lands lying in streets, alleys and roads adjoining the land, estates and other rights 
and interests now or hereafter belonging to or in any way pertaining to the Land (the 
Land, Buildings and all of such rights and interests are collectively referred to as the 
(“Mortgaged Property”). 

 
b. PERSONAL PROPERTY. All fixtures and other personal property integrally belonging 

to, or hereafter becoming an integral part of the Land or Buildings, whether attached or 
detached, including but not limited to, light fixtures, shades, rods, blinds, Venetian 
blinds, awnings, storm windows, screens, linoleum, water softeners, automatic heating 
and air-conditioning equipment and all proceeds, products, increase, issue, accessions, 
attachments, accessories, parts, additions, repairs. Replacements and substitutes of, 
to, and for the foregoing the (“Personal Property”). 
 

c. REVENUES AND INCOME. All rents, issues, profits, leases, condemnation awards and 
insurance proceeds now or hereafter arising from the ownership, occupancy or use of 
the Land, Buildings and Personal Property, or any part thereof (the “Revenues and 
Income”). 

 
TO HAVE AND TO HOLD the Land, Buildings, Personal Property and Revenues 

and Income (collectively called “Mortgaged Property”), together with all privileges, 
hereditament thereunto now or hereafter belonging, or in any way appertaining and the 
products and proceeds thereof, unto Mortgagee, its successors and assigns.  

 
2. OBLIGATIONS This Mortgage secures the following (hereinafter collectively referred to as 

the “Obligations”):  
 
a. The payment of the loan made by Mortgagee to Amy Perez and Susan Hoffert 

evidenced by a Forgivable Loan Agreement (the “Agreement”) dated _________, 
20___ in the principal amount of $8,000 (Eight Thousand Dollars) (the “Loan”); and  
 

b.  All other obligations of Mortgagors to Mortgagee, now existing or hereafter arising, 
whether direct or indirect, contingent or absolute and whether as maker or surety, 

286

Item 28.



including, but not limited to, future advances and amounts advanced and expenses 
incurred by Mortgagee pursuant to this Mortgage. 
  

c. Term of Agreement. The Mortgagors shall comply with the terms of the Agreement and 
this Mortgage for a term of Five (5) years from the Commencement Date as defined in 
the Agreement (the “Term of Agreement”), and if complied with, the original Loan 
amount shall be forgiven in its entirety. 
 

d. Principal Residence Requirement; Loan Recapture.  The Mortgagors shall own and 
occupy the Mortgaged Property as the Mortgagors’ principal residence.  The 
Mortgagors shall notify the Mortgagee if, prior to the end of the Term of Agreement, any 
Mortgagor sells, vacates, rents, abandons or otherwise transfers the Mortgaged 
Property, whether voluntarily or involuntarily (“Repayment Event”). 

   
The original Loan amount shall be forgiven according to the following schedule: 
 
 I.  If a Repayment Event occurs within twelve (12) months of the Commencement Date of the   

Term of Agreement, one hundred (100) percent of the loan amount shall be due and 
payable to the City; 

 
                  II.  If a Repayment Event occurs between the 13th and 24th month after the Commencement 

Date of the Term of Agreement, Eighty (80) percent of the loan shall be due and payable to 

the City; 

                   III. If a Repayment Event occurs between the 25th and 36th month after the Commencement 

Date of the Term of Agreement, Sixty (60) percent of the amount of the loan shall be due 

and payable to the City; 

                  IV. If a Repayment Event occurs between the 37th month and 48th month after the 

Commencement Date of the Term of Agreement, Forty (40) percent of the loan amount 

shall be due and payable to the City; 

                   V. If a Repayment Event occurs Between the 49th and 60th month after the Commencement 

Date of the Term of Agreement, including any extensions to the Term of Agreement, Twenty 

(20) percent of the loan amount shall be due and payable to the City. 

                  VI. If no Repayment Event occurs during the Term of Agreement, including any extensions 

thereof, the loan herein shall not be required to be repaid and shall be considered forgiven 

as of the end of the Term of Agreement and any extensions thereof. 

Any Loan amount not forgiven according to this schedule shall be considered the 
“Recapture Amount.”  If, during the Term of Agreement, any Repayment Event occurs, 
Mortgagors shall pay immediately to the Mortgagee the entire Recapture Amount. 

 
3. REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES OF MORTGAGORS. Mortgagors represent, 

warrant and covenant to Mortgagee that (i) Mortgagors hold clear title to the Mortgaged 
Property and title in fee simple in the Land; (ii) Mortgagors have the right, power and 
authority to execute this Mortgage and to mortgage, and grant a security interest in the 
Mortgaged Property; (iii) the Mortgaged Property is free and clear of all liens and 
encumbrances, except for real estate taxes not yet delinquent and except as otherwise 
stated in subparagraph 1a. herein; (iv) Mortgagors will warrant and defend title to the 
Mortgaged Property and the lien and priority of this Mortgage against all claims and 
demands of all persons, whether now existing or hereafter arising; and (v) all buildings and 
improvements now or hereafter located on the Land are, or will be, located entirely within 
the boundaries of the Land.  (vi) Mortgagor not acting, directly or indirectly, for or on behalf 
of any person, group, entity or nation named by any Executive Order of the United States 
Treasury Department as a terrorist, “Specially Designated National and Blocked Person” 
or any other banned or blocked person, entity, nation or transaction pursuant to any law, 
order, rule or regulation that is enforced or administered by the Office of Foreign Assets 
Control; and are not engaged in this transaction, directly or indirectly on behalf of, or 
instigating or facilitating this transaction, directly or indirectly on behalf of, any such person, 
group, entity or nation.  Mortgagor hereby agrees to defend, indemnify and hold harmless 
the other party from and against any and all claims, damages, losses, risks, liabilities and 
expenses (including attorney’s fees and costs) arising from or related to any breach of the 

287

Item 28.



foregoing certification. 
 

4. PAYMENT AND PERFORMANCE OF THE OBLIGATIONS.   Mortgagors will pay all 
amounts payable under the Obligations in accordance with the terms of the Obligations 
when and as due and will timely perform all other obligations of Mortgagors under the 
Obligations. The provisions of the Obligations are hereby incorporated by reference into 
this Mortgage as if fully set forth herein.  
 

5. TAXES.   Mortgagors shall pay each installment of all taxes and special assessments of 
every kind, now or hereafter levied against the Mortgaged Property before the same 
become delinquent, without notice or demand, and shall deliver to Mortgagee proof of such 
payment within fifteen (15) days after the date in which such tax or assessment becomes 
delinquent. 

 
6. LIENS.   Mortgagors shall not create, incur or suffer to exist any lien, encumbrance, security 

interest or charge on the Mortgaged Property or any part thereof which might or could be 
held to be equal or prior to the lien of this Mortgage, other than the lien of current real estate 
taxes and installments of special assessments with respect to which no penalty is yet 
payable. Mortgagors shall pay, when due, the claims of all persons supplying labor or 
materials to or in connection with the Mortgaged Property. 
 

7. COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS.   Mortgagors shall comply with all present and future 
statutes, laws, rules, orders, regulations and ordinances affecting the Mortgaged Property, 
any part thereof or the use thereof. 
 

8. PERMITTED CONTESTS.   Mortgagors shall not be required to (i) pay any tax, assessment 
or other charge referred to in paragraph 5 hereof, (ii) discharge or remove any lien, 
encumbrance or charge referred to in paragraph 6 hereof, or (iii) comply with any statute, 
law, rule, regulation or ordinance referred to in paragraph 7 hereof, so long as mortgagors 
shall contest, in good faith, the existence, amount or the validity thereof, the amount of 
damages caused thereby or the extent of Mortgagors' liability therefor, by appropriate 
proceedings which shall operate during the pendency thereof to prevent (A) the collection 
of, or other realization upon the tax, assessment, charge or lien, encumbrances or charge 
so contested, (B) the sale, forfeiture or loss of the Mortgaged Property or any part thereof, 
and (C) any interference with the use or occupancy of the Mortgaged Property or any part 
thereof. Mortgagors shall give prompt written notice to Mortgagee of the commencement 
of any contest referred to in this paragraph 8. 
 

9. CARE OF PROPERTY.   Mortgagors shall take good care of the Mortgaged Property; shall 
keep the Buildings and Personal Property now or later placed upon the Mortgaged Property 
in good and reasonable repair and shall not injure, destroy or remove either the Buildings 
or Personal Property during the term of this Mortgage. Mortgagors shall not make any 
material alteration to the Mortgaged Property without the prior written consent of 
Mortgagee. 
 

10. INSURANCE. 
a. RISKS TO BE INSURED.   Mortgagors, at their sole cost and expense, shall 

maintain insurance on the Buildings and other improvements now existing or 
hereafter erected on the Land and on the Personal Property included in the 
Mortgaged Property against loss by fire, extended coverage perils and such other 
hazards as Mortgagee may from time to time require, such insurance to have a 
"Replacement Cost" endorsement attached thereto, with the amount of the 
insurance at least equal to the balance of the Obligations. At Mortgagors' option, 
such policy may have a coinsurance clause of not less than 90% of replacement 
cost provided the policy contains an appropriate form of cost escalation 
endorsement. Mortgagors will at their sole cost and expense, from time to time, and 
at any time at the request of Mortgagee, provide Mortgagee with evidence 
satisfactory to Mortgagee of the replacement cost of Mortgaged Property. 
Mortgagors will maintain such other insurance as Mortgagee may reasonably 
require. 
 

b. POLICY PROVISIONS.   All insurance policies and renewals thereof maintained by 
Mortgagors pursuant to this Mortgage shall be written by an insurance carrier 
satisfactory to Mortgagee, be payable to the parties as their interest may appear, 

288

Item 28.



contain a standard or union-type loss payable clause in favor of Mortgagee, contain 
an agreement of the insurer that it will not amend, modify or cancel the policy except 
after thirty (30) days prior written notice to Mortgagee, and be reasonably 
satisfactory to Mortgagee in all other respects. 
 

c. DELIVERY OF POLICY OR CERTIFICATE.   If requested by Mortgagee, 
Mortgagors will deliver to Mortgagee original policies satisfactory to Mortgagee 
evidencing the insurance which is required under this Mortgage, and Mortgagors 
shall promptly furnish to Mortgagee all renewal notices and, upon request of 
Mortgagee, evidence of payment thereof. At least ten (10) days prior to the 
expiration date of a required policy, Mortgagors shall deliver to Mortgagee a renewal 
policy in form satisfactory to Mortgagee. 
 

d. ASSIGNMENT OF POLICY.   If the Mortgaged Property is sold at a foreclosure sale 
or if Mortgagee shall acquire title to the Mortgaged Property, Mortgagee shall have 
all of the right, title and interest of Mortgagors in and to any insurance policies 
required hereunder, and the unearned premiums thereon, and in and to the 
proceeds thereof resulting from any damage to the Mortgaged Property prior to such 
sale or acquisition. 
 

e. NOTICE OF DAMAGE OR DESTRUCTION; ADJUSTING LOSS.   If the Mortgaged 
Property or any part thereof shall be damaged or destroyed by fire or other casualty, 
Mortgagors will, within five (5) calendar days after the occurrence of such damage 
or destruction, give written notice thereof to the insurance carrier and to Mortgagee 
and will not adjust any damage or loss which is estimated by Mortgagors in good 
faith to exceed $25,000 unless Mortgagee shall have joined in or concurred with 
such adjustment; but if there has been no adjustment of any such damage or loss 
within four (4) months from the date of occurrence thereof and if an Event of Default 
shall exist at the end of such four (4) month period or at any time thereafter, 
Mortgagee may alone make proof of loss, adjust and compromise any claim under 
the policies, and appear in and prosecute any action arising from such policies. In 
connection therewith, Mortgagors do hereby irrevocably authorize, empower and 
appoint Mortgagee as attorney-in-fact for Mortgagor (which appointment is coupled 
with an interest) to do any and all of the foregoing in the name and on behalf of 
Mortgagors. 
 

f. APPLICATION OF INSURANCE PROCEEDS.   All sums paid under any insurance 
policy required by this Mortgage shall be paid to Mortgagee, which shall, at its 
option, apply the same (after first deducting therefrom Mortgagee's expenses 
incurred in collecting the same including but not limited to reasonable attorney's 
fees) to the reduction of the Obligations or to the payment of the restoration, repair, 
replacement or rebuilding of Mortgaged Property that is damaged or destroyed in 
such manner as Mortgagee shall determine and secondly to the reduction of the 
Obligations. Any application of insurance proceeds to principal of the Obligations 
shall not extend or postpone the due date of the installments payable under the 
Obligations or change the amount of such installments. 
 

g. REIMBURSEMENT OF MORTGAGEE'S EXPENSES.   Mortgagors shall promptly 
reimburse Mortgagee upon demand for all of Mortgagee's expenses incurred in 
connection with the collection of the insurance proceeds, including but not limited to 
reasonable attorney’s fees, and all such expenses shall be additional amounts 
secured by this Mortgage. 

 
11. INSPECTION.   Mortgagee, and its agents, shall have the right at all reasonable times, to 

enter upon the Mortgaged Property for the purpose of inspecting the Mortgaged Property 
or any part thereof.  Mortgagee shall, however, have no duty to make such inspection. Any 
inspection of the Mortgaged Property by Mortgagee shall be entirely for its benefit and 
Mortgagors shall in no way rely or claim reliance thereon. 
 

12. PROTECTION OF MORTGAGEE'S SECURITY.   Subject to the rights of Mortgagors 
under paragraph 8 hereof, if Mortgagors fail to perform any of the covenants and 
agreements contained in this Mortgage or if any action or proceeding is commenced which 
affects the Mortgaged Property or the interest of the Mortgagee therein, or the title thereto, 
then Mortgagee, at Mortgagee's option, may perform such covenants and agreements, 

289

Item 28.



defend against or investigate such action or proceeding, and take such other action as 
Mortgagee deems necessary to protect Mortgagee's interest. Any amounts or expenses 
disbursed or incurred by Mortgagee in good faith pursuant to this paragraph 12 with interest 
thereon at the rate of 0% per annum, shall become an Obligation of Mortgagors secured 
by this Mortgage. Such amounts advanced or disbursed by Mortgagee hereunder shall be 
immediately due and payable by Mortgagors unless Mortgagors and Mortgagee agree in 
writing to other terms of repayment. Mortgagee shall, at its option, be subrogated to the 
lien of any mortgage or other lien discharged in whole or in part by the Obligations or by 
Mortgagee under the provisions hereof, and any such subrogation rights shall be additional 
and cumulative security for this Mortgage. Nothing contained in this paragraph shall require 
Mortgagee to incur any expense or do any act hereunder, and Mortgagee shall not be liable 
to Mortgagors for any damage or claims arising out of action taken by Mortgagee pursuant 
to this paragraph. 
 

13. CONDEMNATION.   Mortgagors shall give Mortgagee prompt notice of any action, actual 
or threatened, in condemnation or eminent domain and hereby assign, transfer and set 
over to Mortgagee the entire proceeds of any award or claim for damages for all or any 
part of the Mortgaged Property taken or damaged under the power of eminent domain or 
condemnation. Mortgagee is hereby authorized to intervene in any such action in the 
names of Mortgagors, to compromise and settle any such action or claim, and to collect 
and receive from the condemning authorities and give proper receipts and acquittances for 
such proceeds. Any expenses incurred by Mortgagee in intervening in such action or 
compromising and settling such action or claim, or collecting such proceeds shall be 
reimbursed to Mortgagee first out of the proceeds. The remaining proceeds or any part 
thereof shall be applied to reduction of that portion of the Obligations then most remotely 
to be paid, whether due or not, or to the restoration or repair of the Mortgaged Property, 
the choice of application to be solely at the discretion of Mortgagee. 
 

14. FIXTURE FILING.   From the date of its recording, this Mortgage shall be effective as a 
financing statement filed as a fixture filing with respect to the Personal Property and for this 
purpose the name and address of the debtor is the name and address of Mortgagors as 
set forth in paragraph 20 herein and the name and address of the secured party is the 
name and address of the Mortgagee as set forth in paragraph 20 herein. 
 

15. EVENTS OF DEFAULT.   Each of the following occurrences shall constitute an event of 
default hereunder ("Event of Default"): 

a. Mortgagors shall default in the due observance or performance of or breach its 
agreement contained in paragraph 4 hereof or shall default in the due observance 
or performance of or breach any other covenant, condition or agreement on its part 
to be observed or performed pursuant to the terms of this Mortgage. 
 

b. Mortgagors shall make an assignment for the benefits of its creditors, or a petition 
shall be filed by or against Mortgagors under the United States Bankruptcy Code or 
Mortgagors shall seek or consent to or acquiesce in the appointment of any trustee, 
receiver or liquidator of a material part of its properties or of the Mortgaged Property 
or shall not, within thirty (30) days after the appointment of a trustee, receiver or 
liquidator of any material part of its properties or of the Mortgaged Property, have 
such appointment vacated. 
 

c. A judgment, writ or warrant of attachment or execution, or similar process shall be 
entered and become a lien on or be issued or levied against the Mortgaged Property 
or any part thereof which is not released, vacated or fully bonded within thirty (30) 
days after its entry, issue or levy. 
 

d. An event of default, however defined, shall occur under any other mortgage, 
assignment or other security document constituting a lien on the Mortgaged 
Property or any part thereof. 
 

e. The Mortgagors fails to occupy the Mortgaged Property as their “principal and 
primary residence or domicile”. 
 

f. The Mortgagors sell, vacate, rent, abandon or otherwise transfer the Mortgaged 
Property, whether voluntarily or involuntarily. 
 

290

Item 28.



g. The Mortgagors fail to pay all taxes or assessments when due, to pay required 
insurance when due, or to maintain the Mortgaged Property in good condition. 
 

h. The Mortgagors fail to perform any other material term or condition of this 
Mortgage or the Agreement. 
 

16. ACCELERATION; FORECLOSURE.   Upon the occurrence of any Event of Default and 
at any time thereafter while such Event of Default exists, Mortgagee may, at its option, after 
such notice as may be required by law, exercise one or more of the following rights and 
remedies (and any other rights and remedies available to it): 
 

a. Mortgagee may declare immediately due and payable all Obligations secured by 
this Mortgage, and the same shall thereupon be immediately due and payable, 
without further notice or demand. 
 

b. Mortgagee shall have and may exercise with respect to the Personal Property, all 
the rights and remedies accorded upon default to a secured party under the Iowa 
Uniform Commercial Code.  If notice to Mortgagors of intended disposition of such 
property is required by law in a particular instance, such notice shall be deemed 
commercially reasonable if given to Mortgagors at least ten (10) days prior to the 
date of intended disposition. 
 

c. Mortgagee may (and is hereby authorized and empowered to) foreclose this 
Mortgage in accordance with the law of the State of Iowa, and at any time after the 
commencement of an action in foreclosure, or during the period of redemption, the 
court having jurisdiction of the case shall at the request of Mortgagee appoint a 
receiver to take immediate possession of the Mortgaged Property and of the 
Revenues and Income accruing therefrom, and to rent or cultivate the same as he 
may deem best for the interest of all parties concerned, and such receiver shall be 
liable to account to Mortgagors only for the net profits, after application of rents, 
issues and profits upon the costs and expenses of the receivership and foreclosure 
and upon the Obligations. 

 
17. REDEMPTION.   It is agreed that if this Mortgage covers less than ten (10) acres of land, 

and in the event of the foreclosure of this Mortgage and sale of the property by sheriff's 
sale in such foreclosure proceedings, the time of one year for redemption from said sale 
provided by the statues of the State of Iowa shall be reduced to six (6) months or reduced 
to three (3) months if the property is not used for an agricultural purpose as defined in 
section 535.13. provided in all cases under this section the Mortgagee, in such action files 
an election to waive any deficiency judgment against Mortgagors which may arise out of 
the foreclosure proceedings; all to be consistent with the provisions of Chapter 628 of the 
Iowa Code. If the redemption period is so reduced, for the first two (2) months after sale 
such right of redemption shall be exclusive to the Mortgagor, and the time periods in 
Sections 628.5, 628.15 and 628.16 of the Iowa Code shall be reduced to three (3) months. 
 
It is further agreed that the period of redemption after a foreclosure of this Mortgage shall 
be reduced to sixty (60) days if all of the three following contingencies develop: (1) The 
real estate is less than ten (10) acres in size; (2) the Court finds affirmatively that the said 
real estate has been abandoned by the owners and those persons personally liable under 
this Mortgage at the time of such foreclosure; and (3) Mortgagee in such action files an 
election to waive any deficiency judgment against Mortgagors or their successors in 
interest in such action. If the redemption period is so reduced, Mortgagors or their 
successors in interest or the owner shall have the exclusive right to redeem for the first 
thirty (30) days after such sale, and the time provided for redemption by creditors as 
provided in Sections 628.5, 628.15 and 628.16 of the Iowa Code shall be reduced to forty 
(40) days. Entry of appearance by pleading or docket entry by or on behalf of Mortgagors 
shall be a presumption that the property is not abandoned. Any such redemption period 
shall be consistent with all of the provisions of Chapter 628 of the Iowa Code. This 
paragraph shall not be construed to limit or otherwise affect any other redemption 
provisions contained in Chapter 628 of the Iowa Code. 
 

18. ATTORNEYS' FEES.   Mortgagors shall pay on demand all costs and expenses incurred 
by Mortgagee in enforcing or protecting its rights and remedies hereunder, including, but 
not limited to, reasonable attorneys' fees and legal expenses. 

291

Item 28.



 
19. FORBEARANCE NOT A WAIVER, RIGHTS AND REMEDIES CUMULATIVE.   No delay 

by Mortgagee in exercising any right or remedy provided herein or otherwise afforded by 
law or equity shall be deemed a waiver of or preclude the exercise of such right or remedy, 
and no waiver by Mortgagee of any particular provisions of this Mortgage shall be deemed 
effective unless in writing signed by Mortgagee. All such rights and remedies provided for 
herein or which Mortgagee or the holder of the Obligations may have otherwise, at law or 
in equity, shall be distinct, separate and cumulative and may be exercised concurrently, 
independently or successively in any order whatsoever, and as often as the occasion 
therefor arises. 
 

20. NOTICES.   All notices required to be given hereunder shall be in writing and deemed given 
when personally delivered or deposited in the United States mail, postage prepaid, sent 
certified or registered, addressed as follows: 

 
a. If to Mortgagors, to: Amy Perez and Susan Hoffert, 1310 Iowa Street, Cedar Falls, 

IA 50613 
 

b. If to Mortgagee, to: City of Cedar Falls, Community Development Department 220 
Clay Street, Cedar Falls, Iowa  50613 

 
Or to such other address or person as hereafter designated in writing by the applicable 
party in the manner provided in this paragraph for the giving of notices. 
 

21. SEVERABILITY.   In the event any portion of this Mortgage shall, for any reason, be held 
to be invalid, illegal or unenforceable in whole or in part, the remaining provisions shall not 
be affected thereby and shall continue to be valid and enforceable and if, for any reason, 
a court finds that any provision of this Mortgage is invalid, illegal, or unenforceable as 
written, but that by limiting such provision it would become valid, legal and enforceable 
then such provision shall be deemed to be written, construed and enforced as so limited. 
 

22. FURTHER ASSURANCES.   At any time and from time to time until payment in full of the 
Obligations, Mortgagors will, at the request of Mortgagee, promptly execute and deliver to 
Mortgagee such additional instruments as may be reasonably required to further evidence 
the lien of this Mortgage and to further protect the security interest of Mortgagee with 
respect to the Mortgaged Property, including, but not limited to, additional security 
agreements, financing statements and continuation statements. Any expenses incurred by 
Mortgagee in connection with the recordation of any such instruments shall become 
additional Obligations of Mortgagors secured by this Mortgage. Such amounts shall be 
immediately due and payable by Mortgagors to Mortgagee. 
 

23. SUCCESSORS AND ASSIGNS BOUND; NUMBER; GENDER; AGENTS; CAPTIONS.   
The rights, covenants and agreements contained herein shall be binding upon and inure 
to the benefit of the respective legal representatives, successors and assigns of the parties. 
Words and phrases contained herein, including acknowledgment hereof, shall be 
construed as in the singular or plural number, and as masculine, feminine or neuter gender 
according to the contexts. The captions and headings of the paragraphs of this Mortgage 
are for convenience only and are not to be used to interpret or define the provisions hereof. 
 

24. GOVERNING LAW.   This Mortgage shall be governed by and construed in accordance 
with the laws of the State of Iowa and any applicable federal laws and regulations. 
 

25. RELEASE OF RIGHTS OF DOWER, HOMESTEAD AND DISTRIBUTIVE SHARE.   Each 
of the undersigned hereby relinquishes all rights of dower, homestead and distributive 
share in and to the Mortgaged Property and waives all rights of exemption as to any of the 
Mortgaged Property. 
 

26. ACKNOWLEDGMENT OF RECEIPT OF COPIES OF DEBT INSTRUMENT.   Mortgagors 
hereby acknowledge the receipt of a copy of this Mortgage together with a copy of each 
promissory note secured hereby. 

Dated:  _________, 20__. 

292

Item 28.



 
____________________________________ 
Amy Perez, Mortgagor 
 
 
____________________________________ 
Susan Hoffert, Mortgagor 

 
I UNDERSTAND THAT HOMESTEAD PROPERTY IS IN MANY CASES PROTECTED FROM 
THE CLAIMS OF CREDITORS AND EXEMPT FROM JUDICIAL SALE; AND THAT BY 
SIGNING THIS MORTGAGE, I VOLUNTARILY GIVE UP MY RIGHT TO THIS PROTECTION 
FOR THIS MORTGAGED PROPERTY WITH RESPECT TO CLAIMS BASED UPON THIS 
MORTGAGE. 
 

Dated:  _________, 20_  
 

____________________________________ 
Amy Perez, Mortgagor 
 
 
____________________________________ 
Susan Hoffert, Mortgagor 
 
 

 
 
STATE OF IOWA, COUNTY OF _BLACK HAWK______________ 
 
 
This record was acknowledged before me on ___________, 20_____, by 
 

_________________________________ 
Print Name 

 
_________________________________ 
Signature of Notary Public 

 
 
  

293

Item 28.



294

Item 28.



295

Item 28.



296

Item 28.



297

Item 28.



 

 

298

Item 28.



 

 

299

Item 28.



 

 

300

Item 28.



 

 

 

 

301

Item 28.



 

 

302

Item 28.



DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-273-8600 
Fax: 319-273-8610 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 

MEMORANDUM 
Planning & Community Services Division 

  

   

 

 

 
 
 

 TO: Honorable Mayor Robert M. Green and City Council  

 FROM: Jaydevsinh Atodaria (JD), AICP, City Planner I 

 DATE: October 2, 2023 

 SUBJECT: Rental to Single Family Owner Conversion Incentive Program:  
  1205 W 7th Street 
 
The Rental to Single Family Owner Conversion Incentive Program was adopted by City 
Council on December 21, 2015.  The program offers a Forgivable Loan of up to $10,000 for 
exterior improvements to a residential rental property being purchased and converted to a 
single-family owner-occupied residence.  The goal is to improve and positively impact 
neighborhood character and encourage private improvements to rental properties converting to 
owner-occupied. The concept of the Rental to Single Family Owner Conversion Incentive 
Program was developed initially through the City established Rental Task Force. 
 
Wesley Gitta purchased the property at 1205 W 7th Street in November 2022. The owner has 
applied to be considered for the Rental to Single Family Owner Conversion Incentive Program 
and has attached supplemental materials as required for review. The owner reached out to 
staff prior purchase of the property last year for this forgivable loan incentive, but because of 
the unavailability of funds, staff asked them to reach out this year. The property meets the 
requirements for the program: has been a rental for at least the last three years (since 2015), 
is in the R-2 zoning district, falls within the program’s geographical boundaries, and is in a 
block with less than 75% rentals.  
 
After purchasing the very first house, Wesley Gitta is excited about living in Cedar Falls and is 
planning to make valuable exterior improvements to the property. The applicant is planning to 
tear down the detached garage (untouched for several years) and replace it with a new 
detached garage similar size. In addition, the applicant is also proposing to remove the 
deteriorated driveway and replace it with a new pavement as well. In total, the applicant is 
proposing total improvements of $21,070 as per the submitted estimates by S&H Garages, 
LLC. The quotes are also attached to the packet for reference. The proposed exterior 
improvement of removing and replacing the driveway and building a new detached garage 
replacing the old ones have been verified by the city’s building inspector. During the 
inspection, it was noted that the property has backyard poultry, which doesn’t have a permit. 
 
City staff notes that the applicant pulls the required poultry permit to be code compliant and 
notes that the proposed exterior improvements be finished within a year of timeframe from the 
date when the first payment for this forgivable loan incentive is provided by the city. Staff also 
notes that the applicant will have to pull the required demo, land use, driveway, and building 

303

Item 29.



permit for the proposed work, to ensure its compliance with city code. For more reference, the 
applicant has provided existing pictures of the detached garage and driveway that suggest that 
these improvements are needed to enhance the living conditions and improve the character of 
the neighborhood.  
 
Staff notes that if the submitted application is approved, then the city will be funding $10,000 
for this project since the applicant is also making their own investment of just over $10,000, 
which will align well with the intent of this forgivable loan incentive program. The Community 
Development Department recommends adopting a resolution approving this property for a 
forgivable loan of up to $10,000 with the placement of a lien on the property for which 20% will 
be forgiven each year for five years with prorated payback if sold before the end of five years. 
Half of the forgivable loan will be paid upon City Council approval with the balance paid upon 
completion of the improvements, inspections by the City of the improvements, and verification 
of the actual costs of the improvements. This approval is subject to the property passing a city 
inspection. 
 
If you have any questions, please contact the Community Development Department. 
 
Xc:  Stephanie Sheetz, Community Development Director 
       Karen Howard, Planning & Community Services Manager 

304

Item 29.



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
This instrument was drafted by:  Jaydevsinh Atodaria (JD), Community Development Department, 

City of Cedar Falls, 220 Clay Street, Cedar Falls, IA  50613, Phone:  319-268-5185. 
 
 

FORGIVABLE LOAN AGREEMENT 
 

RENTAL TO OWNER CONVERSION PROGRAM 
 

Account No. 101-2245-44-89.79                Amount funded $ 10,000.00. 
 
Owner Name: Wesley Gitta (Primary), Jozsef and Cynthia Gitta (Co-owners) Date: 9-26-2023 
 
Address of Property: 1205 W. 7th Street 
 
Legal Description of Property: LONGVIEW ADDITION LOT 14 TO THE CITY OF CEDAR 
FALLS BLACK HAWK COUNTY, IOWA  
 
WHEREAS, the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa (the “City”), provides forgivable loans to individuals for 
the purpose of funding qualified improvements to a qualifying property converted from rental to 
owner-occupied under the rules of the City’s Rental to Owner Conversion Program; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City has determined that the above-named owner (“Owner”) has proposed to 
construct qualified improvements to the property described above (“Property”) under the City’s 
Rental to Owner Conversion Program (“Program”), thereby qualifying for a forgivable loan; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City requires that the Owner agree to certain conditions for receipt of the 
forgivable loan and that such conditions be reduced to writing; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City also requires that the property benefited by the forgivable loan be subject 
to encumbrance to secure repayment of the loan in the event that the loan is not forgiven. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, IT IS AGREED AS FOLLOWS:    
 
       1.  Recitals, Exhibits Incorporated.  The foregoing recitals and identifying information above 
as well as Exhibits attached are hereby made part of this Agreement by this reference as if fully 
set forth herein. 
 
       2.  Payment by City.  The City agrees to pay to Owner within Twenty (20) days of approval 
of this Agreement by the City Council of the City, 50% of the amount of the approved 
improvements contained in the estimate attached hereto as Exhibit A (“Estimate”), as reflected 
in the Amount stated above, up to a maximum of $5,000.00.  The City further agrees to pay to 
Owner the remainder of the Amount stated above upon completion of the work covered by the 
Estimate. up to a maximum of an additional $5,000.00. As a condition of the second payment 
called for herein, Owner agrees to provide to the City in advance of such second payment, proof 
deemed sufficient by the City that Owner has paid in full the contractor performing the work 
under the Estimate and that the work has been completed according to City requirements, as 
applicable.  The City agrees to make such second payment within Twenty (20) days of receipt of 
sufficient proof of payment by Owner and receipt of proof of recording of the mortgage identified 305

Item 29.



in Paragraph 8 below.  The maximum amount the City shall pay to Owner under the Program is 
$10,000.00, regardless of the total cost of qualified improvements.  If the work covered by the 
Estimate is not completed on a timely basis, Owner shall repay the City in full for the City’s initial 
50% payment within Twenty (20) days of demand therefore by the City. “Timely” shall mean that 
the improvements will be completed within one year from the date the initial payment is made to 
the Owner, unless the City agrees to extend this time period upon written request of the 
applicant; said request stating the reason the extension is needed.    
 
       3.  Payment by City is a Loan.  Owner agrees that payment by the City under the Program 
is a loan, and Owner further agrees that Owner is solely responsible for repayment to the City, if 
required, to the extent called for in this Agreement. 
 
       4.  Interest Free Loan.  The forgivable loan described in this Agreement shall not bear 
interest.   
 
       5.  Forgivable Loan; Term of Agreement.  The forgivable loan described in this Agreement 
shall be forgiven in its entirety if Owner remains in ownership of the Property and occupies the 
Property as the Owner’s principal residence throughout the Term of Agreement.  The “Term of 
Agreement” is defined for purposes of this Agreement as beginning on the date of final 
disbursement of City funds under the Program, hereinafter referred to as the “Commencement 
Date,” and ending on the last day of the 60th month thereafter.  
 
       6.  Sale or Transfer of Property.  If, during the Term of Agreement, the Owner sells or 
transfers the Property, whether voluntarily or involuntarily, or does not occupy the Property as 
Owner, then the Owner shall repay the loan according to the schedule set forth in Paragraph 7 
below.  Notwithstanding the above, if sale or transfer or end of occupancy by Owner of the 
Property occurs as a result of the death or serious illness of the Owner, or damage to or 
destruction of the Property through no fault of the Owner that makes the Property uninhabitable, 
repayment of the forgivable loan herein shall not be required.    
 
       7.  Loan Repayment Schedule.  If the Property is sold or transferred or is no longer 
occupied by Owner during the Term of Agreement (“Repayment Event”), the loan herein shall 
be repaid within Twenty (20) days of demand therefore by the City, according to the following 
schedule: 
 
            a.  If a Repayment Event occurs within twelve (12) months of the Commencement Date 
of the Term of Agreement, one hundred (100) percent of the loan amount shall be due and 
payable to the City; 
 
            b. If a Repayment Event occurs between the 13th and 24th month after the 
Commencement Date of the Term of Agreement, Eighty (80) percent of the loan shall be due and 
payable to the City; 
 
           c. If a Repayment Event occurs between the 25th and 36th month after the Commencement 
Date of the Term of Agreement, Sixty (60) percent of the amount of the loan shall be due and 
payable to the City; 
 
           d.  If a Repayment Event occurs between the 37th month and 48th month after the 
Commencement Date of the Term of Agreement, Forty (40) percent of the loan amount shall be 
due and payable to the City; 
 
           e. If a Repayment Event occurs Between the 49th and 60th month after the Commencement 
Date of the Term of Agreement, including any extensions to the Term of Agreement, Twenty (20) 
percent of the loan amount shall be due and payable to the City. 
 

306

Item 29.



           f.  If no Repayment Event occurs during the Term of Agreement, the loan herein shall not 
be required to be repaid and shall be considered forgiven as of the end of the Term of Agreement. 
 
       8.  Mortgage.  Owner agrees to execute contemporaneously herewith a mortgage in the form 
attached hereto as Exhibit B as collateral for the forgivable loan herein.  Such mortgage shall be 
recorded with the Agreement prior to disbursement of the second payment called for in Paragraph 
2 above.  
 
       9.  Loan May Not Exceed Equity in Property.  Owner hereby certifies and represents that the 
amount of the loan stated above does not exceed the difference between the combined unpaid 
balance of all purchase money loans on the Property and the fair market value of the Property 
after approved improvements are completed. 
 
     10.  Increase in Estimate.  Owner assumes and accepts the risk of any increase in the cost of 
the Estimate, and the City shall not increase the forgivable loan amount stated herein, regardless 
of the amount of increase. 
 
     11.  No Contract with Contractor; No Third-Party Beneficiary.  The City shall not be a party to 
any agreement or arrangement the Owner may have with the person or entity performing the work 
under the Estimate, and the City and Owner agree that no person or entity not a party to this 
Agreement shall be deemed a beneficiary of this Agreement.  Further, this Agreement shall not 
serve as the basis for any claim or demand by any person or entity not a party to this Agreement. 
 
     12.  No Joint Venture.  Neither this Agreement nor the work to be performed under the Program 
shall be considered a joint venture between the City and the Owner, and no employer-employee, 
partnership or any other relationship other than debtor-creditor is intended between or among the 
parties.  
 
     13.  Compliance with Laws.  Owner agrees that any work performed under the Program shall 
be done in conformance with all federal and state laws and regulations, and in conformance with 
the City’s ordinances, rules, regulations, and standards. 
 
     14.  Permits; Inspection.  Owner shall be responsible for securing all necessary permits for the 
work to be performed under the Program, at Owner’s cost.  The work to be performed under the 
program is subject to inspection by the City at its sole discretion. 
 
     15.  Mechanics Liens.  Owner agrees to secure release of any mechanic’s liens filed of record 
for the work performed under the Program, prior to the second payment by the City called for 
herein.               
 
     16.  Taxes.  Owner shall be solely responsible for federal and/or state income taxes payable 
as a result of any loan amounts that are forgiven. 
 
     17.  No Assignment.  This Agreement may not be assigned without the prior written consent 
of the City.  Any approved assignment must include an assumption by assignee of all duties and 
obligations under this Agreement. 
 
     18.  Subordination.  The forgivable loan herein shall be subject to and subordinated to any 
purchase money loan for the Property.  A home equity loan and a home equity line of credit are 
not considered to be a purchase money loan for purposes of this Agreement.  
 
     19.  Amendment.  This Agreement may not be modified or amended except in writing and 
signed by the parties hereto. 
 
     20.  Governing Body:  This Agreement shall not be effective unless and until approved by the 
City Council of the City. 307

Item 29.



     21.  Successors and Assigns.  This Agreement is binding upon the approved assigns and 
successors of the parties. 
 
     22.  Integration.  This Agreement constitutes the entire understanding of the parties, and 
supersedes any previous understandings between the parties with respect to the matters 
addressed herein. 
 
     23.  Governing Law.  The construction and performance of this Agreement shall be governed 
by the laws of the State of Iowa, regardless of choice of law principles. 
 
     24.  Notice.  Any notices given pursuant to this Agreement shall be in writing and shall either 
be personally delivered, emailed, or sent by ordinary mail to: 
 
      25.  Invalid Provisions.  If any provision of this Agreement is held to be illegal, invalid or 
unenforceable under present or future laws, then such provision shall be fully severable and this 
Agreement shall be construed and enforced as if such illegal, invalid or unenforceable provision 
had never comprised a part of this Agreement, and the remaining provisions shall remain in full 
force and effect.   
 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have caused this Agreement to be executed on the 
day and year above first written. 
 
   

   

Wesley Gitta  Jozsef Gitta 

OWNER  OWNER 
   
   
   

   

Cynthia Gitta   

OWNER   
 
 
STATE OF IOWA  ) 
    ) ss: 
COUNTY OF BLACK HAWK ) 
 
This instrument was acknowledged before me on the ___ day of ________, 2023, 
by_________________. 
 
 
      _________________________________________ 
      Notary Public in and for the State of Iowa 

 

308

Item 29.



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Prepared by and return to: City of Cedar Falls, Community Development Department, 

220 Clay Street, Cedar Falls, IA  50613, Phone:  319-268-5185. 
 

TOTAL PROJECT COST AND FORGIVABLE LOAN AWARDED 

 
RENTAL TO OWNER CONVERSION PROGRAM 

 
(Exhibit A) 

 
 

Proposed Exterior Improvements: 
 
Replacing existing detached garage with a new detached garage - $16,570 
 
Replacing existing paved driveway with a new concrete pavement - $4,500 
 
Total Project Cost - $21,070 
 
 
 
Grant Money Awarded from the City: 
 
Up to $10,000 based on if the owner is leveraging the grant to provide more than 1:1 match. 
 
Staff notes that if the submitted application for proposed exterior improvement of $21,070 is 
approved, then the city will be funding $10,000 for this project since the applicant is also making 
their own investment of just over $11,070, which will align well with the intent of this forgivable 
loan incentive program.  

 

309

Item 29.



                                                                

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Prepared by and return to:  City of Cedar Falls, Community Development Department, 220 Clay St., Cedar Falls, IA (319) 273-8600 

 

 

 REAL ESTATE MORTGAGE 
 

CITY OF CEDAR FALLS 
 

RENTAL TO OWNER CONVERSION PROGRAM  
 

(Exhibit B) 
 

1. GRANT OF MORTGAGE AND SECURITY INTEREST For valuable consideration, on 
________, 20__, Wesley Gitta (Primary Owner), Jozsef and Cynthia Gitta (Co-Owners), 
(the “Mortgagor”), hereby grant, mortgage and convey to the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa (the 
“Mortgagee”) a security interest in all of the following described property:  

 
a. LAND AND BUILDINGS situated in Black Hawk County, Iowa (the “Land”); at 1205 W. 

7th Street, Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613, and legally described as:  
 

LONGVIEW ADDITION LOT 14 TO THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS BLACK 

HAWK COUNTY, IOWA 

 
and all buildings, structures and improvements now standing or at any time hereafter 
constructed or placed upon the Land (the “Buildings”), including all hereditaments, 
easements, appurtenances, riparian rights, mineral rights, water rights, rights in and to 
the lands lying in streets, alleys and roads adjoining the land, estates and other rights 
and interests now or hereafter belonging to or in any way pertaining to the Land (the 
Land, Buildings and all of such rights and interests are collectively referred to as the 
(“Mortgaged Property”). 

 
b. PERSONAL PROPERTY. All fixtures and other personal property integrally belonging 

to, or hereafter becoming an integral part of the Land or Buildings, whether attached or 
detached, including but not limited to, light fixtures, shades, rods, blinds, Venetian 
blinds, awnings, storm windows, screens, linoleum, water softeners, automatic heating 
and air-conditioning equipment and all proceeds, products, increase, issue, accessions, 
attachments, accessories, parts, additions, repairs. Replacements and substitutes of, 
to, and for the foregoing the (“Personal Property”). 
 

c. REVENUES AND INCOME. All rents, issues, profits, leases, condemnation awards and 
insurance proceeds now or hereafter arising from the ownership, occupancy or use of 
the Land, Buildings and Personal Property, or any part thereof (the “Revenues and 
Income”). 

 
TO HAVE AND TO HOLD the Land, Buildings, Personal Property and Revenues 

and Income (collectively called “Mortgaged Property”), together with all privileges, 
hereditament thereunto now or hereafter belonging, or in any way appertaining and the 
products and proceeds thereof, unto Mortgagee, its successors and assigns.  

 
2. OBLIGATIONS This Mortgage secures the following (hereinafter collectively referred to as 

the “Obligations”):  
 
a. The payment of the loan made by Mortgagee to Wesley Gitta, Jozsef and Cynthia Gitta 

evidenced by a Forgivable Loan Agreement (the “Agreement”) dated _________, 20__ 
in the principal amount of $ 10,000 (Ten Thousand Dollars) (the “Loan”); and  
 

b.  All other obligations of Mortgagors to Mortgagee, now existing or hereafter arising, 
whether direct or indirect, contingent or absolute and whether as maker or surety, 

310

Item 29.



including, but not limited to, future advances and amounts advanced and expenses 
incurred by Mortgagee pursuant to this Mortgage. 
  

c. Term of Agreement. The Mortgagors shall comply with the terms of the Agreement and 
this Mortgage for a term of Five (5) years from the Commencement Date as defined in 
the Agreement (the “Term of Agreement”), and if complied with, the original Loan 
amount shall be forgiven in its entirety. 
 

d. Principal Residence Requirement; Loan Recapture.  The Mortgagors shall own and 
occupy the Mortgaged Property as the Mortgagors’ principal residence.  The 
Mortgagors shall notify the Mortgagee if, prior to the end of the Term of Agreement, any 
Mortgagor sells, vacates, rents, abandons or otherwise transfers the Mortgaged 
Property, whether voluntarily or involuntarily (“Repayment Event”). 

   
The original Loan amount shall be forgiven according to the following schedule: 
 
 I.  If a Repayment Event occurs within twelve (12) months of the Commencement Date of the   

Term of Agreement, one hundred (100) percent of the loan amount shall be due and 
payable to the City; 

 
                  II.  If a Repayment Event occurs between the 13th and 24th month after the Commencement 

Date of the Term of Agreement, Eighty (80) percent of the loan shall be due and payable to 

the City; 

                   III. If a Repayment Event occurs between the 25th and 36th month after the Commencement 

Date of the Term of Agreement, Sixty (60) percent of the amount of the loan shall be due 

and payable to the City; 

                  IV. If a Repayment Event occurs between the 37th month and 48th month after the 

Commencement Date of the Term of Agreement, Forty (40) percent of the loan amount 

shall be due and payable to the City; 

                   V. If a Repayment Event occurs Between the 49th and 60th month after the Commencement 

Date of the Term of Agreement, including any extensions to the Term of Agreement, Twenty 

(20) percent of the loan amount shall be due and payable to the City. 

                  VI. If no Repayment Event occurs during the Term of Agreement, including any extensions 

thereof, the loan herein shall not be required to be repaid and shall be considered forgiven 

as of the end of the Term of Agreement and any extensions thereof. 

Any Loan amount not forgiven according to this schedule shall be considered the 
“Recapture Amount.”  If, during the Term of Agreement, any Repayment Event occurs, 
Mortgagors shall pay immediately to the Mortgagee the entire Recapture Amount. 

 
3. REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES OF MORTGAGORS. Mortgagors represent, 

warrant and covenant to Mortgagee that (i) Mortgagors hold clear title to the Mortgaged 
Property and title in fee simple in the Land; (ii) Mortgagors have the right, power and 
authority to execute this Mortgage and to mortgage, and grant a security interest in the 
Mortgaged Property; (iii) the Mortgaged Property is free and clear of all liens and 
encumbrances, except for real estate taxes not yet delinquent and except as otherwise 
stated in subparagraph 1a. herein; (iv) Mortgagors will warrant and defend title to the 
Mortgaged Property and the lien and priority of this Mortgage against all claims and 
demands of all persons, whether now existing or hereafter arising; and (v) all buildings and 
improvements now or hereafter located on the Land are, or will be, located entirely within 
the boundaries of the Land.  (vi) Mortgagor not acting, directly or indirectly, for or on behalf 
of any person, group, entity or nation named by any Executive Order of the United States 
Treasury Department as a terrorist, “Specially Designated National and Blocked Person” 
or any other banned or blocked person, entity, nation or transaction pursuant to any law, 
order, rule or regulation that is enforced or administered by the Office of Foreign Assets 
Control; and are not engaged in this transaction, directly or indirectly on behalf of, or 
instigating or facilitating this transaction, directly or indirectly on behalf of, any such person, 
group, entity or nation.  Mortgagor hereby agrees to defend, indemnify and hold harmless 
the other party from and against any and all claims, damages, losses, risks, liabilities and 
expenses (including attorney’s fees and costs) arising from or related to any breach of the 

311

Item 29.



foregoing certification. 
 

4. PAYMENT AND PERFORMANCE OF THE OBLIGATIONS.   Mortgagors will pay all 
amounts payable under the Obligations in accordance with the terms of the Obligations 
when and as due and will timely perform all other obligations of Mortgagors under the 
Obligations. The provisions of the Obligations are hereby incorporated by reference into 
this Mortgage as if fully set forth herein.  
 

5. TAXES.   Mortgagors shall pay each installment of all taxes and special assessments of 
every kind, now or hereafter levied against the Mortgaged Property before the same 
become delinquent, without notice or demand, and shall deliver to Mortgagee proof of such 
payment within fifteen (15) days after the date in which such tax or assessment becomes 
delinquent. 

 
6. LIENS.   Mortgagors shall not create, incur or suffer to exist any lien, encumbrance, security 

interest or charge on the Mortgaged Property or any part thereof which might or could be 
held to be equal or prior to the lien of this Mortgage, other than the lien of current real estate 
taxes and installments of special assessments with respect to which no penalty is yet 
payable. Mortgagors shall pay, when due, the claims of all persons supplying labor or 
materials to or in connection with the Mortgaged Property. 
 

7. COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS.   Mortgagors shall comply with all present and future 
statutes, laws, rules, orders, regulations and ordinances affecting the Mortgaged Property, 
any part thereof or the use thereof. 
 

8. PERMITTED CONTESTS.   Mortgagors shall not be required to (i) pay any tax, assessment 
or other charge referred to in paragraph 5 hereof, (ii) discharge or remove any lien, 
encumbrance or charge referred to in paragraph 6 hereof, or (iii) comply with any statute, 
law, rule, regulation or ordinance referred to in paragraph 7 hereof, so long as mortgagors 
shall contest, in good faith, the existence, amount or the validity thereof, the amount of 
damages caused thereby or the extent of Mortgagors' liability therefor, by appropriate 
proceedings which shall operate during the pendency thereof to prevent (A) the collection 
of, or other realization upon the tax, assessment, charge or lien, encumbrances or charge 
so contested, (B) the sale, forfeiture or loss of the Mortgaged Property or any part thereof, 
and (C) any interference with the use or occupancy of the Mortgaged Property or any part 
thereof. Mortgagors shall give prompt written notice to Mortgagee of the commencement 
of any contest referred to in this paragraph 8. 
 

9. CARE OF PROPERTY.   Mortgagors shall take good care of the Mortgaged Property; shall 
keep the Buildings and Personal Property now or later placed upon the Mortgaged Property 
in good and reasonable repair and shall not injure, destroy or remove either the Buildings 
or Personal Property during the term of this Mortgage. Mortgagors shall not make any 
material alteration to the Mortgaged Property without the prior written consent of 
Mortgagee. 
 

10. INSURANCE. 
a. RISKS TO BE INSURED.   Mortgagors, at their sole cost and expense, shall 

maintain insurance on the Buildings and other improvements now existing or 
hereafter erected on the Land and on the Personal Property included in the 
Mortgaged Property against loss by fire, extended coverage perils and such other 
hazards as Mortgagee may from time to time require, such insurance to have a 
"Replacement Cost" endorsement attached thereto, with the amount of the 
insurance at least equal to the balance of the Obligations. At Mortgagors' option, 
such policy may have a coinsurance clause of not less than 90% of replacement 
cost provided the policy contains an appropriate form of cost escalation 
endorsement. Mortgagors will at their sole cost and expense, from time to time, and 
at any time at the request of Mortgagee, provide Mortgagee with evidence 
satisfactory to Mortgagee of the replacement cost of Mortgaged Property. 
Mortgagors will maintain such other insurance as Mortgagee may reasonably 
require. 
 

b. POLICY PROVISIONS.   All insurance policies and renewals thereof maintained by 
Mortgagors pursuant to this Mortgage shall be written by an insurance carrier 
satisfactory to Mortgagee, be payable to the parties as their interest may appear, 

312

Item 29.



contain a standard or union-type loss payable clause in favor of Mortgagee, contain 
an agreement of the insurer that it will not amend, modify or cancel the policy except 
after thirty (30) days prior written notice to Mortgagee, and be reasonably 
satisfactory to Mortgagee in all other respects. 
 

c. DELIVERY OF POLICY OR CERTIFICATE.   If requested by Mortgagee, 
Mortgagors will deliver to Mortgagee original policies satisfactory to Mortgagee 
evidencing the insurance which is required under this Mortgage, and Mortgagors 
shall promptly furnish to Mortgagee all renewal notices and, upon request of 
Mortgagee, evidence of payment thereof. At least ten (10) days prior to the 
expiration date of a required policy, Mortgagors shall deliver to Mortgagee a renewal 
policy in form satisfactory to Mortgagee. 
 

d. ASSIGNMENT OF POLICY.   If the Mortgaged Property is sold at a foreclosure sale 
or if Mortgagee shall acquire title to the Mortgaged Property, Mortgagee shall have 
all of the right, title and interest of Mortgagors in and to any insurance policies 
required hereunder, and the unearned premiums thereon, and in and to the 
proceeds thereof resulting from any damage to the Mortgaged Property prior to such 
sale or acquisition. 
 

e. NOTICE OF DAMAGE OR DESTRUCTION; ADJUSTING LOSS.   If the Mortgaged 
Property or any part thereof shall be damaged or destroyed by fire or other casualty, 
Mortgagors will, within five (5) calendar days after the occurrence of such damage 
or destruction, give written notice thereof to the insurance carrier and to Mortgagee 
and will not adjust any damage or loss which is estimated by Mortgagors in good 
faith to exceed $25,000 unless Mortgagee shall have joined in or concurred with 
such adjustment; but if there has been no adjustment of any such damage or loss 
within four (4) months from the date of occurrence thereof and if an Event of Default 
shall exist at the end of such four (4) month period or at any time thereafter, 
Mortgagee may alone make proof of loss, adjust and compromise any claim under 
the policies, and appear in and prosecute any action arising from such policies. In 
connection therewith, Mortgagors do hereby irrevocably authorize, empower and 
appoint Mortgagee as attorney-in-fact for Mortgagor (which appointment is coupled 
with an interest) to do any and all of the foregoing in the name and on behalf of 
Mortgagors. 
 

f. APPLICATION OF INSURANCE PROCEEDS.   All sums paid under any insurance 
policy required by this Mortgage shall be paid to Mortgagee, which shall, at its 
option, apply the same (after first deducting therefrom Mortgagee's expenses 
incurred in collecting the same including but not limited to reasonable attorney's 
fees) to the reduction of the Obligations or to the payment of the restoration, repair, 
replacement or rebuilding of Mortgaged Property that is damaged or destroyed in 
such manner as Mortgagee shall determine and secondly to the reduction of the 
Obligations. Any application of insurance proceeds to principal of the Obligations 
shall not extend or postpone the due date of the installments payable under the 
Obligations or change the amount of such installments. 
 

g. REIMBURSEMENT OF MORTGAGEE'S EXPENSES.   Mortgagors shall promptly 
reimburse Mortgagee upon demand for all of Mortgagee's expenses incurred in 
connection with the collection of the insurance proceeds, including but not limited to 
reasonable attorney’s fees, and all such expenses shall be additional amounts 
secured by this Mortgage. 

 
11. INSPECTION.   Mortgagee, and its agents, shall have the right at all reasonable times, to 

enter upon the Mortgaged Property for the purpose of inspecting the Mortgaged Property 
or any part thereof.  Mortgagee shall, however, have no duty to make such inspection. Any 
inspection of the Mortgaged Property by Mortgagee shall be entirely for its benefit and 
Mortgagors shall in no way rely or claim reliance thereon. 
 

12. PROTECTION OF MORTGAGEE'S SECURITY.   Subject to the rights of Mortgagors 
under paragraph 8 hereof, if Mortgagors fail to perform any of the covenants and 
agreements contained in this Mortgage or if any action or proceeding is commenced which 
affects the Mortgaged Property or the interest of the Mortgagee therein, or the title thereto, 
then Mortgagee, at Mortgagee's option, may perform such covenants and agreements, 

313

Item 29.



defend against or investigate such action or proceeding, and take such other action as 
Mortgagee deems necessary to protect Mortgagee's interest. Any amounts or expenses 
disbursed or incurred by Mortgagee in good faith pursuant to this paragraph 12 with interest 
thereon at the rate of 0% per annum, shall become an Obligation of Mortgagors secured 
by this Mortgage. Such amounts advanced or disbursed by Mortgagee hereunder shall be 
immediately due and payable by Mortgagors unless Mortgagors and Mortgagee agree in 
writing to other terms of repayment. Mortgagee shall, at its option, be subrogated to the 
lien of any mortgage or other lien discharged in whole or in part by the Obligations or by 
Mortgagee under the provisions hereof, and any such subrogation rights shall be additional 
and cumulative security for this Mortgage. Nothing contained in this paragraph shall require 
Mortgagee to incur any expense or do any act hereunder, and Mortgagee shall not be liable 
to Mortgagors for any damage or claims arising out of action taken by Mortgagee pursuant 
to this paragraph. 
 

13. CONDEMNATION.   Mortgagors shall give Mortgagee prompt notice of any action, actual 
or threatened, in condemnation or eminent domain and hereby assign, transfer and set 
over to Mortgagee the entire proceeds of any award or claim for damages for all or any 
part of the Mortgaged Property taken or damaged under the power of eminent domain or 
condemnation. Mortgagee is hereby authorized to intervene in any such action in the 
names of Mortgagors, to compromise and settle any such action or claim, and to collect 
and receive from the condemning authorities and give proper receipts and acquittances for 
such proceeds. Any expenses incurred by Mortgagee in intervening in such action or 
compromising and settling such action or claim, or collecting such proceeds shall be 
reimbursed to Mortgagee first out of the proceeds. The remaining proceeds or any part 
thereof shall be applied to reduction of that portion of the Obligations then most remotely 
to be paid, whether due or not, or to the restoration or repair of the Mortgaged Property, 
the choice of application to be solely at the discretion of Mortgagee. 
 

14. FIXTURE FILING.   From the date of its recording, this Mortgage shall be effective as a 
financing statement filed as a fixture filing with respect to the Personal Property and for this 
purpose the name and address of the debtor is the name and address of Mortgagors as 
set forth in paragraph 20 herein and the name and address of the secured party is the 
name and address of the Mortgagee as set forth in paragraph 20 herein. 
 

15. EVENTS OF DEFAULT.   Each of the following occurrences shall constitute an event of 
default hereunder ("Event of Default"): 

a. Mortgagors shall default in the due observance or performance of or breach its 
agreement contained in paragraph 4 hereof or shall default in the due observance 
or performance of or breach any other covenant, condition or agreement on its part 
to be observed or performed pursuant to the terms of this Mortgage. 
 

b. Mortgagors shall make an assignment for the benefits of its creditors, or a petition 
shall be filed by or against Mortgagors under the United States Bankruptcy Code or 
Mortgagors shall seek or consent to or acquiesce in the appointment of any trustee, 
receiver or liquidator of a material part of its properties or of the Mortgaged Property 
or shall not, within thirty (30) days after the appointment of a trustee, receiver or 
liquidator of any material part of its properties or of the Mortgaged Property, have 
such appointment vacated. 
 

c. A judgment, writ or warrant of attachment or execution, or similar process shall be 
entered and become a lien on or be issued or levied against the Mortgaged Property 
or any part thereof which is not released, vacated or fully bonded within thirty (30) 
days after its entry, issue or levy. 
 

d. An event of default, however defined, shall occur under any other mortgage, 
assignment or other security document constituting a lien on the Mortgaged 
Property or any part thereof. 
 

e. The Mortgagors fails to occupy the Mortgaged Property as their “principal and 
primary residence or domicile”. 
 

f. The Mortgagors sell, vacate, rent, abandon or otherwise transfer the Mortgaged 
Property, whether voluntarily or involuntarily. 
 

314

Item 29.



g. The Mortgagors fail to pay all taxes or assessments when due, to pay required 
insurance when due, or to maintain the Mortgaged Property in good condition. 
 

h. The Mortgagors fail to perform any other material term or condition of this 
Mortgage or the Agreement. 
 

16. ACCELERATION; FORECLOSURE.   Upon the occurrence of any Event of Default and 
at any time thereafter while such Event of Default exists, Mortgagee may, at its option, after 
such notice as may be required by law, exercise one or more of the following rights and 
remedies (and any other rights and remedies available to it): 
 

a. Mortgagee may declare immediately due and payable all Obligations secured by 
this Mortgage, and the same shall thereupon be immediately due and payable, 
without further notice or demand. 
 

b. Mortgagee shall have and may exercise with respect to the Personal Property, all 
the rights and remedies accorded upon default to a secured party under the Iowa 
Uniform Commercial Code.  If notice to Mortgagors of intended disposition of such 
property is required by law in a particular instance, such notice shall be deemed 
commercially reasonable if given to Mortgagors at least ten (10) days prior to the 
date of intended disposition. 
 

c. Mortgagee may (and is hereby authorized and empowered to) foreclose this 
Mortgage in accordance with the law of the State of Iowa, and at any time after the 
commencement of an action in foreclosure, or during the period of redemption, the 
court having jurisdiction of the case shall at the request of Mortgagee appoint a 
receiver to take immediate possession of the Mortgaged Property and of the 
Revenues and Income accruing therefrom, and to rent or cultivate the same as he 
may deem best for the interest of all parties concerned, and such receiver shall be 
liable to account to Mortgagors only for the net profits, after application of rents, 
issues and profits upon the costs and expenses of the receivership and foreclosure 
and upon the Obligations. 

 
17. REDEMPTION.   It is agreed that if this Mortgage covers less than ten (10) acres of land, 

and in the event of the foreclosure of this Mortgage and sale of the property by sheriff's 
sale in such foreclosure proceedings, the time of one year for redemption from said sale 
provided by the statues of the State of Iowa shall be reduced to six (6) months or reduced 
to three (3) months if the property is not used for an agricultural purpose as defined in 
section 535.13. provided in all cases under this section the Mortgagee, in such action files 
an election to waive any deficiency judgment against Mortgagors which may arise out of 
the foreclosure proceedings; all to be consistent with the provisions of Chapter 628 of the 
Iowa Code. If the redemption period is so reduced, for the first two (2) months after sale 
such right of redemption shall be exclusive to the Mortgagor, and the time periods in 
Sections 628.5, 628.15 and 628.16 of the Iowa Code shall be reduced to three (3) months. 
 
It is further agreed that the period of redemption after a foreclosure of this Mortgage shall 
be reduced to sixty (60) days if all of the three following contingencies develop: (1) The 
real estate is less than ten (10) acres in size; (2) the Court finds affirmatively that the said 
real estate has been abandoned by the owners and those persons personally liable under 
this Mortgage at the time of such foreclosure; and (3) Mortgagee in such action files an 
election to waive any deficiency judgment against Mortgagors or their successors in 
interest in such action. If the redemption period is so reduced, Mortgagors or their 
successors in interest or the owner shall have the exclusive right to redeem for the first 
thirty (30) days after such sale, and the time provided for redemption by creditors as 
provided in Sections 628.5, 628.15 and 628.16 of the Iowa Code shall be reduced to forty 
(40) days. Entry of appearance by pleading or docket entry by or on behalf of Mortgagors 
shall be a presumption that the property is not abandoned. Any such redemption period 
shall be consistent with all of the provisions of Chapter 628 of the Iowa Code. This 
paragraph shall not be construed to limit or otherwise affect any other redemption 
provisions contained in Chapter 628 of the Iowa Code. 
 

18. ATTORNEYS' FEES.   Mortgagors shall pay on demand all costs and expenses incurred 
by Mortgagee in enforcing or protecting its rights and remedies hereunder, including, but 
not limited to, reasonable attorneys' fees and legal expenses. 

315

Item 29.



 
19. FORBEARANCE NOT A WAIVER, RIGHTS AND REMEDIES CUMULATIVE.   No delay 

by Mortgagee in exercising any right or remedy provided herein or otherwise afforded by 
law or equity shall be deemed a waiver of or preclude the exercise of such right or remedy, 
and no waiver by Mortgagee of any particular provisions of this Mortgage shall be deemed 
effective unless in writing signed by Mortgagee. All such rights and remedies provided for 
herein or which Mortgagee or the holder of the Obligations may have otherwise, at law or 
in equity, shall be distinct, separate and cumulative and may be exercised concurrently, 
independently or successively in any order whatsoever, and as often as the occasion 
therefor arises. 
 

20. NOTICES.   All notices required to be given hereunder shall be in writing and deemed given 
when personally delivered or deposited in the United States mail, postage prepaid, sent 
certified or registered, addressed as follows: 

 
a. If to Mortgagors, to: Wesley Gitta, Jozsef and Cynthia Gitta, 1205 W. 7th Street, 

Cedar Falls, IA 50613 
 

b. If to Mortgagee, to: City of Cedar Falls, Community Development Department 220 
Clay Street, Cedar Falls, Iowa  50613 

 
Or to such other address or person as hereafter designated in writing by the applicable 
party in the manner provided in this paragraph for the giving of notices. 
 

21. SEVERABILITY.   In the event any portion of this Mortgage shall, for any reason, be held 
to be invalid, illegal or unenforceable in whole or in part, the remaining provisions shall not 
be affected thereby and shall continue to be valid and enforceable and if, for any reason, 
a court finds that any provision of this Mortgage is invalid, illegal, or unenforceable as 
written, but that by limiting such provision it would become valid, legal and enforceable 
then such provision shall be deemed to be written, construed and enforced as so limited. 
 

22. FURTHER ASSURANCES.   At any time and from time to time until payment in full of the 
Obligations, Mortgagors will, at the request of Mortgagee, promptly execute and deliver to 
Mortgagee such additional instruments as may be reasonably required to further evidence 
the lien of this Mortgage and to further protect the security interest of Mortgagee with 
respect to the Mortgaged Property, including, but not limited to, additional security 
agreements, financing statements and continuation statements. Any expenses incurred by 
Mortgagee in connection with the recordation of any such instruments shall become 
additional Obligations of Mortgagors secured by this Mortgage. Such amounts shall be 
immediately due and payable by Mortgagors to Mortgagee. 
 

23. SUCCESSORS AND ASSIGNS BOUND; NUMBER; GENDER; AGENTS; CAPTIONS.   
The rights, covenants and agreements contained herein shall be binding upon and inure 
to the benefit of the respective legal representatives, successors and assigns of the parties. 
Words and phrases contained herein, including acknowledgment hereof, shall be 
construed as in the singular or plural number, and as masculine, feminine or neuter gender 
according to the contexts. The captions and headings of the paragraphs of this Mortgage 
are for convenience only and are not to be used to interpret or define the provisions hereof. 
 

24. GOVERNING LAW.   This Mortgage shall be governed by and construed in accordance 
with the laws of the State of Iowa and any applicable federal laws and regulations. 
 

25. RELEASE OF RIGHTS OF DOWER, HOMESTEAD AND DISTRIBUTIVE SHARE.   Each 
of the undersigned hereby relinquishes all rights of dower, homestead and distributive 
share in and to the Mortgaged Property and waives all rights of exemption as to any of the 
Mortgaged Property. 
 

26. ACKNOWLEDGMENT OF RECEIPT OF COPIES OF DEBT INSTRUMENT.   Mortgagors 
hereby acknowledge the receipt of a copy of this Mortgage together with a copy of each 
promissory note secured hereby. 

Dated:  _________, 20__. 

316

Item 29.



 
____________________________________ 
Wesley Gitta, Mortgagor 
 
 
____________________________________ 
Jozsef Gitta, Mortgagor 
 
 
____________________________________ 
Cynthia Gitta, Mortgagor 
 

 
I UNDERSTAND THAT HOMESTEAD PROPERTY IS IN MANY CASES PROTECTED FROM 
THE CLAIMS OF CREDITORS AND EXEMPT FROM JUDICIAL SALE; AND THAT BY 
SIGNING THIS MORTGAGE, I VOLUNTARILY GIVE UP MY RIGHT TO THIS PROTECTION 
FOR THIS MORTGAGED PROPERTY WITH RESPECT TO CLAIMS BASED UPON THIS 
MORTGAGE. 
 

Dated:  _________, 20_  
 

____________________________________ 
Wesley Gitta, Mortgagor 
 
 
____________________________________ 
Jozsef Gitta, Mortgagor 
 
 
____________________________________ 
Cynthia Gitta, Mortgagor 
 

 
 
STATE OF IOWA, COUNTY OF _BLACK HAWK______________ 
 
 
This record was acknowledged before me on ___________, 20_____, by _________________. 
 

_________________________________ 
Signature of Notary Public 

 
 
  
  

317

Item 29.



 

318

Item 29.



��������	
������������	������������������������	�������������������������	��������	���	������������ ����
�	����!��
���������������	�"#$%����&�������'��
��'�����
�	��������	�����	�����(����������)����������!��
������	������*
������������� �	���	���������������������	 �� ����	�����
����	�����	��!��	������������������������!����	�	������������� �	��!!����������!�����������
��	
����'��	���'���"$������
���))����������������������	���������	������!�+,,��������,-./��012�3����(����������	�&�������	�)��������������!��������������������	4�����	����
�����	����������	�)�
��������� ��������	��������)�'�	��������������������'����� ����(���
�	
�����!����	����� �'�������
��
�����	���� ����	���	�!��
������	���������������������	�������������!��	�����������������'	��	������������5�����)����	��������������'	����

�!�����	��������!��!����������!���!�	�
������������� ����������������	� ����	�'��������������!�� ������	���������������� ���	�����������)�����	��6#"�$$$������������
��!���������������������������	�����	������!����
����	��
�����7	���������!��
������
��
������� �'��8����
�	���������	�)�����	����
�	 �����	��������	
��'����������������7!!��
������������������

319

Item 29.



320

Item 29.



321

Item 29.



City of Cedar Falls  (319) 273-8600: email: planning@cedarfalls.com
Rental Conversion Incentive Program/Background/Rental Conversion Application 8-3-20 

DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
RENTAL TO OWNER CONVERSION INCENTIVE PROGRAM APPLICATION 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 

Property’s Address:       

Property Zoning (circle one):    R1   ,   R2  ,   Other  

Name of Applicant:   

Applicant’s Email:     Daytime Phone #:    

Current Deed Holder or Contract Buyer: 

Owner Name (if different than above):        

Owner Mailing Address (if different than above): 

Owner’s Email:     Daytime Phone #:   

Nature of improvements (specify):    

Estimated or Actual Cost of Improvements: 

Proposed Start Date:         Estimated or Actual Date of Completion:  

Lender:    Daytime Phone #:     

Lender Address:   

Applicants Signature:  Date:  

Name (Printed):   

FOR CITY USE ONLY 

CITY COUNCIL 

Application Approved / Disapproved 

Reason (if disapproved):  

Date:      Resolution No. 

Attested by the City Clerk 

ASSESSOR 

Present Assessed Value of Structure   

Assessed Value with Improvements  

Eligible or Non-eligible for Tax Abatement 

Assessor Date 

1205 WEST 7TH STREET, CEDAR FALLS

Jozsef Gitta

jgitta@jgitta.com 319-830-7490

Replace Garage and driveway

Veridian Credit Union 800.235.3228, ext. 7590

 Cedar Falls. IA

8/20/23

Jozsef Gitta

jgitta@jgitta.com 319-830-7490

Jozsef and Cynthia Gitta and Wesley Gitta

9/15/2023 10/30/223

Jozsef and Cynthia Gitta and Wesley Gitta

322

Item 29.

jgitta
Highlight

jgitta
JG

jgitta
Cross-Out



The project is for replacing the single car garage.  The garage has deteriorated and appears to be unsafe.  The siding has holes in several 
places and the door is unusable.  

Replacing or refurbishing the garage will enhance the appearance of the property and make the building safe.

323

Item 29.



S & H Garages, LLC
1735 HOWARD AVE
WATERLOO, IA  50702 US
(319)290 1083
s.waterloo@hotmail.com

Estimate

ADDRESS

Jozsef Gitta
1433 Oakcrest Drive
Waterloo, IA  50701

ESTIMATE # DATE EXPIRATION DATE

1010 06/13/2023 06/28/2023

ACTIVITY DESCRIPTION AMOUNT

Garage 
12'x20'x8'

Build Garage 12' x 20' x 8' with slab 12'x 20' x 4"at 1205 W 7th St Cedar 
Falls, IA. Demo existing slab and existing Garage and haul a way. 
Material, Labor and City Permit included in price.

MATERIAL AND LABOR:

Form & Pour Garage Slab 12' x 20' x 4"
Garbage & Disposal
Garage Wall to be Frame with 2" x 4" x 92"5/8 Studs - 16" on Center
Supply & Install 7/16" OSB Garage exterior wall Sheathing
Supply & Install Gable Roof Trusses 12' - 4/12 pitch - 24" on Center
Supply & Install TYVEX wall covering
Supply & Install 1/2" OSB Roof Sheathing
Supply & Install Synthetic Roofing Underlayment
Supply & Install Owens Corning® TruDefinition® Duration® Limited 
Lifetime Warranty Architectural Shingles (32.8 sq. ft.), Color: ?
Supply & Install Owens Corning® VentSure® 11-1/4" x 26' Shingle Over 
Ridge Vent
Supply & Install Owens Corning® WeatherLock® G Granulated Self-
Sealing Ice and Water Barrier 3' x 66.7'(200sq.ft)
Supply & Install 12" x 12' Vinyl Vented Soffit, Color: White
Supply & Install 6" x 12' Aluminum  Fascia, Color: White
Supply & Install Vinyl Siding Cedar Creek® Double 4, Color: White
Supply & Install 2-24"W x 36"H JELD-WEN® Vinyl Slider
Supply & Install Mastercraft® 36W x 80H Primed Steel 6-Panel
Supply & Install 1-Steel Raised Panel Insulated OHD 9' x 7' Color: White
Supply & Install 1-Chamberlain® 1/2 HP Wi-Fi Belt Drive Battery Backup 
Garage Door Opener (Better)

 FOR GARAGE 20'x20'x8', $20,789

16,570.00

Driveway Replace Driveway only, 10' x 45'. This price dos not included, City 
sidewalk and City approach.

4,500.00

324

Item 29.



By signing this Estimate, the buyer agrees to pay 50% deposite on 
__________(day)
of____________(mo)__________. Second payment, which is 30% of the total 
bill, is do
when concrete is finished. The balance is due when the Job is complete.
I agree to this by signing this Estimate.

TOTAL $21,070.00

Accepted By Accepted Date

325

Item 29.



S & H Garages, LLC
1735 HOWARD AVE
WATERLOO, IA  50702 US
(319)290 1083
s.waterloo@hotmail.com

Estimate

ADDRESS

Jozsef Gitta
1433 Oakcrest Drive
Waterloo, IA  50701

ESTIMATE # DATE EXPIRATION DATE

1010 06/13/2023 06/28/2023

ACTIVITY DESCRIPTION AMOUNT

Garage 
12'x20'x8'

Build Garage 12' x 20' x 8' with slab 12'x 20' x 4"at 1205 W 7th St Cedar 
Falls, IA. Demo existing slab and existing Garage and haul a way. 
Material, Labor and City Permit included in price.

MATERIAL AND LABOR:

Form & Pour Garage Slab 12' x 20' x 4"
Garbage & Disposal
Garage Wall to be Frame with 2" x 4" x 92"5/8 Studs - 16" on Center
Supply & Install 7/16" OSB Garage exterior wall Sheathing
Supply & Install Gable Roof Trusses 12' - 4/12 pitch - 24" on Center
Supply & Install TYVEX wall covering
Supply & Install 1/2" OSB Roof Sheathing
Supply & Install Synthetic Roofing Underlayment
Supply & Install Owens Corning® TruDefinition® Duration® Limited 
Lifetime Warranty Architectural Shingles (32.8 sq. ft.), Color: ?
Supply & Install Owens Corning® VentSure® 11-1/4" x 26' Shingle Over 
Ridge Vent
Supply & Install Owens Corning® WeatherLock® G Granulated Self-
Sealing Ice and Water Barrier 3' x 66.7'(200sq.ft)
Supply & Install 12" x 12' Vinyl Vented Soffit, Color: White
Supply & Install 6" x 12' Aluminum  Fascia, Color: White
Supply & Install Vinyl Siding Cedar Creek® Double 4, Color: White
Supply & Install 2-24"W x 36"H JELD-WEN® Vinyl Slider
Supply & Install Mastercraft® 36W x 80H Primed Steel 6-Panel
Supply & Install 1-Steel Raised Panel Insulated OHD 9' x 7' Color: White
Supply & Install 1-Chamberlain® 1/2 HP Wi-Fi Belt Drive Battery Backup 
Garage Door Opener (Better)

 FOR GARAGE 20'x20'x8', $20,789

16,570.00

Driveway Replace Driveway only, 10' x 45'. This price dos not included, City 
sidewalk and City approach.

4,500.00

326

Item 29.



By signing this Estimate, the buyer agrees to pay 50% deposite on 
__________(day)
of____________(mo)__________. Second payment, which is 30% of the total 
bill, is do
when concrete is finished. The balance is due when the Job is complete.
I agree to this by signing this Estimate.

TOTAL $21,070.00

Accepted By Accepted Date

327

Item 29.



328

Item 29.



329

Item 29.



330

Item 29.



331

Item 29.



332

Item 29.



333

Item 29.



334

Item 29.



335

Item 29.



336

Item 29.



337

Item 29.



338

Item 29.



339

Item 29.



340

Item 29.



341

Item 29.



DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-273-8600 
Fax: 319-273-8610 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 

MEMORANDUM 
Planning & Community Services Division 

  

   

 

 

 
 
 
 

 TO: Honorable Mayor Robert M. Green and City Council 

 FROM: Jaydevsinh Atodaria (JD), AICP, City Planner I 

  Ben Claypool, Principal Engineer, PE, PhD 

 DATE: October 2, 2023 

 SUBJECT: PC-2 District Site Plan Review – 702 LeClair Street (SP23-009) 
 

 
REQUEST: 

 
Request to approve a PC-2 Planned Commercial District Site Plan for a new 
6,900 square foot wholesale business use warehouse building. 
 

PETITIONER: 
 

Randy Howe, Owner; Bradley Best, Peters Construction, Applicant 
 

LOCATION: 
 

702 LeClair Street 
 

 

  
PROPOSAL 
It is proposed to construct a 6,900-
square-foot storage building (in red 
outline to the right) which will help 
accommodate the changing business 
needs for the operation of the 
business. With changes ongoing in 
business including general supply 
chain issues in the market, and the 
associated need for pre-ordering and 
warehousing of materials and 
equipment for clients, the proposed 
storage building will be helpful to 
manage the ongoing business 
operation on site. 
 
 
BACKGROUND 
The subject property is Lot 21 of the Star View subdivision platted in 1950. The first building on 
the subject property was a 1-story office building built in 1965, located on the north portion of the 
parcel. The owner has operated a wholesale business, Advanced Technical Series, on the site 
for several decades. In 2011, a 3,600 sq. ft. warehouse/storage building was added on site, 
southwest of the office building.  
 
The property was zoned C-1 Commercial District before the establishment of the current 

342

Item 30.



business in 1965. Wholesale businesses are not allowed in the C-1 Zone, so the business was 
a non-conforming use. The applicant then chose to rezone the property from C-1 Commercial 
District to PC-2 Planned Commercial District to make the business conform to the zoning district 
and to be able to expand the ongoing business. On August 7, 2023, the City Council approved 
the rezoning of the property at 702 LeClair Street  from C-1 Commercial District to PC-2 
Planned Commercial District with a development agreement outlining conditions for rezoning 
and a master plan to guide the future development of the site. 
 
With changes ongoing in the business including general supply chain issues in the market, and 
the associated need for pre-ordering and warehousing of materials and equipment for clients, 
the applicant is proposing to add another 6,900-square-foot storage building on site that will help 
in the operation of the business. The proposal aligns with the conditions stated in the approved 
development agreement and is as per the approved master plan for the property at 702 LeClair 
Street. 
 
ANALYSIS 
The property is zoned PC-2, 
Planned Commercial District. 
The PC-2 District is to promote 
and facilitate imaginative and 
comprehensively planned 
commercial developments that 
are harmoniously designed to 
complement the surrounding 
community. Properties in this 
zone are designed and 
improved according to an 
approved master plan for the 
site and developmental 
procedural agreement that 
outlines the agreed stipulations 
for development.  
 
The master plan for the site 
shows the two existing buildings, 
a proposed new building, 
landscape screening along the 
west property line, a storm water 
detention basin, a small section 
of paved driveway, and a bench 
with trail extension along the 
south property line as a public 
amenity. See the image to the 
right for more reference. 
 
 
 
As per the PC-2 District regulations, site plan review is required to ensure architectural 
compatibility with surrounding structures. Details such as building design and location, parking, 
signage, and other similar criteria are reviewed to ensure orderly and quality development.  
 
 

343

Item 30.



Following is a review of the zoning ordinance requirements: 
 

1) Proposed Use: The 6,900 square foot storage building that is associated with the existing 
wholesale business, “Advanced Technical Services, Inc.” is a permitted use in the PC-2 
District. Use permitted. 
 
2) Setbacks: The PC-2 District requires a 30-foot setback around the perimeter of the district, 
but for areas less than 10 acres in size, the setback area may be reduced to 20 feet, subject to 
review and approval from the Planning & Zoning Commission and City Council. The developer 
requests that the 30-foot open space buffer setback be reduced to 20 feet in width for the entire 
site which is about 2.26 acres. 
  
The existing buildings were established under the previous CI-1 Zoning and therefore are 
grandfathered in their current locations. The new building proposed is located approximately 41 
feet from the west, 153 feet from the south, and 107 feet from the east lot line, so it meets the 
20-foot minimum buffer requirement. The proposed outbuilding will be placed 40 feet south of 
the existing outbuilding at 702 LeClair Street. All parking area for the site meets the required 20-
foot minimum buffer requirement. Building and Parking Area setbacks are satisfied. 
 
3) Parking and traffic count: The parking requirement for the site is not changing with the 
proposed new storage building. As per the existing office building on site, the required parking is 
6 stalls, and the site is currently equipped with 10 stalls, which means that they have more than 
enough parking on site. Staff recommends marking the stalls with paint and at least providing an 
ADA stall as required for the site. 
 
Since the proposed building will be used as a storage space for the business, no new parking is 
being required. To continue operating the business in a neighborhood setting, the applicant has 
indicated that currently about 15 vehicles per day visit this location (including delivery vehicles, 
pick-up trucks, customer, and employee movement), and the traffic volume will remain 
unchanged with the proposed building. Staff notes that as per the approved developmental 
procedural agreement, the applicant will have to ensure that the traffic movement 
remains unchanged on site, this way the intensity and scale of the business remain as 
per the intent of the PC-2 Planning Commercial District regulations and the approved 
developmental procedural agreement. Parking is satisfied. 
 
4) Open Space: Open green space must be provided on-site. The ordinance requires 10% of 
the total development site excluding the required setback area. In this case, the lot contains 
approximately 2.26 acres of land (98,446 ft²). After the perimeter setbacks are excluded (20-foot 
minimum), approximately 74,259 square feet is the total development site to be considered for 
open space provision. As per the requirement, 7,426 ft² of open space is required (0.1 x 
74,259). The property has approximately 65,914 square feet of open space remaining, which 
exceeds the minimum open space requirement. Open green space satisfied.  
  
5) Landscaping: The PC-2 District requires landscape plantings at the rate of 0.02 points per 
square foot of the total development site (0.02 x 98,446 ft²) = 1,969 basic site landscaping 
points. These points can be made up with any combination of trees, conifers, and shrubbery 
and distributed throughout the site, parking areas, and along the street. 
 
In addition to basic site landscaping points, there is a requirement of 0.75 points per linear foot 
of street frontage for street tree planting. The overall site has a street frontage of 636 feet. So, 
based on it the site is required to have 477 points (0.75 x 636 ft). A total of 2,446 points is 
required.  

344

Item 30.



 
The proposed landscaping plan (see attached) shows that the trees are distributed around the 
site. In addition, as per the approved master plan for the site, a landscaping buffer along the 
west property line is also proposed, which is exclusive of the landscaping points calculated.  
 
Staff notes that there is a 20 feet utility easement along the west property line, and the 
easement includes sanitary sewer running north-south besides other utilities. The proposed 
landscaping buffer will be placed east of the 20 feet easement, this way the utilities and sanitary 
sewer remains undisturbed. See attached landscaping plan for more reference. Overall, the 
applicant is providing landscaping equivalent to 2,780 landscaping points (including 2,280 
landscaping points and 500 street tree points). The site will have well-distributed 
landscaping areas, once all landscaping is complete. Landscape Plan is acceptable. 
 
6) Sidewalks: As per the approved developmental procedural agreement of the site, if the 
undeveloped area south of the proposed storage building is developed in the future, the owner 
will be responsible for constructing a 4-foot-wide public sidewalk along the LeClair Street 
frontage of the property and connect it to the 1st Street trail in accordance with City engineering 
standards. Therefore, the applicant has illustrated this on their landscaping plan as a “future 
sidewalk.” Staff notes that the sidewalk will need to be constructed along the entirety of the 
frontage of the property at that time. This would be reviewed with a new site plan if additional 
development is proposed in the future.  
 
Staff also notes, as per the approved master plan of the site, the applicant proposed to add a 
park bench and provide a small loop extension of the 1st Street trail onto their private property as 
an amenity to the public. However, as approval of this connection to the 1st Street ROW will 
require Iowa DOT approval, as it is a State Highway, the applicant is not planning to move 
forward with this element of the site plan at this time and request that this be removed as a 
required element of the master plan. The applicant has indicated that they would revisit the 
bench in the future at such time as LeClair Street is improved and the sidewalk extended along 
LeClair Street.   
 
7) Building Design: Generally, a warehouse building is designed with metal, vinyl, or steel siding 
and does not have many windows or openings. For this site, the applicant is proposing high-
quality materials with LP smart siding materials in different colors and finishes similar to the 
existing buildings on-site. Different patterns and colors of the LP siding will break the monotony 
of the façade. Several windows will be included on the façades facing streets, to break up the 
blank facades otherwise typical of a warehouse building. Asphalt shingles will be used on the 
new building, which will be similar to existing buildings on-site. The addition of windows, greater 
setbacks of the building from the property line, high-quality building materials, lower pitch roof, 
different patterns of sidings, and colors will align with the intent of the PC-2 District design 
guidelines and also will allow the proposed building to blend in within the neighborhood. The 
proportion of the building is very much the same as the other buildings on site. While the size of 
the building is larger than residential structures in the vicinity, the building will be only one-story 
in height with a shallow pitch to the roof to reduce the overall mass of the building. Overall, the 
Building Design is acceptable. 

345

Item 30.



 
 
 

8) Trash Dumpsters: There is no dumpster on-site and as per applicant no trash dumpster is 
needed.  

 
9) Storm Water Management: The new building and adjusted grading proposed to the site to the 
south will direct all stormwater to a newly installed basin located in the area between the new 
building and LeClair Street. The basin will be connected into City storm sewer along HWY 57 
with emergency overflow routing directly out to LeClair Street. This proposed stormwater 
management plan meets the City’s post construction stormwater management criteria.  

 

10) Lighting Plan: No freestanding site lighting will be added, only soffit down lighting above the 
walk door and overhead door on the north side of the building will be placed for security and 
safety purposes.  
 
11) Signage: No signage has been proposed at this time. Any new sign proposed, will have to 
be approved by P&Z and City Council as per the PC-2 District guidelines. 
 
TECHNICAL COMMENTS 
City technical staff, including Cedar Falls Utilities (CFU) personnel, and provide the following 
comments. All basic utility services are available on the site. There is a 12” ductile iron water 
main north of the north curb of W. 1st Street. It is typically buried 5.5 to 6 feet below grade. The 
proposed invert for the storm sewer connection appears to conflict with the existing water main. 
Contractor will need to verify the water main depth and modify storm invert elevation or 
watermain elevation as required to maintain the intended operation of the stormwater facilities.  
 
The City Engineering Division has reviewed the proposal and accepts the proposed stormwater 
management plan. The developer and contractor for the site will need to address any changes 
that occur as construction proceeds on the site with continued maintenance, weekly inspections, 
seeding during appropriate times, and use of SWPPP approved stabilization techniques. The 
City requires the developer to obtain an individual SWPPP permit for each of the remaining 
buildings on the site prior to construction to help maintain control of the site during the duration 
of construction on the site.   
 

RECOMMENDATION 
Planning and Zoning Commission recommends approval of the submitted PC-2 District Site 
Plan Review for adding a new building at 702 LeClair Street (SP23-009) as per staff’s 
recommendation at their regular meeting on 13th September 2023 with a vote of 8 ayes and 0 
nays.  
 
 

Perspectives of proposed building from both the streets  

346

Item 30.



PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION 
Discussion & 
Vote 
9/13/2023 

Chair Lynch introduced the item and Mr. Atodaria provided background 
information. He explained that the proposal is for a site plan for a new 
building at 702 LeClair Street in the PC-2 District. The property was rezoned 
in August to provide more flexibility for continuation of the existing business 
on the site and allow limited expansion. He discussed the proposal, noting 
that the application will be adding landscaping and a stormwater detention 
basis on-site. The proposed building would be built as per the Development 
Agreement. The applicant is requesting to remove a proposed park bench 
and small trail loop on the south side of the development. He discussed 
setback and utility easement information, as well as required landscaping 
and proposed building design. Staff recommends approval. 
 
Mr. Leeper made a motion to approve the item. Mr. Larson seconded the 
motion. The motion was approved unanimously with 8 ayes (Alberhasky, 
Crisman, Hartley, Larson, Leeper, Lynch, Moser and Stalnaker), and 0 nays. 
 

  
 

347

Item 30.



1st St Trail

Sta
nle

y S
t

LeC
lair

 St

W 1st St ®¬57

R-1

R-1

C-1

R-5 R-1

A-1

PC-2

702

612

626

619

704

611

703

625

701 713 719707

725

605

331
5

351
2

Cedar Falls Planning and Zoning Commission
September 13, 2023

PC-2 Site Plan Review for ATS building
702 LeClair Street
(SP23-009)

Waterloo
Regional
Airport

Falls
Access

Cedar Falls

University Ave
Orchard Dr

Rainbow Dr

E Dunkerton Rd

W 18th St

Hu
ds

on
R d

C enter St

W Ridgeway Ave

Ma
in

St

E Greenhill Rd

W 12th St

W 1st St

E Vikin

gRd
W Viking Rd

Un
ion

 Rd

W 27th St

SM
ain

St

L incoln St

NUnion Rd E Lone Tree Rd

Le
ver

see
Rd

W
Green hill Rd

E 1st St
®¬57

®¬58

®¬27

£¤218

£¤20 £¤63

^

Location
Map

¯

348

Item 30.



349

Item 30.



ENGINEERING & ENVIRONMENTAL
Ó 

350

Item 30.



ENGINEERING & ENVIRONMENTAL
Ó 

351

Item 30.



ENGINEERING & ENVIRONMENTAL
Ó 

352

Item 30.



ENGINEERING & ENVIRONMENTAL
Ó 

353

Item 30.



ENGINEERING & ENVIRONMENTAL
Ó 

354

Item 30.



ENGINEERING & ENVIRONMENTAL
Ó 

355

Item 30.



259.9'

3
7
6
.2

'

#1

#2

#3

#4

#5

#6

#7

#8

#9

#10

#11

#12

#13

#14

#15

#16

#17

#18

#19

#20

Howe - ATS - New Building
TITLE:

DRAWN BY:

CHECKED BY:

DATE:

SCALE:

SHEET:

OF             SHEETS

REVISIONS

1” = 24’

MAIFELD LANDSCAPING LLC, 

Tyler Maifeld

This plan, as an instrument of service, is the
sole property of Maifeld Landscaping LLC.
It may not be used in whole or part 
without their consent.

08.03.2023

Retention
Pond

Door

Existing
Crabapple

Existing
Crabapple

Existing
Crabapple

Existing
Crabapple

Existing
Amur Maple

Existing
Blue Spruce

Existing
Blue Spruce

Existing
Blue Spruce

Existing
Blue Spruce

Existing
Oak

Existing
Oak

Existing
Maple

Existing
Maple

Existing
Fat Albert

Blue Spruce

Existing
Fat Albert

Blue Spruce

Existing
Fat Albert

Blue Spruce

Existing
OakExisting

Oak

Existing
Locust

Existing
6” Blue Spruce

Existing
12” Blue Spruce

Existing
12” Blue Spruce

Existing
12” Blue Spruce

Existing
6” Blue Spruce

Existing
6” Blue Spruce

Existing
6” Blue Spruce

Existing
Serviceberry

Existing
Serviceberry

Existing
Oak

Remove Autumn
Blaze Maples

POINTS North & West Of Existing Buildings

Blue Spruce > 10’ Tall 3 @ 100 pts = 300
Maples 4” Caliper 2 @ 100 pts = 200
Oaks 4” Caliper  2 @ 100 pts = 200
Blue Spruce > 10’ Tall 3 @ 100 pts = 300
                                                          1000 pts

100 pts 100 pts 100 pts100 pts100 pts100 pts100 pts

100 pts

100 pts

100 pts

POINTS South Of Driveway

Crabapples > 4” Caliper 4 @ 100 pts = 400
Blue Spruce = 10’ Tall 4 @ 100 pts = 400
Oak Tree > 4” Caliper 3 @ 100 pts = 300
Serviceberry >2” Caliper 2 @ 40 pts = 80
Locust Tree > 4” Caliper 1 @ 100 pts = 100
                                                             1280 Pts

1493 Points Needed 74628 sf 
2780 Total Points From Existing Plants

Transplanted
 Blue Spruce10’

Transplanted
10’ Blue Spruce

Transplanted
10’ Blue Spruce

Transplanted
 Blue Spruce10’

Transplanted
Oak

Transplanted
Oak

Transplanted
Oak

Transplanted
Serviceberry

Transplanted
Serviceberry

Transplanted
20’ Blue Spruce

Transplanted
20’ Blue Spruce

Transplanted
20’ Blue Spruce

29.9'

2
9
.9

'
L

e
 C

la
ir
e

 S
tr

e
e

t

Driveway

Driveway

New Building

Existing Building

POINTS Entrance Planting Bed

Amur Maple 4” Caliper 1 @ 100 pts = 100
Blue Spruce > 10’ Tall 1 @ 100 pts = 100
                                                            200 pts

F
u

tu
re

 S
id

e
w

a
lk

30.0'

Buildings

L
e
 C

la
ir
 S

t

W 1st St

20.0'

20.0'

20.0'
2
0
.0

'

2
0
.0

'

2
0
.0

'

2
0
.0

'

20
.0

'

Driveway

Door

Existing
Oak

Lot Area
Excluding

Buffer
(SF)

Landscape
Area (SF)

Area
Landscape
Percent (%)

Minimum 

Parking
Spaces

Peripheral
Landscape

Length 
(LF)

Landscape
Strip Between 

Abutting 
Property

Landscape 
Setback Around 

Perimeter Of 
District

Peripheral 
Landscap
e Trees

Peripheral 
Landscape 

Shrubs

Site 
Landscaping 

Points 

Parking 
Area 
Trees

Street Trees 
Points

74628 65914 88.3 10 636 LF Require 5’ 20’ 2 98,446 x 0.02
= 1969 0

477
(0.75 x 636’)

Provide 5’ 20’ 3 2280 0 500

PLANT SCHEDULE

EVERGREEN TREES QUANTITY BOTANICAL/COMMON NAME SIZE
SITE LANDSCAPING 

POINTS
STREET 

TREE 

8
(7 TRANSPLANT, 1 

EXISTING)

BLUE SPRUCE 10’ TALL 700 100

3 BLUE SPRUCE 20’ TALL 300

3 FAT ALBERT BLUE SPRUCE 10’ TALL 300

SHADE TREES

1 LOCUST > 4” CALIPER 100

5
(3 TRANSPLANT, 2 

EXISTING)

OAK > 4” CALIPER 200 300

2 MAPLE > 4” CALIPER 200

UNDERSTORY 

2 SERVICEBERRY > 2” CALIPER 80

1 AMUR MAPLE > 4” CALIPER 100

4 CRABAPPLE > 4” CALIPER 400

TOTAL 2280 500

Existing
Blue Spruce

Transplanted
20’ Blue Spruce

Existing
Fat Albert

Blue Spruce

Existing
Locust

Existing
Oak

Existing
Maple

Transplanted
Serviceberry

Existing
Amur Maple

Existing
Crabapple

10.0'

Public Access

F
u
tu

re
 P

la
n
t 
S

cr
e
e
n
in

g

Fat Albert
Blue Spruce

Fat Albert
Blue Spruce

Fat Albert
Blue Spruce

Fat Albert
Blue Spruce

Fat Albert
Blue Spruce

Fat Albert
Blue Spruce

Spade In
Fat Albert 
Blue Spruce
Of Various
Sizes And
Quantity

F
u
tu

re
 S

id
e
w

a
lk

356

Item 30.



357

Item 30.



358

Item 30.



359

Item 30.



360

Item 30.



361

Item 30.



DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-273-8600 
Fax: 319-273-8610 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 

MEMORANDUM 
Planning & Community Services Division 

  

   

 

 

 
 
 
 

 TO: Honorable Mayor Robert M. Green and City Council 

 FROM: Jaydevsinh Atodaria (JD), AICP, City Planner I 

  Matthew Tolan, Civil Engineer II 

 DATE: October 2, 2023 

 SUBJECT: MU District Master Plan Amendment – Lot 2 of Pinnacle Prairie Townhomes, Ph. I 
 

 
REQUEST: Request to amend the MU District Master Plan for Pinnacle Prairie 

Townhomes, Phase I (locally known as Whispering Pines) (MP23-004)  
 

PETITIONER: BRL Development, LC., Owner and Applicant  
 

LOCATION: 
 

SE corner of E. Greenhill Road and Oster Parkway 

 
PROPOSAL 
It is proposed to amend the MU master plan for Lot 2 of Pinnacle Prairie Townhomes Phase 1 
subdivision (locally known as Whispering Pines), which was originally approved  in 2006. The 
proposed change includes a reduction in the number of units from the previously approved 52 
units to 42 units. Since there have been several changes over the years to the approved MU 
Plan and the need to plan the future development in the remaining area of the subdivision, it is 
important to update the master plan for the entire development, so that it reflects changes made 
in previously built areas and future desired development. 
 
BACKGROUND 
The subject property is Lot 2 of the Pinnacle Prairie Townhomes Phase I final plat, which was 
approved in 2006. The preliminary Plat and the Site plan for Lot 2 of the Pinnacle Prairie 
Townhomes Phase I was also approved in 2006, which showed that 52 townhome units would 
be established on the subject property. As per the approved site plan (master plan) for the 
subject property, the development contained a total of 52 units, which will be a combination of 4-
plexes and duplex residential units. The approved plan was to have a 2-car garage each unit, 
limited curb openings, on-street parking provision, and a 26-foot-wide private access drive..   
 
Over the last 17 years, development has been in progress on the subject property, with the last 
homes constructed in 2015. The development that occurred after the approval of the master 
plan in 2006, did not go entirely according to the approved plan including changing proposed 
unit types from 4-plexes and duplexes to a mix of single-family, duplexes, and 4-plexes. The 
approved design idea of having a limited number of curb cuts has also not been strictly followed 

362

Item 31.



and some of the units also do not meet the minimum 20-foot spacing requirement between 
units. In sum, they have built 33 units so far, including 3 (4-plexes), 6 (duplexes), and 9 (single-
family units). 
 
Since 2015, no new development has progressed on the subject property, but they do have 
some undeveloped land. The applicant is requesting to amend the master plan so they can build 
out the remaining land and to update it to match what has been built to date, so that moving 
forward all development will meet the requirements and match an approved master plan.  
 

 
 
To develop the remaining area, the applicant is proposing three different scenarios for future 
development with a mix of single-family units, duplex units, and a set of detached garage 
buildings. As per MU District regulations, any proposed changes in land use, building location, 
and residential density are termed as substantial change, which needs to be considered in the 
same manner as originally required, in other words, needs the approval of the Planning and 
Zoning Commission and City Council.  Since the Whispering Pines development is almost built 
out, staff recommends consideration of the proposed master plan also as a site plan., As such 
all the details including setback information, unit plans, and designs have been submitted with 
the proposal. This will avoid having to review the site plan again through an additional review 
process. Staff notes that once the master plan is approved, the developer can proceed with 
constructing the houses as planned by submitting building permits for review. 
 
ZONING 
The purpose of the MU Mixed Use Residential District is to encourage innovative development 
that incorporates high-quality building design, careful site planning, and preservation of unique 
environmental features with an emphasis on the creation of open spaces and amenities that 
enhance the quality of life of residents.  
 
The subject property is 9.93 acres in size. The property and its surrounding area were rezoned 
to MU, Mixed Use Residential District in 2004, where in the site was a part of the Pinnacle 
Prairie MU Master Plan. The subject property was indicated as an area reserved for 

363

Item 31.



Townhomes on the approved 2004 MU Master Plan. Following the rezoning, a preliminary and 
final plat for the subject property was approved in 2006 alongside the approval of the MU District 
Site plan for the subject property. A portion of the subject property is also in the HCG Highway 
Corridor and Greenbelt Overlay District, which is intended to regulate the development within 
Highway 58 and Greenhill Road Corridor to promote the health, safety, and welfare of the 
citizens of the city.     
 
STAFF ANALYSIS 
The proposed Master Plan amendment exhibit submitted shows three different scenarios of 
possible development in the remaining undeveloped area. The developer would like all three 
options approved, so they can build out the remaining area according to market demand. The 
proposed three scenarios are described below. Note that the master plan scenarios submitted 
show existing development as built (not as originally proposed in 2006) and the applicant 
requests retroactive approval of the changes that were made.  
 
Master Plan Amendment Scenario A: 

 Proposal: This scenario includes the 
proposal of 2 (two) single-family units, 3 
(three) duplex units, and a detached 
garage building, comprising 12 
independent garages in the NE corner  of 
the Whispering Pines development.  

 Building setbacks: Required 20 feet 
setback from internal road, and minimum 
20 feet separation between units. The 
proposed building setback for all new 
buildings meets the required minimum 
setbacks and separation requirements of 
the MU District. 

 Building design: Both the single-
family units and duplex units are designed 
to accommodate two-stall attached 
garages. The building elevation of both unit 
types and the garage building will have 
stone cladding in the lower segment of the 
building as per the approved master plan 
for the area. 
  

364

Item 31.



Master Plan Amendment Scenario B: 
 

 Proposal: This scenario includes the 
proposal of 7 (seven) single-family units and 
a duplex unit building in the left-over area of 
the Whispering Pines development.  

 Building setbacks: Required 20 feet 
setback from internal road, and minimum 20 
feet separation between units. The 
proposed buildings meet the required 
minimum setbacks and separation 
requirements of the MU District. 

 Building design: Both the single-
family unit and duplex units are designed to 
accommodate two-stall attached garages. 
The building elevation of both unit types and 
the garage building will have stone cladding 
in the lower segment of the building as per 
the approved master plan for the area. 
 
 
 

Master Plan Amendment Scenario C: 
 Proposal: This scenario proposes 7 

(seven) single-family units and a detached 
garage building, comprising 12 independent 
garages in the NE corner of the Whispering 
Pines development.  

 Building setbacks: Required 20 feet 
setback from internal road, and minimum 20 
feet separation between units. The proposed 
building setbacks and spacing between all 
new buildings meet the required minimum 
setbacks and separation requirements for 
the MU District. 

 Building design: Single-family units 
are designed to accommodate two stalls 
attached to garages. The building elevation 
of both the single-family unit and the garage 
building will have stone cladding in the lower 
segment of the building as per the approved 
master plan for the area. 
 

 
Street Connectivity 
As per the original approved master plan, the Whispering Pines development was developed 
with a private loop drive (Whispering Pines Circle) which is 26 feet wide and accommodates 
several on-street parking spaces for visitors in the neighborhood. The development was built 
with only one main access point from Oster Parkway. No changes are being proposed to this 
street layout.  

365

Item 31.



  
Residential Density and Housing Types  
The proposal includes decreasing the overall density from the approved 2006 site plan for the 
area, from 52 units to 42 units on a total site area of 9.93 acres. The approved density for the 
subject property was 5.24 units per acre and with the proposed amendment, the density of the 
subject property will be 4.23 units per acre.  
  
The approved master plan for the subject property showed that the area will be developed with 
a combination of duplex and four-plex unit types. However, the development today does not 
entirely follow the approved master plan but rather has a combination of single-family, duplex, 
and four-plex unit types. With the proposed amendment, the subject property will have a 
combination of single-family, duplex, and four-plex unit types. Staff notes that the MU District is 
intended for a mix of housing types to meet the needs of the community.  Provided all new 
development follows this master plan and moving forward the buildings are carefully placed to 
meet the building separation and setback requirements of the MU District, staff finds all three 
scenarios to be consistent with the intent and requirements of the zoning district.  
 
Building Design: 
As per MU District regulations, all structures established within the district shall be reviewed for 
architectural compatibility with surrounding structures. All the existing buildings built to date in 
the development are designed with architectural shingle roofs, shake siding in the roof, stone 
cladding in the lower half of front facades, front entrance canopy supported by architectural 
columns, and lap siding. The proposed new buildings will be designed with similar architectural 
characteristics and features. See attached elevations for reference. Staff finds that the proposed 
building design of the unit types will be similar to the existing buildings in the development. 
 
Street and Sidewalk Connections 
As per the approved master plan, there are no internal sidewalks within the development, and 
the established private drive (Whispering Pines Circle) is used for both vehicular and pedestrian 
movements. A public sidewalk along Oster Parkway and E Greenhill Road does exist bordering 
the subject property for providing pedestrian access points to the neighborhood. No new street 
or sidewalk is being added with the proposed amendment. 
 
Notification of Surrounding Property Owners: 
City Staff sent a courtesy notice to the surrounding property owners on 6th September 2023.  
 
RECOMMENDATION 
Planning and Zoning Commission recommends approval of the submitted MU District Master 
Plan Amendment for Pinnacle Prairie Townhomes, Phase I (locally known as Whispering Pines) 
(MP23-004) as per staff’s recommendation at their regular meeting on 13th September 2023 with 
a vote of 8 ayes and 0 nays.  
 

 

PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION 
Discussion 
& Vote  
9/13/2023 
 
 

Chair Lynch introduced the item and Mr. Atodaria provided background 
information. He explained that the property is at the southeast corner of East 
Greenhill Road and Oster Parkway and explained the process of plat and site 
plan approvals. He displayed a contrast of what was originally proposed to what 
has changed since then and explained the changes. The application is 
requesting the amendment of the master plan to build out the remaining land and 

366

Item 31.



to update the master plan to match what has been built to date. They are also 
requesting approval of three possible scenarios for future development with a 
mix of single-family units, duplex units and a set of detached garage buildings. 
He discussed the three scenarios and the locations of each proposal and 
provided an analysis of the proposal, noting that staff finds all three scenarios to 
be consistent with the intent and requirements of the zoning district. Staff 
recommends approval of the Master Plan Amendment. 
 
Mr. Hartley clarified that one of the three scenarios must be chosen. Mr. Atodaria  
mentioned that it is correct. 
 
Mr. Leeper asked if there were concerns with the inconsistencies in the plan. Ms.  
Howard stated that staff is working with what is happening currently as they were  
not there when the past decisions were made. 
 
Ms. Crisman made a motion to approve the item. Mr. Leeper seconded the 
motion. The motion was approved unanimously with 8 ayes (Alberhasky, 
Crisman, Hartley, Larson, Leeper, Lynch, Moser and Stalnaker), and 0 nays. 
 

 

367

Item 31.



Greenhill Trail

â

â

â

â

â

â

Green Creek Rd

Prairie Ct

Briarwo odHillsDr

Faithway Dr

Os
ter

 Pk
wy

Wild Flower Ln

Oster Pkwy Green Creek Rd

Whispering Pines Cir

E Greenhill Rd

R-4 R-1

MU

481
3

481
5

480
7

480
5

191
6

191
5

4507

200
1

192
3

192
4

200
2

181
5

182
0181

4
182

1

461
6

1801

460
6

4632

4566
4568

461
4

460
8

4630

4602

171
7

461
2

462
6

4570
4572

461
0

462
8

4580

461
6

1714

1708

4578

4604

171
5

1710

1803

1712

4574
4576

4615

4632
4629

4635

180
8

182
6

190
6

182
7

190
1

181
1

181
5

181
9

1726

1722

1724

4812

4813 4822

4821 1711

4804

4805

4618

4712

4719
4718

4725

4724

470
8

470
2

4501160
9

152
8

161
6

161
4

161
2

Cedar Falls Planning and Zoning Commission
September 13, 2023

Master Plan Amendment for 
Whispering Pines Development 
(MP23-004)

Waterloo
Regional
Airport

Falls
Access

Cedar Falls

University Ave
Orchard Dr

Rainbow Dr

E Dunkerton Rd

W 18th St

Hu
ds

on
R d

C enter St

W Ridgeway Ave

Ma
in

St

E Greenhill Rd

W 12th St

W 1st St

E Vikin

gRd
W Viking Rd

Un
ion

 Rd

W 27th St

SM
ain

St

L incoln St

NUnion Rd E Lone Tree Rd

Le
ver

see
Rd

W
Green hill Rd

E 1st St
®¬57

®¬58

®¬27

£¤218

£¤20 £¤63

^

Location
Map

¯

368

Item 31.



LOT 11LOT 12

Pinnacle Heights Condominiums

LOT 10

LOT 09

LOT 08

LOT 07

Southern Pines
Second Add.

LOT 01
Southview Heights

LOT 06
Green Creek Third Add. 

Pinnacle Ridge First

LOT 08

LOT 09

LOT 10

S
u

rv
ey

in
g

, I
n

c.
W

ay
n

e 
C

la
as

se
n

 E
n

g
in

ee
ri

n
g

 a
n

d

L
O

T
 2

, P
in

n
ac

le
 P

ra
ir

ie
 T

o
w

n
h

o
m

es
 P

h
as

e 
I

M
as

te
r 

P
la

n
 -

 O
p

ti
o

n
 A

W
h

is
p

er
in

g
 P

in
es

 C
o

n
d

o
m

in
iu

m
s

C
ed

ar
 F

al
ls

, I
o

w
a

369

Item 31.

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
10' UTILITY EASEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
100' R-O-W

AutoCAD SHX Text
OSTER PARKWAY (PUBLIC STREET)

AutoCAD SHX Text
GREEN

AutoCAD SHX Text
Greenhill Road (ROW Varies)

AutoCAD SHX Text
69'

AutoCAD SHX Text
B-B

AutoCAD SHX Text
40' DRAINAGE/UTILITY EASEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
TVP

AutoCAD SHX Text
SIGN

AutoCAD SHX Text
SAN

AutoCAD SHX Text
SAN

AutoCAD SHX Text
SAN

AutoCAD SHX Text
SAN

AutoCAD SHX Text
SAN

AutoCAD SHX Text
SAN

AutoCAD SHX Text
SAN

AutoCAD SHX Text
SAN

AutoCAD SHX Text
SAN

AutoCAD SHX Text
SAN

AutoCAD SHX Text
SAN

AutoCAD SHX Text
SAN

AutoCAD SHX Text
SAN

AutoCAD SHX Text
SAN

AutoCAD SHX Text
SAN

AutoCAD SHX Text
SAN

AutoCAD SHX Text
SAN

AutoCAD SHX Text
SAN

AutoCAD SHX Text
SAN

AutoCAD SHX Text
SAN

AutoCAD SHX Text
SAN

AutoCAD SHX Text
SAN

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
10' UTILITY EASEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
Y

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
Y

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
CREEK

AutoCAD SHX Text
ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text
(PUBLIC

AutoCAD SHX Text
STREET)

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX 12" WAT

AutoCAD SHX Text
FL OUT=914.10

AutoCAD SHX Text
STM-S5

AutoCAD SHX Text
FORM=922.21

AutoCAD SHX Text
FL OUT=918.21

AutoCAD SHX Text
21.0' AT 1.00%

AutoCAD SHX Text
STM-P5

AutoCAD SHX Text
128.7' AT 2.87%

AutoCAD SHX Text
STM-P7

AutoCAD SHX Text
FL OUT=922.00

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXIST. SAN MH

AutoCAD SHX Text
TOP=922.03

AutoCAD SHX Text
FL =911.04

AutoCAD SHX Text
SAN-S2

AutoCAD SHX Text
FORM=916.75

AutoCAD SHX Text
FL PROP. IN=904.60

AutoCAD SHX Text
FL EXIST. OUT=904.50

AutoCAD SHX Text
STUB=916.90

AutoCAD SHX Text
73.0' AT 2.00%

AutoCAD SHX Text
SAN. SERV. BLDG. 8

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
Y

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
Y

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
SUB-1

AutoCAD SHX Text
SUB-2

AutoCAD SHX Text
SUB-3

AutoCAD SHX Text
SUB-4

AutoCAD SHX Text
SUB-3

AutoCAD SHX Text
SUB-4

AutoCAD SHX Text
SUB-3

AutoCAD SHX Text
SUB-4

AutoCAD SHX Text
SUB-5

AutoCAD SHX Text
SUB-6

AutoCAD SHX Text
SUMP PUMP

AutoCAD SHX Text
SUMP PUMP

AutoCAD SHX Text
SUMP PUMP

AutoCAD SHX Text
SUMP PUMP

AutoCAD SHX Text
SUMP PUMP

AutoCAD SHX Text
SUMP PUMP

AutoCAD SHX Text
SUMP PUMP

AutoCAD SHX Text
SUMP PUMP

AutoCAD SHX Text
UNIT #4516

AutoCAD SHX Text
UNIT #4514

AutoCAD SHX Text
UNIT #4512

AutoCAD SHX Text
UNIT #4510

AutoCAD SHX Text
UNIT #4566

AutoCAD SHX Text
UNIT #4568

AutoCAD SHX Text
UNIT #4570

AutoCAD SHX Text
UNIT #4572

AutoCAD SHX Text
UNIT #4574

AutoCAD SHX Text
UNIT #4576

AutoCAD SHX Text
UNIT #4578

AutoCAD SHX Text
UNIT #4580

AutoCAD SHX Text
UNIT #4610

AutoCAD SHX Text
UNIT #4612

AutoCAD SHX Text
UNIT #4614

AutoCAD SHX Text
UNIT #4616

AutoCAD SHX Text
UNIT #4626

AutoCAD SHX Text
UNIT #4630

AutoCAD SHX Text
UNIT #4632

AutoCAD SHX Text
UNIT #1717

AutoCAD SHX Text
UNIT #1715

AutoCAD SHX Text
UNIT #4608

AutoCAD SHX Text
UNIT #4606

AutoCAD SHX Text
UNIT #4602

AutoCAD SHX Text
UNIT #4604

AutoCAD SHX Text
UNIT #1819

AutoCAD SHX Text
UNIT #1815

AutoCAD SHX Text
UNIT #1811

AutoCAD SHX Text
UNIT #4534

AutoCAD SHX Text
#1726

AutoCAD SHX Text
#1724

AutoCAD SHX Text
#1722

AutoCAD SHX Text
FUTURE

AutoCAD SHX Text
FUTURE

AutoCAD SHX Text
FUTURE

AutoCAD SHX Text
FUTURE

AutoCAD SHX Text
FUTURE

AutoCAD SHX Text
UNIT #4628

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
SAN

AutoCAD SHX Text
SAN

AutoCAD SHX Text
SAN

AutoCAD SHX Text
SAN

AutoCAD SHX Text
SAN

AutoCAD SHX Text
SAN

AutoCAD SHX Text
SAN

AutoCAD SHX Text
SAN

AutoCAD SHX Text
SAN

AutoCAD SHX Text
SAN

AutoCAD SHX Text
SAN

AutoCAD SHX Text
SAN

AutoCAD SHX Text
SAN

AutoCAD SHX Text
SAN

AutoCAD SHX Text
SAN

AutoCAD SHX Text
SAN

AutoCAD SHX Text
SAN

AutoCAD SHX Text
SAN

AutoCAD SHX Text
SAN

AutoCAD SHX Text
SAN

AutoCAD SHX Text
SAN

AutoCAD SHX Text
STM

AutoCAD SHX Text
STM

AutoCAD SHX Text
STM

AutoCAD SHX Text
STM

AutoCAD SHX Text
STM

AutoCAD SHX Text
STM

AutoCAD SHX Text
STM

AutoCAD SHX Text
STM

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
STM

AutoCAD SHX Text
STM

AutoCAD SHX Text
STM

AutoCAD SHX Text
STM

AutoCAD SHX Text
STM

AutoCAD SHX Text
STM

AutoCAD SHX Text
STM

AutoCAD SHX Text
STM

AutoCAD SHX Text
STM

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
STM

AutoCAD SHX Text
STM

AutoCAD SHX Text
STM

AutoCAD SHX Text
STM

AutoCAD SHX Text
STM

AutoCAD SHX Text
STM

AutoCAD SHX Text
STM

AutoCAD SHX Text
STM

AutoCAD SHX Text
STM

AutoCAD SHX Text
STM

AutoCAD SHX Text
STM

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
STM

AutoCAD SHX Text
STM

AutoCAD SHX Text
30' Drainage & Utility Easement

AutoCAD SHX Text
30' Drainage & Utility Easement

AutoCAD SHX Text
30' Utility & Landscape Easement

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
30' Utility & Landscape Easement

AutoCAD SHX Text
10' UTILITY EASEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
WHISPERING PINES CIRCLE(PRIVATE)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(Drainage Way)

AutoCAD SHX Text
STORM DETENTION AREA 

AutoCAD SHX Text
10' UTILITY EASEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
20' DRAINAGE EASEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
280m

AutoCAD SHX Text
920

AutoCAD SHX Text
280m

AutoCAD SHX Text
285m

AutoCAD SHX Text
285m

AutoCAD SHX Text
285m

AutoCAD SHX Text
285m

AutoCAD SHX Text
Emergencey Overflow Channel &Twin 48" RCPC

AutoCAD SHX Text
(20')

AutoCAD SHX Text
(20')

AutoCAD SHX Text
(61')

AutoCAD SHX Text
(27')

AutoCAD SHX Text
(34')

AutoCAD SHX Text
Fax: (319) 235-0028

AutoCAD SHX Text
Phone: (319) 235-6294

AutoCAD SHX Text
Waterloo, Iowa 50701

AutoCAD SHX Text
P.O. Box 898

AutoCAD SHX Text
2705 University Avenue

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE

AutoCAD SHX Text
REVISIONS

AutoCAD SHX Text
DR.

AutoCAD SHX Text
CK'D

AutoCAD SHX Text
PG.

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE PLOTTED:

AutoCAD SHX Text
FILENAME:

AutoCAD SHX Text
5.

AutoCAD SHX Text
4.

AutoCAD SHX Text
3.

AutoCAD SHX Text
1.

AutoCAD SHX Text
FILE NO.

AutoCAD SHX Text
BK.

AutoCAD SHX Text
2.

AutoCAD SHX Text
sheet

AutoCAD SHX Text
1 of 1

AutoCAD SHX Text
75

AutoCAD SHX Text
50

AutoCAD SHX Text
150

AutoCAD SHX Text
100

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
50

AutoCAD SHX Text
1 INCH =     FEET

AutoCAD SHX Text
- DENOTES EXISTING SAN. SEWER LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
- DENOTES EXISTING WATER MAIN

AutoCAD SHX Text
- DENOTES STORM DRAINAGE

AutoCAD SHX Text
LEGEND:

AutoCAD SHX Text
08-21-2023

AutoCAD SHX Text
SAN

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
STM

AutoCAD SHX Text
900

AutoCAD SHX Text
910

AutoCAD SHX Text
2.5:1

AutoCAD SHX Text
3:1

AutoCAD SHX Text
Future 6 car garage

AutoCAD SHX Text
Future 6 car garage

AutoCAD SHX Text
Drainage & Utility  Easement

AutoCAD SHX Text
(27')

AutoCAD SHX Text
(32')

AutoCAD SHX Text
(26')

AutoCAD SHX Text
(28')

AutoCAD SHX Text
(26')

AutoCAD SHX Text
(30')

AutoCAD SHX Text
(46')

AutoCAD SHX Text
(42')

AutoCAD SHX Text
(43')

AutoCAD SHX Text
(42')

AutoCAD SHX Text
(36')

AutoCAD SHX Text
(49')

AutoCAD SHX Text
(28')

AutoCAD SHX Text
Permanent Drainage & Detention Basin Easement Doc. No. 2009-18889

AutoCAD SHX Text
Permanent Drainage & Detention Basin Easement Doc. No. 2009-18889

AutoCAD SHX Text
N89°44'38"E-632.57'

AutoCAD SHX Text
S84°29'52"E-117.73'

AutoCAD SHX Text
S01°17'48"E-771.47'

AutoCAD SHX Text
N61°48'42"W-860.30'

AutoCAD SHX Text
N01°22'15"W-373.46'

AutoCAD SHX Text
(N89°44'38"E-632.91')

AutoCAD SHX Text
(S84°37'12"E-118.19)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(N01°23'32"W-373.66')

AutoCAD SHX Text
(S01°16'57"E-771.47')

AutoCAD SHX Text
(N61°51'03"W-860.55')

AutoCAD SHX Text
DENOTES FIELD DIMENSION

AutoCAD SHX Text
DENOTES RECORD DIMENSION

AutoCAD SHX Text
000.00

AutoCAD SHX Text
(000.00)



LOT 11LOT 12

Pinnacle Heights Condominiums

LOT 10

LOT 09

LOT 08

LOT 07

Southern Pines
Second Add.

LOT 01
Southview Heights

LOT 06
Green Creek Third Add. 

Pinnacle Ridge First

LOT 08

LOT 09

LOT 10

S
u

rv
ey

in
g

, I
n

c.
W

ay
n

e 
C

la
as

se
n

 E
n

g
in

ee
ri

n
g

 a
n

d

L
O

T
 2

, P
in

n
ac

le
 P

ra
ir

ie
 T

o
w

n
h

o
m

es
 P

h
as

e 
I

M
as

te
r 

P
la

n
 -

 O
p

ti
o

n
 B

W
h

is
p

er
in

g
 P

in
es

 C
o

n
d

o
m

in
iu

m
s

C
ed

ar
 F

al
ls

, I
o

w
a

370

Item 31.

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
10' UTILITY EASEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
100' R-O-W

AutoCAD SHX Text
OSTER PARKWAY (PUBLIC STREET)

AutoCAD SHX Text
GREEN

AutoCAD SHX Text
Greenhill Road (ROW Varies)

AutoCAD SHX Text
69'

AutoCAD SHX Text
B-B

AutoCAD SHX Text
40' DRAINAGE/UTILITY EASEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
TVP

AutoCAD SHX Text
SIGN

AutoCAD SHX Text
SAN

AutoCAD SHX Text
SAN

AutoCAD SHX Text
SAN

AutoCAD SHX Text
SAN

AutoCAD SHX Text
SAN

AutoCAD SHX Text
SAN

AutoCAD SHX Text
SAN

AutoCAD SHX Text
SAN

AutoCAD SHX Text
SAN

AutoCAD SHX Text
SAN

AutoCAD SHX Text
SAN

AutoCAD SHX Text
SAN

AutoCAD SHX Text
SAN

AutoCAD SHX Text
SAN

AutoCAD SHX Text
SAN

AutoCAD SHX Text
SAN

AutoCAD SHX Text
SAN

AutoCAD SHX Text
SAN

AutoCAD SHX Text
SAN

AutoCAD SHX Text
SAN

AutoCAD SHX Text
SAN

AutoCAD SHX Text
SAN

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
10' UTILITY EASEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
Y

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
Y

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
CREEK

AutoCAD SHX Text
ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text
(PUBLIC

AutoCAD SHX Text
STREET)

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX 12" WAT

AutoCAD SHX Text
FL OUT=914.10

AutoCAD SHX Text
STM-S5

AutoCAD SHX Text
FORM=922.21

AutoCAD SHX Text
FL OUT=918.21

AutoCAD SHX Text
21.0' AT 1.00%

AutoCAD SHX Text
STM-P5

AutoCAD SHX Text
128.7' AT 2.87%

AutoCAD SHX Text
STM-P7

AutoCAD SHX Text
FL OUT=922.00

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXIST. SAN MH

AutoCAD SHX Text
TOP=922.03

AutoCAD SHX Text
FL =911.04

AutoCAD SHX Text
SAN-S2

AutoCAD SHX Text
FORM=916.75

AutoCAD SHX Text
FL PROP. IN=904.60

AutoCAD SHX Text
FL EXIST. OUT=904.50

AutoCAD SHX Text
STUB=916.90

AutoCAD SHX Text
73.0' AT 2.00%

AutoCAD SHX Text
SAN. SERV. BLDG. 8

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
Y

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
Y

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
SUB-1

AutoCAD SHX Text
SUB-2

AutoCAD SHX Text
SUB-3

AutoCAD SHX Text
SUB-4

AutoCAD SHX Text
SUB-3

AutoCAD SHX Text
SUB-4

AutoCAD SHX Text
SUB-3

AutoCAD SHX Text
SUB-4

AutoCAD SHX Text
SUB-5

AutoCAD SHX Text
SUB-6

AutoCAD SHX Text
SUMP PUMP

AutoCAD SHX Text
SUMP PUMP

AutoCAD SHX Text
SUMP PUMP

AutoCAD SHX Text
SUMP PUMP

AutoCAD SHX Text
SUMP PUMP

AutoCAD SHX Text
SUMP PUMP

AutoCAD SHX Text
SUMP PUMP

AutoCAD SHX Text
SUMP PUMP

AutoCAD SHX Text
UNIT #4516

AutoCAD SHX Text
UNIT #4514

AutoCAD SHX Text
UNIT #4512

AutoCAD SHX Text
UNIT #4510

AutoCAD SHX Text
UNIT #4566

AutoCAD SHX Text
UNIT #4568

AutoCAD SHX Text
UNIT #4570

AutoCAD SHX Text
UNIT #4572

AutoCAD SHX Text
UNIT #4574

AutoCAD SHX Text
UNIT #4576

AutoCAD SHX Text
UNIT #4578

AutoCAD SHX Text
UNIT #4580

AutoCAD SHX Text
UNIT #4610

AutoCAD SHX Text
UNIT #4612

AutoCAD SHX Text
UNIT #4614

AutoCAD SHX Text
UNIT #4616

AutoCAD SHX Text
UNIT #4626

AutoCAD SHX Text
UNIT #4630

AutoCAD SHX Text
UNIT #4632

AutoCAD SHX Text
UNIT #1717

AutoCAD SHX Text
UNIT #1715

AutoCAD SHX Text
UNIT #4608

AutoCAD SHX Text
UNIT #4606

AutoCAD SHX Text
UNIT #4602

AutoCAD SHX Text
UNIT #4604

AutoCAD SHX Text
UNIT #1819

AutoCAD SHX Text
UNIT #1815

AutoCAD SHX Text
UNIT #1811

AutoCAD SHX Text
UNIT #4534

AutoCAD SHX Text
#1726

AutoCAD SHX Text
#1724

AutoCAD SHX Text
#1722

AutoCAD SHX Text
FUTURE

AutoCAD SHX Text
UNIT #4628

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
SAN

AutoCAD SHX Text
SAN

AutoCAD SHX Text
SAN

AutoCAD SHX Text
SAN

AutoCAD SHX Text
SAN

AutoCAD SHX Text
SAN

AutoCAD SHX Text
SAN

AutoCAD SHX Text
SAN

AutoCAD SHX Text
SAN

AutoCAD SHX Text
SAN

AutoCAD SHX Text
SAN

AutoCAD SHX Text
SAN

AutoCAD SHX Text
SAN

AutoCAD SHX Text
SAN

AutoCAD SHX Text
SAN

AutoCAD SHX Text
SAN

AutoCAD SHX Text
SAN

AutoCAD SHX Text
SAN

AutoCAD SHX Text
SAN

AutoCAD SHX Text
SAN

AutoCAD SHX Text
SAN

AutoCAD SHX Text
STM

AutoCAD SHX Text
STM

AutoCAD SHX Text
STM

AutoCAD SHX Text
STM

AutoCAD SHX Text
STM

AutoCAD SHX Text
STM

AutoCAD SHX Text
STM

AutoCAD SHX Text
STM

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
STM

AutoCAD SHX Text
STM

AutoCAD SHX Text
STM

AutoCAD SHX Text
STM

AutoCAD SHX Text
STM

AutoCAD SHX Text
STM

AutoCAD SHX Text
STM

AutoCAD SHX Text
STM

AutoCAD SHX Text
STM

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
STM

AutoCAD SHX Text
STM

AutoCAD SHX Text
STM

AutoCAD SHX Text
STM

AutoCAD SHX Text
STM

AutoCAD SHX Text
STM

AutoCAD SHX Text
STM

AutoCAD SHX Text
STM

AutoCAD SHX Text
STM

AutoCAD SHX Text
STM

AutoCAD SHX Text
STM

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
STM

AutoCAD SHX Text
STM

AutoCAD SHX Text
30' Drainage & Utility Easement

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
WHISPERING PINES CIRCLE(PRIVATE)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(Drainage Way)

AutoCAD SHX Text
STORM DETENTION AREA 

AutoCAD SHX Text
10' UTILITY EASEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
20' DRAINAGE EASEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
280m

AutoCAD SHX Text
920

AutoCAD SHX Text
280m

AutoCAD SHX Text
285m

AutoCAD SHX Text
285m

AutoCAD SHX Text
285m

AutoCAD SHX Text
285m

AutoCAD SHX Text
Emergencey Overflow Channel &Twin 48" RCPC

AutoCAD SHX Text
Fax: (319) 235-0028

AutoCAD SHX Text
Phone: (319) 235-6294

AutoCAD SHX Text
Waterloo, Iowa 50701

AutoCAD SHX Text
P.O. Box 898

AutoCAD SHX Text
2705 University Avenue

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE

AutoCAD SHX Text
REVISIONS

AutoCAD SHX Text
DR.

AutoCAD SHX Text
CK'D

AutoCAD SHX Text
PG.

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE PLOTTED:

AutoCAD SHX Text
FILENAME:

AutoCAD SHX Text
5.

AutoCAD SHX Text
4.

AutoCAD SHX Text
3.

AutoCAD SHX Text
1.

AutoCAD SHX Text
FILE NO.

AutoCAD SHX Text
BK.

AutoCAD SHX Text
2.

AutoCAD SHX Text
sheet

AutoCAD SHX Text
1 of 1

AutoCAD SHX Text
75

AutoCAD SHX Text
50

AutoCAD SHX Text
150

AutoCAD SHX Text
100

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
50

AutoCAD SHX Text
1 INCH =     FEET

AutoCAD SHX Text
- DENOTES EXISTING SAN. SEWER LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
- DENOTES EXISTING WATER MAIN

AutoCAD SHX Text
- DENOTES STORM DRAINAGE

AutoCAD SHX Text
LEGEND:

AutoCAD SHX Text
08-21-2023

AutoCAD SHX Text
SAN

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
STM

AutoCAD SHX Text
900

AutoCAD SHX Text
910

AutoCAD SHX Text
2.5:1

AutoCAD SHX Text
3:1

AutoCAD SHX Text
FUTURE

AutoCAD SHX Text
30' Drainage & Utility Easement

AutoCAD SHX Text
30' Utility & Landscape Easement

AutoCAD SHX Text
30' Utility & Landscape Easement

AutoCAD SHX Text
10' UTILITY EASEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
Drainage & Utility  Easement

AutoCAD SHX Text
Permanent Drainage & Detention Basin Easement Doc. No. 2009-18889

AutoCAD SHX Text
Permanent Drainage & Detention Basin Easement Doc. No. 2009-18889

AutoCAD SHX Text
(27')

AutoCAD SHX Text
(34')

AutoCAD SHX Text
(27')

AutoCAD SHX Text
(40')

AutoCAD SHX Text
(32')

AutoCAD SHX Text
(28')

AutoCAD SHX Text
FUTURE

AutoCAD SHX Text
FUTURE

AutoCAD SHX Text
(21')

AutoCAD SHX Text
(21')

AutoCAD SHX Text
(27')

AutoCAD SHX Text
(33')

AutoCAD SHX Text
(43')

AutoCAD SHX Text
(45')

AutoCAD SHX Text
(27')

AutoCAD SHX Text
(24')

AutoCAD SHX Text
(24')

AutoCAD SHX Text
(21')

AutoCAD SHX Text
(21')

AutoCAD SHX Text
N89°44'38"E-632.57'

AutoCAD SHX Text
S84°29'52"E-117.73'

AutoCAD SHX Text
S01°17'48"E-771.47'

AutoCAD SHX Text
N61°48'42"W-860.30'

AutoCAD SHX Text
N01°22'15"W-373.46'

AutoCAD SHX Text
(N89°44'38"E-632.91')

AutoCAD SHX Text
(S84°37'12"E-118.19)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(N01°23'32"W-373.66')

AutoCAD SHX Text
(S01°16'57"E-771.47')

AutoCAD SHX Text
(N61°51'03"W-860.55')

AutoCAD SHX Text
DENOTES FIELD DIMENSION

AutoCAD SHX Text
DENOTES RECORD DIMENSION

AutoCAD SHX Text
000.00

AutoCAD SHX Text
(000.00)



LOT 11LOT 12

Pinnacle Heights Condominiums

LOT 10

LOT 09

LOT 08

LOT 07

Southern Pines
Second Add.

LOT 01
Southview Heights

LOT 06
Green Creek Third Add. 

Pinnacle Ridge First

LOT 08

LOT 09

LOT 10

S
u

rv
ey

in
g

, I
n

c.
W

ay
n

e 
C

la
as

se
n

 E
n

g
in

ee
ri

n
g

 a
n

d

L
O

T
 2

, P
in

n
ac

le
 P

ra
ir

ie
 T

o
w

n
h

o
m

es
 P

h
as

e 
I

M
as

te
r 

P
la

n
 -

 O
p

ti
o

n
 C

W
h

is
p

er
in

g
 P

in
es

 C
o

n
d

o
m

in
iu

m
s

C
ed

ar
 F

al
ls

, I
o

w
a

371

Item 31.

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
10' UTILITY EASEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
100' R-O-W

AutoCAD SHX Text
OSTER PARKWAY (PUBLIC STREET)

AutoCAD SHX Text
GREEN

AutoCAD SHX Text
Greenhill Road (ROW Varies)

AutoCAD SHX Text
69'

AutoCAD SHX Text
B-B

AutoCAD SHX Text
40' DRAINAGE/UTILITY EASEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
TVP

AutoCAD SHX Text
SIGN

AutoCAD SHX Text
SAN

AutoCAD SHX Text
SAN

AutoCAD SHX Text
SAN

AutoCAD SHX Text
SAN

AutoCAD SHX Text
SAN

AutoCAD SHX Text
SAN

AutoCAD SHX Text
SAN

AutoCAD SHX Text
SAN

AutoCAD SHX Text
SAN

AutoCAD SHX Text
SAN

AutoCAD SHX Text
SAN

AutoCAD SHX Text
SAN

AutoCAD SHX Text
SAN

AutoCAD SHX Text
SAN

AutoCAD SHX Text
SAN

AutoCAD SHX Text
SAN

AutoCAD SHX Text
SAN

AutoCAD SHX Text
SAN

AutoCAD SHX Text
SAN

AutoCAD SHX Text
SAN

AutoCAD SHX Text
SAN

AutoCAD SHX Text
SAN

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
10' UTILITY EASEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
Y

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
Y

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
CREEK

AutoCAD SHX Text
ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text
(PUBLIC

AutoCAD SHX Text
STREET)

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX 12" WAT

AutoCAD SHX Text
FL OUT=914.10

AutoCAD SHX Text
STM-S5

AutoCAD SHX Text
FORM=922.21

AutoCAD SHX Text
FL OUT=918.21

AutoCAD SHX Text
21.0' AT 1.00%

AutoCAD SHX Text
STM-P5

AutoCAD SHX Text
128.7' AT 2.87%

AutoCAD SHX Text
STM-P7

AutoCAD SHX Text
FL OUT=922.00

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXIST. SAN MH

AutoCAD SHX Text
TOP=922.03

AutoCAD SHX Text
FL =911.04

AutoCAD SHX Text
SAN-S2

AutoCAD SHX Text
FORM=916.75

AutoCAD SHX Text
FL PROP. IN=904.60

AutoCAD SHX Text
FL EXIST. OUT=904.50

AutoCAD SHX Text
STUB=916.90

AutoCAD SHX Text
73.0' AT 2.00%

AutoCAD SHX Text
SAN. SERV. BLDG. 8

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
Y

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
Y

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
SUB-1

AutoCAD SHX Text
SUB-2

AutoCAD SHX Text
SUB-3

AutoCAD SHX Text
SUB-4

AutoCAD SHX Text
SUB-3

AutoCAD SHX Text
SUB-4

AutoCAD SHX Text
SUB-3

AutoCAD SHX Text
SUB-4

AutoCAD SHX Text
SUB-5

AutoCAD SHX Text
SUB-6

AutoCAD SHX Text
SUMP PUMP

AutoCAD SHX Text
SUMP PUMP

AutoCAD SHX Text
SUMP PUMP

AutoCAD SHX Text
SUMP PUMP

AutoCAD SHX Text
SUMP PUMP

AutoCAD SHX Text
SUMP PUMP

AutoCAD SHX Text
SUMP PUMP

AutoCAD SHX Text
SUMP PUMP

AutoCAD SHX Text
UNIT #4516

AutoCAD SHX Text
UNIT #4514

AutoCAD SHX Text
UNIT #4512

AutoCAD SHX Text
UNIT #4510

AutoCAD SHX Text
UNIT #4566

AutoCAD SHX Text
UNIT #4568

AutoCAD SHX Text
UNIT #4570

AutoCAD SHX Text
UNIT #4572

AutoCAD SHX Text
UNIT #4574

AutoCAD SHX Text
UNIT #4576

AutoCAD SHX Text
UNIT #4578

AutoCAD SHX Text
UNIT #4580

AutoCAD SHX Text
UNIT #4610

AutoCAD SHX Text
UNIT #4612

AutoCAD SHX Text
UNIT #4614

AutoCAD SHX Text
UNIT #4616

AutoCAD SHX Text
UNIT #4626

AutoCAD SHX Text
UNIT #4630

AutoCAD SHX Text
UNIT #4632

AutoCAD SHX Text
UNIT #1717

AutoCAD SHX Text
UNIT #1715

AutoCAD SHX Text
UNIT #4608

AutoCAD SHX Text
UNIT #4606

AutoCAD SHX Text
UNIT #4602

AutoCAD SHX Text
UNIT #4604

AutoCAD SHX Text
UNIT #1819

AutoCAD SHX Text
UNIT #1815

AutoCAD SHX Text
UNIT #1811

AutoCAD SHX Text
UNIT #4534

AutoCAD SHX Text
#1726

AutoCAD SHX Text
#1724

AutoCAD SHX Text
#1722

AutoCAD SHX Text
UNIT #4628

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
SAN

AutoCAD SHX Text
SAN

AutoCAD SHX Text
SAN

AutoCAD SHX Text
SAN

AutoCAD SHX Text
SAN

AutoCAD SHX Text
SAN

AutoCAD SHX Text
SAN

AutoCAD SHX Text
SAN

AutoCAD SHX Text
SAN

AutoCAD SHX Text
SAN

AutoCAD SHX Text
SAN

AutoCAD SHX Text
SAN

AutoCAD SHX Text
SAN

AutoCAD SHX Text
SAN

AutoCAD SHX Text
SAN

AutoCAD SHX Text
SAN

AutoCAD SHX Text
SAN

AutoCAD SHX Text
SAN

AutoCAD SHX Text
SAN

AutoCAD SHX Text
SAN

AutoCAD SHX Text
SAN

AutoCAD SHX Text
STM

AutoCAD SHX Text
STM

AutoCAD SHX Text
STM

AutoCAD SHX Text
STM

AutoCAD SHX Text
STM

AutoCAD SHX Text
STM

AutoCAD SHX Text
STM

AutoCAD SHX Text
STM

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
STM

AutoCAD SHX Text
STM

AutoCAD SHX Text
STM

AutoCAD SHX Text
STM

AutoCAD SHX Text
STM

AutoCAD SHX Text
STM

AutoCAD SHX Text
STM

AutoCAD SHX Text
STM

AutoCAD SHX Text
STM

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
STM

AutoCAD SHX Text
STM

AutoCAD SHX Text
STM

AutoCAD SHX Text
STM

AutoCAD SHX Text
STM

AutoCAD SHX Text
STM

AutoCAD SHX Text
STM

AutoCAD SHX Text
STM

AutoCAD SHX Text
STM

AutoCAD SHX Text
STM

AutoCAD SHX Text
STM

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
STM

AutoCAD SHX Text
STM

AutoCAD SHX Text
30' Drainage & Utility Easement

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
WHISPERING PINES CIRCLE(PRIVATE)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(Drainage Way)

AutoCAD SHX Text
STORM DETENTION AREA 

AutoCAD SHX Text
10' UTILITY EASEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
20' DRAINAGE EASEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
280m

AutoCAD SHX Text
920

AutoCAD SHX Text
280m

AutoCAD SHX Text
285m

AutoCAD SHX Text
285m

AutoCAD SHX Text
285m

AutoCAD SHX Text
285m

AutoCAD SHX Text
Emergencey Overflow Channel &Twin 48" RCPC

AutoCAD SHX Text
Fax: (319) 235-0028

AutoCAD SHX Text
Phone: (319) 235-6294

AutoCAD SHX Text
Waterloo, Iowa 50701

AutoCAD SHX Text
P.O. Box 898

AutoCAD SHX Text
2705 University Avenue

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE

AutoCAD SHX Text
REVISIONS

AutoCAD SHX Text
DR.

AutoCAD SHX Text
CK'D

AutoCAD SHX Text
PG.

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE PLOTTED:

AutoCAD SHX Text
FILENAME:

AutoCAD SHX Text
5.

AutoCAD SHX Text
4.

AutoCAD SHX Text
3.

AutoCAD SHX Text
1.

AutoCAD SHX Text
FILE NO.

AutoCAD SHX Text
BK.

AutoCAD SHX Text
2.

AutoCAD SHX Text
sheet

AutoCAD SHX Text
1 of 1

AutoCAD SHX Text
75

AutoCAD SHX Text
50

AutoCAD SHX Text
150

AutoCAD SHX Text
100

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
50

AutoCAD SHX Text
1 INCH =     FEET

AutoCAD SHX Text
- DENOTES EXISTING SAN. SEWER LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
- DENOTES EXISTING WATER MAIN

AutoCAD SHX Text
- DENOTES STORM DRAINAGE

AutoCAD SHX Text
LEGEND:

AutoCAD SHX Text
08-21-2023

AutoCAD SHX Text
SAN

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
STM

AutoCAD SHX Text
900

AutoCAD SHX Text
910

AutoCAD SHX Text
2.5:1

AutoCAD SHX Text
3:1

AutoCAD SHX Text
FUTURE

AutoCAD SHX Text
30' Drainage & Utility Easement

AutoCAD SHX Text
30' Utility & Landscape Easement

AutoCAD SHX Text
30' Utility & Landscape Easement

AutoCAD SHX Text
10' UTILITY EASEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
Drainage & Utility  Easement

AutoCAD SHX Text
Permanent Drainage & Detention Basin Easement Doc. No. 2009-18889

AutoCAD SHX Text
Permanent Drainage & Detention Basin Easement Doc. No. 2009-18889

AutoCAD SHX Text
(27')

AutoCAD SHX Text
(34')

AutoCAD SHX Text
(27')

AutoCAD SHX Text
(31')

AutoCAD SHX Text
(28')

AutoCAD SHX Text
FUTURE

AutoCAD SHX Text
(20')

AutoCAD SHX Text
(21')

AutoCAD SHX Text
(27')

AutoCAD SHX Text
(34')

AutoCAD SHX Text
(43')

AutoCAD SHX Text
(45')

AutoCAD SHX Text
(27')

AutoCAD SHX Text
(24')

AutoCAD SHX Text
(24')

AutoCAD SHX Text
(21')

AutoCAD SHX Text
(21')

AutoCAD SHX Text
N89°44'38"E-632.57'

AutoCAD SHX Text
S84°29'52"E-117.73'

AutoCAD SHX Text
S01°17'48"E-771.47'

AutoCAD SHX Text
N61°48'42"W-860.30'

AutoCAD SHX Text
N01°22'15"W-373.46'

AutoCAD SHX Text
(N89°44'38"E-632.91')

AutoCAD SHX Text
(S84°37'12"E-118.19)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(N01°23'32"W-373.66')

AutoCAD SHX Text
(S01°16'57"E-771.47')

AutoCAD SHX Text
(S01°16'57"E-14.50')

AutoCAD SHX Text
(N61°51'03"W-860.55')

AutoCAD SHX Text
Future 6 car garage

AutoCAD SHX Text
Future 6 car garage

AutoCAD SHX Text
(32')

AutoCAD SHX Text
(31')

AutoCAD SHX Text
(42')

AutoCAD SHX Text
DENOTES FIELD DIMENSION

AutoCAD SHX Text
DENOTES RECORD DIMENSION

AutoCAD SHX Text
000.00

AutoCAD SHX Text
(000.00)



372

Item 31.



373

Item 31.



374

Item 31.



375

Item 31.



376

Item 31.



377

Item 31.



378

Item 31.



379

Item 31.



380

Item 31.



381

Item 31.



382

Item 31.



383

Item 31.



384

Item 31.



385

Item 31.



386

Item 31.



387

Item 31.



388

Item 31.



DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-273-8606 
Fax: 319-273-8610 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 

MEMORANDUM 
Planning & Community Services Division 

  

   

 

 

 
 
 
 

 TO: Honorable Mayor Robert M. Green and City Council 

 FROM: Chris Sevy, AICP Planner I 

 DATE: October 2, 2023 

 SUBJECT: Set Public Hearing for Easement Vacation 
 

 
REQUEST: 

 
Request to vacate a 28-foot-wide drainage easement Case #VAC23-002 
 

PETITIONER: City of Cedar Falls 
 

LOCATION: 
 

Lots 17 & 18 at Northeast block of the intersection of Technology Parkway 
and Innovation Drive 
 

 

PROPOSAL 
This request includes the vacation of a 28-foot-wide drainage easement along the eastern edge 
of Lots 17 & 18 at Northeast block of the intersection of Technology Parkway and Innovation 
Drive. 
 
BACKGROUND 
A 28-foot-wide drainage 
easement lies across the 
eastern edge of Lots 17 and 
18 at northeast block of the 
intersection of Technology 
Parkway and Innovation Drive 
(block outlined in yellow). This 
easement is identified in the 
West Viking Road Industrial 
Park Phase V. The property is 
currently owned by the City. 
 
A full staff report will be 
forwarded to the Council for 
consideration on the hearing 
date. 
  

 

389

Item 32.



 
RECOMMENDATION 
The Planning and Zoning Commission considered this request for easement vacation at their 
meeting on September 13, 2023, and unanimously recommended approval of VAC23-002, the 
vacation of a 28-foot drainage easement on Lots 17 and 18 of the W. Viking Road Industrial 
Park, Phase V. 
 
Based on the recommendation of the Planning and Zoning Commission, Staff recommends that 
the City Council set a public hearing date for October 16, 2023 to consider this request. 
 
 
Attachments: Resolution setting public hearing date 
  Easement Vacation Plat  

 
 
 

390

Item 32.



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Prepared by:  Chris Sevy, Planner I, 220 Clay St., Cedar Falls, IA 50613 (319) 273-8600 
After Recording, Return to: City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, 220 Clay St., Cedar Falls, IA  50613 

 
 

RESOLUTION NO. ____________________ 
 

RESOLUTION DIRECTING PUBLICATION OF NOTICE AND SETTING DATE FOR PUBLIC 
HEARING ON A PROPOSAL TO VACATE A DRAINAGE EASEMENT IN WEST VIKING 

INDUSTRIAL PARK PHASE V 
 
 WHEREAS, the Planning and Zoning Commission of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, has 
recommended to the City Council of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, the vacation of a drainage 
easement, as described below; and 
 

WHEREAS, the City Council does hereby propose to consider vacating said drainage 
easement after public hearing on required notice hereof. 
  

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Cedar Falls, 
Iowa, that the City Clerk be and is hereby authorized and directed to publish notice of a public 
hearing to be held in the Council Chambers of the City Hall of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, at 
7:00 p.m. on the 16th day of October 2023, on a proposal to vacate the 28-foot drainage easement 
over, under and upon the property described as: 

 
THE EAST 28 FEET OF LOT 17, AND THE EAST 28 FEET OF LOT 18, WEST 

VIKING ROAD INDUSTRIAL PARK PHASE V, BLACK HAWK COUNTY, IOWA. 

 
ADOPTED this 2nd day of October 2023. 
 
 
 
 ______________________________________ 
 Robert M. Green, Mayor 
 
 
 
 
ATTEST:   ______________________________ 
 Jacqueline Danielsen, MMC, City Clerk 

391

Item 32.



TECHNOLOGY PARKWAY

18

17

W
E

S
T 

V
IK

IN
G

 R
O

A
D

IN
D

U
S

TR
IA

L
P

A
R

K
 P

H
A

S
E

 II
I

FI
N

AL
 P

LA
T 

(R
2)

FI
LE

 N
U

M
BE

R
: 2

01
2-

00
00

94
79

LOT 17

LOT 1

LOT 2

LOT 3

N90°00'00"W 300.15'

R=42.50'
I=81°27'54"
L=60.43'
LCB=N49°16'03"W
LC=55.46'

N8°32'06"W 50.69'

N
0°

00
'0

0"
E 

31
3.

68
'

N90°00'00"E
349.77'

N
0°

00
'0

0"
E 

43
3.

01
'

N90°00'00"E
349.84'

IN
N

O
VA

TI
O

N
 D

R
IV

E

20
0.

00
' (

R
)

20
0.

00
' (

M
 &

 R
)

20
0.

00
' (

M
 &

 R
)

23
3.

00
' (

M
 &

 R
)

25
'

28' DRAINAGE
EASEMENT

TO BE VACATED

25'X40' STORM
SEWER EASEMENT
IS NOT TO BE VACATED

40'

25
'

28' DRAINAGE
EASEMENT

TO BE VACATED

10
' P

.U
.E

.
25

' B
U

IL
D

IN
G

 S
ET

BA
C

K

W
E

S
T 

V
IK

IN
G

 R
O

A
D

 IN
D

U
S

TR
IA

L 
P

A
R

K
 P

H
A

S
E

 V
FI

N
AL

 P
LA

T
FI

LE
 N

U
M

BE
R

: 2
02

3-
00

00
44

26

S0
°0

0'
36

"W
 4

00
.0

0'
S0

°0
0'

36
"W

 4
33

.0
1'

W
E

S
T 

V
IK

IN
G

 R
O

A
D

 IN
D

U
S

TR
IA

L 
P

A
R

K
 P

H
A

S
E

 IV
FI

N
AL

 P
LA

T 
(R

3)
FI

LE
 N

U
M

BE
R

: 2
01

4-
00

00
06

87

EASEMENT VACATION EXHIBIT
LOTS 17 & 18, WEST VIKING ROAD INDUSTRIAL PARK PHASE V

V:\Projects\2018\118.1174.08B\Survey\118117408B_PLAT_ESMT_VACATION.dwg

EASEMENT VACATION EXHIBIT

SHEET 1 OF 1

PN: 118.1174.08B

DATE: 08/28/2023

PM/TECH: WTH

T-R-S:T89N-R14W-34

LEGEND
FEATURES FOUND
1/2" Rebar, Cap #22020
     w/Yellow Plastic Cap
1/2" Iron Rod, Cap #8505

w/Yellow Plastic Cap
Record Distance R

FEET

0 100

900 BELL DRIVE SW
     CEDAR RAPIDS, IOWA 52404 (319)362-9394

INDEX LEGEND
SURVEYOR'S NAME / RETURN TO:
     WALTER T. HURLBUTT
     SNYDER & ASSOCIATES, INC.
     900 BELL DRIVE SW
     CEDAR RAPIDS, IOWA 52404
     319-362-9394
     WHURLBUTT@SNYDER-ASSOCIATES.COM
SURVEY LOCATED:
     LOTS 17 & 18
     WEST VIKING ROAD INDUSTRIAL PARK PHASE V
REQUESTED BY:
     CITY OF CEDAR FALLS
PROPRIETOR:
      CITY OF CEDAR FALLS

AREA ABOVE RESERVED FOR RECORDER

LEGAL DESCRIPTION
The East 28 feet of Lot 17, and the
East 28 feet of Lot 18, West Viking
Road Industrial Park Phase V, Black
Hawk County, Iowa.

392

Item 32.



    ADMINISTRATION 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-273-8600 
Fax: 319-273-8610 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 
MEMORANDUM 

  

   

 

 

 
 

 

 TO: Honorable Mayor Robert M. Green and City Council 

 FROM: Shane Graham, Economic Development Coordinator 

 DATE: September 25, 2023 

SUBJECT:      Sale of Lot 8, West Viking Road Industrial Park Phase V, City of Cedar 
Falls, Black Hawk County, Iowa (Contains 16.40 acres more or less). 

 
 
Staff would like to request that a public hearing be scheduled for October 16, 2023 to 
address the proposed transfer of the above referenced City owned real estate to KL 
Iowa 02, LLC. The proposed project would consist of a new 120,000 square foot 
manufacturing facility to be constructed along Venture Way in the West Viking Road 
Industrial Park. Additional information pertaining to the land transaction and the 
Agreement for Private Development will be provided to City Council prior to the public 
hearing. 
 
If you have any questions, please feel free to contact me. 
 
         
        
 
 
 

393

Item 33.



De
ve

lop
me

nt 
Dr

W Viking Rd

Inn
ova

tio
n D

r

Technology Pkwy

Capital Way

Venture Way

S U
nio

n R
d

I

Hawkeye
Corrugated

Box

Phase II
Option Lot

CFU
Electrical

Substation

Project Location

KL Iowa 02, LLC
120,000 sq. ft.
Manufacturing Facility

D. LaPorte

Phase III
Option Lot

394

Item 33.



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
Prepared by: Shane Graham, Economic Development Coordinator, 220 Clay Street, Cedar Falls, IA 50613, (319) 268-5160 

 

 

RESOLUTION NO. ______ 

 

RESOLUTION SETTING DATE OF PUBLIC HEARING (1) TO CONSIDER 

ENTERING INTO A PROPOSED AGREEMENT FOR PRIVATE DEVELOPMENT 

BETWEEN THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA, AND KL IOWA 02, LLC; AND 

(2) TO CONSIDER CONVEYANCE OF CERTAIN CITY-OWNED REAL ESTATE 

TO KL IOWA 02, LLC, PURSUANT TO SAID PROPOSED AGREEMENT 

 

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, has received a proposal from KL 

Iowa 02, LLC, an Iowa limited liability company (the “Developer”), to enter into a proposed Agreement 

for Private Development (the "Agreement") between the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, and KL Iowa 02, 

LLC on terms which include: 

 

(1) Conveyance of certain city-owned real estate legally described as consisting of all that 

certain parcel or parcels of land located generally in the City of Cedar Falls, County of 

Black Hawk, State of Iowa, more particularly described as follows: 

 

Lot 8, West Viking Road Industrial Park Phase V, City of Cedar Falls, Black Hawk 

County, Iowa (Contains 16.40 acres more or less); 

 

and  

 

(2) Entering into a Minimum Assessment Agreement whereby the minimum actual assessed 

value of the land and improvements to be constructed on the Development Property 

would be established at an amount not less than $10,312,000.00 for a period through 

December 31, 2034; 

and  

 

 WHEREAS, as required by law, a hearing is to be held by the City Council of the City of Cedar 

Falls, Iowa, to consider entering into the proposed Agreement for Private Development and conveyance 

of the Development Property to the Developer pursuant to the terms of said Agreement.  

 

 

395

Item 33.



 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

CEDAR FALLS, IOWA, that a hearing be held on the 16th day of October, 2023, at 7:00 p.m., in the 

Council Chambers of the City Hall of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, 220 Clay Street, Cedar Falls, Iowa, 

to consider entering into a proposed Agreement for Private Development between the City of Cedar 

Falls, Iowa, and KL Iowa 02, LLC, and to consider conveyance of the Development Property to the 

Developer on certain terms as set forth in the proposed agreement.  A copy of the proposed agreement is 

on file in the Office of the Cedar Falls City Clerk.  The City Clerk is hereby directed to publish said 

notice of said public hearing. 

 

ADOPTED this 2nd day of October, 2023. 

 

   

  Robert M. Green, Mayor 
   

ATTEST:   
   

   

Jacqueline Danielsen, MMC, City Clerk   

 

  

396

Item 33.



CERTIFICATE 

 

 

STATE OF IOWA   ) 

     ) SS: 

COUNTY OF BLACK HAWK: ) 

 

 

I, Jacqueline Danielsen, City Clerk of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, hereby certify that the above 

and foregoing is a true and correct typewritten copy of Resolution No. _______________ duly and 

legally adopted by the City Council of said City on the 2nd day of October, 2023. 

 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto signed my name and affixed the official seal of the 

City of Cedar Falls, Iowa this _____ day of ____________________, 2023. 

  

 

 

  

Jacqueline Danielsen 

City Clerk of Cedar Falls, Iowa 

 

397

Item 33.



DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-268-5161 
Fax: 319-268-5197 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 
MEMORANDUM 

Engineering Division 

  

  

 

 

 
 
 
 TO:   Honorable Mayor Robert M Green and City Council 
 
 FROM:  David Wicke, PE 
 
 DATE:  September 25, 2023 
 
 SUBJECT: North Cedar Heights Area Reconstruction Phase II 
    City Project No. RC-092-3271 
    Setting Public Hearing for Starting the ROW Acquisition Process 
 
 
The City of Cedar Falls is continuing with the reconstruction of the North Cedar Heights 
Area along Woodlawn Drive and East Ridgewood to Greenwood Avenue. The project 
will require some right-of-way acquisition, permanent easements, and temporary 
easements to complete the street connection. The project will include installation of 
storm sewer, water main, sanitary sewer, and full depth reconstruction of the pavement 
with curb and gutter.  
 
Plans for the project show the need for fee title and/or easement acquisitions from 
nineteen (19) properties. The included exhibit shows the anticipated easements and fee 
title at the current phase of design. 
 
Iowa law requires that the City Council holds a public hearing to authorize proceeding 
with the project, including the purchase of right-of-way. The public hearing offers an 
opportunity for the public, especially those from whom the fee title and easement 
acquisition will be purchased, to comment on the project. 
 
The Engineering Division recommends setting Monday, October 16, 2023, at 7:00 p.m. 
as the date and time for the public hearing on this project. 
 
xc: Chase Schrage, Director of Public Works 
  

398

Item 34.



11

9

10

8

7

CEDAR HEIGHTS

DIVISION J

1

2

3
4

5
6

7

8

Lu
pto

n's
Tim

be
r P

lat

5

6

1

2

3

4

5

6

E. RIDGEWOOD DRIVE

(20' ROW)

Lu
pto

n's
Tim

be
r P

lat

399

Item 34.

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. RIDGEWOOD DRIVE (ROW UNKNOWN)

AutoCAD SHX Text
110

AutoCAD SHX Text
111

AutoCAD SHX Text
210

AutoCAD SHX Text
211

AutoCAD SHX Text
214

AutoCAD SHX Text
224

AutoCAD SHX Text
225

AutoCAD SHX Text
226

AutoCAD SHX Text
227

AutoCAD SHX Text
228

AutoCAD SHX Text
213

AutoCAD SHX Text
0'

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE

AutoCAD SHX Text
20'

AutoCAD SHX Text
40'

AutoCAD SHX Text
ROW ACQUISITION

AutoCAD SHX Text
TEMPORARY EASEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
PERMANENT EASEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
GRECO, GREGORY L & JAYNE M 2424 WOODLAND DR

AutoCAD SHX Text
SHOFF JERRY L & MARTHA E 2425 WOODLAND DR

AutoCAD SHX Text
GRECO, GREGORY L & JAYNE M 2424 WOODLAND DR

AutoCAD SHX Text
FRANK, MICHAEL L & KIMBERLY K 1614 E RIDGEWOOD DR

AutoCAD SHX Text
DAVIS, THOMAS F & LYNEA G 1622 E RIDGEWOOD DR

AutoCAD SHX Text
GROVER, SUSAN E & WILLIAM A 2408 WOODLAND DR

AutoCAD SHX Text
EASTON, JANE & DAVID 1615 E RIDGEWOOD DR

AutoCAD SHX Text
JACKSON, DAVID A & MARY C 1621 E RIDGEWOOD DR

AutoCAD SHX Text
HAMER, NINA M 1703 E RIDGEWOOD DR

AutoCAD SHX Text
BROWN, RICHARD 1709 E RIDGEWOD DR

AutoCAD SHX Text
YOUNG, JAMES R & LAURINDA K 1713 E RIDGEWOOD DR

AutoCAD SHX Text
HUNERMULLER, LIND J 2339 GREENWOOD AVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
MAUCHAN, JOHN F & RUTH A 2410 GREENWOOD AVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
PANICUCCI, DAVID & MICHELLE 1605 E RIDGEWOOD DR

AutoCAD SHX Text
JENNINGS, CLARK W & EVELYNE E 2315 E RIDGEWOOD DR

AutoCAD SHX Text
O CONNELL, MICHAEL CHILOCOTE, KATHERINE 1514 CHERRY LN

AutoCAD SHX Text
FINNEGAN, JOHN C 1522 CHERRY LN

AutoCAD SHX Text
YOUNG, JAMES R & LAURINDA K 1713 E RIDGEWOOD DR

AutoCAD SHX Text
DABNEY, RUSSELL A & VICKI M 2327 GREENWOOD AVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
E RIDGEWOOD DR

AutoCAD SHX Text
GREENWOOD AVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
GESELL, BONNIE B & ANTHONY C   2518 WOODLAND DR

AutoCAD SHX Text
CHERRY LN

AutoCAD SHX Text
CEDAR HEIGHTS AREA RECONSTRUCTION PHASE II RC-092-3271

AutoCAD SHX Text
BLACK HAWK COUNTY



DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-268-5161 
Fax: 319-268-5197 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 
MEMORANDUM 

Engineering Division 

  

  

 

 

 
 
 
 TO: Honorable Mayor Robert M. Green and City Council 
 
 FROM: Matthew Tolan, EI, Civil Engineer II 
 
 DATE: October 2nd, 2023 
 
 SUBJECT: West Viking Road Reconstruction 
  City Project Number: RC-362-3212 
  Setting Public Hearing for Right of Way Acquisition 
 
The City of Cedar Falls is planning to reconstruct West Viking Road from Union Road to 
Production Drive with improvements along the corridor extending to Hudson Road. 
Work will also include connection of Innovation Drive in the new Industrial Park to W. 
Viking Road, new watermain, new storm sewer with curb and gutter, sanitary sewer 
extension to Innovation Drive, a trail around the new Industrial Park northern pond to 
Hudson Road, and an overlay on W. Viking Road adjacent to the Hudson Road 
intersection with a trail crossing at Hudson Road. The project will require the acquisition 
of temporary and permanent easements on the western side of the corridor from 
seventeen (17) properties to complete construction.  
 
Iowa law requires that the City Council hold a public hearing to authorize proceeding 
with the project, including the purchase of right of way. The public hearing offers an 
opportunity for the public, especially those from whom the easements will be purchased, 
to comment on the project. 
 
The Engineering Division recommends setting Monday, October 16th, 2023, at 7:00 p.m. 
as the date and time for the public hearing on this project. 
 
xc: Chase Schrage, Director of Public Works 
 David Wicke, P.E., City Engineer 

400

Item 35.



 B
Y

D
A

T
E

R
E

V
IS
IO

N
M

A
R

K

S
c
a
le
:

C
h
e
c
k
e
d
 B

y
:

E
n
g
in
e
e
r:

T
e
c
h
n
ic
ia

n
:

D
a
te
:

F
ie
ld
 B

k
: 
  
  
  
  
P
g
:

1
"=
 

Sheet

S
h
e
e
t

Project No:

S
N

Y
D

E
R
 

&
 
A

S
S

O
C
I
A

T
E

S
,
 
I
N

C
.

P
ro
je
c
t 

N
o
:

e
g
u
t
ie
r
r
e
z

V
:\

P
r
o
j
e
c
t
s
\

2
0
1
8
\

1
1
8
.1

1
7

4
.0

8
K
\

C
A

D
D
\

C
D
_

1
1
8
1
1
7

4
K
_

H
1
.d

g
n

4
/
2
0
/
2
0
2
3

4
:2

2
:5

8
 

P
M

D
e
f
a
u
lt

1
:4

0

V
:\

R
e
f
L
ib
r
a
r
y
\

C
A

D
D

S
t
a
n
d
a
r
d
s
\

W
o
r
k
S
p
a
c
e
\

S
t
a
n
d
a
r
d
s
\

P
r
in
t
in

g
\

P
e
n
_

T
a
b
le
s
\

d
a
t
e
.t

b
l

V
8
iC

o
lo
r

H
a
lf

W
e
ig

h
t
P

D
F
.p
lt
c
f
g

1181174K

 

L
E
J

E
IG

1
1
8
1
1
7

4
K

 

W
. 

V
IK
IN

G
 R

O
A

D
 R

E
C

O
N

S
T

R
U

C
T
IO

N
 A

N
D
 T

R
A
IL

C
E

D
A

R
 F

A
L

L
S
, 
IO

W
A

J
M

S

5
1
5
-9

6
4
-2

0
2
0
  
| 
 w

w
w
.s

n
y
d
e
r-
a
s
s
o
c
ia
te
s
.c

o
m

A
N

K
E

N
Y
, 
IO

W
A
 5

0
0
2
3

2
7
2
7
 S
.W
. 
S

N
Y

D
E

R
 B

L
V

D
.

4
/
2
0
/
2
0
2
3

1
0

+
0
0

1
1
+
0
0

1
2

+
0
0

1
3

+
0
0

1
4

+
0
0

1
5

+
0
0

0 20

FEET

H.1

H
.1

2
0
'

W. VIKING ROADS
. 

U
N
IO

N
 R

O
A

D

GRADING LIMITS

GRADING LIMITS

R
IG

H
T
 O

F
 W

A
Y

33.00' LT

+69.27

33.00' LT

+67.03

33.00' LT

+33.03

45.50' LT

+04.30
45.50' LT

+74.30

R/W

PL

TEMPORARY CONSTRUCTION EASEMENT, 1214 SF

38.00' LT

+26.50

38.00' LT

+56.50

8
.5
'

1
2
.5
'

30'

5
'5
'

30'

1
0
'

1
0
'

38.00' LT

+33.03

EASEMENT, 1288 SF
TEMPORARY CONSTRUCTION

41.50' LT

+26.50

41.50' LT

+56.50

43.00' RT

+33.09

38.00' LT

+74.30

38.00' LT

+04.30

43.00' RT

+51.69

EASEMENT, 3185 SF
TEMPORARY CONSTRUCTION

EASEMENT, 4484 SF
TEMPORARY CONSTRUCTION

33.00' RT

+33.09 33.00' RT

+51.69
6
6
' 
R

O
W

2
7
' 
B
/B

LEGEND

PERMANENT EASEMENT

TEMPORARY CONSTRUCTION EASEMENT

PERMANENT EASEMENT LINE

TEMPORARY CONSTRUCTION EASEMENT LINE

GRADING LIMITS

PROPERTY LINE

RIGHT OF WAY

PROPOSED SIDEWALK

PROPOSED ROAD

2

6910 VIKING RD

TROY E SCHLOTMAN & ANDREAL SCHLOTMAN

1

6920 VIKING RD

LARRY A JOHANSEN & ANNA M KALKHOFF

27

2027 S UNION RD

DENNIS D NEBBIE & LINDA J NEBBIE

26

2027 S UNION RD

DENNIS D NEBBIE & LINDA J NEBBIE

401

Item 35.



 B
Y

D
A

T
E

R
E

V
IS
IO

N
M

A
R

K

S
c
a
le
:

C
h
e
c
k
e
d
 B

y
:

E
n
g
in
e
e
r:

T
e
c
h
n
ic
ia

n
:

D
a
te
:

F
ie
ld
 B

k
: 
  
  
  
  
P
g
:

1
"=
 

Sheet

S
h
e
e
t

Project No:

S
N

Y
D

E
R
 

&
 
A

S
S

O
C
I
A

T
E

S
,
 
I
N

C
.

P
ro
je
c
t 

N
o
:

e
g
u
t
ie
r
r
e
z

V
:\

P
r
o
j
e
c
t
s
\

2
0
1
8
\

1
1
8
.1

1
7

4
.0

8
K
\

C
A

D
D
\

C
D
_

1
1
8
1
1
7

4
K
_

H
2
.d

g
n

4
/
2
0
/
2
0
2
3

4
:2

3
:0

0
 

P
M

D
e
f
a
u
lt

1
:4

0

V
:\

R
e
f
L
ib
r
a
r
y
\

C
A

D
D

S
t
a
n
d
a
r
d
s
\

W
o
r
k
S
p
a
c
e
\

S
t
a
n
d
a
r
d
s
\

P
r
in
t
in

g
\

P
e
n
_

T
a
b
le
s
\

d
a
t
e
.t

b
l

V
8
iC

o
lo
r

H
a
lf

W
e
ig

h
t
P

D
F
.p
lt
c
f
g

1181174K

 

L
E
J

E
IG

1
1
8
1
1
7

4
K

 

W
. 

V
IK
IN

G
 R

O
A

D
 R

E
C

O
N

S
T

R
U

C
T
IO

N
 A

N
D
 T

R
A
IL

C
E

D
A

R
 F

A
L

L
S
, 
IO

W
A

J
M

S

5
1
5
-9

6
4
-2

0
2
0
  
| 
 w

w
w
.s

n
y
d
e
r-
a
s
s
o
c
ia
te
s
.c

o
m

A
N

K
E

N
Y
, 
IO

W
A
 5

0
0
2
3

2
7
2
7
 S
.W
. 
S

N
Y

D
E

R
 B

L
V

D
.

4
/
2
0
/
2
0
2
3

1
6

+
0
0

1
7

+
0
0

1
8

+
0
0

1
9

+
0
0

2
0

+
0
0

0 20

FEET

H.2

H
.2

2
0
'

GRADING LIMITS

W. VIKING ROAD

GRADING LIMITS

R
IG

H
T
 O

F
 W

A
Y

53.00' LT

+68.26
53.00' LT

+28.26

33.00' LT

+65.07

R/W

PL

TEMPORARY CONSTRUCTION EASEMENT, 1743 SF

1
0
'

TEMPORARY CONSTRUCTION EASEMENT, 1642 SF2
5
'

58.00' LT

+13.83
58.00' LT

+43.83

2
0
'

38.00' LT

+68.26
38.00' LT

+28.26

38.00' LT

+13.83
38.00' LT

+43.83

6
6
' 
R

O
W

2
7
' 
B
/B

LEGEND

PERMANENT EASEMENT

TEMPORARY CONSTRUCTION EASEMENT

PERMANENT EASEMENT LINE

TEMPORARY CONSTRUCTION EASEMENT LINE

GRADING LIMITS

PROPERTY LINE

RIGHT OF WAY

PROPOSED SIDEWALK

PROPOSED ROAD

4

6810 VIKING RD

MATTHEW L SCHULTES & SARAH A SCHULTES

25

CITY OF CEDAR FALLS

26

2027 S UNION RD

DENNIS D NEBBIE & LINDA J NEBBIE

3

6830 VIKING RD

MICHAEL A HAGER & LYNETTE R HAGER 5

6728 VIKING RD

ROBERT J ZEY

5
'

30'

40'

1
0
'

5
'

33.00' LT

+93.57

33.00' RT

+00.09

43.00' RT

+00.12

402

Item 35.



 B
Y

D
A

T
E

R
E

V
IS
IO

N
M

A
R

K

S
c
a
le
:

C
h
e
c
k
e
d
 B

y
:

E
n
g
in
e
e
r:

T
e
c
h
n
ic
ia

n
:

D
a
te
:

F
ie
ld
 B

k
: 
  
  
  
  
P
g
:

1
"=
 

Sheet

S
h
e
e
t

Project No:

S
N

Y
D

E
R
 

&
 
A

S
S

O
C
I
A

T
E

S
,
 
I
N

C
.

P
ro
je
c
t 

N
o
:

e
g
u
t
ie
r
r
e
z

V
:\

P
r
o
j
e
c
t
s
\

2
0
1
8
\

1
1
8
.1

1
7

4
.0

8
K
\

C
A

D
D
\

C
D
_

1
1
8
1
1
7

4
K
_

H
3
.d

g
n

4
/
2
0
/
2
0
2
3

4
:2

3
:0

2
 

P
M

D
e
f
a
u
lt

1
:4

0

V
:\

R
e
f
L
ib
r
a
r
y
\

C
A

D
D

S
t
a
n
d
a
r
d
s
\

W
o
r
k
S
p
a
c
e
\

S
t
a
n
d
a
r
d
s
\

P
r
in
t
in

g
\

P
e
n
_

T
a
b
le
s
\

d
a
t
e
.t

b
l

V
8
iC

o
lo
r

H
a
lf

W
e
ig

h
t
P

D
F
.p
lt
c
f
g

1181174K

 

L
E
J

E
IG

1
1
8
1
1
7

4
K

 

W
. 

V
IK
IN

G
 R

O
A

D
 R

E
C

O
N

S
T

R
U

C
T
IO

N
 A

N
D
 T

R
A
IL

C
E

D
A

R
 F

A
L

L
S
, 
IO

W
A

J
M

S

5
1
5
-9

6
4
-2

0
2
0
  
| 
 w

w
w
.s

n
y
d
e
r-
a
s
s
o
c
ia
te
s
.c

o
m

A
N

K
E

N
Y
, 
IO

W
A
 5

0
0
2
3

2
7
2
7
 S
.W
. 
S

N
Y

D
E

R
 B

L
V

D
.

4
/
2
0
/
2
0
2
3

2
1
+
0
0

2
2

+
0
0

2
3

+
0
0

2
4

+
0
0

2
5

+
0
0

2
6

+
0
0

0 20

FEET

H.3

H
.3

2
0
'

W. VIKING ROAD

GRADING LIMITS

GRADING LIMITS

R
IG

H
T
 O

F
 W

A
Y

53.00' LT

+30.12
53.00' LT

+20.34

77.50' LT

+80.06

48.00' LT

+80.06

2
0
'

1
5
'

45.50' LT

+30.84

45.50' LT

+60.84

R/W

PL

10' 
TRAIL

33.00' LT

+20.57

33.00' LT

+80.06

33.00' LT

+30.10

TEMPORARY CONSTRUCTION EASEMENT, 1370 SF 1
2
.5
'

TEMPORARY CONSTRUCTION EASEMENT, 3810 SF

TEMPORARY CONSTRUCTION EASEMENT, 1240 SF

77.50' LT

+20.06

4
4
.5
'

EASTMENT, 2660 SF
PERMANENT DRAINAGE 

38.00' LT

+30.84
38.00' LT

+60.84

38.00' LT

+30.10

6
6
' 
R

O
W

2
7
' 
B
/B

LEGEND

PERMANENT EASEMENT

TEMPORARY CONSTRUCTION EASEMENT

PERMANENT EASEMENT LINE

TEMPORARY CONSTRUCTION EASEMENT LINE

GRADING LIMITS

PROPERTY LINE

RIGHT OF WAY

PROPOSED SIDEWALK

PROPOSED ROAD

6

6716 VIKING RD

RANDALL D LORENZEN & PATRICIA R LORENZEN

7

6702 VIKING RD

STEPHEN C RIGGS & JANICE L RIGGS

25

CITY OF CEDAR FALLS

25

CITY OF CEDAR FALLS

30'

60'

5
'

5
'

403

Item 35.



 B
Y

D
A

T
E

R
E

V
IS
IO

N
M

A
R

K

S
c
a
le
:

C
h
e
c
k
e
d
 B

y
:

E
n
g
in
e
e
r:

T
e
c
h
n
ic
ia

n
:

D
a
te
:

F
ie
ld
 B

k
: 
  
  
  
  
P
g
:

1
"=
 

Sheet

S
h
e
e
t

Project No:

S
N

Y
D

E
R
 

&
 
A

S
S

O
C
I
A

T
E

S
,
 
I
N

C
.

P
ro
je
c
t 

N
o
:

e
g
u
t
ie
r
r
e
z

V
:\

P
r
o
j
e
c
t
s
\

2
0
1
8
\

1
1
8
.1

1
7

4
.0

8
K
\

C
A

D
D
\

C
D
_

1
1
8
1
1
7

4
K
_

H
4
.d

g
n

4
/
2
0
/
2
0
2
3

4
:2

3
:0

4
 

P
M

D
e
f
a
u
lt

1
:4

0

V
:\

R
e
f
L
ib
r
a
r
y
\

C
A

D
D

S
t
a
n
d
a
r
d
s
\

W
o
r
k
S
p
a
c
e
\

S
t
a
n
d
a
r
d
s
\

P
r
in
t
in

g
\

P
e
n
_

T
a
b
le
s
\

d
a
t
e
.t

b
l

V
8
iC

o
lo
r

H
a
lf

W
e
ig

h
t
P

D
F
.p
lt
c
f
g

1181174K

 

L
E
J

E
IG

1
1
8
1
1
7

4
K

 

W
. 

V
IK
IN

G
 R

O
A

D
 R

E
C

O
N

S
T

R
U

C
T
IO

N
 A

N
D
 T

R
A
IL

C
E

D
A

R
 F

A
L

L
S
, 
IO

W
A

J
M

S

5
1
5
-9

6
4
-2

0
2
0
  
| 
 w

w
w
.s

n
y
d
e
r-
a
s
s
o
c
ia
te
s
.c

o
m

A
N

K
E

N
Y
, 
IO

W
A
 5

0
0
2
3

2
7
2
7
 S
.W
. 
S

N
Y

D
E

R
 B

L
V

D
.

4
/
2
0
/
2
0
2
3

2
7

+
0
0

2
8

+
0
0

2
9

+
0
0

3
0

+
0
0

3
1
+
0
0

3
2

+
0
0

0 20

FEET

H.4

H
.4

2
0
'

GRADING LIMITS

W. VIKING ROAD

GRADING LIMITS

R
IG

H
T
 O

F
 W

A
Y

1
5
'

R/W

PL

10' TRAIL

33.00' LT

+95.26

33.00' LT

+62.66 1
5
'

2
0
'

5
'

1
5
'

48.00' LT

+62.66

53.00' LT

+95.27

EASEMENT, 5115 SF
TEMPORARY CONSTRUCTION 

EASEMENT, 5720 SF
TEMPORARY CONSTRUCTION 

53.00' LT

+55.00

38.00' LT

+55.00

53.00' LT

+70.00

48.00' LT

+70.00

6
6
' 
R

O
W

2
7
' 
B
/B

LEGEND

PERMANENT EASEMENT

TEMPORARY CONSTRUCTION EASEMENT

PERMANENT EASEMENT LINE

TEMPORARY CONSTRUCTION EASEMENT LINE

GRADING LIMITS

PROPERTY LINE

RIGHT OF WAY

PROPOSED SIDEWALK

PROPOSED ROAD

25

CITY OF CEDAR FALLS

25

CITY OF CEDAR FALLS

8

6616 VIKING RD

ALICE D BULLERS

9

BEVERLY J BECK TRUST & BECK BYPASS TRUST

404

Item 35.



 B
Y

D
A

T
E

R
E

V
IS
IO

N
M

A
R

K

S
c
a
le
:

C
h
e
c
k
e
d
 B

y
:

E
n
g
in
e
e
r:

T
e
c
h
n
ic
ia

n
:

D
a
te
:

F
ie
ld
 B

k
: 
  
  
  
  
P
g
:

1
"=
 

Sheet

S
h
e
e
t

Project No:

S
N

Y
D

E
R
 

&
 
A

S
S

O
C
I
A

T
E

S
,
 
I
N

C
.

P
ro
je
c
t 

N
o
:

e
g
u
t
ie
r
r
e
z

V
:\

P
r
o
j
e
c
t
s
\

2
0
1
8
\

1
1
8
.1

1
7

4
.0

8
K
\

C
A

D
D
\

C
D
_

1
1
8
1
1
7

4
K
_

H
5
.d

g
n

4
/
2
0
/
2
0
2
3

4
:2

3
:0

6
 

P
M

D
e
f
a
u
lt

1
:4

0

V
:\

R
e
f
L
ib
r
a
r
y
\

C
A

D
D

S
t
a
n
d
a
r
d
s
\

W
o
r
k
S
p
a
c
e
\

S
t
a
n
d
a
r
d
s
\

P
r
in
t
in

g
\

P
e
n
_

T
a
b
le
s
\

d
a
t
e
.t

b
l

V
8
iC

o
lo
r

H
a
lf

W
e
ig

h
t
P

D
F
.p
lt
c
f
g

1181174K

 

L
E
J

E
IG

1
1
8
1
1
7

4
K

 

W
. 

V
IK
IN

G
 R

O
A

D
 R

E
C

O
N

S
T

R
U

C
T
IO

N
 A

N
D
 T

R
A
IL

C
E

D
A

R
 F

A
L

L
S
, 
IO

W
A

J
M

S

5
1
5
-9

6
4
-2

0
2
0
  
| 
 w

w
w
.s

n
y
d
e
r-
a
s
s
o
c
ia
te
s
.c

o
m

A
N

K
E

N
Y
, 
IO

W
A
 5

0
0
2
3

2
7
2
7
 S
.W
. 
S

N
Y

D
E

R
 B

L
V

D
.

4
/
2
0
/
2
0
2
3

3
2

+
0
0

3
3

+
0
0

3
4

+
0
0

3
5

+
0
0

3
6

+
0
0

3
7

+
0
0

0 20

FEET

H.5

H
.5

2
0
'

GRADING LIMITS

W. VIKING ROAD

GRADING LIMITS

R
IG

H
T
 O

F
 W

A
Y

33.00' RT

+60.10

38.00' LT

+60.17

33.00' LT

+60.17

5
'

R/W

PL

IN
N

O
V

A
T
IO

N
 D

R
IV

E

43.00' RT

+60.10

5
'

5
'

5
'

6
6
' 
R

O
W

2
7
' 
B
/B

LEGEND

PERMANENT EASEMENT

TEMPORARY CONSTRUCTION EASEMENT

PERMANENT EASEMENT LINE

TEMPORARY CONSTRUCTION EASEMENT LINE

GRADING LIMITS

PROPERTY LINE

RIGHT OF WAY

PROPOSED SIDEWALK

PROPOSED ROAD

9

BEVERLY J BECK TRUST & BECK BYPASS TRUST

10

BEVERLY J BECK TRUST & BECK BYPASS TRUST

24

6421 VIKING RD

JACOB G NAUHOLZ & JESSICA L NAUHOLZ

25

CITY OF CEDAR FALLS

405

Item 35.



 B
Y

D
A

T
E

R
E

V
IS
IO

N
M

A
R

K

S
c
a
le
:

C
h
e
c
k
e
d
 B

y
:

E
n
g
in
e
e
r:

T
e
c
h
n
ic
ia

n
:

D
a
te
:

F
ie
ld
 B

k
: 
  
  
  
  
P
g
:

1
"=
 

Sheet

S
h
e
e
t

Project No:

S
N

Y
D

E
R
 

&
 
A

S
S

O
C
I
A

T
E

S
,
 
I
N

C
.

P
ro
je
c
t 

N
o
:

e
g
u
t
ie
r
r
e
z

V
:\

P
r
o
j
e
c
t
s
\

2
0
1
8
\

1
1
8
.1

1
7

4
.0

8
K
\

C
A

D
D
\

C
D
_

1
1
8
1
1
7

4
K
_

H
6
.d

g
n

4
/
2
0
/
2
0
2
3

4
:2

3
:0

9
 

P
M

D
e
f
a
u
lt

1
:4

0

V
:\

R
e
f
L
ib
r
a
r
y
\

C
A

D
D

S
t
a
n
d
a
r
d
s
\

W
o
r
k
S
p
a
c
e
\

S
t
a
n
d
a
r
d
s
\

P
r
in
t
in

g
\

P
e
n
_

T
a
b
le
s
\

d
a
t
e
.t

b
l

V
8
iC

o
lo
r

H
a
lf

W
e
ig

h
t
P

D
F
.p
lt
c
f
g

1181174K

 

L
E
J

E
IG

1
1
8
1
1
7

4
K

 

W
. 

V
IK
IN

G
 R

O
A

D
 R

E
C

O
N

S
T

R
U

C
T
IO

N
 A

N
D
 T

R
A
IL

C
E

D
A

R
 F

A
L

L
S
, 
IO

W
A

J
M

S

5
1
5
-9

6
4
-2

0
2
0
  
| 
 w

w
w
.s

n
y
d
e
r-
a
s
s
o
c
ia
te
s
.c

o
m

A
N

K
E

N
Y
, 
IO

W
A
 5

0
0
2
3

2
7
2
7
 S
.W
. 
S

N
Y

D
E

R
 B

L
V

D
.

4
/
2
0
/
2
0
2
3

3
8

+
0
0

3
9

+
0
0

4
0

+
0
0

4
1
+
0
0

4
2

+
0
0

4
3

+
0
0

0 20

FEET

H.6

H
.6

2
0
'

GRADING LIMITS

W. VIKING ROAD

GRADING LIMITS

R
IG

H
T
 O

F
 W

A
Y

33.00' LT

+00.06

38.00' LT

+00.05

5
'

63.00' RT

+52.31
63.00' RT

+27.31
58.00' RT

+45.72

58.00' RT

+70.72

25' TEMPORARY EASEMENT

56.00' RT

+72.80

56.00' RT

+97.80

R/W

PL

TEMPORARY CONSTRUCTION EASEMENT, 2200 SF

TEMPORARY CONSTRUCTION EASEMENT, 2725 SF
TEMPORARY CONSTRUCTION EASEMENT, 3330 SF

2
3
'

3
0
'

43.00' RT

+45.72

TEMPORARY CONSTRUCTION EASEMENT, 2772 SF

43.00' RT

+70.72

1
0
'

43.00' RT

+00.23

1
0
'

1
0
'

43.00' RT

+97.80
43.00' RT

+72.80
43.00' RT

+40.24

43.00' RT

+27.31
43.00' RT

+52.31

5
' 5
'

33.00' RT

+00.23

33.00' RT

+40.24

6
6
' 
R

O
W

2
7
' 
B
/B

LEGEND

PERMANENT EASEMENT

TEMPORARY CONSTRUCTION EASEMENT

PERMANENT EASEMENT LINE

TEMPORARY CONSTRUCTION EASEMENT LINE

GRADING LIMITS

PROPERTY LINE

RIGHT OF WAY

PROPOSED SIDEWALK

PROPOSED ROAD

10

BEVERLY J BECK TRUST & BECK BYPASS TRUST

11

6314 VIKING RD

DAVID W CAMPBELL

22

6337 VIKING RD

BRUCE L BARIDON & MARILYN D BARIDON

23

6415 VIKING RD

M L JERNIGAN & LINDA L JERNIGAN

24

6421 VIKING RD

JACOB G NAUHOLZ & JESSICA L NAUHOLZ

406

Item 35.



 B
Y

D
A

T
E

R
E

V
IS
IO

N
M

A
R

K

S
c
a
le
:

C
h
e
c
k
e
d
 B

y
:

E
n
g
in
e
e
r:

T
e
c
h
n
ic
ia

n
:

D
a
te
:

F
ie
ld
 B

k
: 
  
  
  
  
P
g
:

1
"=
 

Sheet

S
h
e
e
t

Project No:

S
N

Y
D

E
R
 

&
 
A

S
S

O
C
I
A

T
E

S
,
 
I
N

C
.

P
ro
je
c
t 

N
o
:

e
g
u
t
ie
r
r
e
z

V
:\

P
r
o
j
e
c
t
s
\

2
0
1
8
\

1
1
8
.1

1
7

4
.0

8
K
\

C
A

D
D
\

C
D
_

1
1
8
1
1
7

4
K
_

H
7
.d

g
n

4
/
2
0
/
2
0
2
3

4
:2

3
:1

1
 
P

M

D
e
f
a
u
lt

1
:4

0

V
:\

R
e
f
L
ib
r
a
r
y
\

C
A

D
D

S
t
a
n
d
a
r
d
s
\

W
o
r
k
S
p
a
c
e
\

S
t
a
n
d
a
r
d
s
\

P
r
in
t
in

g
\

P
e
n
_

T
a
b
le
s
\

d
a
t
e
.t

b
l

V
8
iC

o
lo
r

H
a
lf

W
e
ig

h
t
P

D
F
.p
lt
c
f
g

1181174K

 

L
E
J

E
IG

1
1
8
1
1
7

4
K

 

W
. 

V
IK
IN

G
 R

O
A

D
 R

E
C

O
N

S
T

R
U

C
T
IO

N
 A

N
D
 T

R
A
IL

C
E

D
A

R
 F

A
L

L
S
, 
IO

W
A

J
M

S

5
1
5
-9

6
4
-2

0
2
0
  
| 
 w

w
w
.s

n
y
d
e
r-
a
s
s
o
c
ia
te
s
.c

o
m

A
N

K
E

N
Y
, 
IO

W
A
 5

0
0
2
3

2
7
2
7
 S
.W
. 
S

N
Y

D
E

R
 B

L
V

D
.

4
/
2
0
/
2
0
2
3

4
4

+
0
0

4
5

+
0
0

4
6

+
0
0

4
7

+
0
0

4
8

+
0
0

0 20

FEET

H.7

H
.7

2
0
'

GRADING LIMITS

W. VIKING ROAD

GRADING LIMITS

R
IG

H
T
 O

F
 W

A
Y

33.00' RT

+43.20

10' TRAIL

TEMPORARY EASEMENT5
'

33.00' LT

+61.61

38.00' LT

+61.60

5
'

5
'

38.00' LT

+26.72

47.00' LT

+01.72

38.00' LT

+22.58
33.00' LT

+84.06

33.00' RT

+23.21

38.00' LT

+56.61

R/W

PL

TEMPORARY CONSTRUCTION EASEMENT, 865 SF

TEMPORARY CONSTRUCTION EASEMENT, 3450 SF

2
3
'

2
9
'

1
4
'

43.00' RT

+63.03

43.00' RT

+48.28

62.00' RT

+48.28
62.00' RT

+23.28

43.00' RT

+23.21

56.00' LT

+56.61

56.00' LT

+81.61

2
8
.5
'

43.00' RT

+73.27

61.50' RT

+73.27

61.50' RT

+08.27

43.00' RT

+43.20
43.00' RT

+08.27

1
0
'

53.50' LT

+92.58

53.50' LT

+22.58

2
0
.5
'

47.00' LT

+26.72

1
0
'

25'

30'

25'

5
'

EASEMENT, 2870 SF
TEMPORARY CONSTRUCTION 

EASEMENT, 860 SF
CONSTRUCTION 
TEMPORARY 

5
' 38.00' LT

+01.72
38.00' LT

+81.61

EASEMENT, 1870 SF
TEMPORARY CONSTRUCTION 

38.00' LT

+92.58

33.00' RT

+63.03

6
6
' 
R

O
W

LEGEND

PERMANENT EASEMENT

TEMPORARY CONSTRUCTION EASEMENT

PERMANENT EASEMENT LINE

TEMPORARY CONSTRUCTION EASEMENT LINE

GRADING LIMITS

PROPERTY LINE

RIGHT OF WAY

PROPOSED SIDEWALK

PROPOSED ROAD

20

6211 VIKING RD

MARVIN J MC ELVAIN & JEAN A MC ELVAIN

21

6317 VIKING RD

REBECCA D DICKINSON

22

6337 VIKING RD

BRUCE L BARIDON & MARILYN D BARIDON

19

CITY OF CEDAR FALLS

10

BEVERLY J BECK TRUST & BECK BYPASS TRUST

12

6206 VIKING RD

JOHN C MUNCY & NANCY L MUNCY

11

6314 VIKING RD

DAVID W CAMPBELL

2
7
' 
B
/B

407

Item 35.



 B
Y

D
A

T
E

R
E

V
IS
IO

N
M

A
R

K

S
c
a
le
:

C
h
e
c
k
e
d
 B

y
:

E
n
g
in
e
e
r:

T
e
c
h
n
ic
ia

n
:

D
a
te
:

F
ie
ld
 B

k
: 
  
  
  
  
P
g
:

1
"=
 

Sheet

S
h
e
e
t

Project No:

S
N

Y
D

E
R
 

&
 
A

S
S

O
C
I
A

T
E

S
,
 
I
N

C
.

P
ro
je
c
t 

N
o
:

e
g
u
t
ie
r
r
e
z

V
:\

P
r
o
j
e
c
t
s
\

2
0
1
8
\

1
1
8
.1

1
7

4
.0

8
K
\

C
A

D
D
\

C
D
_

1
1
8
1
1
7

4
K
_

H
8
.d

g
n

4
/
2
0
/
2
0
2
3

4
:2

3
:1

3
 

P
M

D
e
f
a
u
lt

1
:4

0

V
:\

R
e
f
L
ib
r
a
r
y
\

C
A

D
D

S
t
a
n
d
a
r
d
s
\

W
o
r
k
S
p
a
c
e
\

S
t
a
n
d
a
r
d
s
\

P
r
in
t
in

g
\

P
e
n
_

T
a
b
le
s
\

d
a
t
e
.t

b
l

V
8
iC

o
lo
r

H
a
lf

W
e
ig

h
t
P

D
F
.p
lt
c
f
g

1181174K

 

L
E
J

E
IG

1
1
8
1
1
7

4
K

 

W
. 

V
IK
IN

G
 R

O
A

D
 R

E
C

O
N

S
T

R
U

C
T
IO

N
 A

N
D
 T

R
A
IL

C
E

D
A

R
 F

A
L

L
S
, 
IO

W
A

J
M

S

5
1
5
-9

6
4
-2

0
2
0
  
| 
 w

w
w
.s

n
y
d
e
r-
a
s
s
o
c
ia
te
s
.c

o
m

A
N

K
E

N
Y
, 
IO

W
A
 5

0
0
2
3

2
7
2
7
 S
.W
. 
S

N
Y

D
E

R
 B

L
V

D
.

4
/
2
0
/
2
0
2
3

4
9

+
0
0

5
0

+
0
0

5
1
+
0
0

5
2

+
0
0

5
3

+
0
0

5
4

+
0
0

0 20

FEET

H.8

H
.8

2
0
'

GRADING LIMITS

W. VIKING ROAD

GRADING LIMITS

10' TRAIL

R
IG

H
T
 O

F
 W

A
Y

33.13' RT

+28.56

75.17' LT

+90.46

33.00' LT

+90.53

38.00' LT

+90.52

R/W

PL

5
'

15'

6
6
' 
R

O
W

2
7
' 
B
/B

LEGEND

PERMANENT EASEMENT

TEMPORARY CONSTRUCTION EASEMENT

PERMANENT EASEMENT LINE

TEMPORARY CONSTRUCTION EASEMENT LINE

GRADING LIMITS

PROPERTY LINE

RIGHT OF WAY

PROPOSED SIDEWALK

PROPOSED ROAD

12

JOHN C MUNCY & NANCY L MUNCY

12

6206 VIKING RD

JOHN C MUNCY & NANCY L MUNCY

19

CITY OF CEDAR FALLS

408

Item 35.



 
 

DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-273-8606 
Fax: 319-273-8610 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 

MEMORANDUM 
Planning & Community Services Division 

  

   

 

 

 
 
 
 

 TO: Mayor Robert M. Green and City Council 

 FROM: Karen Howard, AICP, Planning & Community Services Manager 

 DATE: October 2, 2023 

 SUBJECT: Petition from City Council to Amend parking requirements in the Downtown 
Character District (TA23-004)  

 

 
On March 20, 2023, the City Council considered the Planning and Zoning Commission’s 
recommendation regarding their request to eliminate the shared parking requirements in 
the Downtown Character District (CD-DT). The Commission recommended against 
eliminating the shared parking requirements and on a split vote, the ordinance 
amendment failed to pass at Council, so the shared parking requirements remain 
unchanged. At that same meeting, the Council made a referral to petition the Planning 
and Zoning Commission to consider amending the zoning code to eliminate the 
provision that allows on-street parking that directly abuts a property to count toward the 
shared parking requirement for any new development on the property that requires 
shared parking.     
 
Background 
 
In the Downtown Character District, for a new development project that contains 
apartments or upper floor commercial uses, a certain number of shared parking spaces 
must be provided. These are in addition to the required parking spaces for the project.  
The shared parking requirement is intended to provide a small amount of publicly 
available parking to the downtown area for visitors and customers to use in locations 
where public parking is in short supply. To help alleviate the cost of making this 
contribution to the supply of publicly available parking and to prevent this requirement 
from becoming so onerous on tight development sites that it prevents projects from 
occurring, the ordinance is written to provide flexibility on how the shared parking 
requirement is met.  To that end, shared parking spaces may be located on the 
development site or on another private property within a 600-foot walking distance from 
the site (approximately 2 blocks). In addition, any on-street parking that directly abuts the 
property may be counted toward the development’s shared parking requirement. This last 
provision was intended to mirror how the parking requirements were administered in the 
Central Business District Overlay (CBD) prior to adoption of the new code. In the previous 

409

Item 36.



 
 

CBD Overlay the parking requirements for upper floor residential uses were rather 
ambiguous and were thus established through a review at P&Z and Council. In practice, 
any on-street parking spaces that directly abutted the property counted toward the visitor 
parking requirement. The thinking was that if parking was already available for visitors 
next to the site, the developer didn’t need to provide extra parking on the private property 
for visitors.      
 
The City Council has requested that the Commission consider eliminating the provision 
in the Downtown Character District Code that allows on-street parking to count toward a 
development’s shared parking requirement.  
 
Specifically, delete City Code Section 26-196E., Special Parking Standards.     
 
If eliminated, the shared parking requirement would have to be provided on the private 
development site and/or on another private property within 600 feet walking distance. The 
latter would require a binding agreement between the two properties to ensure the shared 
parking spaces were available to the public to use during the designated times as 
approved by the City.   
 
RECOMMENDATION:  
 
At their meeting on September 13, 2023, the Planning and Zoning Commission 
disapproved the petition to delete Section 26-196E., Special Parking Standards.   
 
Therefore, staff recommends that the City Council set a date of public hearing for October 
16, 2023 on the proposed ordinance to delete City Code Section 26-196E, Special 
Parking Standards. Due to the disapproval by the Planning and Zoning Commission, a 
2/3 majority vote of the Council will be required to approve the ordinance amendment.   
 
 
PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION MINUTES 

Introduction 

07/23/23 
The first item of business became a zoning code text amendment regarding 
on-street parking as shared parking. Acting Chair Hartley introduced the item 
and Ms. Howard provided background information. She explained that this is 
related to on-street parking being counted toward shared parking in the 
downtown area that City Council has petitioned to eliminate. She provided 
background and spoke about information that has been discussed at 
previous meetings. There were no comments or questions. 
 
Ms. Grybovych made a motion to set public hearing for August 9, 2023. Mr. 
Larson seconded the motion. The motion was approved with 6 ayes 
(Alberhasky, Crisman, Grybovych, Hartley, Larson and Moser), and 1 nay 
(Leeper). 

  
   

Re-set public 

hearing 

8/23/2023 

The next item for consideration by the Commission was a Zoning Code Text 
Amendment regarding On-Street Parking as Shared Parking. Chair Lynch 
introduced the item and Ms. Howard provided background information. She 

410

Item 36.



 
 

explained that the Commission needed to reset the public hearing because 
the Courier failed to publish the required notice according to the City’s 
requirements. 
 
Mr. Leeper made a motion to set the public hearing for September 13, 2023. 
Mr. Stalnaker seconded the motion. The motion was approved unanimously 
with 8 ayes (Alberhasky, Grybovych, Hartley, Larson, Leeper, Lynch, Moser 
and Stalnaker), and 0 nays. 

 

 

Public hearing and 

Vote 

9/13/2023 

The next item for consideration by the Commission was a Zoning Code text 
amendment for on-street parking as shared parking. Chair Lynch introduced 
the item and Ms. Howard provided background information. She explained 
that the Commission has been asked to consider eliminating the zoning code 
provision that allows on-street parking that directly abuts a property to count 
toward the shared parking requirement for any new development on the 
property. More specifically, it is requested to delete City Code Section 26-
196E, Special Parking Standards. She provided brief background again 
regarding the current code, explaining that the ordinance provides flexibility 
on how the shared parking requirement is satisfied. She noted that the 
flexibility is intended to help reduce the burden/cost of making this 
contribution to the supply of publicly available parking.  
 
Staff recommends that the Commission hold a public hearing, discuss, and 
make a recommendation to the City Council regarding their petition to delete 
the code. 
 
Mr. Leeper asked what the options were. Ms. Howard stated that they can 
either approve or deny the deletion of the section of the code.  
 
Mr. Hartley stated that the Commission discussed this a great deal during the 
process and feels that they made a decision at that time and that they are 
now being asked to change it, when they have already calculated and made 
a decision. Mr. Leeper agreed and stated that the provisions are meant to 
encourage density and in order to promote growth downtown, a different 
approach to parking is needed. Mr. Larson agreed with those sentiments. 
 
Ms. Moser made a motion to approve the item. Mr. Hartley seconded the 
motion. The motion was denied unanimously with 8 nays (Alberhasky, 
Crisman, Hartley, Larson, Leeper, Lynch, Moser and Stalnaker), and 0 ayes. 

 

411

Item 36.



412

Item 37.

WagnerS
Typewritten Text
DAILY INVOICES FOR 10/02/23 COUNCIL MEETING



413

Item 37.



414

Item 37.



415

Item 37.



416

Item 37.



417

Item 37.



418

Item 37.



419

Item 37.



420

Item 37.



421

Item 37.



422

Item 37.

WagnerS
Typewritten Text
COUNCIL INVOICES FOR 10/02/23 MEETING



423

Item 37.



424

Item 37.



425

Item 37.



426

Item 37.



427

Item 37.



428

Item 37.



429

Item 37.



430

Item 37.



431

Item 37.



432

Item 37.



433

Item 37.



434

Item 37.



435

Item 37.



436

Item 37.



437

Item 37.



438

Item 37.



439

Item 37.



440

Item 37.



441

Item 37.



442

Item 37.



443

Item 37.



444

Item 37.



445

Item 37.



446

Item 37.



447

Item 37.



448

Item 37.



449

Item 37.



450

Item 37.



451

Item 37.



452

Item 37.


	Top
	Item 1.	Minutes 09-18-23
	230918MINUTES

	Item 2.	Proclamation-Energy Efficiency Day
	2023-10-04_EnergyEfficiencyDay

	Item 3.	Proclamation-Public Power Week
	2023-10-W1_NationalPublicPowerWeek

	Item 4.	Proclamation-Children's Environmental Health Day
	2023-10-12_ChildrensEnvironmentalHealthDay

	Item 5.	Proclamation-Domestic Violence Awareness Month
	2023-10_DomesticViolenceAwarenessMonth

	Item 6.	PH-PPTE - KL Iowa 01, LLC
	1_CC Memo for KL Iowa 01, LLC Public Hearing 10-02-23
	2_KL Iowa 01, LLC Site Map
	3-Ord-PPTE-KL Iowa 01 Revised 1

	Item 7.	Standing Committee Meeting Minutes 09/18/2023
	09.18.2023 Standing Committee Minutes- FINAL

	Item 8.	Standing Committee- Special Meeting 09/18/2023
	09.18.2023 Special Standing Committee Minutes- FINAL

	Item 9.	Appointments - Boards & Commissions
	1712_001

	Item 10.	Civil Service Commission-Civil CAD/GIS and Eng. Tech II
	Civil CAD
	Eng Tech II

	Item 11.	Departmental Monthly Report
	08 - August 2023 Departmental Monthly Report

	Item 12.	Tobacco Permits 10/02/2023
	10022023 Tobacco Application

	Item 13.	Retail alcohol 9-25-23
	Retail alcohol 10-2-23

	Item 15.	City Clerk Appointment
	city clerk appointment memo.mem
	City Clerk 2023 resolution.res

	Item 16.	Assessment-1321 West 12th Street
	1321 W. 12th St Assessment

	Item 17.	Assessment-3120 Homeway Drive
	3120 Homeway Dr Assessment

	Item 18.	ERP System and Vendor Contract
	ERP system council memo.mem (1)
	Cedar Falls Preferred Vendor Memo (1)
	Signed contract new ins page

	Item 19.	Berry Dunn Contract
	Amendment 2 Cedar Falls Project Mgmt Services Agreement
	Amendment 2 IA City of Cedar Falls-Exhibit B_Proj Mgmt Services SOW

	Item 20.	Agreement-SpyGlass-Audit of Telecom Billing
	Spyglass Service Agreement
	1674_001

	Item 21.	MSA-FSSecure for Annual Penetration Testing
	Council Memo Pen testing with FRSecure
	FRSecure MSA - City of Cedar Falls -FINAL
	Exhibit A - City of Cedar Falls IA -  Annual External Penetration Testing SOW

	Item 22.	Final-City Hall Remodel Project
	1 - Final payment memo
	2- city hall final pay app

	Item 23.	TIF Project Resolution: Cedar Falls Utilities
	1_Staff Memo to Council 10-02-23 - Communication
	2_TIF Resolution for CFU Communications Project in Unified URA on 10-02-23
	3_CFU TIF Resolution No. 6544 Unified Hwy 58 Corridor URA

	Item 24.	FY24 Funding Agreement-CFEDC
	1_CFEDC Contract Memo To CC 10-02-23
	2_FINAL EXECUTION VERSION CFEDC FY24 Funding Contract

	Item 25.	CDBG Rehab Amendment-912 Calumett
	1 memo to City Council change order
	2. Seather Change Order 1 - need City signature
	3 Seather Loan Agreement - need City signature
	4 Seather Mortgage signed

	Item 26.	CDBG Rehab - 808 Bluff
	1 808 Bluff memo to cc
	2 Contact with Tojo at 808 bluff

	Item 27.	CHN Site Plan - Murals at Pettersen Plaza
	1. Staff report - Murals at Pettersen Plaza
	2. Proposal and Permissions
	3. PDF Image of Proposal

	Item 28.	1310 Iowa - Rental to Owner Conversion
	1. Memo to Council - 1310 Iowa
	2. Forgivable Loan Agreement
	3. Exhibit A Estimate and Forgivable Loan Awarded
	4. Exhibit B MORTGAGE - Cedar Falls template renter to owner program
	5. Letter of Intent
	6. Application
	7. Cost Estimates
	8. Pictures of Exterior

	Item 29.	1205 W 7th - Rental to Owner Conversion
	1. Memo to Council - 1205 W 7th Street
	2. Forgivable Loan Agreement
	3. Exhibit A Estimate and Forgivable Loan Awarded
	4. Exhibit B MORTGAGE - Cedar Falls renter to owner program
	5. Rent conversion council letter
	6. rental to single family application
	7. Revised Estimate_1010_from_S__H_Garages_LLC w-Driveway
	8. Existing Pictures on site

	Item 30.	PC-2 District Site Plan - 702 LeClair St.
	1_CC staff report ATS building SP1
	2. ZoningLocationMap
	3. 22-1118 - CITY OF CF - 2023-08-24 - REVISED SITE PLAN
	4. Howe, Randy ATS New Bld Full Site Complete 09.07
	5. ATS-Storage-8-24-23-permit

	Item 31.	Master Plan Amendment - Pinnacle Prairie Townhomes, Phase I
	1 CC Staff Report for Whispering Pines Masterplan Amendment
	2. ZoningLocationMap
	3. whispering pines master plan for CF A rev8 21
	4. whispering pines master plan for CF B rev8 21
	5. whispering pines master plan for CF C rev8 21
	6. Floor Plans and Elevations
	7. Approved Master Plan in 2006

	Item 32.	Set PH-Easement Vacation-West Viking Industrial Park Phase V
	1 CC Memo Setting PH - W Viking Industrial Park Phase V, Lots 17 and 18
	2. Res Setting PH and Directing Publication of Notice.final
	3 PLAT_2023-08-28_VACATION_Final

	Item 33.	Set PH-Agreement PD - KL Iowa 02, LLC
	1_Memo to Council Setting Date of Public Hearing 10-02-23
	2_KL Iowa 02, LLC Site Map
	3_Res Setting Date of Public Hearing - KL Iowa 02, LLC

	Item 34.	Set PH-NCHA Reconstruction Phase II-ROW
	1. Memo PH Notice - North Cedar Heights Area Reconstruction Phase II
	3.Phase2_ROW-2023_0915

	Item 35.	Set PH - W Viking Rd Reconstruction & ROW
	1. Memo PH ROW - W Viking Rd Recon
	2. W Viking Recon ROW Sheets

	Item 36.	Set PH-Zoning-eliminating allowance for on-street parking for shared parking requirement
	Memo.CC. set ph 10.2.23 councilpetition.CD-DT

	Item 37.	Bills and Claims 10/02/23
	1 Daily Invoices 100223
	2 Council Invoices 100223

	Bottom



